
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 11th February, 2020
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth B&C , First Floor, Training & 

Conference Suite, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4  Items for Exclusion of Public and Press 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5  Minutes 5 - 8

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 13th January 2020.

6  Work Programme 2019/2020 9 - 13

Public Document Pack



To consider the Committee’s work programme for 2019/2020

7  Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-20: 
Quarter 3 Performance Update 

14 - 28

To consider 3rd quarter performance data, 2019/2020 (October – 
December 2019) in respect of Corporate and Neighbourhood 
Directorates.

8  Finance Update Report 2019/20 29 - 57

To consider the Council’s financial position

9  Collection Fund 2019/20 58 - 68

To update the Committee on the forecast Collection Fund outturn 
position for 2019/20 as at the end of November 2019.

10  Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 69 - 94

For the Committee to receive a report on the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2020/2021

11  Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy for 2020/21 95 - 127

For the Committee to consider the proposed Capital Investment and 
Disposal Strategy.

12  Budget 2020/21 - 2022/23 - Local Government Act 2003 
Requirements 

128 - 150

The Chief Finance Officer to report on the Budget 2020/21 – 2022/23: 
Local Government Act 2003 requirements.

13  Discretionary Fees & Charges 151 - 184

To consider proposed discretionary fees and charges for 2020/2021

14  Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 185 - 278



The Chief Finance Officer to report on the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy

15  Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 – Update Following 
Consultation 

279 - 340

To consider savings proposals for 2020/2021

16  2020/21 Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy 341 - 364

To consider a Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy for 2020/2021 

17  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 

18  Property Investments – Performance & Risk Q3 2019/20 365 - 377

To consider a report on Property Investments – Performance & Risk 
Q3 2019/20.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor David Bamford Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Michael Holly Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Elsie Wraighte

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Committees and Constitutional Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone – 01706 924715
E-mail – peter.thompson@rchdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rchdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 13 January 2020

PRESENT: Councillor Holly (Chair); Councillors Bamford, Boriss, O'Neill, 
Rana, Williams and Wraighte

OFFICERS: Julie Murphy – Chief Finance Officer, Rosemary Barker (Head of 
Workforce and Organisational Development), Caroline Wolfenden (Head of 
Corporate Policy and Performance)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Joinson, Councillor Mir and 
Councillor Robinson

131 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Nolan and Joinson.

132 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declaration of interests.

133 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

134 MINUTES

RESOLVED

That the Minutes held on the 28th October 2019 be approved as a correct 
record.

135 CAPITAL REPORT

The Chief Finance Officer presented to the Committee a report, which 
updated Members on the Council’s proposed Capital Programme for 2021/22 
to 2022/23.

It was reported that the proposed Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2022/23 
contains details of schemes for the following years, in 2020/21 budget of 
£80.723m, 2021/22 budget of £48.480m and 2022/23 budget of £25.232m.

The Capital Programme was funded from a combination of Capital Receipts, 
Prudential Borrowing, Invest to Save, Government Grants and Contributions, 
and Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay.

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

136 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2019/20

The Chief Finance Officer presented to the Committee a report, which 
updated Members on the Council’s financial position as at the end of 
September 2019. It was noted that the report had been approved by the 
Cabinet at its meeting in December 2019.

The report provided Members with details on;

 The forecast Revenue position, was an overspend of £5.942m which is 
net of an expected refund from the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority. The refund will be used to offset any in year overspend, and 
it is intended that any unused amount will be transferred to the 
Equalisation Reserve.

 A pressure of £6.700m relating to the Pooled Fund is requested to be 
funded from an additional contribution from the Equalisation Reserve.

 An update of the Savings target of £0.135m, as part of the Revenue 
budget 2019/20.

 Forecast Capital spend of £121.322m after net re-phasing of £7.210m.
 The Treasury Management Update in appendix G.

Members were reminded that a number of departments were predicting to 
overspend their budgets, in particular Adults and Children’s Services. It was 
noted that the Chair had agreed to have a detailed presentation at the next 
meeting of the Committee to better understand how these services were 
planning to reduce its predicted overspend.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

137 COLLECTION FUND 2019/20

The Committee received a report from the Chief Finance Officer who updated 
Members on the Council’s Collection Fund outturn position for 2019/2020. The 
Committee were advised that this report would be submitted to the Council’s 
Cabinet, on 2nd December 2019 where the recommendations contained 
therein would be requested to be approved.

It was reported that the Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 was a forecast 
as a surplus of £1.383m, comprising: £0.597m surplus relating to Business 
Rates; and £0.786m surplus relating to Council Tax. The Council’s share of 
the forecast 2018/19 Collection Fund outturn surplus was £1.260m.

Page 5



RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

138 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2019

The Head of HR provided Members with an up to date plan for Corporate 
Organisational Development (OD) to support the organisation to achieve its 
aims and objectives. It was reported that key strands for the plan included 
supporting Culture change; Leadership Development; Staff engagement; 
Health and Wellbeing and Learning and Development. 

It was reported that through the OD plan the Corporate OD team look to bring 
together the key themes of OD activity into a high level summary which give 
clear visual image of the key objectives, outcomes and programmes and 
activities for each of the main themes of the programme.

Members held a discussion with Officer around training budgets and the 
Councils new learning platform. Members considered reporting mechanisms 
on how successful the Council in terms of its OD and how this could be 
reported to Scrutiny. It was noted that this was something the Chair and Vice-
Chair would consider further with Officers.

RESOLVED

That Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorse the Organisational 
Development Plan 2019.

139 WORKFORCE WELLBEING UPDATE 2019

The Head of HR provided Members with an update on the workforce 
wellbeing strategy for the Council and CCG. Members were informed that 
through a staff survey and engagement with a range of stakeholders 
(including newly appointed wellbeing champions from  across the 
organisations) key priorities had been identified with a supporting action plan, 
overseen by a cross organisational steering group. 

Members noted the new priorities and implementation plan which were 
attached to the report. Members were please report, noting that Workforce 
Wellbeing was a key enabler for the success of any organisation in terms of 
increased employee engagement, productivity and reduced absenteeism.

RESOLVED

1) That the report and implementation plan be noted.

2) That the work programme for the wellbeing strategy be circulated to 
Committee Members.

Page 6



140 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED

That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 100A (3) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

141 INSURANCE CLAIMS REPORT 2018/19

The Council’s Risk Manager provided Members with a report on data and trends in 
relation to the Council's insurance claims, and was presented to the Committee for 
information.

The report informed Members of the impact on potential costs from the work of the 
Insurance Team and to increase awareness of trends in claims over recent years.

RESOLVED

1) That the report be noted.

2) That changes to the Council’s Insurance Premiums and how much the 
Council Paid for its insurance be email to all Committee Members.

Page 7



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 7th June, 2019 Monday, 10th June, 2019 Tuesday, 18th June, 2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 11th July, 2019 Monday, 15th July, 2019 Tuesday, 23rd July, 2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 16th October, 2019 Friday, 18th October, 2019

Monday, 28th October, 

2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 30th December, 2019 Friday, 2nd January, 2020

Monday, 13th January, 

2020

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 30th January, 2020 Monday, 3rd February, 2020

Tuesday, 11th February, 

2020

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 12th March, 2020 Friday, 16th March, 2020 Tuesday, 24th March, 2020

What we do

The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it

The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology.

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors.

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals.

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate.

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council.

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate.

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews.

 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council).

Page 9



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2019/20

18th June 2019

23rd July 2019

Work Programme 
Directorate Plans 2019-2020
Corporate Plan (2020 - 2023)
Employment Equality Report 2018/19 
Finance Update Report 2019/20
Budget 2020/21 To 2022/23 Guidelines, 
Timetable And Public Engagement
Health Related Absence Reporting
Township Funds Review

28th October 2019

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2018/19

Performance monitoring and 
management

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation.

Financial scrutiny

Corporate Complaints report
Schools Outturn
Fees and Charges

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/19

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2018/19)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Revenue Finance Outturn Report 
2018/19 

Financial scrutiny

Capital Finance Outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Savings outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund Outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny

Page 10



13th January 2020

Work Programme 2019/20 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Collection Fund 2019/20 Performance monitoring and 

management
Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including savings, Budget 
Preparation and Insurance.

Financial scrutiny

Insurance Claims Report 2018/1 Financial scrutiny

OD Strategy
Workforce Wellbeing

11th February 2020 (Budget Scrutiny meeting)

24th March 2020

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Update reports: 3rd 
Quarter 2019/20 
 Resources Directorate
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
BAU – Short Task Group before the 
start of the meeting.
Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including;

 Council Tax
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Revenue and Capital Budgets 

and Council Tax 2019/20  
Robustness of the budget

 Detail on Children’s budget

Budget development

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Joint Equalities Strategy
3rd Quarter 201920: Directorate Plan 
Update

Performance monitoring and 
management

Page 11



 Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation

Financial scrutiny

Commercial Development
Artificial Intelligence in business 
processes (R19020)
Township Plan 2020-2022

Other items to be assigned a meeting

Agilysis report plus visit Members to decide at February 
meeting if keep on work 
Programme

Digital Strategy Only If significant changes from 
previous version

Contact Centre Members to decide at February 
meeting if keep on work 
Programme

PSR – Public Sector Reform Members to decide at February 
meeting if keep on work 
Programme

Page 12



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting MeetingDateLegal
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture, 
Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Cabinet Member 
for Resources

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document

Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 
3 Performance Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October - 31st December 2019) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Resources Directorate 
Plan 2019-20 and the Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 
2019-20.

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1

3.2

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 3 progress reports for the Resources Directorate and 
Neighbourhoods Directorate (Corporate Support) are attached at Appendices 
1 and 2. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in accordance 
with the following criteria.

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



3.3

3.4

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple.

This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones 
for each directorate action. This enables O&S to monitor the work that must be 
completed, to support achievement of the action

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Resources Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress

Performance Overview

90% (18) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019-20 are ongoing 
and due to be complete by the action due date. Two actions are now fully 
complete. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

Quarter 3 Highlights

An updated budget report, Medium Term Financial Strategy, Savings Report, 
Proposed Fees and Charges and provisional Capital Programme have been 
submitted to Cabinet during the last quarter. A provisional settlement has been 
received in December with the final settlement expected in January. Final 
reports will be submitted to Budget Cabinet and Budget Council in February 
2021.

No commercial property investments were completed in Q3, however an 
investment was considered in the period, and advice provided in respect of the 
financial implications for the Council. Reports regarding proposed future 
investments were reviewed and financial implications understood before 
approval by the Sub-Committee. 

Page 14



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The local council tax support scheme has been reviewed. The outcome of 
consultation was presented to Cabinet on 2nd December. Cabinet agreed to 
recommend introducing a banded income scheme for 2020/21 for working age 
customers in receipt of Universal Credit. Council approved the 
recommendation on 18 December. 
  
The action plan for the Council’s strategic approach to Workforce Wellbeing is 
on track. Highlights have included Connect 5 training for workforce wellbeing 
champions, a refreshed and coordinated approach to branding with a 
wellbeing portal, and launch of the Active Soles programme. The proactive 
approach to wellbeing was recognised through our winning of the Greater 
Sport GM 'Active Workplace of the Year Award’.

The work to identify which services and processes could benefit from artificial 
intelligence (AI) and automation earlier in the year has been reviewed and 
updated, with some additional processes from the contact centre who had 
been separately exploring solutions. A draft business case is expected to be 
complete early in Quarter 4. Alongside this we have been exploring the market 
to understand the range of AI/Automation solutions available and understand 
which solutions are being used in other local authorities.

Performance Issues

None

Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress

Performance Overview

57% (4) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019-20 are ongoing 
and due to be complete by the action due date. Two actions have now been 
completed and one further action isn’t complete and the due date has passed.  
The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting 
its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

Page 15



4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

The action that isn’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber) 
relates to:

 Agree plan for embedding Public Service Reform across the borough

Quarter 3 Highlights

A new Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour partnership group has been 
established to drive forward the development of the Anti-Social Behaviour 
strategy and action plan. This work is on progress and due to be completed by 
the end of Quarter 4. 

As part of the plan to embed public service reform across the borough the 
Heywood Place Team is now fully operational with drop ins and multi-agency 
partners in place. Additional peripatetic teams are in place in Middleton and 
Pennines with plans to develop a Cooperative Place Partnership in a test area 
in Pennines.

A new Corporate Plan (2019-2022) has been developed and approved via the 
Council’s governance process. The development of a joint Equality and 
Diversity Strategy for the Council and CCG has now been completed and due 
for sign off early 2020.

Performance Issues 

None

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

Page 16



8. Resources Directorate Plan 2019-
20

Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) 
Directorate Plan 2019-20

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 17



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 

R19001 Budget Council approving a robust balanced budget for 2020/21 31 March 2020   

An updated budget report, Medium Term Financial Strategy, Savings Report, Proposed Fees and Charges and provisional Capital Programme have 
been submitted to Cabinet during the last quarter. A provisional settlement has been received in December with the final settlement expected in 
January. Final reports will be submitted to Budget Cabinet and Budget Council in February 2021 

        

R19002 Support the pooled fund manager and develop strategies for bridging the pooled fund gap in 
current and future financial years. 

31 March 2020   

A report has been submitted to the Integrated Commissioning Board and Cabinet on the proposal around closing the 2019/20 gap. Work is ongoing 
for proposals for balancing the 20/21 position and Integrated Commissioning Board and Cabinet will be updated in Quarter 4. 

        

R19003 Input into Key Strategic Council and GM projects from a Finance, Legal and HR perspective. 31 March 2020   

All reports with financial implications submitted to Cabinet for decisions were signed off by Finance Support Service. All relevant meetings attended 
and financial implications known re key strategic Council/GM projects including:  
South Heywood/Junction 19, Town Centre Capital Programme, Town Hall Restoration, Property Growth Fund & Hollingworth Lake 

        

R19004 Provide financial advice on the Commercial and Regeneration projects being undertaken by the 
Council. 

31 March 2020   

No commercial property investments were completed in Q3, however an investment was considered in the period, and advice provided in respect of 
the financial implications for the Council. Reports regarding proposed future investments were reviewed and financial implications understood before 
approval by the Sub-Committee. The Q2 PGF monitoring position was reported to PGF Sub Committee in this quarter; the Q3 position will be reported 
in January 2020, ensuring Members are kept fully informed with regard to performance and risk. 

P
age 18



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

        

R19005 Provide legal advice on the Commercial and Regeneration projects being undertaken by the 
Council 

31 March 2020  

Ongoing legal support is provided in relation to key property transactions both prior to purchase and in any ongoing transactions once in the Council's 
ownership. For instance since completing the acquisition of the Logic Industrial Estate at Kingsway we have completed a number of the leases of the 
individual Units. Support is also provided by attendance at in-house property growth fund meetings with colleagues from the RDA and Estates. Legal 
Services are also continuing to provide advice and support to Client in relation to JV's and business ventures 

        

R19006 Produce the 2018/19 Statutory Accounts 31 March 2020  

Accounts signed off at Audit and Governance on 25th July, audit certificate received 25th September closing the audit. 

        

R19007 Delivery of the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 31 March 2020  

74% of the approved Audit Plan has been completed by the end of the quarter which is in line with target. 

        

R19008 Implementation of the Risk Management Strategy 31 March 2020  

Brexit planning and reporting continued during October as part of the Rochdale EU Exit group in support of the Brexit Lead Officer. A solution to 
current limitations to Pentana software reporting is planned for January. The reissue of the Rochdale Risk Management Policy has been delayed due 
to the need to prioritise Brexit planning. A new high-priority cyber security risk has been identified by ICT Services. The latest risk control review 
completion rate (used as a measure of Service engagement) was reported to LT at 91.85 in Q2. 

P
age 19



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

        

R19009 Maximising income to the Council 31 March 2020  

Council Tax - 80.9% (80.9% in 2018/19) 
Business Rates - 78.3% (79.6% in 2018/19) 

        

R19010 Improving accessibility to services – Council Connect (Customer Self-Service) 31 March 2020  

Discussions are underway with the Corporate Strategic Lead for Transformation & Resource and the Head of Comms with a view to targeting take up 
of E-Billing, 12 monthly instalments and Direct Debit. 

        

R19011 Review of Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2020/21 31 March 2020  

The outcome of consultation was presented to Cabinet on 2 December. Cabinet agreed to recommend introducing a banded income scheme for 
2020/21 for working age customers in receipt of Universal Credit. Council approved the recommendation on 18 December. 

        

R19012 Developing the use of our HR system to maximise customer experience and enhance 
organisational performance including the integration of the iTrent HR System with Civica the Financial 
Ledger 

31 March 2020  

Recruitment to fixed term post unsuccessful to date but the search continues. Cleansing & alignment of iTrent structures with finance budgets 
continues. Roll out of e-slips to schools to be fully implemented by February 2020 along with LGPS monthly data collection. 

        

P
age 20



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

R19013 Financially support the development of a 5 year Children’s Strategy 31 March 2020   

Monthly meetings have continued in quarter 3 and the service is focused on delivering the innovations which underpin the delivery of the financial 
strategy. Children Service has been successful in securing funding from the Department for Education which will support the "No Wrong Door" 
innovation. Work is ongoing to understand the timing and terms and conditions of the funding. The service is reporting a £3.1m pressure at period 6 
and work will continue to try and contain these pressures. 

        

R19014 Develop: Leadership Team Academy, Integrated Leadership, Wider Leadership Team and Staff 
Engagement Strategy 

31 March 2020   

Cohort 2 have completed presentations. Evaluation report compiled and will be presented to LT in January 2020. Cohort 3 recruited (31 delegates) 
and due to start January 2020. Aspiring Leaders programme is progressing and New leaders programme due to start in 2020. Preparations underway 
for staff briefings in March 2020. Dates scheduled and published. Discussions re: content to take place in January 2020 with LT. Train the trainer 
events relating to PDR review and rollout scheduled for February 2020 

        

R19015 Develop the Council’s strategic approach to Workforce Wellbeing in line with the Public Health 5 
pillars of wellbeing, maximising the resources within the Council and with partners 

31 March 2020   

The action plan is on track. Highlights have included Connect 5 training for workforce wellbeing champions, a refreshed a coordinated approach to 
branding with a wellbeing portal, and launch of the Active Soles programme. The proactive approach to wellbeing was recognised through our 
winning of the Greater Sport GM 'Active Workplace of the Year Award’. The Overview and Scrutiny committee in November was cancelled so the 
report will be taken to the next meeting (January) 

        

R19016 Embed good governance practice and articulate expectations within the Council with its senior 
leaders, staff and all Members of the Council 

31 March 2020   

P
age 21



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

A new Independent person was appointed at Council and has been trained in his new role. The Audit & Governance Committee continue to receive 
regular training on the roles and responsibilities. Work has begun on preparing the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and a governance 
questionnaire has been issued for completion by senior managers. We will be testing the content by peer challenge prior to inclusion in the AGS - the 
first authority in GM to do this. 

        

R19017 To review electoral arrangements on parliamentary footprints 31 March 2020   

Parliamentary boundary recommendations remain delayed in parliament. The LGBE review is underway. A Member working group has been 
established, supported by an officer project board. Initial data collation to project the future electorate is underway. A member questionnaire has 
recently been issued to all members of the Council as a key input to this work. It is anticipated that a report outlining the Councils proposals will be 
submitted to Audit and Governance in March 2020 before progression to Council prior to the April submission date. 

        

R19018 To strengthen governance arrangements across the organisation at service level 31 March 2020   

Work on the constitution review has now commenced. The initial focus has been around clarifying the terms of reference and scheme of delegation 
for the Integrated Commissioning Board. The restructure of the Governance Team has been completed and implemented and the work around the 
scheme of delegation will be taken forward and delivered by the new Committee & Constitutional Services Manager 

        

R19019 Digital governance is enhanced and embedded 31 March 2020   

Support continues for all members. An alternative equipment option has been identified and is currently being trialled 

        

P
age 22



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  6 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

R19020 To explore the potential for Artificial Intelligence in business processes 31 March 2020   

The work to identify which services and processes could benefit from AI and automation earlier in the year has been reviewed and updated, with 
some additional processes from the contact centre who had been separately exploring solutions. A draft business case is expected to be complete 
early in quarter 4. Alongside this we have been exploring the market to understand the range of AI/Automation solutions available and understand 
which solutions are being used in other local authorities. 

     

P
age 23



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20 (Corporate) 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  4 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 

NDP1901 Work in partnership to implement new Community Safety Plan to reduce crime and disorder 31 January 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1901.A Develop and sign off new Domestic Abuse Strategy for borough 30 November 2019   

The Draft Domestic Abuse Strategy is still in place and being accessed by partners and is being overseen by a multi-agency Domestic Abuse Steering Group. A 
strategic needs assessment is being undertaken by partners to better inform our final strategy. 

NDP1901.B Complete new Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy for the borough 31 January 2020   

A new Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour partnership group has been established to drive forward the development of the strategy and action plan. On 
progress to be completed by end of Q4. 

        

NDP1902 Implement plans to prevent community tensions and support a more cohesive and integrated 
community 

31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1902.A 
Through project with Government develop an insight into community settlement patterns in the 
borough and the impact on services 

31 December 2019   

Analysis on local datasets has commenced by council analyst which will demonstrate how the tool can be practically used to develop and inform policy. Final report 
on demographic patterns and migration patterns due before end of financial year. 

NDP1902.B 
Support Rochdale Connections Trust and M6 Theatre to deliver ‘Building Stronger Britain 
Together’ projects 

29 February 2020   

BSBT projects complete and showcased to Home Office and local partners. 

NDP1902.C Deliver with Foundation 4 Peace the ‘Families for Peace’ programme across the borough 31 March 2020   

The commissioned work from the Council has been completed and Foundations 4 Peace are including their work across the borough. At least 60 people were 
trained in conflict resolution and community dialogue facilitation. 

P
age 24



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20 (Corporate) 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  4 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

        

NDP19003 Roll out work of integrated place based teams to reduce crisis demand and deliver value for 
money and wider benefits 

29 February 2020  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1903.A Complete annual citizen-led leadership challenges in partnership with GMCA 31 December 2019  

Edge Hill University Colleagues have completed a full summary report reviewing ten years of citizen action and research to date in Rochdale Borough. The 
challenges have been completed for 2019-20 and the group is working towards challenges for 20-21, including participation in the Ageing in Place programme in 
the borough. 

NDP1903.B Following pilot stages, have in place active Place Teams based in each of the 5 townships 29 February 2020  

Operational teams are working well and plans are in place to work in the Pennines area. 749 people are being supported with 68% demand reduction in all cases 
and 66% sustained positive outcomes. 

        

NDP1904 Agree plan for embedding Public Service Reform across the borough 31 October 2019   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1904.A 
Partnership put in place to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and Social 
Care following reform benchmark exercise 

30 September 2019   

The Strategic Assessment has been reviewed and will be included in considerations for the future of partnership activity as part of the Public Service Reform 
Steering Group / links to the Strategic Place Board. 

NDP1904.B Begin implementation of new service models 31 October 2019   

The Heywood Place Team is now fully operational with drop ins and multi-agency partners in place. Additional peripatetic teams are in place in Middleton and 
Pennines with plans to develop a Cooperative Place Partnership in a test area in Pennines. 

P
age 25



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20 (Corporate) 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  4 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

        

NDP1905 Transform and improve customer, digital and information governance provision 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1905.A 
Deliver Phase 1 (analysis) and commence Phase 2 (delivery) of Customer Transformation 
Programme 

31 October 2019   

Phase 1 of the Customer Transformation Programme is complete and will be used to inform the delivery phase. Planning is underway in relation to developing the 
Council's online portal (My Account) as well the Customer Relationship Management System (CRM) 

NDP1905.B Agree final partnership delivery plan relating to Digital Strategy 31 December 2019   

In Q3 the draft digital strategy has been shared with colleagues and partners and internal consultation will take place from January 2020 in terms of finalizing the 
strategy and supporting delivery plan 

NDP1905.C Undertake review of Contact Centre provision options and propose future operating model 31 March 2020   

Research on technical requirements has been undertaken and an initial paper in relation to the future role of the Customer Contact Centre has been prepared. 
Meetings have taken place regarding possible additional services that could be included in the future operating model. 

        

NDP1906 Promote the borough as a desirable place to live, work and do business. 31 July 2019  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1906.A Work with internal stakeholders to determine communication priorities for 2019/20 31 July 2019  

P
age 26



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20 (Corporate) 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  4 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Service priorities have been agreed with departments and work has been progressed. 
 
Some campaigns are still to be agreed, including one that will be focussed on inward investment. 
 
The communications team is providing regular updates of performance to members of wider leadership and relevant members. 

        

NDP1907 Determine vision and priorities to offer strategic direction for the and the Borough and the 
Council 

31 December 2019  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1907.A Develop a new Corporate Plan for 2019/ 2020 onwards 30 September 2019  

The Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022 has been developed and has been considered through the Council's governance process, receiving approval at Full Council on 18th 
December 2019. 

NDP1907.B Develop a joint Equality and Diversity Strategy for the Borough for Council and CCG 31 December 2019  

The draft strategy has now been developed through extensive consultation and will be taken through the Council and CCG governance processes in the New Year. 

 

P
age 27



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith (Resources 
Directorate)

Public/Private Document Public

Finance Update Report 2019/20

Executive Summary

To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of November 2019.

1.1 The Finance Update Report contains detail of the following:

 The forecast Revenue outturn is a breakeven position, however it 
should be noted this has been achieved after the application of 
significant sums from the Equalisation Reserve and an expected refund 
from the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA).  

 An update of the Savings target of £0.135m, as part of the Revenue 
budget 2019/20.

 Forecast Capital spend of £106.040m after net re-phasing of £15.846m 
and a budget return of £0.050m. 

Recommendation

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2019/20 budget positions for Revenue, Savings 
and Capital as at the end of November 2019.

2.2 Cabinet approves the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests for 2019/20 
totalling £0.145m detailed in section 4.1.4.

2.3 Cabinet notes the net Capital re-phasing of £15.846m detailed in section 
4.4.2.

2.4 Cabinet approves the Capital funding switch detailed in 4.4.3.

2.5 Cabinet notes the Capital budget increase of £0.614m in 4.4.4

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



2.6 Cabinet notes the Capital budget return of £0.050m in 4.4.5.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring the financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

This report provides an overview of the forecast 2019/20 financial position for 
the Council and focuses on the position as at the end of November 2019.  

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Revenue Budget 2019/20

4.1.1. The budget set by Budget Council on 26th February 2019 was £216.221m. 

The Revenue Budget is £215.621m as at the end of November 2019 with no 
changes in this reporting period.

Approved by When Reason for change Amount (£m)
Budget Council Feb-19 Approved budget 216.221

Jul-19 Reduction in S31 relief -0.600
GRAND TOTAL 215.621

4.1.2 The overall position taking account of the projections currently being forecast 
by services as at the end of November 2019 is a breakeven position, which 
includes a contribution from the Equalisation Reserve for the pooled fund 
pressures and an expected refund from GMCA.

Please see Appendix A for details of budget allocations and forecast Revenue 
Outturn Position.

4.1.3 The major (≥ £0.250m) variations to controllable budget, by service, are 
detailed below:-

Adult Care: £1.233m overspend offset by an increased contribution from the 
Health & Social Care Pooled Budget

The Adult Care service is experiencing financial pressures from the number 
and costs of care packages for service users. There is a further pressure from 
the provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. 
These pressures are partially mitigated by in-year savings from staff turnover 
and vacancies.

The remaining net pressure of £1.233m for Adult Care budgets in 2019/20 will 
be wholly met by an additional contribution from the Health & Social Care 
pooled budget.

Page 29



Children’s Services - £6.977m overspend with £4.030m being allocated from 
the Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve relating to Special Educational Needs 
and Disability (SEND) 

Children's Services are currently forecasting a pressure of £6.977m which 
relates mainly to External Residential Placements and SEND pressures. 

£2.951m is attributable to external residential placements, with the 2018/19 
growth in cared for children continuing to be cared for in 2019/20. Throughout 
the first three quarters of 2019/20 there has been a small steady reduction in 
the number of cared for children; from 1st April - 16th December 2019 this 
equates to a net reduction of 33 cared for children.

There is a significant pressure of £4.292m within High Needs, £0.262m is the 
pressure on Council funded areas and the remaining £4.030m is related to a 
pressure on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG). The pressures are in relation 
to a continued rise in numbers of children with education health care plans 
and children requiring SEND support. The growth in numbers is not unique to 
Rochdale, this is a national trend with the majority of local authorities now 
facing pressures on their High Needs DSG. The allocation from the DSG 
reserve will leave a deficit position and the Council will be required to submit a 
3 year recovery plan to the Department for Education at the end of the 
financial year to bring the reserve back into a surplus position. A recovery plan 
to bring the balance to less than a £2m deficit would alleviate the need for 
Department of Education intervention.

Financial Control - £4.370m In-Year saving

The forecast in-year saving relates to an expected refund from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority and interest savings. The interest savings 
are due to the borrowing requirement being funded through internal borrowing 
with nil cost and the forecast reduction in capital expenditure.

Resources - £0.323m In-Year saving

The service is reporting an in-year saving of £0.323m which includes a 
pressure within the Legal Shared Service with Manchester City Council.  This 
pressure is being mitigated in 2019/20 by savings from staffing costs within 
the Directorate.  However, a significant amount of the 2019/20 staff savings 
have either been committed to the 2020/21 Savings Programme or are one 
year only, therefore, a request for Corporate Funding may be required in 
2020/21 to manage the pressure within Legal Services which is likely to 
continue, due to the growth in Children in Care.

Integrated Pooled Budget Contribution - £0.823m Overspend

Page 30



The Council and the CCG have made the additional contributions approved at 
December Cabinet. The remaining balance reported is a £0.823m pressure. 
The Council will contribute an additional £0.823m to support delivery of the 
commissioning functions for 2019/20 with a corresponding reduction to the 
Council’s contribution in 2020/21. The Council will only make this contribution 
if the pooled fund is unable to identify alternative sources of funding or 
savings to bridge the remaining £0.823m pressure in 2019/20.

There is no period 8 update report to the Integrated Commissioning Board 
relating to the Health & Social Care Pooled Fund. 

 
Full detail of the current Revenue position for each Directorate can be found 
in Appendix B.

4.1.4 Budget Pressures

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2019/20 is £0.667m - £0.458m on-going and 
£0.209m one-off. The one off budget available has been increased by 
£0.115m, as a previously approved allocation to cover the cost of Facilities
Management Services for school meals is no longer required.

The following budget pressure requests are subject to Cabinet Member 
approval:

Economy £0.050m On-going, & £0.080m One off

A request of £0.050m on-going funding is requested in relation to unachieved 
savings targets as a result of lost income on disposal of assets within 
Industrial Estates. 

A new project team has been established to review the Commercial & 
Industrial Estates with a view to increasing income levels. Due to the issues 
that have been identified in 2019/20, the team are unable to increase the 
income during this financial year, therefore a one year only request of 
£0.080m is being made to allow time for these issues to be resolved. 

Resources £0.015m on-going

A request for £0.015m on-going funding is requested in relation to a new 
financial commitment for Cyber Insurance, as part of the overall Insurance 
policies. The amount required is net of a saving made as part of the insurance 
re-tender process.

If the above is approved there will be a balance in 2019/20 of £0.393m on-
going and £0.129m one-off.

4.2 Savings Update 2019/20

Page 31



4.2.1 The total savings target for 2019/20 is £0.135m and Services have not 
identified any issues.

4.2.2 See Appendix C for the financial detail of Savings proposals.

4.3      Corporate Debt
The Council has a responsibility to collect income due and to recover 
outstanding debts owed. There are three main types of income which are 
owed to the Council: Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts. Sundry 
Debts include:

 Fees and charges raised as invoices by all Directorate of the Council, 
for services provided.

 Housing Benefit overpayments which occur as a result of a change in 
entitlement to benefit.

As at the end of November 2019 the total outstanding sundry debt is 
£11.415m, a decrease of £3.375m from September 2019. 

Summary of Corporate Debt To November 2019 Total £m
Balance of debt carried forward from 2018/19 10.950
Invoices raised less credit notes 49.044
Payments/adjustments (48.305)
Write offs (0.274)
Balance as at November 2019 11.415

Breakdown of outstanding Balance
Fees and Charges 6.233
Housing Benefit Overpayments 5.182

Balance as at 30th September 2019 14.790
Increase/(Reduction) (3.375)

Please see appendix D for further details.

4.4      Capital Budget 2019/20

The current 2019/20 Capital Budget is £106.040m.  The table below shows a 
summary of the movements:

£m £m £m
CAPITAL BUDGET AT SEPTEMBER 2019 121.322 73.543 26.430
Rephasing requested to end of November (15.846) 15.846 -
Return of Waste Service Investment budget in Neighbourhoods (0.050) - -
Capital Budget Increases 0.614 - -
CAPITAL BUDGET AT NOVEMBER 2019 106.040 89.389 26.430

2019/20 2021/222020/21

4.4.1 Capital Budget Changes

Page 32



4.4.2 Capital Re-phasing

Children’s £14.692m

 £14.667m New Place Planning due to works at Lowerplace, Harwood 
Park, Castleton, St John’s primary schools, and various secondary 
schools set to commence in 2020/21,

 £0.025m Aiming High for Disabled Children - the budget is to be 
utilised to adapt a property to be used for short breaks, which due to 
delays will not commence until 2020/21.

Economy £0.613m

 £0.438m Town Centre Schemes due to various delays in schemes,
 £0.100m East Lancashire Railway due to delays in recruitment,
 £0.025m Pennine Hollingworth Lake Feasibility due to delays,
 £0.050m Springfield Park Master Plan as the scheme has been 

suspended in 2019/20, to continue in 2020/21.

Neighbourhoods Service £0.541m

 £0.904m Section 106 Environmental Management to facilitate the 
completion of Balderstone Park, Stansfield and Boroughwide Sports 
schemes,

 £0.868m Bowlee Free School as this is with the Department for 
Education for approval, works are not expected to commence until 
2020/21.

 £0.526m Customer Transformation Programme due to delays in the 
project.

 £0.150m Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair to facilitate the completion 
of the memorial hall in 2020/21.

 £0.126m for New Cemetery Sites to facilitate the completion of works at 
Denehurst Park and new memorial sites within cemeteries.

 £0.100m Vehicle Replacement Programme due to vehicles not being 
available in 2019/20.

 (£2.133m) budget rephase reversal on the Highways Investment 
Programme as the scheme has been progressing well and is ahead of 
previously anticipated progress.

4.4.3 Capital Budget Funding Switch

Members are asked to approve the following capital budget funding switch.

Neighbourhoods Service
 £0.056m of 2019/20 budget is requested to be switched from Developer 

Contributions Highways S106 to Section 106 Environmental Management as 
the budget was misallocated. 

4.4.4   Capital Budget Increases

Page 33



Children’s Service - £0.419m of budget received from S106 as the 
contribution to schools.

Neighbourhoods Services - £0.195m S106 contribution for Rutherford Park.

4.4.5   Capital Budget Returns

Neighbourhoods - £0.050m of Waste Services Investment budget is being 
returned as government consultation relating to waste collections has been 
completed. It is expected that Government funding will be made available for 
any necessary expenditure, rather than use Council funding.

Appendix E provides details of the Capital budget position for each Directorate 
and a graph showing the capital forecast spend for all Services.

4.4.6 Capital Receipts

The table following shows the forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 
Reserve during 2019/20, and provisionally for 2020/21 to 2021/22:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£m £m £m

Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2019 10.187 2.024 0.139

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2019/20 Capital Programme, including prior year schemes 
rephased into 2019/20 (6.920) - -
Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 2020/21 and 2021/22 Capital Programmes, and 
2019/20 rephasing into future years - (0.010) 0.000

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future commitments (3.647) (3.783) 0.000

Capital Receipts income 2.403 1.908 0.500

Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts balance as at 31st March 2020 2.024 0.139 0.639

Description

The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 
2021/22 is currently £0.639m.

4.6 Alternatives considered

4.6.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Costs and Budget Summary

Page 34



5. See Appendices A, B, C, D & E which provide an overview of budgets for 
Revenue, Savings, Corporate Debt and Capital detailed in section 4.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report except 
to note that debts that are recoverable can be enforced by court action in 
accordance with the court procedure rules.

The use of reserves to address the pressures within the Pooled Fund is a 
one off solution which cannot be sustained into future years. This risk is 
currently being mitigated by the development and implementation of a 
savings programme to deliver a recurrent solution to the pooled fund 
pressures.

The use of Dedicated School Grant Reserve to fund SEND expenditure has 
created a deficit position and a recovery plan will be developed to address 
this.

Demand in Children’s Services continues to increase; a 5 year strategy has 
been developed to support the management of this pressure.

6.

Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been 
informed of the forecast 2019/20 financial position of the Council and its 
implications for future years. The report is presented to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11th February 2020.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2 

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 35

mailto:Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX A – REVENUE SUMMARY

GENERAL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY 2019/20
CURRENT POSITION AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

TABLE 1

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 
Council

Virements/
Contingency Current Budget

Service and 
Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 
Controllable
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

In Year 
Saving/

(Overspend)

Previous 
Monitoring 

Report 
(December 
Cabinet)

Movement 
Since 

December 
Cabinet

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Adult Care 15,415 1,154 16,569 4,046 12,523 12,523 - - -
Children's 21,585 4,970 26,555 19,049 7,506 10,453 (2,947) (3,100) 153
Economy 15,993 (41) 15,952 755 15,197 15,399 (202) (135) (67)
Neighbourhoods 52,413 2,773 55,186 1,281 53,905 54,112 (207) (250) 43
Public Health and Wellbeing 8,206 211 8,417 1,889 6,528 6,528 - - -
Resources 8,222 (293) 7,929 (3,692) 11,621 11,298 323 256 67
TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 121,834 8,774 130,608 23,328 107,280 110,313 (3,033) (3,229) 196
Integrated Pool Budget Contribution 87,159 8,508 95,667 - 95,667 96,490 (823) (6,700) 5,877
TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS 87,159 8,508 95,667 - 95,667 96,490 (823) (6,700) 5,877
Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets 1,399 (7,056) (5,657) (20,623) 14,966 10,596 4,370 3,987 383
Finance Control: Transformation Fund 4,703 363 5,066 - 5,066 5,066 - - -
Transfer from Equalisation Reserve - (6,700) (6,700) - (6,700) (6,186) (514) - (514)
Dedicated School Grant Reserve - (4,030) (4,030) - (4,030) (4,030) - - -
Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,126 (459) 667 - 667 667 - - -
TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING 7,228 (17,882) (10,654) (20,623) 9,969 6,113 3,856 3,987 (131)

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 216,221 (600) 215,621 2,705 212,916 212,916 0 (5,942) 5,942

P
age 36



APPENDIX B – SERVICES REVENUE

REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: ADULT CARE DIRECTORATE 
Overall Risk Rating:                    LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk Area 
RAG rating

Budget 
Fixing Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 19/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Management GREEN 12,348 13,489 (4,206) 9,283 9,251 32 1
Neighbourhoods RED 25,450 68,505 (32,112) 36,393 37,267 (874) 641
Boroughwide Services RED 14,747 7,182 (4,749) 2,433 3,043 (610) (600)
In House Provider Services GREEN 636 3,073 (1,984) 1,089 936 153 (45)
Governance Business Support & Home 
Improvement Agency

GREEN 931 2,506 (1,253) 1,253 1,122 131 (22)

Greater Manchester Health & Social Care 
Transformation Fund

GREEN 0 3,102 (3,102) 0 0 0 0

Commissioning GREEN 2,511 3,528 (1,040) 2,488 2,410 78 13
Statutory Functions AMBER 552 656 (23) 633 776 (143) 12
SUB TOTAL 57,175 102,041 (48,469) 53,572 54,805 (1,233) 0
Contribution from Pooled Budget GREEN (44,882) 0 (41,049) (41,049) (42,282) 1,233 0

REVISED SUB TOTAL 12,293 102,041 (89,518) 12,523 12,523 0 0

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges GREEN 2,966 5,812 (1,766) 4,046 4,046 0 0

SUB TOTAL 2,966 5,812 (1,766) 4,046 4,046 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 15,259 107,853 (91,284) 16,569 16,569 0 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

32

(874)

(610)

153

131

78

(143)

1,233

TOTAL 0

Financial Management Update

Commissioning:-  In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

The Adult Care service is experiencing financial pressures from the number and costs of care packages for service users. There is a further pressure from the 
provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. These pressures are partially mitigated by in-year savings from staff turnover and 
vacancies.
The remaining net pressure of £1.233m for Adult Care budgets in 2019/20 will be wholly met by an additional contribution from the Health & Social Care pooled 
budget.

Contribution from Pooled Budget:- The net pressure from Adult Social Care budgets in 2019/20 will be wholly met by an additional contribution 
from the Health and Social Care pooled budget

Statutory Functions:- Pressure from the costs of provision of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments

Neighbourhoods:- Pressure from the number and costs of care packages, exceeding the available budget, including the effect of purchasing an 
additional day of care as 2019/20 is a leap year. This is partially mitigated by savings due to staff turnover and vacancies.
Additional costs are also being incurred for Service Users transferred to community settings from long stays in hospitals under the Transforming 
Care programme.

In House Provider Services:-  In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

Management :- In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

Governance Business Support & Home Improvement Agency :-  In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

Boroughwide Services:- Pressure from the number and costs of care packages, exceeding the available budget, including the effect of 
purchasing an additional day of care as 2019/20 is a leap year. This is partially mitigated by savings due to staff turnover and vacancies

Page 37



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: CHILDREN'S DIRECTORATE
Overall Risk Rating:                    HIGH

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk Area 
RAG rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current Approved 
Income Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

First Response RED 1,741 2,164 0 2,164 2,164 0 0
Cared for Children RED 22,149 24,363 (977) 23,386 26,337 (2,951) 149
Safeguarding Children Unit AMBER 781 1,188 (212) 976 976 0 0
Youth Offending Team AMBER 220 1,847 (969) 878 878 0 0
Child Protection & Care Proceedings RED 2,077 2,103 0 2,103 2,103 0 0
Advice and Screening RED 330 622 (241) 381 381 0 0
Practice Improvement GREEN 2,078 2,298 (379) 1,919 1,919 0 0
Sure Start GREEN 3,460 21,254 (17,512) 3,742 3,706 36 36
School Support GREEN 1,460 29,305 (27,868) 1,437 1,331 106 106
Special Educational Needs and Disability AMBER 5,583 22,205 (16,062) 6,143 10,435 (4,292) (685)
Youth Service GREEN 45 1,378 (1,117) 261 137 124 124
Management and Administration GREEN (120) 2,794 (1,519) 1,275 1,275 0 0
Funding Allocated to Schools GREEN 0 195,668 (195,656) 12 12 0 0
Early Help GREEN 405 1,433 (1,342) 91 91 0 0
SUB TOTAL 40,209 308,622 (263,854) 44,768 51,745 (6,977) (270)
Contribution from Pooled Budget (36,698) 0 (41,292) (41,292) (41,292) 0 0
Transfer from DSG Reserve 0 3,607 0 4,030 0 4,030 423
REVISED SUB TOTAL 3,511 312,229 (305,146) 7,506 10,453 (2,947) 153

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 21,585 23,268 (4,219) 19,049 19,049 0 0

SUB TOTAL 21,585 23,268 (4,219) 19,049 19,049 0 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

(2,951)

36

106

(4,292)

124

4,030

(2,947)

Transfer from DSG Reserve:- 

Children's Services are currently forecasting a pressure of £6.977m.

£2.951m is attributable to external residential placements, with the 2018/19 growth in cared for children continuing to be cared for in 2019/20. Throughout the 
first three quarters of 2019/20 there has been a small steady reduction in the number of cared for children, from 1st April - 16th December 2019 this equates to 
a net reduction of 33 cared for children.

There is a significant pressure of £4.292m within High Needs, £0.262m is the pressure on Council funded areas and the remaining £4.030m is related to the 
pressure on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG). The pressures are in relation to a continued rise in numbers of children with education health care plans and 
children requiring SEND support. The growth in numbers is not unique to Rochdale, this is a national trend with the majority of Local Authorities now facing 
pressures on their High Needs DSG.

Financial Management Update

Youth Service:- Savings in relation to vacant posts.

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- Dedicated School Grant pressure on the High needs block of £4.030m, this is attributable to a 
continued rise in numbers of children with an Education Health Care Plan (EHCP) and projected growth for the 2019/20 academic year. 

Sure Start:- Salary underspends in relation to a vacant post.

School Support:- Overachievement of income on Personnel and Governors Service relating to vacant posts and surplus income achieved from 
additional meetings.

TOTAL

Cared for Children:- The pressure is due to a continued reliance on high cost external residential placements.

Page 38



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: ECONOMY DIRECTORATE
Overall Risk Rating: MEDIUM

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Planning and Building Control RED 537 3,068 (2,350) 718 718 0 0
Passenger Transport Levy GREEN 15,281 14,746 0 14,746 14,746 0 0
Economic Development GREEN 1,074 2,106 (964) 1,142 1,187 (45) (45)
Properties GREEN 9 2,390 (2,379) 11 168 (157) (57)
Asset Rationalisation RED (18) 17 0 17 17 0 35
Property Growth Fund AMBER (1,471) 1,871 (3,308) (1,437) (1,437) 0 0
SUB TOTAL 15,412 24,198 (9,001) 15,197 15,399 (202) (67)

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 581 1,669 (914) 755 755 0 0

SUB TOTAL 581 1,669 (914) 755 755 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 15,993 25,867.00 (9,915) 15,952 16,154 (202) (67)

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

(45)

(157)

(202)

Financial Management Update
The Economy Directorate is reporting an in-year pressure of £0.202m, this includes income pressures within Economic Development. There 
are pressures in relation to Industrial Estates as a result of underachieved savings and rental income.   Budget pressures funding of £0.050m 
has been requested for the underachieved savings. A new project team has been established to review the Commercial & Industrial Estate 
area with a view to increasing income levels. Due to the issues that have been identified in 2019/20, the team are currently unable to 
increase the income during this financial year, therefore, one year only budget pressures funding of £0.080m has been requested to allow time 
for these issues to be resolved.

TOTAL

Economic Development :- In-year income pressures within Economic Development.

Properties :- Pressures within Industrial Estates as a result of underachieved savings and rental income.  Two budget pressure 
requests have been made at Period 8.

Page 39



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE

Overall Risk Rating:     MEDIUM

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Income Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change from 
Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Dippy Project 244 244 0 244 244 0 0
Waste Disposal Levy RED 15,945 15,875 0 15,875 15,875 0 0
Facilities Management RED 2,065 10,556 (7,933) 2,623 2,623 0 50
Environmental Management GREEN 10,954 18,133 (6,865) 11,268 11,268 0 0
ICT Service  AMBER 4,098 6,191 (1,681) 4,510 4,510 0 0
Coroners RED 693 2,527 (1,902) 625 625 0 0
Community & Townships AMBER 3,479 6,198 (2,176) 4,022 3,947 75 0
Public Protection AMBER 622 1,931 (1,252) 679 614 65 65
Policy, Perform & Improvement GREEN 272 287 0 287 287 0 0
Communications & Digital Services Team GREEN 531 583 (15) 568 568 0 0
Customer Access RED 1,614 1,704 (71) 1,633 1,633 0 0
Strategic Housing RED 2,306 3,742 (996) 2,746 3,113 (367) (92)
AGMA Contributions GREEN 627 656 (29) 627 627 0 0
Place Based GREEN 1 456 (30) 426 426 0 0
Highways and Engineering RED 3,245 6,259 (2,718) 3,541 3,481 60 60
Property Services RED 313 2,978 (2,590) 388 428 (40) (40)
Street Lighting RED 3,545 6,298 (2,455) 3,843 3,843 0 0
SUB TOTAL 50,554 84,618 (30,713) 53,905 54,112 (207) 43

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 2,104 18,911 (17,630) 1,281 1,281 0 0

SUB TOTAL 2,104 18,911 (17,630) 1,281 1,281 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 52,658 103,529 (48,343) 55,186 55,393 (207) 43

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000
75
65

(367)

60

(40)
(207)

Financial Management Update

Public Protection:- This underspend is in respect of increased income generation.

Strategic Housing :- Pressure in respect of housing benefit and homelessness costs which are not fully covered by Government 
subsidy. The Service are looking to mitigate this pressure however, Corporate funding has been earmarked to address any 
shortfall.
Highways & Engineering:-  There is a reactive maintenance pressure of £137k.  This is mitigated by increased charges to 
schemes of £103k and enforcement income of £92k.
Property Services:- There is an income pressure of £125k partly mitigated by increased charges to schemes of £85k.

The Neighbourhoods Directorate is reporting a forecast in-year pressure of £0.207m.  This mainly reflects pressures on the Strategic Housing 
budget due to homelessness costs which are not fully covered by the Government subsidy. The Service are looking to address this issue, 
however, Corporate funding has been earmarked to offset the pressure if necessary.

TOTAL

Community & Townships:-   In-year saving due to vacant posts and additional income on Registrars

Page 40



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING DIRECTORATE
Overall Risk Rating:                                   LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast spend 

to Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Sexual Health GREEN 1,681 3,601 (1,976) 1,625 1,625 0 0
NHS Health Checks GREEN 262 262 0 262 262 0 0
Public Health Advice GREEN 69 29 0 29 29 0 0
Obesity and Physical Activity GREEN 581 606 0 606 606 0 0
Substance Misuse GREEN 2,851 3,151 (156) 2,995 2,995 0 0
Smoking and Tobacco GREEN 34 34 0 34 34 0 0
Children 0-19 Public Health Programme GREEN 6,539 6,539 0 6,539 6,539 0 0
Mental Health and Wellbeing GREEN 40 41 0 41 41 0 0
Other Public Health Commissioning GREEN 3,175 3,076 0 3,076 3,076 0 0
Health Protection GREEN 290 292 0 292 292 0 0
Public Health Staffing and Non Staffing GREEN 1,230 1,402 (1) 1,401 1,401 0 0
Client Services - Link4Life GREEN 2,595 3,114 (498) 2,616 2,616 0 0
SUB TOTAL 19,347 22,147 (2,631) 19,516 19,516 0 0
Contribution from Pooled Budget (12,983) 0 (12,988) (12,988) (12,988) 0 0
REVISED SUB TOTAL 6,364 22,147 (15,619) 6,528 6,528 0 0

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 1,841 1,889 0 1,889 1,889 0 0

SUB TOTAL 1,841 1,889 0 1,889 1,889 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 8,205 24,036 (15,619) 8,417 8,417 0 0

Page 41



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

Overall Risk Rating: LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Finance Services AMBER 2,040 2,251 (344) 1,907 1,899 8 (12)
Other Managed Budgets GREEN 2,274 3,091 (374) 2,717 2,253 464 74
Revenues & Benefits RED 555 65,644 (64,577) 1,067 1,047 20 6
Legal Services RED 1,623 2,149 (458) 1,691 1,915 (224) 16
Human Resources AMBER 1,435 2,354 (640) 1,714 1,691 23 (11)
Internal Audit GREEN 635 646 (40) 606 578 28 (2)
Governance AMBER 1,836 2,643 (724) 1,919 1,915 4 (4)
SUB TOTAL 10,398 78,778 (67,157) 11,621 11,298 323 67

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN (2,176) 8,589 (12,281) (3,692) (3,692) 0 0

SUB TOTAL (2,176) 8,589 (12,281) (3,692) (3,692) 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 8,222 87,367 (79,438) 7,929 7,606 323 67

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000
8

464

20

(224)

23
Internal Audit:-  In-year savings mainly due to staffing. 28

4
323

Financial Management Update

Governance:-   In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

Other Managed Budgets:-  In-year savings as a result of vacant posts at Leadership and Head of Service level, plus other 
temporary arrangements and one-off savings in 2019/20.

Revenues and Benefits:-  In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

Legal Services:- Pressure within the Shared Legal Service with Manchester City Council, which is a result of increased Care 
Applications over and above the usually anticipated level.  This pressure links to the growth in Children in Care, and once work 
has been completed with colleagues at Manchester City Council to fully understand this pressure, a request for Corporate 
funding will be made.

TOTAL

Human Resources:- In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

Finance Services:- In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

The service is reporting an in-year saving of £0.323m which includes a pressure within the Legal Shared Service with Manchester City 
Council, caused by increased Care Applications over and above the anticipated level. This pressure is being mitigated in 2019/20 by savings 
from staffing costs within the Directorate overall.

Page 42



APPENDIX C – SAVINGS

SAVINGS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Table 1. 2019/20 Saving Proposals approved at Budget Council
Savings 

Reference
Service Savings Target Achieved On-Target Mitigating 

Actions
Balance to 
Address

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

NH-2019-20-22 Neighbourhoods (100) (100) 0 0 0

NH-2019-20-24 Neighbourhoods (35) (30) 0 (5) 0

(135) (130) 0 (5) 0
0

(135) (130) 0 (5) 0

Review of the budget for the provision of social and welfare advice and legal services

Sub Total Neighbourhoods

Grant Funded Community Centres

Update on achievement of savings, which have not been achieved or have been mitigated
Citizen Advice Bureau contract has been successfully reduced by £30k, the remaining £5k has been mitigated elsewhere within Neighbourhoods.

Total

Nature of Saving

P
age 43



APPENDIX D – CORPORATE DEBT

Table 1. Fees and Charges outstanding
 30-Sep-19 30-Nov-19 Movement
Age of Debt £m £m £m
2019/20 7.302 4.124 (3.178)

 
2018/19 1.388 1.237 (0.151)
2017/18 0.455 0.410 (0.045)
2016/17 0.253 0.252 (0.001)
2015/16 0.056 0.057 0.001
2014/15 0.075 0.075 0.000
2013/14 and prior years 0.082 0.078 (0.004)
Subtotal from previous years 2.309 2.109 (0.200)

 
Total 9.611 6.233 (3.378)
Table 2. Housing Benefit overpayments outstanding
 30-Sep-19 30-Nov-19 Movement
Age of Debt £m £m £m
2019/20 0.691 0.905 0.214

 

2018/19 0.858 0.813 (0.045)
2017/18 1.035 0.989 (0.046)
2016/17 0.635 0.609 (0.026)
2015/16 0.848 0.816 (0.032)
2014/15 0.373 0.359 (0.014)
2013/14 and prior years 0.739 0.691 (0.048)
Subtotal from previous years 4.488 4.277 (0.211)

Total 5.179 5.182 0.003
Grand Total 14.790 11.415 (3.375)

Fees and Charges Overview
The volume of fees and charges being raised has increased significantly in 2019/20 due to 
the number of Adult Care invoices being raised for residential care debt. Invoices are issued 
every 4 weeks in arrears and this has created a significant amount of customer contact 
from the person receiving care or their carer. As at the end of November, £6.019m worth of 
debt has been raised for Adult Care residential debt, of which £5.549m has been recovered 
to date.

Housing Benefit Overpayment Overview
£2.544m of the outstanding debt is currently being recovered by reducing ongoing Housing 
Benefit payments. As more claimants transfer to Universal Credit, this amount will continue 
to fall as recovery is by other means. Housing Benefit has to stop as Universal Credit starts 
and an invoice issued to the customer. The Council can request that the Department for 
Work and Pensions recover from some ongoing Universal Credit cases.

Page 44



APPENDIX E – SERVICES CAPITAL

CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: ADULT CARE DIRECTORATE 

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
293 0 293 293 0 0 0 293 497 497

2,851 0 2,851 2,851 0 2,440 2,440 7,731
3,144 0 3,144 3,144 0 2,440 2,440 8,024 497 497

Financial Management Update 

No variance to the programme is currently forecast.

TOTAL
Annual allocation

Capital Scheme

Better Care Fund
Disabled Facilities Grant

P
age 45



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: CHILDREN'S DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
247 (222) 25 0 25 222 0 247 953 1,200

1,629 8 1,637 1,637 0 483 483 2,603
19 0 19 19 0 0 0 19 516 516

18,663 3,297 21,960 7,293 14,667 18,005 5,200 45,165
28 0 28 28 0 0 0 28 1,301 1,301

4,584 (1,303) 3,281 3,281 0 2,833 1,833 7,947
85 0 85 85 0 0 0 85 85 85

205 0 205 205 0 0 0 205 205 205
25,460 1,780 27,240 12,548 14,692 21,543 7,516 56,299 3,060 3,307

Variation
2090/20 

Programme
2020/21 

Programme

2021/22
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

25 (25) 25
14,667 (14,667) 14,667

14,692 (14,692) 14,692 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

25

14,667

TOTAL 14,692

New Place Planning External Rephase Request

Explanation of Variance

Aiming High For Disabled Child External

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

Capital Scheme

Rephase Request

Devolved Formula Capital

TOTAL

Funding
Source

Capital Scheme

New Place Planning
Schools Access

Special Provision Capital Fund
Healthy Pupils Capital Fund
Schools Cap Condition Programme

Early Years Capital Grant

Aiming High For Disabled Child

Financial Management Update

There is a total of £14.692m requested to be rephased. £14.667m of the New Place Planning Programme is to be rephased into 2020/21.  On Short Breaks £0.025m is 
requested to be rephased, the budget to be used for the adaptation of a property for Short Breaks for disabled children.  

Aiming High For Disabled Child:- This is one specific project for the adaptation of a property to be utilised for Short Breaks. This project has now 
been delayed and won't commence until 2020/21

New Place Planning:- The building schemes to increase the number of pupil places at Lowerplace, Harwood Park, Castleton, St John's and 
secondary schools will be completed in the next financial year. 

TOTAL

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

P
age 46



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: ECONOMY DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
Definitive ROW Improvement 55 0 55 55 0 0 0 55 115 115
P & R Capital Schemes 8 0 8 8 0 0 0 8 220 220
Town Centre Schemes 11,997 (7,236) 4,761 4,323 438 10,675 9,870 25,306 19,389 39,934
River Roch Flood Storage 4,757 (4,157) 600 600 0 5,757 1,600 7,957 793 8,150
Rochdale Gateways 57 0 57 57 0 0 0 57 60 60
Stakehill Industrial Estate 97 0 97 97 0 0 0 97 143 143
Asset Development Fund 2,921 0 2,921 2,921 0 0 0 2,921 4,000 4,000
Property Growth Fund 44,286 0 44,286 44,286 0 10,000 0 54,286 80,000 90,000
East Lancashire Railway 644 0 644 544 100 50 0 694 800 850
Lower Falinge 9 0 9 9 0 0 0 9 45 45

3,000 (2,700) 300 300 0 2,500 0 2,800 300 2,800
200 200 400 400 0 200 0 600 700 900
600 (500) 100 100 0 500 0 600 100 600
50 0 50 25 25 0 0 50 50 50
50 0 50 0 50 0 0 50 50 50
50 0 50 50 0 50 0 100 50 100
0 22 22 22 0 0 0 22 22 22

68,781 (14,371) 54,410 53,797 613 29,732 11,470 95,612 107,745 148,947

Variation
2019/20 

Programme
2020/21 

Programme

2021/22
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

Town Centre Schemes 438 (438) 438
East Lancashire Railway 100 (100) 100

25 (25) 25
50 (50) 50

613 (613) 613 0

Mixed
Borrowing

Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility
Springfield Park Master Plan

Rephase Request
Rephase Request
Rephase Request
Rephase Request

RCCO
RCCO

Capital Scheme

Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study

TOTAL

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

Capital Scheme

Funding
Source

Explanation of Variance

Heywood South/Junction 19
Railway Strategy Park & Ride

Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility
Springfield Park Master Plan
Metrolink Feasibility
Birch Fountain & Horse Trough-Middleton

TOTAL

P
age 47



Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

TOTAL

Springfield Park Master Plan: Scheme suspended for 2019/20 while planned to commence in 2020/21.

East Lancashire Railway: There has been a delay to the progress of this scheme due to the retirement of a Senior Officer.  This post has now been 
recruited to and work will continue into 2020/21.

25

50

Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility: Work on this scheme commenced later than anticipated and therefore will continue into 2020/21.

438

613

Financial Management Update

The Directorate has made a number of rephasing requests to cover works now expected to take place in 2020/21. 

Town Centre schemes span multiple years and require budgets to reflect this as programmes develop. A request is made to rephase £0.438m into 2020/21. 
East Lancashire Railway scheme has identified rephasing of £0.100m into 2020/21, as work continues.
Pennine Hollingworth Lake Feasibility study will continue in to 2020/21 and has identified rephasing of £0.025m.
Springfield Park Masterplan has been suspended for 2019/20 but is planned to continue in 2020/21 when other key factors are confirmed.

100

Town Centre Schemes -  Various delays to Town Centre Schemes - for full details see Town Centre Capital Proforma.

P
age 48



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: TOWN CENTRE SCHEMES

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

121 125 246 246 0 0 0 246 1,935 1,935
80 (47) 33 33 0 0 0 33 155 155

658 (200) 458 458 0 200 0 658 9,399 9,599
1,168 (176) 992 862 130 3,200 0 4,192 2,334 5,534

303 0 303 303 0 0 0 303 1,855 1,855
3,838 (3,500) 338 338 0 0 3,500 3,838 500 4,000

559 (200) 359 359 0 450 150 959 921 1,521
615 0 615 317 298 0 0 615 806 806

1,715 (800) 915 915 0 1,100 0 2,015 983 2,083
25 0 25 15 10 25 0 50 25 50
25 0 25 25 0 0 0 25 25 25
25 0 25 25 0 0 0 25 25 25

500 (250) 250 250 0 1,250 1,000 2,500 250 2,500
1,005 (1,005) 0 0 0 1,250 0 1,250 0 1,250

50 0 50 50 0 500 2,000 2,550 50 2,550
1,060 (1,060) 0 0 0 2,030 2,970 5,000 0 5,000

250 (123) 127 127 0 670 250 1,047 127 1,047
11,997 (7,236) 4,761 4,323 438 10,675 9,870 25,306 19,389 39,934

Variation
2019/20 

Programme
2020/21 

Programme

2021/22
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

130 (130) 130
298 (298) 298
10 (10) 10

438 (438) 438 0

Town Hall Square PH2
Drake Street Phase 2
Town Centre Schemes 2016/17
Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

TOTAL

Capital Scheme

Funding
Source

Station Car Parking
Town Centre East Feasibility
Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration

Capital Scheme

Middleton Town Centre Phase 3

Rochdale Market

Hopwood Hall Refurbishment
Middleton Masterplan
Heywood Masterplan
Town Centre Residential Strategy
Town Centre Purchases
Rochdale Riverside Phase 2
Town Centre Capital Programme
Milkstone Road Master Plan

Explanation of Variance

Borrowing Rephase Request

Hopwood Hall Refurbishment
Town Centre Schemes 2016/17 Borrowing Rephase Request

TOTAL

Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration

Rephase RequestRCCO

P
age 49



Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000
130

298

10

438

Town Centre schemes span multiple years and require budgets to reflect this as programmes develop.
A request is made to rephase £0.438m into 2020/21.

Hopwood Hall Refurbishment: There has been a focus on the emergency works programme, however, issues with access to the site have caused a delay.

Financial Management Update

TOTAL

Town Centre Schemes 2016/17: Delay with Fire Station Museum 1st Floor.  A formal contract has now been issued and work will commence in January 2020.

Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration: Delays due to additional surveys being required, therefore, work will be completed in 2020/21.

P
age 50



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
11 0 11 11 0 0 0 11 80 80

279 0 279 279 0 260 260 799
296 354 650 650 0 0 0 650
524 0 524 524 0 500 500 1,524

1,143 (354) 789 789 0 0 0 789 789 789
551 (185) 366 366 0 400 400 1,166
882 0 882 882 0 800 800 2,482 10,954 12,554
74 0 74 74 0 0 0 74 5,203 5,203
33 (33) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,387 1,387

602 (417) 185 59 126 450 0 635 2,464 3,040
199 (89) 110 110 0 120 120 350
80 0 80 80 0 0 0 80

188 0 188 38 150 80 80 348 (60) 250
1,293 49 1,513 553 960 61 0 1,574

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
151 47 198 198 0 0 0 198
159 89 248 248 0 75 75 398

3,182 0 3,182 3,082 100 877 877 4,936
358 0 358 358 0 360 360 1,078
571 (521) 50 0 50 521 0 571 728 1,299

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 108 108
2,341 20 2,361 2,361 0 2,480 1,750 6,591
2,067 0 2,067 2,067 0 1,967 1,967 6,001

413 99 512 512 0 0 0 512
100 0 100 100 0 100 100 300

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 23
685 0 685 685 0 0 0 685 779 779

1,177 0 1,177 1,177 0 0 0 1,177 1,181 1,181
878 0 878 878 0 0 0 878 6,016 6,016
705 0 705 705 0 0 0 705 1,158 1,158

0 0 0 56 (56) 0 0 0 1,216 1,160
43 0 43 43 0 0 0 43 51 51

1,538 0 1,538 1,538 0 1,200 0 2,738 2,610 3,810
130 0 130 130 0 0 0 130 150 150
199 0 199 199 0 0 0 199 240 240

6 (6) 0 0 0 6 0 6 0 6
25 0 25 25 0 0 0 25 25 25
50 0 50 50 0 58 65 173 50 173

2,000 0 2,000 2,000 0 1,000 1,000 4,000 2,000 4,000
856 0 856 330 526 468 150 1,474 330 1,474
172 (172) 0 0 0 172 0 172 0 172
50 0 50 50 0 50 0 100 50 100

3,844 567 4,411 6,544 (2,133) 3,629 0 8,040 10,504 12,000
928 0 928 60 868 522 0 1,450 60 1,450

29,384 (1,153) 28,402 27,811 591 16,156 8,504 53,062 52,841 63,423

Annual Allocation

Highway Investment Programme

Housing Standards Fund

Dippy Exhibition Equipment
Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto Funding
Accelerated Housing
Customer Transformation Programme
CCTV Upgrade

Developer Contributions Highways s106

Town Centre Signage

Bowlee Free School

Capital Scheme

Property Transfers From Townships

Travellers Authorised Stopping Site
Car Parking Machines
Cashless System School Catering

Waste Bin Replacement Programme
Waste Services Investment

New Cemetery Sites
Replacement Parks/Street Machinery
Rights Of Way
Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair
Section 106 - Environmental Management
Transfers From AMG

Vehicle Replacement Programme

Additional Highways Funding

Compulsory Purchase Order Programme

Armed Forces
ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme

ICT Programmes (Staff)
Windows 10
Townships Capital Programme

Local Transport Plan

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation
Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

J19 Feasibility

Woodland Improvement
Asset Management Group

Townships Capital - Highways
Burglary Reduction Scheme
Non AMG
Energy Efficiency Schemes
Coroners Service accommodation

Annual Allocation
Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Townships Capital - Environmental Management
Upgrade Play Equipment

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

TOTAL

Kirkholt Investment
Mercury Abatement Scheme

ICT Data Centre

P
age 51



Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

TOTAL

Highway Investment Programme - Programme has been progressing well and is ahead of programme. Budget requested to be rephased back to cover this 
over spend.

Bowlee Free School - Scheme now with Department for Education for their approval, once this is approved the main work will start which is forecast to be in 
the new financial year. 

Developer Contributions Highways s106 - Transfer s106 monies to fund Highway scheme.

868

Customer Transformation Programme - A request is made to rephase the budget into 2020/21 as there are delays to the project. 526
(2,133)

591

Financial Management Update

Approval to rephase £2.724m of the Neighbourhoods Capital Programme has been requested to allow schemes to be completed in 2020/21.  The rephase request relates to the 
Balderstone Park, Stansfield Estate and Boroughwide Sport S106 funded schemes, cemetery memorial sites schemes, the vehicle replacement programme, the Customer 
Transformation Programme and the Bowlee Free School highways scheme.  Approval is also requested to rephase back £2.133m to cover carriageway works which are progressing 
ahead of programme.

(56)

150

50

100Vehicle Replacement Programme - The process to replace a number of fleet vehicles is currently underway.  These vehicles include SEN adapted minibuses, 
tippers, road sweepers and RCVs.  During the procurement process it has been established that, in the current economic climate, manufacturers are no longer 
holding vehicles in stock.  This has extended the time taken to purchase vehicles beyond the normal timeframes and a request is therefore made to rephase 
the budget into 2020/21

Waste Services Investment - DEFRA has recently closed its consultation on consistency in household and business recycling collections.  The results of the 
consultation may change waste collection policies in England.  Any changes should attract additional Government funding so there are no plans to incur further 
expenditure on this scheme.

960Section 106 - Environmental Management - A request is made to rephase budget into 2020/21 to facilitate the completion of the Balderstone Park, 
Stansfield and Boroughwide Sports schemes £904k. Transfer £56k of s106 monies from EM to Highways. Originally Highways scheme, budget created in wrong 
area

Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair - A request is made to rephase budget into 2020/21 to facilitate the completion of the memorial hall. 

126New Cemetery Sites - A request is made to rephase budget into 2020/21 to facilitate the completion of works at Denehurst Park and new memorial sites 
within cemeteries.

P
age 52



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF NOVEMBER 2019

Service: RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total 
Scheme 
Spend to 

Date
Including 
Current 
Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
3,740 0 3,740 3,740 0 1,860 0 5,600 3,740 5,600
5,000 0 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 5,000 5,000

8,740 0 8,740 8,740 0 1,860 0 10,600 8,740 10,600

Capital Scheme

Manchester Airport
Investment Fund
TOTAL

Financial Management Update

No variance to the Programme is currently forecast.

P
age 53



Adult Care Children's Economy Neighbourhoods Resources Total
Rephasing to future years previously approved - 1,017 14,518 1,123 - 16,658
P8 rephasing requested - 14,692 613 541 - 15,846
Actual Spend to 30th November 2019 1,503 6,863 15,657 14,489 - 38,512
Forecast Further Spend 1,641 5,685 38,140 13,322 8,740 67,528
Capital Budget Reductions - - - 651 - 651
Approved Capital Budget 3,144 28,257 68,928 30,126 8,740 139,195

P
age 54



Page 55



FINANCE SERVICES

Revenue Summary

Finance Update Dashboard P8 2019/20

Revenue Key Movements/Major variances

Adult Care: £1.233m overspend offset by an increased contribution from the Health & Social Care Pooled Budget
- financial pressures from the number and costs of care packages for service users. There is a further pressure from the provision of 
statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. This pressure will be wholly met by an additional contribution from the Health 
& Social Care pooled budget.
Children’s Services - £6.977m overspend with £4.030m being allocated from the Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve relating to Special 
Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) which includes: 
£2.951m is attributable to external residential placements; 4.030m relates to pressures on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG) within the 
High Needs block. This will put the DSG reserve into a deficit position and will result in a 3 year recovery plan to be submitted to the 
Department for Education.
Financial Control - £4.370m In-Year saving - The forecast in-year saving relates to an expected refund from the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority and interest savings. The interest savings are due to the borrowing requirement being funded through internal
borrowing with nil cost and the forecast reduction in capital expenditure.
Resources - £0.323m In-Year saving - The service is reporting an in-year saving of £0.323m which includes a pressure within the Legal 
Shared Service with Manchester City Council.  This pressure is being mitigated in 2019/20 by savings from staffing costs within the 
Directorate.  However, a significant amount of the 2019/20 staff savings have either been committed to the 2020/21 Savings 
Programme or are one year only, therefore, a request for Corporate Funding may be required in 2020/21 to manage the pressure within 
Legal Services which is likely to continue, due to the growth in Children in Care.
Integrated Pooled Budget Contribution - £0.823m Overspend - see Health & Social Care Pooled Fund for further details.

Recommendations
Cabinet approves:

Budget Pressures requests of:
Economy £0.050m On-going relating to unachieved savings targets as a result of lost income on disposal of assets within Industrial 
Estates. 
Economy £0.080m One off relating to short term income pressures relating to Commercial & Industrial Estates.
Resources £0.015m on-going to cover increased costs relating to Cyber insurance. 

Capital Budget switch:
Neighbourhoods - £0.056m of 2019/20 budget is requested to be switched from Developer Contributions Highways S106 to Section 106 
Environmental Management as the budget was misallocated. 

Capital Summary
Approved capital rephasing: 
£14.692m Children's: £14.667m New Place Planning at various schools, due to start in 2020/21; £0.025m Aiming High for Disabled Children- delays re adaptation of a property

£0.613m Economy: £0.438m Town Centre Schemes due to various delays in schemes, £0.100m East Lancashire Railway due to delays in recruitment, £0.025m Pennine Hollingworth Lake Feasibility 
due to delays, £0.050m Springfield Park Master Plan as the scheme has been suspended in 2019/20, to continue in 2020/21.

£0.541m Neighbourhoods Service: £0.904m Section 106 Environmental Management to facilitate the completion of Balderstone Park, Stansfield and Boroughwide Sports schemes,
£0.868m Bowlee Free School as this is with the Department for Education for approval, works are not expected to commence until 2020/21.,£0.526m Customer Transformation Programme due to 
delays in the project, £0.150m Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair to facilitate the completion of the memorial hall in 2020/21, £0.126m for New Cemetery Sites to facilitate the completion of works at 
Denehurst Park and new memorial sites within cemeteries, £0.100m Vehicle Replacement Programme due to vehicles not being available in 2019/20, (£2.133m) budget rephase reversal on the 
Highways Investment Programme as the scheme has been progressing well and is ahead of previously anticipated progress.

Health & Social Care Pooled Fund
The Council and the CCG have made the additional contributions approved 
at December Cabinet. The remaining balance reported is a £0.823m 
pressure. The Council will contribute an additional £0.823m to support 
delivery of the commissioning functions for 2019/20 with a corresponding 
reduction to the Council’s contribution in 2020/21. The Council will only 
make this contribution if the pooled fund is unable to identify alternative 
sources of funding or savings to bridge the remaining £0.823m pressure in 
2019/20.

There is no period 8 update report to the Integrated Commissioning Board 
relating to the Health & Social Care Pooled Fund. 

Corporate Debt

As the end of November 2019 the total 
outstanding sundry debt is £11.415m, a decrease 
of £3.375m from September 2019.

Directorate/ Detail

Budget 

Council

Virements/

Contingency Current Budget

Service and 

Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 

Controllable

Approved 

Net 

Budget

Forecast 

Outturn

In Year 

Saving/

(Overspend)

Previous 

Monitoring 

Report 

(December 

Cabinet)

Movement 

Since 

December 

Cabinet

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Adult Care 15,415 1,154 16,569 4,046 12,523 12,523 - - -

Children's 21,585 4,970 26,555 19,049 7,506 10,453 (2,947) (3,100) 153

Economy 15,993 (41) 15,952 755 15,197 15,399 (202) (135) (67)

Neighbourhoods 52,413 2,773 55,186 1,281 53,905 54,112 (207) (250) 43

Public Health and Wellbeing 8,206 211 8,417 1,889 6,528 6,528 - - -

Resources 8,222 (293) 7,929 (3,692) 11,621 11,298 323 256 67

TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 121,834 8,774 130,608 23,328 107,280 110,313 (3,033) (3,229) 196

Integrated Pool Budget Contribution 87,159 8,508 95,667 - 95,667 96,490 (823) (6,700) 5,877

TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS 87,159 8,508 95,667 - 95,667 96,490 (823) (6,700) 5,877

Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets 1,399 (7,056) (5,657) (20,623) 14,966 10,596 4,370 3,987 383

Finance Control: Transformation Fund 4,703 363 5,066 - 5,066 5,066 - - -

Transfer from Equalisation Reserve - (6,700) (6,700) - (6,700) (6,186) (514) - (514)

Dedicated School Grant Reserve - (4,030) (4,030) - (4,030) (4,030) - - -

Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,126 (459) 667 - 667 667 - - -

TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING 7,228 (17,882) (10,654) (20,623) 9,969 6,113 3,856 3,987 (131)

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 216,221 (600) 215,621 2,705 212,916 212,916 0 (5,942) 5,942

P
age 56



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith (Resources 
Directorate)

Public/Private Document Public

Collection Fund 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. To update Cabinet and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 
forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2019/20 as at the end of November 
2019.

The Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 is a forecast surplus of £1.779m, 
comprising:

 £1.103m surplus relating to Business Rates;
 £0.676m surplus relating to Council Tax.

The Council’s share of the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund outturn surplus is 
£1.668m. 

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Cabinet notes the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund 
outturn position.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Collection Fund forecast outturn report for 2019/20 is presented to Cabinet 
for noting as part of the budget monitoring process.

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



Key Points for Consideration

4.1     Introduction

4.1.1 The Collection Fund Account reflects the statutory requirement for the Council to 
maintain a separate fund in relation to the billing and collection of Business 
Rates and Council Tax. 

4.1.2 This report focuses on the forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2019/20 
covering:
 The summary position, and the Council’s share of the Collection Fund 

position;
 The Business Rates income position compared to budget, an update 

relating to rateable value appeals, 2019/20 collection performance and 
current level of arrears;

 The Council Tax income position compared to budget, detail of the Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme, 2019/20 collection performance and current 
level of arrears.

4.2       Summary

4.2.1 The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 is a surplus of £1.779m:
 £1.103m surplus relating to Business Rates;
 £0.676m surplus relating to Council Tax.

4.2.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund position, and the allocation 
of the forecast surplus between precepting authorities.

Table 1 – Forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus 

4.2.3 The Council’s share of the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus is £1.668m.  

4.2.4 In 2019/20 the Council continues to be part of a pilot for the 100% retention of 
Business Rates, along with other Greater Manchester authorities. Under the 
pilot scheme, 100% of Business Rates income is retained locally, of which 99% 
is retained by the local authority, and 1% retained by Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA) in respect of GM Fire and Rescue Service.

Page 58



4.2.5 The forecast 2019/20 benefit from the 100% Business Rates Retention scheme 
pilot has been calculated to be £5.474m, based on an agreed formula within 
Greater Manchester. 

50% of the benefit will be paid to GMCA, and the remaining 50% will be retained 
by the Council, and transferred to a reserve.

4.2.6 The Council continues to be part of a Business Rates pool, which for 2019/20 
includes the 10 Greater Manchester local authorities, Cheshire East Council 
and Cheshire West & Chester Council. Any sum gained, after applying the 
agreed allocation to levy authorities, will be retained by the pool for investment 
within Greater Manchester and other non-Greater Manchester Authorities 
involved in the pool.

4.3 Business Rates 

4.3.1 Net Income Raised

4.3.1.1 The forecast 2019/20 outturn position relating to Business Rates is a surplus 
of £1.103m. Table 2 provides detail of the forecast outturn position:

Table 2 – Forecast  2019/20 Business Rates income

Description Budget 2019/20 
Forecast

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit

(Surplus)/Deficit 
movement from 
previous update

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross income (84,370) (84,300) 70 (558)
Net Small Business Rate relief 6,936 7,450 514 100
Mandatory Charitable relief 4,051 4,200 149 100
Discretionary relief 2,786 1,844 (942) (43)
Empties & Part Occupied relief 3,700 2,845 (855) (105)
Net Income (66,897) (67,961) (1,064) (506)
Less:     
Charge re bad debt provision 1,000 800 (200) - 
Allowance for cost of collection 276 276 - - 
Provision for rateable value 
revaluations 3,802 3,802 - - 
Renewable Energy schemes 520 613 93 - 
Net yield (61,299) (62,470) (1,171) (506)
2018/19 payments to 
preceptors/billing authority 61,299 61,299 - - 

In year surplus - (1,171) (1,171) (506)
(Surplus)/deficit brought forward 
from 2018/19 (4,113) (4,045) 68 - 
Payments to preceptors/billing 
authority re 2018/19 surplus per the 
2019/20 Budget process 4,113 4,113 - - 
Forecast surplus as at 30/11/2019 - (1,103) (1,103) (506)

Page 59



4.3.1.2 The main areas of overall variance to the budget are:      

Explanation of variance
Variation to 

budget, £'000

Forecast reduced Empty Property and Discretionary Relief given, 
partially offset by forecast reduced Business Rate gross income and 
increased Small Business Rates and Mandatory Charitable reliefs. 
The Gross income forecast has improved due to new hereditaments 
becoming liable for Business Rates.

(1,064)

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. (200)

Forecast increased Renewable Energy scheme income to be 
transferred to the Council's General Fund 93

Actual surplus brought forward from 2018/19 is £68k lower than 
had been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. 68

2019/20 forecast surplus (1,103)

4.3.2     Valuation Office Agency (VOA) appeals 

4.3.2.1   Since 1st April 2013 local authorities have been responsible for providing for 
potential losses of income for successful appeals against revaluations which 
have taken place in 2005, 2010 and 2017. There are a number of appeals that 
require review by the VOA, mostly dating back to the 2010 rateable value (RV) 
list.

4.3.2.2  The number of property revaluation appeals outstanding at the end of   
              November 2019, relating to Rochdale’s 2005 and 2010 valuation lists, was 85
              cases, with an RV of £15.2m (equating to approximately £7.5m in annual
              Business Rates income). New appeals against the 2010 RV list ceased at the 
              end of September 2017.

4.3.2.3  The table below provides detail of the number of appeals outstanding relating 
to the 2005/2010 RV lists, during 2019/20:

 
Outstanding 

appeals 2005/ 2010 
RV list  

Number of 
appeals 

outstanding

Rateable value 
(RV)

£’000

March 2019 114 21,758

July 2019 94 16,518

September 2019 86 15,231

November 2019 85 15,219

Page 60



4.3.2.4 Business Rates Appeals relating to the 2017 RV list are subject to a three-stage 
appeals process. The new appeals system currently has had little activity. An 
estimated amount has been charged to the Collection Fund to offset future 
reductions in RV that are made by the VOA.

4.3.2.5 A recent Court ruling will mean that Business Rates on cash machines outside 
shops will no longer be chargeable, and refunds will be made. A provision has 
been made for this issue.        

    
4.3.2.6 The level of provision for outstanding appeals and other RV reductions relating 

to 2005, 2010 and 2017 RV lists is £10.9m.

4.3.2.7 The forecast 2019/20 charge to the Collection Fund for RV revaluations is 
£3.802m which reflects the need to offset the potential impact of appeals and 
other rateable value changes relating to the 2017 RV list, and any shortfall in 
provision relating to the 2005 and 2010 lists.

4.3.3    Business rates 2019/20 collection performance 

4.3.3.1 The year to date collection rate for Business Rates income billed in 2019/20 is 
70.3%, which is 1.0% lower than the equivalent 2018/19 performance, but is 
expected to reach the collection rate achieved in 2018/19 by the end of March.  
Collection performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is 
recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, and so that any trends may 
be highlighted and action taken as necessary. 

4.3.3.2 Table 3 shows the aged debt analysis of Business Rates arrears, excluding legal 
costs, as at the end of March 2019 and end of November 2019. Pre 2019/20 
arrears were £1.275m as at the end of November 2019, which is a net increase 
of £0.079m from the position at end of March 2019 due to prior year adjustments 
made by the VOA.

Table 3 – Business Rates arrears (excluding legal costs) 

Year
Arrears as at 
end March 

2019

Arrears as at 
end November 

2019

Decrease/ 
(increase) in 

debt

 £'000 £'000 £'000
Pre 2019/20 debt    
2018/19 453 702 (249)
2017/18 393 252 141
2016/17 245 199 46
2015/16 79 107 (28)
2014/15 16 13 3
Prior to 2014/15 10 2 8
Total arrears 1,196 1,275 (79)

Page 61



4.3.3.3 The forecast 2019/20 charge to the Collection Fund for bad and doubtful debts 
is £0.800m. In year debt collection is currently expected to reach the collection 
rate achieved in 2018/19 of 98.7%, resulting in a low level of debt to provide for. 
Pre 2019/20 debt is also at a low level.

4.4       Council Tax 

4.4.1    Net Income Raised

4.4.1.1 The forecast 2019/20 outturn position relating to Council Tax is a surplus of 
£0.676m. Table 4 provides details of the forecast outturn position for Council 
Tax.

          Table 4 – 2019/20 Council Tax Income

Description Budget 2019/20 
Forecast

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

movement 
from 

previous 
report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME     

Income from Council Tax (137,640) (136,750) 890 100
Income from premium on Empty 
Properties (278) (300) (22) 20
Council Tax discounts 13,881 13,800 (81) (40)

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS) 18,760 18,000 (760) (150)

Prior year adjustments 165 150 (15) (50)
Total income (105,112) (105,100) 12 (120)
EXPENDITURE     

Charge re bad debt provision 2,628 2,125 (503) 230
Total expenditure 2,628 2,125 (503) 230

Net income to be raised for precept/ 
billing authority after LCTSS awarded (102,484) (102,975) (491) 110

2018/19 payments to Preceptors 102,484 102,484 - - 

In year surplus - (491) (491) 110
(Surplus)/deficit brought forward from 
2018/19 (2,589) (2,774) (185) - 
Payments to preceptors re 2018/19 
surplus as per the 2019/20 Budget 
process 2,589 2,589 - - 

Forecast surplus as at 30/11/19 - (676) (676) 110

Page 62



4.4.1.2 The main areas of overall variance from the budget are:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 

budget, £'000
Forecast reduced Council Tax gross income, partially offset by 
increased income from Empty Property, reduced discounts and 
prior year adjustments. Residential housing developments have not 
been completed as quickly as had been predicted as part of the 
2019/20 budget setting process.

772

Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support discount given (760)

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. (503)

Actual surplus brought forward from 2018/19 is £185k higher than 
had been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. (185)

2019/20 forecast surplus (676)

4.4.2     Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS)

4.4.2.1 The award of Local Council Tax Support to a Council Tax payer is deducted 
from Council Tax bills at the start of the financial year as a discount. This 
remains the same unless there is a change of circumstances within the 
household. Local Council Tax Support relief to be given for 2019/20 is forecast 
to be £18.000m which is £0.760m (4.05%) less than budget. 

          Table 5 - LCTSS - Comparison of estimate to forecast outturn as at 
November 2019

 

Estimated 
number of 
claimants

Number of 
claimants per 
actual data at 

end 
November 

2019

Increase/ 
(reduction) in 

claimant 
numbers

% reduction 
in claimants

Working age total 14,093 14,211 118 0.84%
Pension credit age total 8,143 7,542 (601) (7.38%)
Total 22,236 21,753 (483) (2.17%)

 
Estimate  2019/20 

forecast
(Surplus)/deficit 

Variation

% reduction 
in discount 

given
 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Working age total 10,820 10,687 (133) (1.23%)
Pension credit age total 7,940 7,313 (627) (7.90%)
Total 18,760 18,000 (760) (4.05%)

Page 63



4.4.2.2 Whilst the current number of claimants has reduced by 2.17% compared to 
budget, the reduction in discount given is 4.05%, meaning that the average level 
of support per claimant is lower than that anticipated when the 2019/20 scheme 
was agreed.

4.4.3     Council Tax 2019/20 collection performance

4.4.3.1 The year to date collection rate for Council Tax income billed in 2019/20 is 72%, 
which is 0.1% lower than the 2018/19 equivalent. Collection performance is 
monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and 
effectively as possible, and so that any trends may be highlighted and action 
taken as necessary. 

4.4.3.2 Table 6 shows the age debt analysis of pre 2019/20 Council Tax debt, excluding 
legal costs, as at the end of March 2019 and the end of November 2019. Pre 
2019/20 arrears as at the end of November 2019 were £10.312m, which is a net 
decrease of £3.449m from the end of March 2019 position.

Table 6 – Council Tax arrears, excluding legal costs

Year

Arrears as at 
end March 

2019

Arrears as at 
end 

November 
2019

Decrease in 
debt

 £'000 £'000 £'000
Pre 2019/20 debt    
2018/19 5,179 3,639 1,540
2017/18 2,951 2,361 590
2016/17 2,151 1,679 472
2015/16 1,422 1,076 346
2014/15 968 720 248
Prior to 2014/15 1,090 837 253
Total arrears 13,761 10,312 3,449

4.4.3.3 The forecast 2019/20 charge to revenue for bad and doubtful debts is £2.125m, 
which is £0.503m below the budget. Continuing good debt collection 
performance, and reduced levels of debt write off, has led to the level of 
provision required being reduced.

4.4.4    Council Tax Premium Waivers

4.4.4.1 Residential properties that have been empty for more than two years are, with 
specific exemptions, charged a Council Tax premium of a further 100% of the 
usual charge.  To support the local housing market, the Head of Revenues & 
Benefits, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance, has delegated 
authority to waive part or all of the premium charge in exceptional 
circumstances. In 2019/20 so far, £12,872 of Council Tax Premium income has 
been waived. 

4.5       Alternatives considered

Page 64



Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Authority’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. Effective financial management is 
critical to ensuring that financial resources are received in line with the budget, 
which enables them to be targeted towards the Council’s priorities.

Costs and Budget Summary

5 Financial Implications

5.1    The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 2019/20 
Collection Fund outturn position.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1    Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 
2017 cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income 
retained by the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure 
that any changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the 
future impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the provision for any 
backdated elements. 

6.2 The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light indicating 
that the valuation is inaccurate. These could relate to a demolition, new property 
builds or other physical changes to a property. The number of alterations, 
financial impact and timing of the revaluations are not within the control of the 
Council.

6.3 The future level of collection of both Business Rates and Council Tax debt is a 
potential financial risk. Collection performance is being monitored on a monthly 
basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, 
and so that any trends may be highlighted and action taken as necessary.

6.4 There is an on-going risk that issues decided nationally by the VOA could 
potentially impact on Rochdale BC’s Business Rates income.

6.5 There are no significant legal implications arising as a result of this Report but 
it should be noted that debts, which are recoverable, can be enforced by Court 
action in accordance with the Court Procedure Rules.

Consultation

7.   The Leadership Team, the Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, and 
Shadow Portfolio Holder for Finance have been informed of the forecast 
2019/20 Collection Fund forecast position and its implications for future years. 
The report will be presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 11th February 2020.

Page 65



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith (Resources Directorate)

, Tel: 01706 924196, 
stuart.smith@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 66



FINANCE SERVICES

Table 1 - Forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund Outturn Summary

Table 2 - Rateable Value detail - November 2019    Chart 1 - Business Rates Relief Chart 2 -  Business Rates income collection Chart 3 - Business Rates arrears 

Chart 4 - Council Tax properties          Chart 5 - Council Tax Relief Chart 6 - Council Tax income collection

Chart 7 - Council Tax arrears

P8, 2019/20 Collection Fund Update Summary

RV Value RV Values

No of 

properties

No of 

properties

£ % %

> £1,999,999 7,210,000 4.2% 2 0.0%

£1,000,000 - £1,999,999 22,595,000 13.2% 15 0.2%

£500,000 - £999,999 12,460,000 7.3% 18 0.2%

£250,000 - £499,999 22,549,000 13.2% 65 0.8%

£100,000 - £249,999 28,814,050 16.8% 188 2.3%

£50,000 - £99,999 19,112,375 11.2% 274 3.3%

£25,000 - £49,999 17,916,725 10.5% 512 6.2%

£12,000 - £24,999 15,708,325 9.2% 935 11.4%

£6,000 - £11,999 14,002,650 8.2% 1,682 20.5%

< £6,000 10,936,281 6.4% 4,524 55.1%

Total 171,304,406 100% 8,215 100%

The forecast Collection Fund outturn for 2019/20 is a surplus of £1.779m, comprising:
£1.103m surplus relating to Business Rates;
£0.676m surplus relating to Council Tax.

The areas of variance to the budget are:
Business Rates :

(£971k) Forecast reduced Empty Property and Discretionary Relief given, partially offset by forecast          
reduced Business Rate gross income and increased Small Business Rates and Mandatory Charitable reliefs.
(£200k) Forecast reduced charge relating to bad debt provision
£68k Actual 2018/19 surplus lower than estimated as part of  2019/20 Estimates process

Council Tax:
(£185k) Actual 2018/19 surplus higher than estimated as part of  2019/20 Budget process
(£503k)  Reduced charge relating to Bad Debt Provision
£12k Forecast income lower than budget, mainly due to reduced gross Council Tax income     largely 

offset by lower levels of Local Council Tax Support given.

The Council’s share of the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus is £1.668m. 

Total Arrears  outstanding as at November 2019 is approximately £1,275k.

A large proportion of the unsummonsed balance relates to new debt as a result of 
Valuation Office Agency  decisions which have affected prior years. On confirmation of 
these decisions, Revenue & Benefits initiate the debt collection process.

Although £1,112k of debt has been collected during 2019/20, this has been offset by 
refunds and other adjustments.

Total debt outstanding as at the end of March 2018 is approximately £13,761k. 
Arrears at November 2019 is approximately £10,313k.

Forecast Gross Business Rates income £84.300m.

Total Business Rates Relief to be given £16.339m.

Potential risk areas

Business Rates and Council Tax debt collection not meeting target for collection.
Collection performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently 
and effectively as possible, and so that action taken as necessary.

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 2017 cause uncertainty 
and financial risk for the Business Rates income retained by the Council. There are currently 85 appeals 
with a rateable value of £15.2m outstanding relating to the 2005 and 2010 RV lists. There is little 
information available relating to the 2017 list. 

The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light indicating that the valuation is 
inaccurate. The number of alterations, financial impact and timing of revaluations are not within the 
control of the Council.

Business Rate appeals can be raised against the Rateable Valuation of a 
hereditament.  If the appeal is successful this may lead to adjustments being made 
in prior years.  

Other changes made  by the Valuation Office Agency to the Rateable Value  will 
also impact on the level of income raised  and debt collectable. 

Forecast Gross Council Tax income is approximately £137m. 
Forecast Council Tax relief to be given is approximately £32m.

Approximately 35,000 properties receive Single Person's Discount.
There are currently approximately 22,000 claiming Local Council Tax Support.

Property Band Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Totals

Number 51,146        16,327        12,459        7,880        4,423        1,673        870          56             94,834        

% of total 54% 17% 13% 8% 5% 2% 1% 0% 100%

Property Band

P
age 67



Report to Corporate O&S Committee

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for  Finance  
Report Author Julie Murphy  
Public/Private Document Public

Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21

Executive Summary

1.1 This report seeks approval for the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) set out in 
Appendix 1 which outlines how the Council will meet the requirements of the relevant 
legislation, codes of practice and guidance that form the Prudential Framework.

1.2 The Strategy is the Council’s policy for ensuring that:
 borrowing in the long term is undertaken for capital purposes
 borrowing plans are affordable and achieve best value
 total debt remains within our authorised limit and prudential indicators
 risks are identified and controlled
 cashflows are managed to ensure that the Council can meet its financial obligations

1.3 The Council intends to maintain an under-borrowed position for the period covered by the 
Strategy, using its own internal balances to fund capital expenditure whenever possible but 
aware of the possibility of interest rate rises. Interest rates are currently relatively low and 
expected to rise slowly over the next three years. The Council’s overall borrowing requirement 
increases over the period of this strategy.

1.4 The Council’s treasury investment priorities will continue to place emphasis on security over 
return. Minimum credit criteria will be set to ensure the creditworthiness of counterparties which 
will be closely monitored throughout the year to minimise risk. Limits are also placed on the 
amounts we can place with individual institutions and the durations of investments. Investments 
are also placed with reference to overall liquidity to ensure that cash is available when it is 
needed.

1.5 Our Minimum Revenue Provision Policy seeks to ensure that capital assets funded via 
borrowing are charged to revenue over their useful life to the Council and we have appropriate 
provision to repay debt when we need to.

1.6 The Council will pursue a broadly similar Strategy to previous years which has ensured that key 
objectives are met whilst making a contribution via savings to our overall budget position.

Recommendations

2.1 The annual Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21 be recommended to Council for 
approval with particular reference to:

2.2 The objectives of treasury management contained in section 2 and Appendix A.

2.3 The forecasted capital financing / borrowing requirement in section 3.1.1 (table 2) and 3.1.2 
(table 3).

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



2.4 The Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for debt contained in section 3.1.3 (table 4)

2.5 Delegated authority is given to the Chief Finance Officer to approve a breach in these 
boundaries where it would be advantageous to the Council (3.1.3).

2.6 The Council’s criteria for assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties for investments 
contained in section 3.2.1 with an emphasis on security of capital over return.

2.7 The additional Prudential and Treasury Indicators identified in section 3.4.

2.8 The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy contained in section 3.5.

2.9 If significant changes to financial institutions’ ratings occur as a result of global industry 
changes to the ratings system (paragraph 3.2.1), delegated approval be given to the Chief 
Finance Officer to temporarily suspend the Council’s own creditworthiness criteria in favour of 
the  modelling approach adopted by our financial advisors, adjusting limits with individual 
counterparties if appropriate.

2.10   Include Pooled Investment Funds (including Property) as an Investment option (3.2.6).

Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 The report is produced to gain Cabinet Members’ approval of the Treasury 
Management Strategy for submission to Full Council and to ensure that Cabinet Members 
are informed of and ensure adherence to the requirements of the Prudential Framework.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Borrowing Strategy

4.1.1 The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is the historic total of our unfunded (by 
revenue or capital resources) capital expenditure and (after certain adjustments) equates to our 
potential overall borrowing requirement over the period covered by the report.

4.1.2 Our current borrowing is below our possible financing requirement as the Council has 
maintained a policy of using internal balances to fund new capital expenditure for a number of 
years and delaying long term borrowing costs. This is a temporary measure as internal 
reserves and balances will ultimately be used for the purpose for which they were intended or 
to support the overall budget. The Council is therefore likely to externalise some of this internal 
borrowing in 2020/21 by taking on new external borrowing.

4.1.3 The timing of this new borrowing will be matched to overall cashflows and movements in our 
resources as needed with a balance struck between avoiding costs of carry (interest costs 
incurred on borrowing that might have been funded from reserves) and potential future interest 
rate rises (projected to remain fairly static though 2020/21 though gradually rising). The Council 
also has the option to make use of temporary borrowing to supplement cashflow fluctuations. If 
longer term rates look set to rise, the Council will assess the most appropriate long term 
funding options at the time.

4.1.4 Prudential Indicators which place limits on our overall debt levels, the maturity profile and 
fixed/variable rate exposure have also been set.

4.1.5 A summary table showing potential borrowing and capital financing requirements, projected 
debt and long term liabilities, our operational boundary and authorised limit is detailed in Table 
1.

 

Page 69



Summary Table 1 Current Estimate Estimate Estimate
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000
Capital Financing Requirement 496,598 519,364 527,861 522,291

Underlying Borrowing Requirement 400,785 427,227 439,660 438,321

Projected Borrowing (220,931) (307,340) (327,285) (327,468)

Underborrowing 179,854 119,887 112,375 110,853

Operational Boundary 521,428 545,332 554,254 548,406

Authorised Limit 648,806 672,022 670,657 643,922

4.2 Investment Strategy

4.2.1 The Council’s Treasury Investment Strategy (relating to the placement of short term cash 
surpluses) will continue to place security over return.

4.2.2 Our own creditworthiness policy combined with our treasury management consultant’s 
modelling approach sets minimum criteria which aim to generate a list of high quality potential 
counterparties and instruments. In broad terms, UK counterparties must achieve a long-term 
rating of at least A- (Fitch) whilst foreign counterparties must achieve at least AA-. Separate 
limits relating to the amounts and durations of individual counterparties are also specified to 
ensure diversification and avoid the concentration of risk.

4.2.3 The Council will also make use of AAA rated Money Market Funds and review other options as 
they become available.

4.2.4  The Council will include  investment in Pooled  Funds (including Property) in its Investment 
Options and undertake appropriate assessment of our options in this regard.

4.2.5 Interest rates on investments are projected to remain low – the Council will not seek to chase 
returns over potential risk of loss of capita although we will look to optimise returns within the 
context of our limited risk appetite.

4.3 Minimum Revenue Provision Policy

4.3.1 The Council is required to charge a portion of its Capital Financing Requirement to revenue 
each year which should ensure that resources are available to repay debt as required. Assets 
are charged to revenue over their useful economic lives. The Council has increased the lives of 
several asset groups (shorter term assets, the Town Hall and Number One Riverside) – certain 
assets will simply have to be utilised for longer periods to maintain the ability to deliver key 
frontline services. Other options will be considered for specific projects (to align with cashflows 
or the inherent retained value of an asset) provided they are consistent with our duty to make 
prudent provision.

4.4 Alternatives Considered

4.4.1 There are no feasible alternatives – all proposals are in accordance with the revised CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management, which has been formally adopted by the 
Council and with Government guidance regarding the Treasury Management Strategy.

Page 70



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report. Appropriate budgets exist 
for all Treasury activity outlined.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 In preparing the report financial risks have been considered in relation to the best methods of 
managing the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk and volatility via money markets and 
changes in the accounting environment.

6.2 It is believed that the strategy proposed will allow the Council to continue to effectively 
manage its interest rate exposure and guard against interest rate risk and volatility without 
any significant increases in overall financial risk.

6.3 There are risks associated with investment and borrowing decisions which the Treasury 
Management Strategy seeks to manage. The risk given primary consideration is to 
security of capital. Others include interest rate exposure risk, budget risk and cash flow 
risk. The strategy addresses how these are dealt with.

6.4 Choosing a particular policy requires Treasury Managers to take a view of future uncertain 
events, in particular the likely rises and falls in UK interest rates over time. Specialist 
advice is taken on economic forecasts and the opinions and strategies are based on an 
assessment of these and information known at the time. The forecasts on which the strategy 
is based are explained in the Investment and Borrowing Strategy sections which follow.

Consultation

7.1 The proposed strategy for 2020/21 has been prepared in consultation with Link Asset 
Services (LAS – formerly Capita) – the Council’s current treasury management consultants. 
Stakeholders are consulted through the development of the Strategy with the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee receiving the report on the11th February.

Background Papers: For further information about this report or access to background papers 
please contact Julie Murphy (Chief Finance Officer) or Paul McHugh (Tax & Treasury Accountant) 

Finance Services, Floor 2, Number 1 Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 9DJ.  Tel – 01706 
925174 / 925422.

Document Place of Inspection

CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice and 
Prudential Code, DHCLG Guidance on MRP & Investments
Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20
Mid-Year Treasury Update 2019/20 Included in Revenue 
Finance Update Period 6 

Treasury Team F2 No1 Riverside

Cabinet Agenda 20/2/18 
Cabinet Agenda 27/11/18

Treasury Team F2 No1 Riverside

Page 71



Treasury Management 
Strategy 2020/21 
(includes Minimum 
Revenue Provision)

Page 72



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Document Control
Document Title: Treasury Management Strategy 2020-21 
(includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
Summary

Publication Date 1/4/20

Related Legislation / Applicable 
Section of Legislation

Local Government Act 2003, Local Authorities (Capital Financing & 
Accounting – England) Regulations 2003 and the Localism Act 
2011.

Related Policies, Strategies, 
Guideline Documents

CIPFA Prudential Code and CIPFA Treasury Management Code of 
Practice

Replaces Annual – replaces 1/4/19 version

Joint Strategy (Yes/No) No

Name of Partner(s) if joint n/a

Strategy Owner (Name/Position) Julie Murphy – Chief Finance Officer

Strategy Author (Name/Position) Paul McHugh – Snr Accountant – Tax & Treasury

Applies to

Review of Strategy

Last Review Date Dec / Jan 2019

Review undertaken by Paul McHugh & Michelle Ashworth

Next Review Date Dec / Jan 2020

Document Approvals
The document is reviewed by the Chief Finance Officer and submitted for approval at February Cabinet and 
the Budget Setting Council.

Page 73



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 2

1. Introduction 

1.1 : Background

CIPFA defines Treasury Management as:
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital 
market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised during the 
year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow 
is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low 
risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite (security is 
paramount), providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s capital 
plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer 
term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This 
management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash 
flow surpluses. On occasion, any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet the Council’s risk or 
cost objectives.

1.2 : Legislative Framework and Guidance

The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations requires the Council to ‘have regard to’ the 
CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice ( s e e  k e y  p r i n c i p l e s  
i n  a p p e n d i x  1 )  to set Prudential and Treasury Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the 
Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

The Act therefore requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing and to prepare an 
Annual Investment Strategy which sets out the Council’s policies for managing its investments and for giving 
priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. This is contained within the Treasury Management 
Investment Strategy. This strategy also draws on the MHCLG’s guidance on Investments which along with its 
guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision and CIPFA’s codes forms the framework for the Prudential System.

CIPFA’s Codes and the MHCLG Guidance were both reviewed in 2017/18. The objective of the review was to 
respond to the expansion of local authority investment activity and the purchase of non-financial investments, 
particularly property. From 2019/20 local authorities have been required to produce a Capital Strategy which is 
intended to provide the following:

 An overview of capital expenditure (priorities and ambition) and how capital financing / treasury 
contribute to the provision of services

 An assessment of risks and rewards and how associated risk will be managed 
 Demonstrating  such activity is proportional and consideration of the implications for long term financial 

sustainablity 

This detail will be included in our Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy with this document focusing on 
traditional financial treasury investments.

Page 74



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 3

2. Strategic Outcomes 

The main objectives of the Treasury Management Strategy are:

 To effectively manage and control the risks associated with treasury management activities 
giving regard to the Code, and all relevant legislation, criteria and limits set within this report.

 To ensure that sufficient cash is available to enable the Council to discharge its financial 
obligations when they become due.

 To undertake all borrowing at or below budgeted rates on the basis of best value, and also 
seek opportunities to reduce the cost of servicing existing debt.

 To minimise the cost of any temporary borrowing (which is required for day to day cash flow 
reasons).

 To invest prudently having regard to the security and liquidity of Investments and the 
predictability of returns.

 To aim to achieve the optimum return on investments commensurate with proper levels of 
security and liquidity.

3. Strategy

3.1 Borrowing Strategy

3.1.1 : Borrowing / Capital Financing Requirement 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are a key driver of treasury management activity. Future capital 
expenditure plans are outlined in a separate report to Cabinet on 12th February.  Capital expenditure can be 
funded by external grants and contributions, capital receipts and by revenue contributions. The gap 
between planned capital spend and existing resources results in a funding requirement which will need to 
be met by borrowing. A summary of the estimated potential long term borrowing requirements to fund new 
capital expenditure included in future budgets is shown in Table 1. The 2019/20 requirement includes re-
phasing from previous years’ programmes.

Table 1 : Capital Expenditure - Borrowing Current Estimate Estimate Estimate
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000
Mainstream Capital Programme 42,108 19,539 19,975 11,580

Invest to Save & Treasury Schemes 51,823 20,455 7,338 1,530

Total 93,931 39,994 27,313 13,110

The Council continues to maintain an under-borrowed position (£105.9 million in our accounts to 31/3/19). The 
Council has used its balance sheet strength to internally fund this expenditure from t h e  c a s h  
s u p p o r t i n g  its accumulated reserves and balances. As these reserves and balances are utilised for 
the purpose for which they were originally intended, the Council will need to borrow from external sources. 

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is the historic outstanding capital expenditure which 
has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the 
Council’s underlying borrowing need.

Any capital expenditure which has not immediately been funded will increase the CFR. This  wi l l  not  
increase indef in i te ly  as the Council charges its revenue account with a prudent amount each year to 

Page 75



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 4

adequately cover its debt repayment obligations and charge this capital expenditure through to its revenue 
account over the useful life of the assets purchased. This is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
– see section 3.5 for further details. The projected movement in the CFR is shown in Table 2.

Table 2 : Capital Financing Requirement Current Estimate Estimate Estimate
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening CFR 417,257 496,598 519,364 527,861

Capital Spend - Borrowing (Includes Re-Phasing) 93,931 39,994 27,313 13,110

MRP (including External Debt Repayment) (14,590) (17,228) (18,816) (18,680)

Closing CFR 496,598 519,364 527,861 522,291

Less PFI Financing Leases (95,813) (92,137) (88,201) (83,970)

Underlying Borrowing Requirement 400,785 427,227 439,660 438,321

The CFR includes the Council’s Private Finance Initiative (PFI) long term liabilities. Such schemes include 
a borrowing facility which is the responsibility of the contractor. The Council is not required to borrow 
separately to finance these schemes. Therefore PFI schemes are deducted from the overall CFR to 
produce the Council’s own underlying borrowing requirement. 

3.1.2  : Current Portfolio Position

The Council’s projected borrowing need alongside forecast external borrowing is summarised in table 3:

Table 3 : Forecast Borrowing Requirement Current Estimate Estimate Estimate
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000
Underlying Borrowing Requirement 400,785 427,227 439,660 438,321

Estimated External Borrowing (220,931) (307,340) (327,285) (327,468)

Internal Borrowing 179,854 119,887 112,375 110,853

Less Short Term Investments (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000)

Net Borrowing Requirement 139,854 79,887 72,375 70,853

The Prudential Code states that authorities should ensure that, over the medium-term, net borrowing should 
only be for a capital purpose. This means that net external borrowing should not, except in the short-
term, exceed the capital financing requirement for the previous year plus the additional CFR for the 
current and next two years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.

Table 3 shows that the Council does not envisage any problem in meeting this prudential indicator during the 
period covered by this report (the highlighted line). An overall under borrowed position will be maintained. 
This position will be monitored with reference to our balance sheet review (ie the overall movement of our 
reserves and balances) and expected movements in interest rates.

Page 76



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 5

3.1.3  : Treasury Indicators – Limits to Borrowing Activity

The Operational Boundary represents a maximum limit on the anticipated level of external borrowing. Its 
value is calculated with reference to:

 Current outstanding debt (including internal borrowing).
 Estimates of the authority’s capital investment plans.
 The potential requirement to refinance and/or restructure loans.
 Possible third party loans.
 An allowance for temporary borrowing arising from normal day to day cashflow fluctuations.

The Code states that occasional and temporary breaches of the Operational Boundary, whilst not ideal, 
are acceptable if it is prudent to do so. It is recommended that delegated authority be given to the Chief 
Finance Officer to approve a breach where it would be advantageous to the Council. This would be reported 
to Cabinet at its next meeting following the event. Projected movements in our Operational Boundary are 
shown in Table 4:

Table 4: Operational Boundary & Current Estimate Estimate Estimate
Authorised Limit 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000

Operational Boundary 521,428 545,332 554,254 548,406

Authorised Limit 648,806 672,022 670,657 643,922

The Authorised Limit for external borrowing represents a control on our maximum level of borrowing. This 
represents a legislative limit (Local Government Act 2003) beyond which external borrowing is prohibited.

The Operational Boundary is the start point for the calculation of the Authorised Limit to which sufficient 
headroom is added to accommodate such issues as unusual cash movements, borrowing in advance of 
need and the early maturity of commercial debt with repayment options ( Lender Option Borrower Option 
– LOBOs).

Under proposals to amend IFRS16 from 2020/21 operating leases may need to be included on our 
balance sheet. This would effectively increase our CFR which would have a knock-on effect on our 
operational boundary and authorised limit. At this stage the changes are not expected to have a 
significant effect – any changes will be reported once the detailed impact is known.

The graph below summarises the projected relationship between our key treasury debt indicators.

Page 77



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 6

Actual 
2018/19

Current 
2019/20

Estimate 
2020/21

Estimate 
2021/22

Estimate 
2022/23

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

Projected Borrowing
Capital Financing Requirement
Underlying Borrowing Requirement

Forecast Debt Indicators

£0
00

S

3.1.4  : Interest Rates

The Council has appointed Link Asset Services (LAS) as its Treasury Advisor. Part of that service is to 
assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. Table 5 summarises LAS’s view on future interest 
rates:

Table 5 : Interest Rates Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23
% % % % % % %

Bank of England Base Rate 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.25

5 Year PWLB Rate 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.90 3.20
10 Year PWLB Rate 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.80 2.90 3.20 3.50
25 Year PWLB Rate 3.30 3.40 3.40 3.50 3.60 3.90 4.10
50 Year PWLB Rate 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.40 3.50 3.80 4.00

The PWLB rates quoted above are net of HM Treasury’s Certainty Rate which was introduced on 1st 

November 2012. The authority benefits from a 0.2% reduction to the standard rate in return for providing 
information about its future borrowing plans. They include the PWLB’s increase to their margin over gilt yields 
by 100 basis points to 180 basis points announced on 9th October 2019.

The price of borrowing undertaken by the Council is influenced by the prices of sovereign debt, or gilts, 
traded on the gilt market. Movements in the prices of gilts are influenced by a combination of UK and 
global inflation expectations, interest rate forecasts and the effects of supply and demand which is 

Page 78



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 7

dependent upon economic factors and market sentiment. The following factors will all contribute to the 
possibility of sharp changes in investor sentiment and increased volatility: 

 Continuing uncertainties around Brexit
 A possible resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis 
 The geo-political environment
 The likelihood of increased US protectionism, its general economic and interest rate policy 
 Slowdowns in the growth of the Chinese and other emerging economies

Rates are currently relatively low though they are expected to slowly rise in the short / medium term.

The Council’s borrowing strategy will consider borrowing in the following forms:

The cheapest borrowing will generally be internal borrowing by running down cash balances (from 
reserves and balance sheet strength) and foregoing interest earned from investments at historically low 
rates in a relatively high risk environment. The Council will continue to pursue this policy in 2020/21. 
However, in view of the overall forecast for long term borrowing rates to increase over the next few years, 
consideration will also be given to weighing the short term advantages of internal borrowing against potential 
increased long term costs. This decision will be influenced by the ‘cost of carry’ (the difference between 
current borrowing and investment rates) which will be considered against the backdrop of uncertainty and 
affordability constraints, taking into account the Council’s overall financial position.

Prior to the October decision to increase margins over gilt yields, the Council would have  expected to carry 
out most of its permanent borrowing from the PWLB, as the interest rates were generally the cheapest 
available, rates can be fixed for the term of the loan to provide greater certainty and the borrowing process is 
relatively simple.  Following this margin increase however, the Council may need to consider alternative 
borrowing options.

The option of temporary and  sho r t e r  t e rm  borrowing from other public authorities will continue in 
2020/21 to match cashflow requirements during the year. Longer term rates will be monitored in consultation 
with our advisors and longer term rates locked in to if a sustained upward movement in rates is expected.

The Council is also looking at the possibility of commercial loans from financial institutions (often insurance 
companies and pension funds) and some banks. These will be considered on a comparative basis with 
equivalent PWLB debt and may be selected if they are thought to offer best value and conform to the 
Council’s borrowing strategy. The market for these loans had been relatively stagnant but new entrants are 
expected given their increased ability to compete with PWLB rates. 

The Council will also consider borrowing from the Municipal Bonds Agency, supranational banks, capital market 
bond investors and other institutions approved by the Prudential Regulation Authority. The extent to which any 
of these options proves to be cheaper than PWLB rates is still evolving at the time of writing but the Council’s 
advisors and the institutions themselves will advise accordingly.

The Council’s main objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk balance between 
securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funding is required. 
If possible, we plan to borrow small amounts at regular intervals to average out the cost of borrowing whilst also 
seeking to limit the cost of carry.

Given the overall size of past capital programmes, the relatively long maturity profile of existing debt and 
the current ratio of MRP compared to actual loan repayments, it is envisaged that relatively short / medium 

Page 79



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 8

term equal instalment repayment loans (in which part of the loan principal is paid off each year as well as 
interest) will be taken for future borrowing, although this will be balanced by the greater certainty offered by 
longer term maturity loans. 

Further considerations to achieve the objectives are as follows:

 Give due consideration to the impact of new borrowing or debt restructuring on the Council’s 
debt maturity profile and the associated implications for interest rate risk and the Authority’s 
balance sheet.

 Continue to seek out new products that may become available in the debt market that are 
suitable for Local Authority purposes. One option to be explored is the use of bond placements 
to raise funding, possibly working alongside other local authorities or the Municipal Bond 
Agency to share costs and attract investors.

 Consider and mitigate the effects of developments in Accounting Standards on the Council’s 
income and expenditure account which may be created by borrowing decisions.

 Look to arrange forward starting loans during 2020/21 where the interest rate is fixed, but cash 
received in future years. This would enable certainty of cost to be achieved without a cost of carry 
in the intervening period.

In normal circumstances the main sensitivities of the forecast are likely to be the two scenarios noted below. 
Council officers, in conjunction with the treasury advisors, will continually monitor both the prevailing interest 
rates and the market forecast, adopting the following responses to a change of sentiment:

 If it were felt that there would be a significant sharp FALL in long and short term rates, e.g. due 
to a marked increase of risks  around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation, then long 
term borrowings will be postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into 
short term borrowing will be considered.

 If it were felt that there would be a significant sharp RISE in long and short term rates than 
those currently forecast, perhaps arising from a greater than expected increase in world 
economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re- 
appraised, with the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates were 
still relatively low.

3.1.5 : Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its need, purely in order to profit from the investment 
of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within approved Capital Financing 
Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.

3.1.6 : Debt Rescheduling

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed interest rates, there may 
be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching from long term debt to short term debt. However, 
these savings will need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of the cost 

Page 80



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 9

of debt repayment (premiums incurred).

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:

 the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings;
 helping to fulfil the treasury strategy;
 enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the balance of 

volatility).

The Council will also consider whether there is any residual potential for making savings by running down 
investment balances to repay debt prematurely, as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower 
than rates paid on current debt.

3.1.7 : Debt Related Budgets

Table 8 summarises external interest charges for the treasury function on our managed debt portfolio.

Table 8 Interest Budget Current Estimate Estimate Estimate
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000

Full Provision
Total Loan Interest Budget 13,388 14,628 15,445 15,762
Less Contributions from Invest to Save Schemes (2,481) (2,956) (3,746) (3,851)
Net Interest Budget 10,907 11,672 11,699 11,911

BSR - Maintain Internal Borrowing (4,129) (4,414) (4,138) (4,082)
Interest Cost with Internal Borrowing 6,778 7,258 7,561 7,829

Additional Cost 0.25% Increase 315 357 355 318

The Council makes full provision for the cost of externalising its current internally borrowed position. However, 
it is unlikely that this will occur fully in the period covered by this report. A balance sheet review (BSR) has 
been undertaken looking at relative movements in reserves, expected capital expenditure and borrowing to 
determine the rate at which this is likely to occur. The table above shows estimates of the potential savings 
to the revenue interest budget as a consequence of maintaining our internally borrowed position (to some 
extent) into the future. These savings will support revenue balances in the future – the estimated level has 
been taken into account by the Chief Finance Officer when reviewing our overall budget.

The table also shows the risk to the revenue interest budget (at full provision) of an increase of 0.25% in the 
interest rate used to set our overall capital financing budget. The possible rise in rates will be regularly 
monitored and appropriate action taken to mitigate this risk.

3.2 Investment Strategy

The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both financial and non-
financial investments.  This report deals solely with financial investments, (as managed by the treasury 
management team).  Non-financial investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are 
covered in the Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy, (a separate report).

Page 81



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 10

The Council holds significant investment funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure plus 
reserves and balances held.

The Council’s investment priorities will be security of capital first, liquidity second and then return.

To achieve these aims the Council will ensure that it maintains a policy to:

 Outline its criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security (and their 
subsequent monitoring)

 Determine the maximum time for which funds may prudently be committed
 Determine the categories of investment types it will place funds in. 

3.2.1 : Creditworthiness Policy

The risk appetite of the Council is low in order to give priority to the security of its investments.
The Chief Finance Officer will maintain a counterparty list in compliance with specified criteria and will 
revise the criteria and submit them to Council for approval as necessary.

Table 7 shows the minimum long and short term ratings that the Council will adhere to in making its 
investments.

Table 7 : Credit Ratings

Long 
Term

Short 
Term

Long 
Term

Short 
Term

UK Banks and Building Socities A- and F1 A3 and P2

Other International Banks AA- and F1 Aa3 and P1

Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility N/A N/A N/A N/A

Local (including GM/GMCA), Fire & Police Authorities N/A N/A N/A N/A

LOWER OF
Institution Type Fitch Rating OR Moody’s Rating 

(Minimum) (Minimum)

The Council also uses the creditworthiness service provided by L AS. This service has been progressively 
enhanced over recent years and now uses a sophisticated modelling approach with credit ratings from all 
three  rating agencies – Fitch, Moody’s and Standard  & Poors - forming the core element.   However, 
it does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of counterparties but also uses the following as 
overlays:

 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies
 Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings
 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries

The end product of this process is a series of colour coded bands which indicate each counterparty’s 
relative creditworthiness and the possible length of any Council investment.

All credit ratings will be monitored weekly. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all three 

Page 82



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 11

agencies through its use of the L AS creditworthiness service. We are also told which counterparties 
have moved to negative/positive watch and which may be closest to a possible downgrade.

When downgrade results in the counterparty / investment no longer meeting the Council’s minimum 
criteria, current investments will be recovered at the earliest opportunity and further use of the counterparty 
will be withdrawn.

In practice, the Council will use a combination of its own creditworthiness ratings and Link’s scoring system / 
advice as well market data and the financial press to establish an on-going counterparty list. On occasion, fine 
tuning by an individual credit rating agency can lead to a counterparty temporarily being reduced below the 
Council’s Credit Criteria (on one factor) yet maintaining a high overall score using Link’s system (or vice versa). 
In this instance an overall view will be taken on the merit of the counterparty and its continued use. Such 
rare instances will be reported as part of the next possible Financial Update Report.

Potential global financial industry wide changes and economic uncertainty will continue to impact on credit 
ratings and their volatility during 2020/21. It is therefore recommended that delegated approval be given to 
the Chief Finance Officer to temporarily suspend the Council’s own creditworthiness criteria in favour of a 
revised the modelling approach agreed with our financial advisors.

3.2.2 : Money Market Funds

Money Market Funds (MMF) and UK Gilt Funds with high credit ratings will continue to be used for short-
term cash investments where they provide an opportunity of reasonable returns combined with exceptional 
liquidity. MMFs invest in a portfolio of short term, high quality debt instruments, helping the Council to 
spread its risk exposure. MMFs are managed and rated by the credit agencies within very specific 
guidelines.

For the purposes of investing in MMFs and UK Gilt Funds, the definition of ‘high credit rating’ will cover 
those funds that are rated as triple-A (AAA) by the main credit rating agencies which can be established 
from information supplied by LAS and SunGard (a specialist investment platform used to place funds).

The introduction of EU directives and changes to regulations relating to Net Stable Funding and Liquidity 
Coverage Ratios came into force in January 2019 with the intention of placing more stringent criteria on funds 
to make them more resilient and stable in the event of  a market crisis and less vulnerable in case of ‘runs’ 
on the fund.

Structurally, funds will be split into three broad categories:

 Constant Net Asset Value (CNAV) 
 Low Volatility Net Asset Value (LVNAV)
 Variable Net Asset Value (VNAV)

The Council will look to utilise all three types of fund if they are deemed to be appropriate and match our 
security / risk appetite criteria. We will continue to benchmark funds to manage risk as conditions in this 
market change.

We will look to utilise enhanced money market funds which pay an enhanced rate for reduced liquidity if this 
is suitable for our needs.

Page 83



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 12

The Council has elected to opt up to professional status to comply with the Markets in Financial Instruments 
Directive II to continue dealing with MMFs, brokers and individual financial institutions where appropriate. 
This will be reviewed on an annual basis.

3.2.3 : UK Building Societies

UK Building Societies are now included within our main credit rating criteria. As an additional safeguard 
investments will only be made with a building society which has assets in excess of £1,000m.

3.2.4 : Investment Limits

The day to day cash requirements needed to fund general revenue and capital expenditure will continue to 
be managed on a proactive basis by the treasury function. Cashflow forecasting produced by the Council will 
be used to ensure that investments are placed for the most relevant period. This is to ensure sufficient liquid 
resources are available to meet its financial obligations, whilst achieving the optimum return on investments 
commensurate with proper and emphasised levels of security and liquidity.

The monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s counterparty lists are shown in table 8 .  In certain 
special circumstances, authority is delegated to the Chief Finance Officer to exceed our normal day to day 
limits. This might include the risk of the removal or capping of our borrowing powers by Central 
Government or the threat of imminent significant increases to PWLB interest rates. This would ensure that 
the Council can still place money with the relatively few counterparties of highest creditworthiness in case 
of the requirement to borrow in advance of absolute need to achieve value for money for the Council. Any 
instance of the Special Circumstances Limits being actioned will be reported retrospectively to Cabinet.

Table 8 : Investment Limits Fitch Rating Moody's

Institution (Long Term) (Long Term)

Banks and Building Societies AA- and above Aa3 and above £12,000,000 £15,000,000

Banks and Building Societies A-, A and A+ A3 to A1 £8,000,000 £12,000,000

Council's Banker - Barclays n/a n/a £15,000,000 £20,000,000

Bank Group Overall Limit £16,000,000 £25,000,000

Money Market Fund AAA AAA £12,000,000 £15,000,000

Treasury Bills n/a n/a £30,000,000 £50,000,000

Debt Management Office n/a n/a No Limit No Limit

Local (inc GM/GMCA  bodies)/Police Authority n/a n/a £10,000,000 £15,000,000

OR Normal 
Investment Limit

Special 
Circumstances  

Limit

The Council currently has its day to day banking operations with Barclays. As part of our banking package 
it is possible to place money in a linked interest bearing instant access account automatically via 
electronic transfer. In view of the reasonable interest rate offered on this account (compared to other 
on call options), Barclays relatively strong rating and ease of administration it is proposed to mainta in  
the limit on this account to £15 million (providing the bank continues to meet the minimum level required).

3.2.5 : Certificates of Deposit, Covered Bonds / Repos and Treasury Bills

The Council holds a custodial account with Kings & Shaxson (a firm of London brokers). This gives us 

Page 84



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 13

access to a range of high quality institutions (which normally do not deal directly with local authorities) via 
Certificates of Deposit (short-dated marketable securities). This will enable us to expand our counterparty list 
whilst ensuring capital is secure. Similar trades can be sourced via other brokers. The Council will continue to 
apply the same credit rating criteria and limits to these investments as laid out in tables 7 and 8.

Covered bonds are financial instruments secured by assets such as mortgage loans. All issuers are required 
to hold sufficient assets to cover the claims of all covered bondholders (and carry a preferential claim).The 
Council will only deal with bonds that are issued by banks / financial institutions that  meet our credit  criteria 
or AAA  rated institutions.

A repurchase agreement (Repo) involves the sale and repurchase of securities (usually government 
bonds) traded simultaneously. The securities will be repurchased by the seller at an agreed date from the 
buyer / lender for an agreed higher price which represents interest to the lender. The seller is using their 
securities as collateral to borrow cash at a specified rate over time.

Corporate loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than banks and registered providers. 
These instruments are exposed to the risk of the company becoming insolvent.

Treasury Bills are short-dated marketable securities issued by the UK Government – as such their 
counterparty risk is low.

3.2.6 : Property Funds and Other Pooled Investments

Last year’s strategy document included a section on Property Funds. Although no direct investment has 
been placed with such a Fund (largely due to concerns around the possible effects of Brexit), it is proposed 
to extend this category to cover all pooled fund investments based on equity or bonds or a mix of all these 
assets.

These funds have the advantage of providing wide diversification of investments risks, coupled with the 
services of professional fund managers (in return for a fee). As noted last year, such funds offer the 
prospect of enhanced returns over the longer term, but are more volatile in the shorter term. They allow 
diversification into assets classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the underlying 
investments. They have no defined maturity date and should be seen as longer term investments.

On this basis, and subject to appropriate due diligence, it is planned to include investment with Pooled 
Funds (by definition over one year’s duration) up to an initial £10 million per Fund in our 2020/21 
Investment Strategy. This will enable the Chief Finance Officer to undertake an assessment of our options 
as well as the post-Brexit economic situation and its effects.

3.1.7 : Loans to Third Parties

Reductions to Central Government funding have placed local authority budgets under unprecedented 
pressure in recent years with Councils considering innovative strategies towards improving service provision 
for their communities. 

This can include the making of loans to third parties for capital expenditure purposes. This will often be to 
support economic development either in a wider context (loans to facilitate development of Manchester 
Airport) or more locally (Economic Development Fund). Loans may also be made to enable housing 
development or to enhance social well-being within the borough. 

Page 85



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 14

Significant loans will be the subject of separate approval processes and may require separate external 
borrowing by the Council.

The Council has placed and upper limit of £60 million on the loans it makes to third parties.

3.2.8 : Investments of More Than 365 Days

The Code requires the Council to set a limit on Investments which are made for more than 365 days. These 
limits are set with regard to the Council’s overall liquidity requirements. With investment rates at low levels, 
continuing market risk and a potential desire to unlock investments to balance our internal borrowing position, 
in normal circumstances, the Council is unlikely to undertake money market investments beyond one year’s 
duration. However, if borrowing was undertaken before absolute cashflow need (to avoid the risk of sharp 
interest rate increases) this would need to be considered.

A limit of £60 million has been set - our policy will be kept under review.

3.2.9 : Investment Budgets and Targets

Table 9 summarises the investment income budget for the treasury function – investment returns are 
likely to remain low during 2020/21 but to be on a gently rising trend over the next few years:

Table 11 : Investment Income 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£000 £000 £000 £000

Investment Income 338 338 380 475

Investments will be made with reference to our core balances and cashflow / liquidity requirements, prevalent 
relatively low interest rates (though expected to track limited Base rate increases) and a continuation of our 
policy to fund capital expenditure via internal balances whenever possible. 

Greater returns will generally be obtainable by investing for longer periods – the value of this will be 
assessed against expected cashflow and expected interest rate movements (if they’re expected to fall 
consideration will be given to locking available cash away for longer periods, but if they are expected to rise 
significantly investments will be more short term).

The treasury function will continue to benchmark its investment performance for the year against the 
seven day LIBID (London Interbank Bid) plus two basis points – ie to outperform seven day cash rates. 
This is the most commonly used performance indicator by local authorities for the measurement of 
investment returns.

3.2.10 : Use of Financial Derivatives

The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures and options) 
where it is confident it has the powers to enter into such transactions. They will only be used for the 
prudent management of its financial affairs and never for speculative purposes. Additional risks presented, 
such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the level 
of risk involved. Embedded derivatives will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will 
be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

Page 86



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 15

3.2.11 : IFRS9
The Council will use an Expected Credit Loss Model as set out in International Financial Reporting Standard 
(IFRS) 9 to measure the credit risk of its treasury investments and loans made to third parties. Appropriate 
revenue provision will be made for any expected losses.

3.2.12 : Training
Treasury staff attend seminars and workshops organised by LAS and other organisations to keep up to date 
with new developments and trends. They also attend national and local forums and practitioner groups. 
Training for other staff and members will be delivered as required to ensure awareness of key issues and to 
facilitate informed decision-making and challenge processes.

3.3 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers

The Council uses Link Asset Services – LAS (formerly Capita) as its external treasury management 
advisors.

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the Council 
at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers.

However, there is recognition that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management 
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms 
of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented, and subjected to regular review.

3.4 : Other Prudential Indicators

The Code contains prudential indicators which assess the overall affordability of our capital expenditure 
plans, providing an indication of their impact on the Council’s overall finances (see Table 10). 

The ratio of financing costs to revenue streams identifies the cost of borrowing (net of investment income) 
as a percentage of the net revenue streams of the Council.

The incremental impact of capital investment decisions on band D council tax identifies the additional revenue 
costs of the Council’s proposed capital programme (note that the Code no longer requires the publication of 
this indicator – it has been included to provide an indication of the additional costs of our capital plans).

Both indicators are based on the current budget, but will invariably include some estimates, such as the 
level of government support, which are not published over a three year period.

Table 10 : Affordability Indicators 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Financing Costs / Revenue Streams 9.36% 9.47% 9.66% 9.67%

Incremental Impact - Band D Council Tax £15.58 £11.58 £11.20 £7.94

It is important that local authorities manage the risks associated with having too large a proportion of 
debt maturing and requiring refinancing at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Code, therefore, 
requires authorities to set upper and lower limits on the amount of principal amounts outstanding which will 

Page 87



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 16

mature in different time periods as a percentage of total projected borrowing. Following discussion with 
LAS, the limits set out in Table 11 are recommended for approval for the years 2020/21 to 2022/23.

Table 11 Maturity Limits Upper Limit % Lower Limit %

Under 12 months 0 0
12 months to 2 years 60 0
years to 5 years 60 0
5 years to 10 years 70 0
10 years and over 100 25

3.5 : Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

a: Explanation of MRP and Background

The MHCLG’s Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations of 2008 require local authorities 
to make a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) – to charge our accumulated Capital Financing Requirement to 
Revenue over a period of time and to ensure for prudent repayment of debt on capital loans. Charges for 
depreciation of assets, though appearing as a cost of services, are removed from the charge to revenue and 
replaced with MRP when calculating the Net General Fund Balance. Revised guidance was issued in February 
2018. The Council is satisfied that its policy complies with this new guidance.

b: MRP Policies for 2020/21
For Capital expenditure incurred prior to 1st April 2008 the Council, will set aside 2% of its outstanding 
CFR on a straight line method – no amendments will be made for Adjustment A. This approach has been 
agreed by our external auditors as prudent and enables that balance to be written out in equal instalments 
over the next 50 years.

c: Prudential Borrowing – Short and Long Life Assets
It is proposed to continue to use the Asset Life Method for the following reasons:

 The proposed method represents a continuation of the existing policy with regards to the 
calculation of MRP

 It is prudent and fair – matching charge to the period that assets offer benefit
 The method will have no financial impact on existing Council Budgets.
 The method also includes the ability to take advantage of the MRP holiday (see paragraph i) 

which may be financially beneficial to the Council.

d: Example Asset Lives
 The Council has reviewed the useful lives of its asset base in the current year. Paragraphs 27-29 of 

the current guidance allow changing the ‘method’ used so long as it can be demonstrated to be 
prudent and is not applied retrospectively. In this case that means demonstrating overall prudence 
for an authority looking to continue to provide frontline services against a back drop of diminishing 
resources / mounting pressures. By necessity, we will have to achieve more use out of our assets. 
From 2020/21 lives used will be:

6 Years – ICT Resources and Equipment
8 Years – Vehicles
11 Years – Other Equipment –such as wheelie bins 
40 Years – Most Buildings and Highways work

Page 88



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 17

50 Years – Investment / Commercial Property, No.1 Riverside and the Town Hall 

e: Annuity & Equal Instalments
For specific projects (generally those with a commercial or Invest to Save element), MRP will be separately 
considered on a case by case basis. This review will take account of cash flows relating to the scheme 
and the finance taken to fund it. An annuity basis works in the same way as a mortgage with the MRP 
(equivalent to principal) increasing over the length of the project (at the same time interest payments will 
reduce to provide an equal repayment over the project’s life).
f: Loans to Third Parties
Provision will be reviewed in the context of the existence of a long term debtor which may extend the period 
over which prudent provision is made or negate the need for provision – a case by case approach will be 
adopted.
g: Ministerial Direction
For expenditure in relation to capital expenditure funded by borrowing in relation to expenditure which is 
capital by virtue of a Ministerial Direction or which is capital expenditure which does not create a council 
asset, MRP will generally be provided over a 20 year period starting in the year after which the expenditure 
was incurred.

h: PFI
In accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice, repayments of PFI finance leases will be recorded as MRP.

i: Charging and Deferral
The MRP charge will usually commence in the year following the occurrence of the capital expenditure. 

The exception to this is an asset that takes more than one year to become operational – see below.

The Council will continue the policy that delegates authority to the Chief Finance Officer and the Cabinet 
Member for Finance to defer the charging of MRP (or holiday) in accordance with the Prudential Code and 
current accounting regulations in the following circumstances:

• There is a separately identifiable project with quantified borrowing costs.
• The period from the projects inception to it becoming operational is significantly in excess of 

12 months.
• A business case has been produced incorporating the deferred MRP and capitalised interest 

which demonstrates that the project is prudent and affordable over its whole life.
• The borrowing and MRP amounts are material, in excess of £250,000 annually.
• The deferred MRP and accumulated interest will be charged to the appropriate revenue 

account on a prudent basis, once the project is operational.

j: Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP)
The Council can elect to make provision for additional voluntary amounts to be set aside for schemes 
funded by borrowing. This would usually occur in special circumstances in relation to invest to save 
schemes or loans to third parties. Again, this will be reviewed on a case by case basis.

The revised 2018 guidance allows for reclamation of any over-provision in the future if needed or 
circumstances change. The estimated level of VRP to 31/3/20 is £0.653m.

Page 89



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 18

3.6 : Conclusions

The borrowing strategy for 2020/21 is broadly similar to the strategy agreed for 2019/20, which has been 
successful in relation to the objectives of minimising exposure to risk, reducing revenue costs and maintaining 
the security of the Council’s debt.

Our investment strategy will continue to place emphasis on the security of capital rather than return to 
reflect current market conditions. The Council will continue to be vigilant in monitoring investment criteria 
to reduce unnecessary exposure to risk.

4. Process for Monitoring Compliance and Effectiveness of the Strategy 

Review meetings – Chief Finance Officer, Head of Service and Treasury Team
Review by external Treasury Advisors
Internal and External Audit checks
Half yearly and annual report included in financial update monitoring reports to Cabinet

5.  Strategy Governance 

5.1 : Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation

(i) Full Council
 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities
 approval of annual strategy.
 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury 

management policy statement and treasury management practices
 budget consideration and approval
 approval of the division of responsibilities

(ii) Cabinet
 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations
 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 

appointment.

(iii) Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee
 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making recommendations to the 

Cabinet.

5.2 : The Treasury Management Role of the Chief Finance Officer

The Chief Finance Officer
 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing the same 

regularly, and monitoring compliance
 submitting regular treasury management policy reports
 submitting budgets and budget variations
 receiving and reviewing management information reports
 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function

Page 90



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 19

 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective division 
of responsibilities within the treasury management function

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit
 recommending the appointment of external service providers
 preparation of a Capital Strategy which is prudent, sustainable and affordable
 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all investments and is in accordance with the risk 

appetite of the authority 

6.      Strategy Review Date

The Strategy is usually reviewed on an annual basis in December / January for inclusion and approval by 
Cabinet (February) and Council as part of the Council’s budget setting process. 

7. Appendices 

APPENDIX  A

CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice

CIPFA recommends that all public service organisations adopt, as part of their standing orders, financial 
regulations, or other formal policy documents appropriate to their circumstances, the following four clauses.
1. The Council will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for effective treasury management:

 a treasury management policy statement, stating the policies, objectives and approach to risk 
management of its treasury management activities

 suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the manner in which the Council will 
seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control 
those activities.

The content of the policy statement and TMPs will follow the recommendations contained in 
Sections 6 and 7 of the Code, subject only to amendment where necessary to reflect the particular 
circumstances of this organisation. Such amendments will not result in the organisation materially 
deviating from the Code’s key principles.

2. The Council will receive reports on its treasury management policies, practices and activities, 
including, as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year review 
and an annual report after its close.

3. The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular monitoring of its treasury 
management policies and practices to Cabinet and for the execution and administration of treasury 
management decisions to the section 151 Officer who will act in accordance with the Council’s 
policy statement and TMPs and, if he/she is a CCAB member, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional 
Practice on Treasury Management.

4. The Council nominates the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be responsible for 
ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

Page 91



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 20

The Treasury Management Policy Statement (TMPs)

This organisation defines its treasury management activities as:

1. The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.

2. This organisation regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be the prime 
criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will be measured. 
Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk 
implications for the organisation, and any financial instruments entered into to manage these risks.

3. This organisation acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support towards 
the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles 
of achieving value for money in treasury management, and to employing suitable comprehensive 
performance measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management.

Page 92



Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 (includes Minimum Revenue Provision)
     

rochdale.gov.uk 21

 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk
Page 93



Report to Corporate O&S Committee

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for Finance  
Report Author Julie Murphy  
Public/Private Document Public

Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy for 2020/21

Executive Summary

1.1 This report seeks approval for the 2020/21 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy (‘The 
Strategy’) set out in Appendix 1, which outlines how the Council will meet the requirements of 
the relevant legislation, codes of practice and guidance that form the Prudential Framework, 
and MHCLG Guidance on Local Authority Investments.

1.2 The Strategy is the Council’s policy for ensuring that the following outcomes are met:

 To provide an overview of the Council’s plans for capital investments/disposals, and asset 
management planning.

 To set out the governance process for approval and monitoring of capital expenditure, and 
any related long-term liabilities.

 To show how the Council’s planned capital expenditure will be funded within the context of 
relevant funding limits, how any external debt will be repaid, and what the associated costs 
are.

 To set out the Council’s approach to commercial activities including due diligence, risk 
appetite and proportionality in respect of the Council’s overall resources.

 To summarise the knowledge and skills available to the Council, and whether these are 
considered to be commensurate with its risk appetite.

1.3 The Strategy is a high level overview of how the Council’s capital expenditure, capital financing 
and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services.  The Strategy 
provides an overview of how risks are managed, and what the implications are for future 
financial sustainability.  The purpose of the Strategy is to set out how the Council takes capital 
expenditure and investment decisions in line with service objectives and properly takes account 
of stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability.

Recommendations

2.1 The annual Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy for 2020/21 be recommended to 
Council for approval with particular reference to:

2.2 The objectives of the Strategy contained in section 2 and Appendix 1.

2.3 The approach to and governance arrangement around commercial property investment 
contained in section 5.

2.4 The Council’s risk appetite and quantitative indicators set out in section 6.3, including limits on 
investment in terms of the proportion of debt and income relating to capital investments 
compared to net service expenditure.

2.5 Members should note the report of the Chief Finance Officer in terms of the affordability and 

Page 94

Agenda Item 11



risks associated with the Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy, as set out in paragraph 5.2.

Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 The report is produced to gain Cabinet Members’ approval of the Capital Investment 
and Disposal Strategy for submission to Full Council and to ensure that Cabinet Members 
are informed of and ensure adherence to the requirements of the Prudential Framework and 
MHCLG Guidance on Local Authority Investments.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Background

4.1.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations requires the Council to have 
regard to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance (CIPFA) Prudential Code, the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code of Practice, and MHCLG Guidance on Local Authority 
Investments, to ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable.

4.1.2 The Prudential Code was revised in 2017 to include a requirement for local authorities to 
produce a capital strategy, ‘in order to demonstrate that the authority takes capital expenditure 
and investment decisions in line with service objectives and properly takes account of 
stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability’.  The strategy should 
set out ‘the long-term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made 
and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority 
outcomes’. 

4.1.3 MHCLG Guidance on Local Authority Investments published in February 2018 widened the 
definition of an investment to include all the financial assets of an authority as well as other 
non-financial assets held primarily or partially to generate a profit.  This wider definition includes 
investment property portfolios.  The Guidance requires local authorities to produce an 
investment strategy, which must be approved by Full Council on an annual basis, but which can 
be included within a capital or treasury management strategy as appropriate.

4.1.4 The Strategy included at Appendix 1 incorporates the requirements of the revised Prudential 
Code and the MHCLG Guidance.

4.1.5 The Strategy focuses on the core principles underpinning the Council’s three year capital 
programme and the links to service delivery via the Place Plan, the Townships Plan, the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Asset Strategy.  It sets out the position in terms of 
planned capital expenditure and resources available for funding.  It also focusses on the key 
issues and risks associated with capital investment, and the governance framework required to 
ensure the Strategy is delivered. 

 
4.2 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy

4.2.1 The Council’s Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy sets out the governance processes 
surrounding capital expenditure which culminates in the three year capital programme 
approved at Budget Council on an annual basis, detailing the pipeline process that capital 
schemes must adhere to in order to gain approval, including demonstrating links to the 
Council’s Corporate Strategies.  It also provides an overview of the plans in place to effectively 
manage the Council’s assets, and thereby safeguard the Council’s capital investment. 

4.2.2 The proposed capital programme for 2020/21 to 2022/23 is as follows:

Page 95



2020/21
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

Total Requirement 83,475 48,480 25,232

4.2.3 The Strategy has particular focus on the Council’s commercial activity with regard to capital 
investments, in line with the objectives of the Asset Strategy.  Consideration of proportionality is 
included, and the extent to which the Council is dependent on the income it derives from its 
commercial property investments.  The Strategy also sets out policies and procedures in 
respect of commercial activity, including the extensive opportunity appraisal and due diligence 
procedures the Council undertakes before entering any investment, and additional governance 
arrangements for such investments.

4.2.4  Treasury management is a vital component of any capital strategy; although this is covered in 
detail in the annually approved Treasury Management Strategy the Capital Investment and 
Disposal Strategy gives an overview of the governance arrangements, borrowing limits and risk 
management particular to the treasury management requirements of the Council’s capital 
investments, and how any external debt incurred will be repaid.

4.2.5 The Strategy also sets out the Council’s risk appetite with respect to its commercial property 
investment activities, in the form of a number of quantitative indicators recommended in the 
MHCLG Guidance.  The first two of these indicators (the Debt to Net Service Expenditure 
(NSE) Ratio and Commercial Income to NSE Ratio) gives the Council an opportunity to set a 
limit on its investment activities that reflects its risk attitude in terms of proportionality and 
dependence on commercial activities to fund service provision.  For 2020/21 onwards these 
limits have been set as follows:

4.2.6 Section 6 of the Strategy focusses on the skills and knowledge available to the Council in 
carrying out its capital investment activities, and the extent to which it uses external advisors in 
the course of those activities.  Further development in terms of skills and knowledge in this 
area, including the skills and knowledge of Members of the Property Growth Fund Sub-
Committee, is planned.

4.4 Alternatives Considered

4.4.1 There are no feasible alternatives – all proposals are in accordance with the revised CIPFA 
Prudential Code, which has been formally adopted by the Council and with Government 
guidance regarding Local Authority Investments.

Costs and Budget Summary

Page 96



5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report. Appropriate budgets exist 
for all capital activity outlined, as detailed in the Capital Programme 2020/21 – 2022/23 report 
to Cabinet on 12 February 2020.

5.2 The Council’s Chief Finance Officer confirms that the affordability and risk associated with the 
Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy are acceptable in terms of the Council’s overall 
financial position and risk appetite.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 In preparing the report financial risks have been considered in relation to the best methods of 
managing the Council’s exposure to the various risks arising from its commercial property 
investment activities.

6.2 Key risks are set out in section 6.3 of the Strategy and include:

 Financial risks – e.g. the impact of investments on cash flow; market volatility
 Macroeconomic risk – i.e. factors affecting the local, national of global economy
 Credit and counterparty risk – e.g. where a tenant fails to meet rental payments
 Operational risk – relating to failures of processes, systems or people
 Strategic risk – e.g. those presented by significant investments, new ventures etc.
 Reputational risk – i.e. adverse reputational impacts from investment activities
 Environment and social risks – relating to  the environmental or social impact of the 

Council’s investments 
 Governance risk – i.e. where governance processes are insufficient to ensure investment 

outcomes

as well as specific risks associated with commercial property investment such as vacancies/ 
void periods, reduction in capital value, a downturn in the property market, lack of diversification 
and poor liquidity. 

6.3 It is believed that the strategy proposed will allow the Council to continue to effectively 
manage its exposure to these risks without any significant increases in overall financial risk.

Consultation

7.1 Stakeholders are consulted through the development of the Strategy with the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee receiving the report on 11th February.

Background Papers: For further information about this report or access to background papers 
please contact Michelle Ashworth (Head of Commercial, Economy & Resources Finance) Finance 

Services, Floor 2, Number 1 Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 9DJ.  Tel – 01706 925409 / 
924197.

Document Place of Inspection

CIPFA Prudential Code 

MHCLG Guidance on Local Authority Investments

Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy 2019/20

Commercial, Economy & Resources Team 
Fl2 No1 Riverside
Commercial, Economy & Resources Team 
Fl2 No1 Riverside
Cabinet Agenda 12/2/19 

Page 97



Capital Investment & 
Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

Page 98



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Document Control
Document Title: Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

Summary

Publication Date January 2020

Related Legislation / Applicable 
Section of Legislation

CIPFA Prudential Code (2017) issued under Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 2003

CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice (2017) issued 
under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003

Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments (3rd Edition, 
2018) issued under section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 
2003

Statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (4th Edition, 
2018) issued under section 21(1A) of the Local Government Act 
2003

Related Policies, Strategies, 
Guideline Documents

Corporate Plan
Place Plan
Townships Plan
Asset Strategy
Medium Term Financial Strategy
Treasury Management Strategy

Replaces Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 2019 to 2022

Joint Strategy (Yes/No) No

Name of Partner(s) if joint N/a

Strategy Owner (Name/Position) Julie Murphy, Chief Finance Officer

Strategy Author (Name/Position) Michelle Ashworth, Head of Commercial, Economy & Resources 
Finance

Applies to

Review of Strategy

Last Review Date January 2020

Review undertaken by Michelle Ashworth

Next Review Date January 2021

Page 99



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 2

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.

Name Title Date of Issue Version Number

Julie Murphy Chief Finance Officer 22nd January 2019 v2.1

Page 100



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 3

Contents Page

Section Title Page
1 Introduction 4

2 The Purpose of the Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 5

3 Strategic Outcomes 5

4 Capital Expenditure 6

5 Investments and Liabilities 13

6 Treasury Management 18

7 Skills and Knowledge 24

8 Process for Monitoring Compliance and Effectiveness of the 
Strategy Document

24

9 Strategy Governance 24

10 Strategy Review Date 25

11 Supporting Documents 25

12 Appendices 26

Page 101



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 4

1. Introduction 

The Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy forms a key part the Council’s asset management and property 
investment strategies.  It summarises the framework for all aspects of the Council’s capital programme, 
including planning, prioritisation, management and funding, and links our Council’s vision and priorities with 
forecast capital resources and capital expenditure budgets.  Linking into the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, this ensures that all revenue implications have been recognised and provided for in the Council’s 
revenue budgetary forecasts.

The Strategy covers:

 Capital Expenditure - including asset management planning and governance
 Investments and Liabilities - including approach, due diligence, risk appetite and performance
 Treasury Management – covering governance, planning and risks/sensitivities with respect to capital 

investments
 Skills and Knowledge – detailing the skills, knowledge and training available to the Council in 

making investment decisions

Page 102



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 5

2. The Purpose of the Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 

The Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy is a high level overview of how the Council’s capital 
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services.  The 
Strategy provides an overview of how risks are managed, and what the implications are for future financial 
sustainability.  The purpose of the Strategy is to set out how the Council takes capital expenditure and 
investment decisions in line with service objectives and properly takes account of stewardship, value for 
money, prudence, sustainability and affordability.

The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations requires the Council to ‘have regard to’ the 
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.  The Act therefore requires the Council to 
‘have in place a capital strategy that sets out the long-term context in which capital expenditure and 
investment decisions are made and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the 
achievement of priority outcomes’, which ‘should form a part of the authority’s integrated revenue, capital 
and balance sheet planning’.       

3. Strategic Outcomes

The main objectives of the Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy are:

 To provide an overview of the Council’s plans for capital investments/disposals, and asset 
management planning

 To set out the governance process for approval and monitoring of capital expenditure, and any 
related long-term liabilities

 To show how the Council’s planned capital expenditure will be funded within the context of relevant 
funding limits, how any external debt will be repaid, and what the associated costs are

 To set out the Council’s approach to commercial activities including due diligence, risk appetite and 
proportionality in respect of the Council’s overall resources

 To summarise the knowledge and skills available to the Council, and whether these are considered 
to be commensurate with its risk appetite.

Page 103



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 6

4. Capital Expenditure

4.1 Governance

4.1.1 Links to Corporate Strategies

The Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy summarises the framework within which the Council’s long 
term investment plans will be delivered.  This framework ensures that all capital investments are consistent 
with the Council’s priorities, that associated risks are considered, financial constraints are recognised, and 
value for money is achieved.  These plans are driven by the Council’s Corporate Plan, Townships Plan, 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and Asset Strategy, and influenced by a number of Greater Manchester 
strategies.  Links to the Council’s Corporate Strategies can be found in Section 11.

Corporate Plan / Place Plan

Despite significant financial challenges we are committed to delivering our vision of a Council which
builds success and prosperity with our citizens and partners, while protecting our vulnerable people.
Our organisation continues to transform to better help us to deliver on our vision.

The Council has four key priorities to deliver our vision, which are set out in the Borough’s Place
Plan 2016 - 2021:

 People: We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages
to be healthier, confident and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives. We
will enable communities to thrive and develop.

 Place: We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people
choose to live, work and invest.

 Prosperity: We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels
and create the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs.

 Performance: We will remain focused on managing our resources effectively to help us to achieve our 
ambitions

Each priority will be delivered within the context of the continuing plans for devolution, the Northern
Powerhouse, the Greater Manchester Strategy (Our People, Our Place), the GM Growth & Reform Plan, 
Taking Charge of our Health and Social Care in Greater Manchester, and the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework.

Capital investment in Rochdale borough-wide assets, including Council and other public sector assets, is 
critical in delivering quality public services that enable people to access services, create a better place to 
live, and work and contribute to the borough’s growth and prosperity.

Townships Plan

The Townships Committees (Heywood, Middleton, Pennines, Rochdale North and Rochdale South) 
facilitate local decision making in line with the Corporate Plan. Each Township has a capital budget set 
each year as a single amount by Budget Council, which is then divided between the Townships on the 
basis of population. The Townships have devolved powers in relation to capital investment including:

 Allocation of Township Capital Budget between schemes and services within the Township.
 Approval of the disposal of Council assets within the Township.

Page 104



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 7

All capital investment priorities at a Township level are set out in the Townships Plan in line with the
Council’s four key priorities and the Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy.

Medium Term Financial Strategy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a five year plan which sets out the Council’s
commitment to providing services that meet the needs of people locally and that represent good value
for money within the overall resources available to it.  With other key strategies and plans, it ensures
that the Council is best placed to achieve the objectives in the Borough Plan. The MTFS informs
the Council’s capital investment plans through the following objectives:

 To produce three-year capital programme which support the Council’s key priorities and
statutory duties, including working in partnership with others

 To ensure the Council maximises the generation of capital resources while considering the
key priorities for Rochdale Council to ensure these are all been directed towards wider
corporate benefits

 To be clear on investment outcomes, how they will be achieved and how they will be
measured

 To reduce the impact borrowing costs has on the ongoing revenue budget

Through the Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy, capital investment will be managed in line with
the Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Treasury Management Strategy, and the Asset Strategy.

Asset Strategy

The Council’s Asset Strategy sets out the overall direction of travel for property management activity
and provides a clear framework of objectives to support decisions affecting the management of
assets. The overall goal of the Asset Strategy is that the Council should own fewer assets, costing less, that 
support Council Services more effectively and are used to increase prosperity for our communities.  

The Council’s Asset Strategy is further discussed in paragraph 4.3.1.

4.1.2 Pipeline process for capital projects

The strategies referred to above provide the context which drives the Council’s need for a comprehensive 
capital programme to support these key priorities and objectives.  
 
The Capital Programme is reviewed and updated on an annual basis, and is approved by Budget Council 
before 11th March each year.  The programme covers three financial years, and is the end result of a 
process that begins with the provisional programme considered at the previous Budget Council, as follows:

Page 105



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 8

Budget Setting Timeline
Activity Date
Review of Capital Programme approved at previous 
Budget Council – taking into account spend to date 
and previous rephasing of budget 

Mid July

Consideration of new schemes submitted via the 
capital bid process

End July

Consideration of the proposed Capital Programme 
by the Strategic Asset Management Group (SAM)

August

Member Review Session with Leader, Deputy 
Leader and Assistant Finance Portfolio Holder

August/September

Cabinet approval of the Capital Programme for 
consultation

September

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
scrutinisation of the recommendation of Cabinet

October

Townships provision of comments on the proposed 
Capital Programme

October/November

Cabinet review consultation comments and 
recommend a Capital Programme to Budget Council 
for approval 

February

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
scrutinise the recommendation of Cabinet

February

Budget Council approval of Capital Programme February/March

The capital bid process involves completion of a comprehensive application document covering the 
following:

 Full project overview including any alternatives considered and critical success factors
 Project Evaluation including how the proposed project links to Corporate priorities
 Project Expenditure – a full assessment of the capital costs of the project, plus identification of any 

resultant future revenue cost implications.  
 Project Financing detailing the proposed source of both the capital and any ongoing revenue funding
 Review – each capital bid is reviewed by the applicant, their project manager, budget holder and 

Service Director, before being signed off by Finance Service.  Approval must also be sought from the 
relevant Cabinet Portfolio Holder before the bid can progress.

Capital schemes applying to the Capital Programme must have realistic timeframes that have been 
calculated in consideration of the relevant risks and dependencies.  This includes where funding approvals 
are still required from external bodies.  When a scheme is approved where the proposed spend is profiled 
across financial years, the scheme funding will be allocated across these financial years and will therefore 
be considered as a priority in future years. Rephasing of the Capital Programme after approval is 
considered and approved by the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) and is noted by Cabinet.  Any 
reduction in the funding of these schemes will only be considered where contracts have not been entered 
into.  

After approval of the Capital Programme project managers are responsible for delivering and reporting on 
the progress of their projects.  This includes the reporting of rephasing/accelerated progress of the project 
against the expenditure profile.  Monitoring of the Capital Programme is reported to Cabinet on a bi-monthly 
basis.  The outcomes from the Capital Programme will be utilised in the overall review which forms part of 
the budget setting process outlined above, so that experience of past projects can be utilised and learned 
from in setting future spend.

Page 106



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 9

The process described above represents the framework within which the Council’s long term investment 
plans are delivered to ensure that all capital investments are consistent with the Council’s priorities, 
consider associate risks, recognise financial constraints over the longer term and represent value for 
money.

4.1.3 Basis for estimating future costs

As part of the capital bid process, guidance is provided to support in the calculation of the whole life costs of 
the project, including any relevant taxation, professional fees or procurement costs.  The project costs are 
scrutinised by Finance Services who provide challenge to the proposals, including consideration of the 
following:

4.2 Long Term Plans

4.2.1 Capital Forecast

The capital programme process outlined above culminates in the overall capital forecast, which is driven by 
the corporate priorities and objectives outlined above and is set out in the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy.  The funding requirement of the capital forecast relating to prudential borrowing is further detailed 
in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy (see section 11).  The overall position can be summarised 
as follows:

Page 107



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 10

 2020/21  2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Care 2,440 2,440 2,440
Children's Services 21,640 7,516 7,516
Economy 19,559 11,550 4,431
Neighbourhoods 33,497 26,686 10,485
Public Health 4,328 288 360
Resources 2,011 0 0
Total requirement 83,475 48,480 25,232
Funding Source
Prudential Borrowing 19,539 19,975 11,580
External Grant and 
contributions 39,960 19,973 11,923
Invest to Save 20,428 7,338 1,530
Revenue Contribution 
to Capital Outlay 1,704 155 155
Capital Receipts 1,844 1,039 44
Total funding 83,475 48,480 25,232

Directorate

A full breakdown of the capital programme is shown at Appendix 1.

4.2.2 Use of Capitalisation Flexibilities

The capital programme as summarised above is funded from a range of sources, which includes receipts 
from the sale of assets (‘capital receipts’).

In December 2017, the Government announced the continuation of the capital receipts flexibility 
programme for a further three years, to give local authorities the continued freedom to use capital receipts 
from the sale of their own assets to help fund the revenue costs of transformation projects and release 
savings.

Local authorities are only able to use capital receipts from the sale of property, plant and equipment 
received in the years in which this flexibility is offered. They may not use their existing stock of capital 
receipts to finance the revenue costs of reform. 

The expenditure for which the flexibility can be applied should be the up-front costs that will generate future 
ongoing savings and/or transform service delivery to reduce costs or to improve the quality of service 
delivery in future years. The ongoing revenue costs of the new processes or arrangements cannot be 
classified as qualifying expenditure.

The Council has not utilised this flexibility to date, and uses its capital receipts to help fund the capital 
programme. The Council has created a Transformation Fund to provide the resources necessary to invest 
in any proposal where one off funding is required on an invest-to-save basis, to generate the savings or 
additional income.

Page 108



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 11

4.3 Asset Management Planning

4.3.1 Overview of the Asset Management Plan

At the end of financial year 2018/19, the Council held tangible fixed assets valued in excess of £850m, 
broken down as follows:

 

Asset Type Asset Category  31st March 2018
£m 

Property, Plant and Equipment                       776.0 
Heritage Assets                         22.8 
Investment Property                         59.6 

Current Assets Held for Sale                           1.2 
Total                       859.6 

Long Term

The borrowing costs associated with the Council’s asset base are detailed in the Treasury Management 
Strategy, and are budgeted at £19.5m in 2019/20. The direct costs of maintaining the asset base are 
estimated to be approximately £6.7m in 2019/20. 

Given the significant value of the Council’s assets, and the ongoing costs of acquiring and maintaining 
those assets, it is vital that they are managed efficiently and effectively.

Asset management can be defined as:

‘…the activity that seeks to align the asset base with the organisation’s corporate goals and objectives.  It 
ensures that the land and buildings asset base of an organisation is optimally structured in the best 
corporate interest of the organisation concerned.’ 1

The strategic management of the Council’s property asset base is governed by the Asset Strategy (2016-
2019), which was approved by Cabinet in 2016 and is reviewed on a periodic basis.  

The core aims of the Asset Strategy are:

 To hold fewer but more efficient assets
 To facilitate improving Council and partner services
 To realise maximum value from the estate
 To support economic growth

The objectives of the Asset Strategy are:

 To improve front-line service delivery and to maintain a high profile presence within the community
 To contribute to the borough’s economic growth, and to its social and environmental well-being
 To develop a more efficient property portfolio, increasingly fit for purpose
 To realise asset values through capital receipts and maximising rental income
 To deliver revenue savings and to reduce property owner’s liability from a programme of asset 

rationalisation

1 Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors – Public Sector Asset Management Guidelines 2012.

Page 109



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 12

To achieve these aims, the Asset Strategy plans a number of activities along the following themes:

Theme Workstream Summary of Objectives
Governance To establish and maintain efficient governance methods and key 

policies and procedures to achieve the effective management of the 
Council’s assets

Building a Sustainable 
portfolio

To improve the condition, fitness for purpose and utilisation of each 
property asset

Asset Rationalisation To reduce the number of assets in order to reduce the costs and 
liabilities of property ownership

Portfolio 
Scrutiny

Effective Property Data To continue to improve the available data on each of the Council’s 
property assets in order to support effective decision making

Acquisitions, Investments 
and New Developments

To take advantage of opportunities to provide tangible benefits to the 
borough through investment in property

Assets for Growth and 
Prosperity

To deliver high quality buildings and public space
To achieve the building of more new homes (including those affordable 
to local people)
To encourage businesses to invest and thrive in the borough
To enhance the borough as a tourist destination
To manage income-generating assets to improve yields and financial 
return

Assets Supporting Council 
Services

To make the portfolio increasingly fit for the purposes of service 
delivery, including reducing the portfolio size and costs, using retained 
assets to deliver quality, efficient services

Assets Held for Sale To secure capital receipts, revenue savings and/or other community 
benefits from the disposal of Council land & property, generating 
resources to be reinvested, and creating a portfolio that is affordable 
and fit for purpose

Assets and the 
Environment

To improve the management and maintenance of the Council’s ‘green’ 
assets in order to maintain an acceptable standard of cleanliness and 
enhance the borough’s environment and health and wellbeing
To maintain a portfolio of assets that is suitable in terms of size, quality 
and accessibility to provide recreation opportunities for residents of the 
borough

Assets in the Community To provide land and buildings to facilitate the voluntary sector’s work in 
delivering services to their local community and/or complementing the 
Council’s core objectives

Workstreams

Assets Adding Value To increase income generation
To rationalise the portfolio to improve yields and financial return
To manage the portfolio to secure maintenance of an aesthetic 
environment and to protect asset values 

The Asset Strategy is owned by the Council’s Strategic Asset Management Group (SAM), who provide 
strategic advice and support to the capital programme to ensure that it meets the priorities for Rochdale 
Council and takes into consideration our partners’ priorities and objectives (e.g. the Greater Manchester 
Strategy; the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework).  The SAM will ensure that all funding is fully aligned 
with strategic partners, including the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA), Transport for 
Greater Manchester (TfGM) and others.  

The approved Asset Strategy also aims to identify any of the Council’s property assets which are suitable 
for disposal, i.e. those which do not align with the Council’s vision and investment priorities.  Those 
properties which are not ‘fit for purpose’ for service delivery and are costly to run and/or are under-utilised 
will be disposed of in line with the asset strategy.

Page 110



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 13

Capital receipts from the disposal of assets can only be used to fund capital investment, subject to the 
capital receipts flexibility programme outlined in paragraph 4.2.2. As such capital receipts will be used to 
fund the capital programme reducing the requirement to borrow for capital investment.

5. Investments and Liabilities

5.1 Approach, Due Diligence & Risk Appetite

5.1.1 Investment for Financial Return

The core ambitions of the Council’s Asset Strategy include improving the efficiency of assets, realising 
maximum value from the estate and supporting economic growth.  In recognition of this, and the continuing 
financial limitations due to reductions in public funding as detailed in the Medium Term Financial Strategy, 
the Council has implemented a commercial property investment strategy, designed to achieve rental 
income and revenue savings from acquiring an investment portfolio, whilst contributing to the Council’s 
overall regeneration aims for the borough.  The Council has approved funding via the capital programme in 
order to achieve these aims.  The investments made to date have all been within the borough of Rochdale, 
and as such have contributed to the aim of supporting economic growth within the local area.  The financial 
return generated has been utilised to support the provision of services for the residents of Rochdale, and it 
is planned that this will continue into future financial years. 

5.1.2 Dependence on Commercial Activity 

The Council’s current/planned investments in commercial property2 make a contribution to the overall 
resources that the Council has to provide its services to residents of the borough.  In 19/20 the 
proportion of resource derived from this activity represents just over 1% of the Council’s overall 
budgeted resource, and this proportion is not planned to increase significantly over the period covered 
by the Medium Term Financial Strategy. The extent to which the Council’s budget and council tax 
calculation is dependent on commercial activity is therefore considered to be low.

  

2 including the Council’s historic commercial & industrial estate

Page 111



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 14

5.1.3 Policies and Procedures for Commercial Activity 

The Council’s commercial activity to date has centred around investment in property.  In March 2017 the 
Council approved a Property Growth Fund (‘the Fund’) to facilitate the acquisition of a property portfolio to 
achieve rental income and revenue saving, whilst contributing to the Council’s overall regeneration aims for 
the borough.  

The Fund currently consists of three elements:

Fund Purpose
Property Investment Fund To acquire investment properties to provide a 

return on investment, to reinvest in the delivery of 
Council services, and support regeneration of the 
borough

Direct Development Fund To create property via direct development, 
maximising land value and potential, with a focus 
on underutilised brownfield sites in the borough, 
in order to generate rental/business rates income, 
create job opportunities and attract new 
occupiers/retain current occupiers within the 
borough

Asset Development Fund To enhance revenue income of existing assets 
through new lettings, refurbishments, acquisitions 
and disposals; to enhance the capital value of 
assets, and to invest in site assembly to improve 
the viability of development sites

The power to approve the acquisition of property rests with Cabinet. However, if the Council wishes to 
operate effectively in the property investment market it must be in a position to move quickly to take 
advantage of opportunities as they arise. This agility is essential in order to benefit from the best deals and 
also to persuade vendors and agents that the Council is both willing and able to move forward with 
proposals in which it has expressed an interest. To this end, Cabinet has approved the following delegation 
arrangements for the Property Growth Fund:

(1) The responsibility of administering the Fund, including the acquisition of property, has been 
delegated to a Cabinet Sub-Committee comprising:

• The Leader of the Council;
• The Portfolio Holders for Finance and Housing & Environment;

and requiring a quorum of at least two members of the group to conduct business, all of which is 
undertaken in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Employment Skills and Business and the Leader of 
the Opposition.

(2) Reports on potential acquisitions will be presented as required to the Cabinet Sub-Committee. The 
Sub-Committee will approve the programme of acquisitions and the budget for each project.

Cabinet has also set financial parameters for the performance of the Fund, in that a minimum net return on 
the total cost of investment of 1.5% must be achieved across the Fund as a whole. 

Page 112



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 15

A Property Growth Fund working group, comprising of officers from a number of disciplines across the 
Council, including Property, Legal and Finance Services, has been set up to manage the day to day 
operations of the Fund, including opportunity appraisal and due diligence with regard to proposed 
investments.  The Council considers due diligence to be of paramount importance, and as such each 
proposed investment is subject to the following process:

i. Opportunity Scoring Matrix – a matrix is completed for the proposed acquisition, focussing on the 
following criteria:

 Potential for rental and/or capital growth – property has the potential for both revenue and 
capital growth, which must be taken into account when assessing the strength of the opportunity; 
property values can rise and fall, as can the income generated from that property.  Rent review 
provisions in existing leases and potential future market rental values must be considered.

 Tenancy strength – in order to minimise risks around income stability, the quality of any 
existing tenant must be investigated, including gaining reports on creditworthiness and reviewing 
available financial information including statutory accounts.

 Tenure – the Council will consider whether the property is freehold or leasehold, and in the case 
of the latter, the length of the lease and/or the unexpired term, and the implications for future 
capital value and any ongoing revenue costs

 Occupier lease length – where a property is let to an existing tenant, the unexpired length of 
the lease term must be taken into account to assess the likelihood of future revenue streams 
being interrupted.  The Council will also consider any potential break options built into the 
existing lease, and the marketability of the property in terms of the ability to gain good quality 
tenants at acceptable rental levels.

 Ease/cost of management – terms of leases can vary, from those where the tenant is 
responsible for all the costs of repairing, insuring and maintaining the property, to those where 
such responsibilities lie fully with the landlord. Consideration will be taken of any existing terms 
and the resulting financial implications for the Council.

 Lot size – the scale of the opportunity and other factors such as location, infrastructure etc will 
impact on the value and future marketability of the asset.

The completed matrix provides a score for the opportunity, focussing on security and liquidity, and 
providing an initial indication of financial viability and value for money.

ii. SWOT Analysis – building on the information gained for the Opportunity Scoring Matrix, analysis is 
then completed in terms of the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats in relation to the 
proposed investment.  In addition to the factors above, this analysis brings in wider considerations 
such as opportunities for regeneration, any economic factors pertaining to a particular sector, or 
potential political/reputational considerations for the Council, and is important in terms of initial 
identification of risk.

iii. Initial Financial Assessment – the steps above form the basis of a decision in terms of whether to 
proceed further with the investment.  In the case of a positive outcome further work will be carried 
out to formulate an initial financial assessment, including production of a discounted cash flow 
covering a maximum period of 50 years (this being the maximum borrowing term set by the Public 
Works Loan Board).   The income and expenditure predicted for the whole life of the asset is 

Page 113



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 16

considered, including any potential financing costs and likely capital expenditure required.  This 
information is measured against the financial parameters of the Fund.  

iv. Due Diligence – positive outcomes in terms of the above processes will (given appropriate 
approvals from the Sub-Committee) result in a non-binding offer being made to the vendor.  The 
Council will then undertake a detailed due diligence process covering all relevant property/ 
financial/legal considerations.  Where applicable a report from the introducing external property 
agent will be requested, and the detailed information gained will be used to produce a 
comprehensive financial appraisal, taking into account a range of possible future scenarios, 
sensitivity analysis, the likely average yield over the life of the asset and a Net Present Value 
calculation.   A second, independent report is usually commissioned from external property advisors 
to scrutinise the information from the introducing agent and provide challenge, in order to gain 
assurance around the overall position, particularly around the valuation of the investment and 
whether this represents value for money for the Council.

v. Report to Sub-Committee – should the outcome of the due diligence prove positive, a final report will 
be produced and presented to the Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee, providing the business 
case for the proposed investment (including all identified risks) and the results of the due diligence.  
Relevant officers will attend the Committee in order to provide further explanation and clarification 
as required.

vi. Scrutiny of Decisions – investment decisions of the Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee are 
available for scrutiny by the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

5.1.5 Borrowing for Commercial Investment

The funding of commercial investments via borrowing presents additional risks for an authority due to the 
inherent risks involved in the exposure to market forces that such investment presents – i.e. the risk that the 
costs of borrowing will not be met through investment income.  The Council’s Borrowing Strategy is set out 
in the Treasury Management Strategy.  Borrowing decisions are made with respect to the Council’s overall 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), being the historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet 
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.  The Council’s commercial property investments will 
ultimately contribute to an increase in the CFR, but the Council does not currently specifically borrow to 
fund these investments.  The management of the Council’s borrowing is the responsibility of the Treasury 
Management Team in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy.

5.1.6 Liabilities – Identification and Approval

The robust appraisal, due diligence and decision-making process detailed in paragraph 5.1.3 above will 
serve to identify any risks and potential liabilities resulting from the Council’s non-treasury investment 
activities.  These may include loans, PFI contracts and financial guarantees, including those given in 
respect of subsidiaries or joint ventures.   Any such liabilities will be subject to the same approval processes 
as per paragraph 5.1.3 (including the approval of Members via the Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee), 
will be available for scrutiny via the relevant Scrutiny Committee, and will be monitored via the processes 
described in paragraph 5.2 below.

Page 114



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 17

5.2 Governance Process for Approval and Monitoring

5.2.1 Investment Management & Reporting, and Ongoing Monitoring of Liabilities

The financial implications of the Council’s Property Growth Fund investments forms part of the Council’s 
budget monitoring processes, and is included as part of the Finance Update Report, which is reported to 
Cabinet on a bi-monthly basis and is reviewed by the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.    

In addition to this, ongoing performance and risk monitoring is carried out specifically with respect to the 
Property Growth Fund and is reported to the Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee on a quarterly basis; 
these reports are available for scrutiny by the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The monitoring 
reports include the financial performance of individual investments and also consider the cumulative 
performance of the Fund as a whole, both in terms of the current financial year and a 20 year forecast, 
identifying potential future risks.    Any identified liabilities arising from the Council’s Property Growth Fund 
investments will be incorporated into this monitoring as and when they arise.

5.3 Summary of Material Investments, Guarantees and Liabilities

5.3.1 Register of Investments 

The Council maintains a register of investment properties - being properties held for rental income or for 
capital appreciation - which are reported on as part of the annual statutory accounts.  The table below 
summarises the material, non-treasury property investments held by the Council in January 2020:

Non-Treasury Investment Property >£1m  Revaluation 
Value

£m 

56 Yorkshire St, Rochdale 4.8
Bingo Hall, Smith St, Rochdale 3.8
Point 62, Stakehill, Middleton 10.6
Southgate Industrial Estate, Heywood 2.0
Land at Oldham Road, Rochdale 13.2
Fitness Centre, Heywood Old Road 7.1
Logic@Kingsway 6.7
Manchester Airport 9.5
Total 57.7

At the end of 2018/19 the fair value of the Council’s investment properties was £59.6m.  This includes 
acquisitions funded from the Property Growth Fund, plus the Council’s historic commercial & industrial 
estate.

The breakdown of the Property Growth Fund portfolio is currently as follows:

Page 115



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 18

The Council does not currently have any identified liabilities or guarantees in respect of its non-treasury 
investment property activities.

5.3.2 Fair Value Assessment 

It is important that the Council takes steps to monitor the continuing value of its investments, to confirm that 
the underlying assets provide security for those investments, or to enable the Council to take mitigating 
actions to protect the capital invested.  

A fair value assessment of all the Council’s assets (including its property investments) is undertaken 
annually as part of the completion of the statutory accounts.  

The results of the last fair value assessment completed can be found in the Annual Report and Accounts 
2018/19.  The Council is satisfied that its underlying assets provide security for the capital investment 
undertaken.    

6. Treasury Management

The Council produces a Treasury Management Strategy, which is approved on an annual basis by Full 
Council as part of the budget setting process.  There are close links between the Capital Investment & 
Disposal Strategy and the Treasury Management Strategy.  The capital programme determines the 
Council’s need to borrow, to ensure that it can meet its capital spending requirements.  A link to the 
Treasury Management Strategy can be found in section 11.

6.1 Governance

6.1.1 Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary

Limits on the Council’s ability to borrow to fund capital expenditure are defined in the Treasury Management 
Strategy and are summarised below.  

Page 116



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 19

The Council’s Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2020/21 is £672.0m; this represents a control on our 
maximum level of borrowing, and is a legislative limit beyond which external borrowing is prohibited.

The Council’s Operational Boundary debt forecast for 2020/21 is £545.3m.  This represents a maximum 
limit on the anticipated level of external borrowing.

The Council monitors its performance against these key prudential indicators to ensure that all of its capital 
expenditure, investments and borrowing decisions are prudent and sustainable.

6.1.2 Local Indicators

The Treasury Management Strategy includes a number of indicators which allow assessment of the 
Council’s total risk exposure as a result of its investment decisions, including how investments are funded 
and the levels of return expected to be received.  Indicators specific to the Council’s non-financial 
investments are included at paragraph 6.3.3.

6.1.3 Decision-making and Risk Management

The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the framework within which treasury management decisions 
are made, how risks are managed, and what delegations are in place in order to carry out these functions.  
Borrowing decisions are carried out in line with this framework, and are driven by the Council’s Capital 
Financing Requirement, incorporating the approved capital programme, which includes planned commercial 
property investments.   Opportunity appraisal processes described at paragraph 5.1.3 ensure financing 
costs are fully considered by Members as part of investment decision making.    

6.1.4 Scrutiny

The Council follows the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations in 
managing its Treasury Management activities.  The governance and scrutiny arrangements with regard to 
treasury management are set out within the annual Treasury Management Strategy.

6.2 Long Term Planning

6.2.1 Long-Term Projections

The Council’s proposed capital programme over the next three financial years is shown at paragraph 4.2.1.  
The Treasury Management Strategy contains details of the Council’s projected overall CFR and gross debt 
over the same period.  This brings together the historic position in terms of capital expenditure to date and 
projected future spend in terms of the capital programme, and shows how the Council will manage the 
overall debt supporting the expenditure. The CFR/Gross Debt position, including the Council’s liability 
benchmark, is explained in detail within the Treasury Management Strategy.

6.2.2 Repayment of Debt

The Treasury Management Strategy provides details of how the debt shown above is planned to be repaid, 
including the requirement for the Council to make a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) to charge our 
accumulated CFR to revenue over time, and to ensure for prudent repayment of debt on capital loans. 

Page 117



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 20

6.3 Risk Appetite, Key Risks and Sensitivities

6.3.1 Risk Appetite

Although investment in commercial property will always carry some level of risk, the Council is mindful of its 
responsibilities in terms of the security, liquidity and yield of those investments as set out in the Prudential 
Code, and seeks to minimise its exposure to risks that are unwanted and incompatible with the level of 
returns generated.   The Council’s capital and treasury management activities are managed on an ongoing 
basis to ensure that there is sufficient liquidity in the short and medium term to meet costs and support the 
provision of services, as well as meeting long-term solvency and funding requirements.

6.3.2 Key Risks

The Council identifies risks on a case by case basis specific to each investment as part of its opportunity 
appraisal and due diligence processes, however the following risks are considered to be generic to all 
capital investments:

 Financial risks – related to the investment of the Council’s assets, the impact on cash flow, market 
volatility and associated risks 

 Macroeconomic risk – i.e. the growth or decline of the local economy, inflation, interest rates, and 
the impact of fluctuations in the national or global economy

 Credit and counterparty risk – being the risk that a counterparty to a contract will not honour its 
obligations to meet its payments (e.g. a property tenant not paying its rental obligations)

 Operational risk – related to operational failures within the authority, counterparties or partners in 
respect of internal processes, systems or people

 Strategic risk – related to key initiatives undertaken by the Council e.g. significant investments, 
new ventures, commercial interests and other areas of organisational change deemed necessary to 
help the Council achieve its aims

 Reputational risk – that adverse outcomes from the Council’s investments, dealings and interests 
impact adversely on the Council’s reputation 

 Environmental and social risks – i.e. any potential environmental/social impact arising from the 
Council’s investments or strategy

 Governance risk – the risk that the Council’s governance processes are insufficient to ensure the 
desired outcomes of the Council’s strategy.

In addition to the above, specific operational risks that the Council could be exposed to as a result of its 
commercial property investments include:

 Risk of vacancies/voids – leading to a reduction in investment returns and an inability to meet any 
borrowing costs

 Reduction in capital value – leading to a potential loss on valuation
 Property market downturn/negative market trends – the cyclical nature of the property market 

may lead to reduced returns or e.g. a trend towards shorter leases and greater tenant turnover
 Lack of diversification – poor performance of a particular sector may have a disproportionate 

impact on the Council’s investment returns
 Poor liquidity – the impact on the Council’s cash flow from investing resources in long-term 

property assets.

Management of the above risks is an area of significant focus for the Council’s Officers and Members, and 
is an area that will continue to develop over the next financial year.

Page 118



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 21

6.3.3 Quantitative Indicators

The Council has developed the following quantitative indicators to allow Members and/or the general public 
to assess the authority’s total risk exposure as a result of commercial property investment decisions.

The indicators associated with the Council’s Property Growth Fund commercial property investments are 
detailed below.

It should be noted (as stated in paragraph 5.1.5 above) that the Council does not currently borrow 
specifically for its investment property acquisitions, due to its significant underborrowing position.  For the 
purpose of the indicators below a notional borrowing position has been estimated, based on the PWLB 
interest rates published at the date of each investment.

(a) Debt to Net Service Expenditure Ratio

This indicator measures the gross debt associated with Property Growth Fund investments as a percentage 
of net service expenditure (NSE), where NSE is used as a proxy for the size and financial strength of a local 
authority.

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Gross Debt 34,990 78,119 86,419 84,619 82,819
NSE 204,700 216,223 222,460 226,045 231,639
Debt to NSE Ratio 17.09% 36.13% 38.85% 37.43% 35.75% 120%

Limit

The indicator shows that the potential debt level resulting from the expected activities of the Property 
Growth Fund will be less than half of the Council’s annual net spend, if all the proposed investment activity 
is funded from borrowing.  Given the review of risk as part of the appraisal and decision making process, 
and the fact that any borrowing would be supported by an asset, this is considered to be reasonable.

A maximum limit of 120% has been set for this indicator.

(b) Commercial Income to Net Service Expenditure Ratio

This indicator measures the Council’s dependence on the net income from Property Growth Fund to enable 
it to deliver core services.

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Commercial Income 656 1,200 1,814 1,744 1,814
NSE 204,700 216,223 222,460 226,045 231,639
Commercial Income to 
NSE Ratio

0.32% 0.55% 0.82% 0.77% 0.78% 1.85%

Limit

The indicator shows that the net income generated from Property Growth Fund investments is expected to 
fund less than 1% of the Council’s net service expenditure in the next three years.  This position is 
considered to be reasonable.

Page 119



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 22

A maximum limit of 1.85% has been set for this indicator.

(c) Investment Cover Ratio 

This indicator shows the total net income from property investments, compared to the interest expense.

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Investment Cover Ratio 2.9 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.2

This indicator shows that the net income from property investments is expected to be between 2.2 and 2.9 
times higher than the expected interest expense.  The Council considers this to be an acceptable level of 
cover.

(d) Loan to Value Ratio

This indicator measures the amount of debt attributable to the Council’s Property Growth Fund portfolio 
compared to the total asset value.

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Loan to Value Ratio 1.01 1.02 1.00 0.98 0.96

This outcome shows that the Council’s expected amount of debt attributable to its Property Growth Fund 
investments is expected to be marginally higher that the value of the assets it has invested in.  This is a 
normal outcome in the period immediately after the purchase of properties, due to the costs of making the 
investment (e.g. stamp duty, legal fees), which will be included in the amount borrowed but will not add to 
the property’s value.  The gradual decrease in the loan to value ratio reflects that property values are 
expected to remain constant, but borrowing will be repaid.  This is considered to be a reasonable position.

(e) Target Income Returns

This indicator shows net revenue income compared to equity, and is a measure of the achievement of the 
Property Growth Fund portfolio.  The net return is shown after taking account of expected borrowing costs.

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Target Income Returns 1.84% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%

This shows that the Council exceeded the target return in 2018/19. 

(f) Benchmarking of Returns

This indicator is a measure of the gross returns (i.e. before operating or financing costs) from the Property 
Growth Fund portfolio against benchmark returns.  The current Strategy shows the Council’s return 

Page 120



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 23

benchmarked against industry standards.  As the Strategy develops this indicator will include performance 
against the returns of other Councils.  

Actual Benchmark
2018/19

%
Property 

Yields
March 19

%
Retail 8.42% 4.5% - 6.75%
Leisure 8.70% 5.50%
Industrial 6.47% 4%-5%

Sector

This indicator shows that the Council’s property investments have outperformed both the industry 
benchmark in all sectors.  The Council also holds treasury-related investments, which are managed under 
the principles of the Treasury Management Strategy, with a focus on security, liquidity and yield (in that 
order) with the primary objective of safeguarding Council resources.  The return achieved on treasury 
investments (0.73% in 2018/19), is indicative of the different aims of the two strategies.

(g) Gross and Net Income

This indicator shows the income received from the investment portfolio at a gross level and net level (i.e. 
less costs) over time.  

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Gross Income 1,836 3,359 5,847 6,004 6,048
Net Income 656 1,200 1,814 1,744 1,814

The Council sets a net income target based on 1.5% of its investment cost, and this is built into the budget 
on an ongoing basis, meaning this saving will need to be achieved if current service delivery levels are to 
be maintained by the Council.

(h) Operating Costs

This indicator shows the trend in the operating costs of the Property Growth Fund portfolio over time, as the 
portfolio expands.

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Operating Costs 25 139 289 314 314

The expected operating costs are currently low compared to the anticipated level of investment – this is 
because the majority of the Council’s property investments are currently subject to Full Repairing and 
Insuring (FRI) leases, meaning the costs of maintaining and repairing the properties are largely with the 
tenants.

Page 121



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 24

(i) Vacancy Levels and Tenant Exposures
 
This indicator monitors the vacancy levels (voids) of the Property Growth Fund portfolio to ensure that 
investments are being managed and are as productive as possible.

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
2018/19

£'000
2019/20

£'000
2020/21

£'000
2021/22

£'000
2022/23

£'000
Void periods 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

The Council did not experience any voids in its investment properties in 2018/19 and is not expecting any 
void periods in the financial years detailed.  This reflects the quality of covenant strength expected by the 
Council in making a property acquisition.  

7. Skills and Knowledge

7.1 Internal Resources

7.1.1 Skills and Knowledge within the Authority

Financial aspects of the capital programme and treasury management activities are managed by the 
Council’s Finance Service, including professionally qualified accountants with a comprehensive and 
extensive mix of local authority and private sector experience.  The Director of Resources is a 
professionally qualified accountant, and takes a lead role in the Council’s commercial investment activity, 
advising the Section 151 Officer accordingly.  The Section 151 Officer has overall responsibility for capital 
programme and treasury management activities, and is also a professionally qualified accountant.

All the Council’s commercial/investment projects are managed by a working group of officers from across 
the Council, including property management, legal professionals and finance support, who are all 
appropriately experienced and qualified in their respective fields. Finance/Legal Services input into this 
working group ensures that investment activities adhere to the core principles of the prudential framework 
and the regulatory regime within which the Council operates. 

7.1.2 Training for Staff and Councillors

Professionally qualified officers follow a Continuous Professional Development (CPD) plan to keep their 
skills and knowledge up to date, and gain understanding of new developments.  Officers regularly attend 
training courses, seminars and conferences provided by CIPFA and other appropriate organisations.  
Training of all Council officers is assessed throughout the year via appraisal processes.  Members 
undertake financial awareness training as part of their induction; Members of the Property Growth Fund 
Sub-Committee are fully briefed on the detail of the investment proposals presented to them including 
business cases/ financial appraisals, and are fully supported by officers throughout the decision-making 
process.  Further development of skills and knowledge in this area, including the skills and knowledge of 
Members of the Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee, is planned.

Page 122



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 25

7.2 Use of External Advisors

Where in-house expertise is unavailable, external professional advice is utilised, ranging from commercial 
property consultants and legal experts to specific taxation advice.  Independent external advice is routinely 
sought as part of the due diligence required for investment appraisal processes.

8. Process for Monitoring Compliance and Effectiveness 
of the Strategy Document 

Weekly meetings – Property Growth Fund Working Group
Bi-monthly meetings – Property Growth Fund Steering Group
Quarterly Property Growth Fund Performance Reports – Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee
Internal and External Audit checks

9. Strategy Governance 

Consisting of:

Responsible the person(s) responsible for developing and implementing the strategy.
Accountable the person who has ultimate accountability and authority for the strategy.
Ownership the person(s) or group who has overall ownership of the strategy.
Consulted the person(s) or groups to be consulted prior to final strategy implementation or amendment.
Informed the person(s) or groups to be informed after strategy implementation or amendment. 

Responsible Chief Finance Officer

Accountable Chief Finance Officer

Ownership Director of Resources; Head of Commercial, Economy & 
Resources Finance

Consulted Leadership Team

Informed Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee

10. Strategy Review Date

This Strategy will be reviewed in January 2021

11. Supporting Documents

 Corporate Plan:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-
reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/corporate-plan.aspx 

 Place Plan for the Borough: 
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-
reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/place-plan.aspx 

Page 123

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/corporate-plan.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/corporate-plan.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/place-plan.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/place-plan.aspx


Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 26

 Townships Plan:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-
reviews/strategies/place-and-environment/Pages/townships-plan.aspx 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-
reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/medium-term-financial-strategy.aspx 

 Asset Strategy:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-
reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/asset-strategy.aspx 

 Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/budgets-and-spending/annual-
accounts/Pages/default.aspx 

Page 124

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/place-and-environment/Pages/townships-plan.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/place-and-environment/Pages/townships-plan.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/medium-term-financial-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/medium-term-financial-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/asset-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/asset-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/budgets-and-spending/annual-accounts/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/budgets-and-spending/annual-accounts/Pages/default.aspx


Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Appendix 1 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 TO 2022/23

Directorate Scheme Name Category 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant Annual Allocation 2,440 2,440 2,440
Children's Services Children with Disabilities cost reduction project New bid 1,114
Children's Services Devolved Formula Capital Annual Allocation 483 483 483
Children's Services New Place Planning Annual Allocation 18,005 5,200 5,200
Children's Services Schools Capital Condition Programme Annual Allocation 1,833 1,833 1,833
Children's Services Special Provision Fund Annual Allocation 205
Economy Property Growth Fund Scheme started in previous years 10,000
Economy Hopwood Old Hall refurbishment Scheme started in previous years 25
Economy Rochdale & Littleborough Flood Relief Scheme Scheme started in previous years 1,600 1,600
Economy East Lancashire Railway Scheme started in previous years 50
Economy East Lancashire Railway - Castleton Masterplan New Bid 500 1,000
Economy Hopwood Old Hall - feasibility New Bid 50
Economy Milkstone Road Masterplan & improvements Scheme started in previous years 250
Economy Rail Strategy and Park & Ride Scheme started in previous years 200
Economy Rochdale Fire Station - office space New bid 200 50
Economy Rochdale Station Gateway Scheme started in previous years / New bid 250 2,250
Economy Smithybridge Railway Station - Park and Ride New Bid 400
Economy Drake Street - Phases II & III Scheme started in previous years 250 150 100
Economy Heywood/Middleton/Littleborough - Town Centre Masterplans New Bid 160
Economy Metrolink Feasibility Scheme started in previous years 50
Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 Scheme started in previous years 500 2,000
Economy Rochdale Town Centre (3 year strategy) Scheme started in previous years 300
Economy Rochdale Town Hall decant New bid 750
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration Scheme started in previous years 3,024
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration (phase 2) New bid 4,331
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration (phase 3) New bid
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square - phase 2 Scheme started in previous years 3,500
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square (extension to existing scheme) New bid
Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy Scheme started in previous years 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Boroughwide Allotments Scheme started in previous years 58 65
Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery Annual Allocation 120 120 120
Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way Annual Allocation 80 80 80
Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment Annual Allocation 75 75 75
Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme Annual Allocation / New Bid 1,345 655 1,839
Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme Annual Allocation 360 360 360
Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School Scheme started in previous years 522
Neighbourhoods Highways Investment Scheme started in previous years / New bid 4,000 3,000
Neighbourhoods Junction 19 New bid * *
Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan Annual Allocation 1,967 1,967 1,967
Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage Scheme started in previous years 50
Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme Scheme started in previous years / New bid 1,200 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Delivering High Value Housing Scheme started in previous years 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund Annual Allocation 800 800 800
Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme Scheme started in previous years 468 150
Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme Scheme started in previous years 926
Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme Annual Allocation / New bid 444 444 444
Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) Annual Allocation 500 500 500
Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement New bid 60 50 50
Neighbourhoods Extending libraries opening hours New bid 150
Neighbourhoods RFID - library self serve equipment - replacement project New bid 70
Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group Annual allocation 2,000 1,750 1,750
Neighbourhoods Number One Riverside - revolving doors replacement New bid 120
Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme Annual Allocation 100 100 100
Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency - Carbon Neutral New Bid 1,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme Annual Allocation 400 400 400
Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing Fund New bid 2,752
Public Health Hollingworth Lake improvements New bid 300
Public Health Leisure Centre Improvements New bid 20
Public Health Link4Life additional equipment Heywood New bid 50
Public Health Link4Life additional equipment Rochdale New bid 130
Public Health Link4Life building alterations Heywood New bid 170
Public Health Link4Life building alterations Rochdale New bid 270
Public Health Link4Life equipment Annual allocation / New bid 388 288 360
Public Health Replacement of Lake Bank Buildings at Hollingworth Lake New bid 3,000
Resources HR & Payroll system New bid 151
Resources Manchester Airport Investment Scheme started in previous years 1,860

TOTAL 83,475 48,480 25,232
* This information is exempt by virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Total Requirement
£000

 Page 125



Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
2020 to 2023

rochdale.gov.uk 2

 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 126



Report to Corporate O&S Committee 

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance  

Report Author Julie Murphy
Public Document

Budget 2020/21 - 2022/23 - Local Government Act 2003 
Requirements

Executive Summary

1. It is a legal requirement under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003   
for this report to be presented to Council for consideration immediately prior 
to setting the Budget and Council Tax. The recommendations aim to ensure 
that Council is aware of the opinion of the Chief Finance Officer regarding the 
robustness of the budget as proposed and the adequacy of general balances 
and reserves. This report will outline the robustness of the budget, the key 
risks and the level of reserves to support the Council’s financial resilience.

Recommendation

2.

2.1

2.2

It is recommended that:

The content of the report be considered prior to the approval of the Revenue 
and Capital Budgets and Members endorse the approach to General 
balances included in the report.

Council approves that the General Fund Balances for 2020/21 be set at £17m.

Reason for Recommendation

3. In order to comply with the Local Government Act 2003 the Chief Finance 
Officer is required to provide Council with an opinion as to the robustness of 
the Budget being presented to Council and to ensure the adequacy of general 
balances and reserves. The Chief Finance Officer reports formally on the 
following issues :-

a) An opinion as to the robustness of the estimates made and the tax 
setting calculations.

b) The adequacy of the proposed financial reserves.

Page 127

Agenda Item 12



c) Consideration of the overall affordability of the capital programme 
when determining the prudential indicators.

d) The production of longer-term revenue and capital plans.

The Council is required to take account of this report when determining its 
budget.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

Alternatives Considered

The conclusions of the report are that the proposed budget is robust and 
that the proposed level of general balances and reserves are adequate. An 
option to reduce the level of balance/reserves is not recommended given 
the risk assessment outlined in this report.

Robustness of Estimates

Estimate Procedures and Processes
In giving a positive opinion on the robustness of the estimate process reliance 
is placed on the Council’s overall arrangements for financial management 
detailed in Appendix 1.  These include the rolling Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, the Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy, the process for 
financial forecasts and developing medium term revenue and capital plans, 
the approach to financial risks and arrangements for in year monitoring of 
budgets.  Account is also taken of the assessment of the External Auditors 
as part of the annual audit opinion.  I can confirm that in my view the Council 
has robust procedures in place.

Determination of the level of resources available
Revenue resources for 2020/21 are based on the Council’s provisional 
finance settlement announced in December 2019. The Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2020/21 is a one-year settlement, ahead of a multi-year 
Spending Review in 2020.

It is difficult to forecast the longer-term impact on the Council’s funding of the 
move to 75% Business Rates Retention and the impact of funding reforms 
from 2021/22.  The MTFS assumes that any impact of these reforms will be 
neutral, taking account of the potential level of funding for local government 
and the transitional arrangements expected to be put in place. 

The capital budget is a three year programme.  Government capital 
allocations are only given on an annual basis and the resources for 2021/22 
to 2022/23 have been prudently based on the 2020/21 forecast. Forecasts 
of capital receipts have been re-assessed to take account of the economic 
climate. The capital receipts for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 which have 
been assumed in the programme are £1.1m, £1.0m and £0.1m respectively. 
This does not commit all the capital receipts forecast to be received over this 
period due to the uncertainty around the realisation of these receipts. 

Page 128



4.2.3

Revenue and Capital budget plans are subject to an ongoing review to 
ensure that forecasts of resources remain robust and can support planned 
levels of expenditure. 

The Council plans to increase Council Tax in 2020/21 by 3.99% being 1.99% 
for General Purposes and 2% for the Social Care Precept. For planning 
purpose the forecasts assume:

 In 2020/21 an increase of 1.99% for the General Purposes

 The Government announced in the Provisional Local Government 
Finance Settlement that is would enable councils to raise a 2% 
Adult Social Care Precept in 2020/21.

 For future years a 1.99% increase in General Council Tax, with no 
further Adult Social Care Precept has been assumed for planning 
purposes only.

This is in line with the Medium Term Financial Strategy and excludes 
precepts from the Greater Manchester Mayoral precepts for Police and 
General Purposes including Fire Services.

Affordability of Spending Plans and the implications for Council Tax 
Increases

There are a number of factors that need to be taken into account in 
considering the affordability of the Council’s spending plans:

a) The level of Council Tax increase should be acceptable locally and 
nationally. Central Government sets Council Tax referendum limits 
each year. The 2020/21 referendum limit for General Council Tax is 
1.99%. 

The Government announced in the Provisional Local Government 
Finance Settlement that it would enable councils to raise a 2% Adult 
Social Care Precept in 2020/21.

b) The level of Council Tax for 2021/22 and 2022/23 will need to be 
reviewed in line with Government referendum principles before any 
final decision is made as part of the 2021/22 and 2022/23 budget 
setting process. If the Government were minded to increase the 
referendum limit to 2.99% in 2021/22 this would generate a further 
£0.9m for the Council.

c) The Council has significant financial pressures in future years from the 
continued reduction in Government funding and increases in both 
costs of and demand for services. 

d) It is important that the level of savings is achievable and that the 
proposals put forward will deliver savings to support the Council’s 
spending plans.  The 2020/21 funding gap has been managed through 

Page 129



4.3

4.3.1

budget realignment, review of corporate budgets, saving proposals 
and use of one off resources. The Council’s performance 
management arrangements incorporate a set of indicators developed 
to report on service spend against budget. The Integrated Health and 
Social Care Pooled Fund is monitored by the Integrated 
Commissioning Board through the joint monitoring processes to 
ensure the risks to both the Council and CCG are managed.  

e) To manage financial risk and ensure budgets are robust at service 
level all directors have received early notification of their proposed 
budget allocation.  The notification sets out the level of base budget, 
based on their 2019/20 revised budget plus allocations for inflation in 
line with budget policy, growth and reductions for saving proposals. 
Directors have been asked to review the budget provision and formally 
sign off the budgets for 2020/21 and provisionally for 2021/22 in 
respect of its adequacy in relation to services provided. All Directors 
have signed off their budgets. It is noted that the sign off forms are at 
a point in time and are subject to decisions by Council that may impact 
on a services spending power together with caveats around technical 
accounting entries which will not impact upon service spending power. 

f) The affordability of the budget has to take account of financial risks 
and the actions that can be taken to mitigate that risk.  There are a 
number of risks in the 2020/21 to 2022/23 budgets which are set out 
below.

Key Budget Risks

No budget is without risks particularly given that it is a forecast of spending 
for a period which ends over 12 months after its approval.  Throughout the 
budget process financial risks are identified and actions developed to 
manage those risks.  In year, budget monitoring is underpinned by an 
analysis of risk.  When setting the budget, the total level of risks and potential 
financial exposure are assessed and taken into account when setting a 
prudent level of balances.  Appendix 2 sets out the risk assessment for the 
2020/21 budget.  

The key risks provided for in General Fund Balances are:

Health and Social Care Integration/ Better Care Fund

From the 1st April 2018 the budgets for Adult Care, Children’s Services and 
Public Health were brought together with those budgets from the CCG to 
form a formal Pooled Fund. There are risks to the Council around the Pooled 
Fund delivering services in line with the available resources. To achieve a 
balanced Pooled Fund a number of savings are assumed and any shortfall 
in the delivery of these proposals would be shared by the CCG and Rochdale 
Council based on the Section 75 agreement. The risk share element of the 
Section 75 agreement for 2020/21 is currently under review.

Page 130



4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

Business Rates 
Impact of the Valuation Appeals

There has been uncertainty as to projecting business rates for future years 
as appeals against the valuations are treated as part of the normal volatility 
of the rating list and will therefore impact on local authority budgets. Most 
disputes between businesses and the Valuation Office (VOA) are dealt with 
through a check, challenge and appeal process resulting in, changes 
appearing on the billing list making the forecast of business rates income 
more volatile.

There is a risk to the Council that the number of appeals upheld will impact 
on the Business Rates generated by the Council and under 100% retention 
this risk will be borne by the Council, impacting on future years levels of 
resources. There are also a number of national litigations in progress which 
could impact on future years’ Business Rates if judged in favour of 
businesses.

Business Rates Projections

The Business Rates resources included in the budget are based on current 
levels of properties, known trends in relation to empty properties and 
changes both up and down during the year for property rateable values. 
There is a risk to the Council as any changes to the rateable value of a 
business property affects the income collected for current and future years. 

Other factors contributing to the risks are :

 Business Rate growth assumed in Central Government’s estimates 
may not materialise.

 The actual levels of Business Rates income collected throughout the 
year may have significant variations and will have a direct impact on 
the Council’s resources. 

 There may be significant volatility in the amount of resources available 
from one year to the next due to the uncertainty around collection and 
appeals.

Local Government Funding Reforms

The Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21 is a one-year settlement, 
ahead of a multi-year Spending Review in 2020. There were multiple reforms 
scheduled for 2020/21 that will have a significant impact on local authority 
funding. These have now been delayed until 2021/22. 

Spending Review 2020
In 2020 a full Spending Review will be held, reviewing public spending in the 
round and setting three-year budgets.

Fair Funding Review
The Fair Funding Review will re-assess the relative needs and relative 
resources of local authorities. This will determine the methodology for the 

Page 131



4.3.5

distribution of the funding allocated for local government to individual 
authorities from 2021/22.

Baseline Reset
The Business Rates retention system is due to be reset for 2021/22. The 
reset will establish new Baseline Funding Levels, Business Rates Baselines 
and Top-ups/Tariffs for each local authority. Top-ups/Tariffs will be reset 
based on:

 The amount of funding to be distributed following the Spending 
Review.

 The new needs assessment resulting from the Fair Funding Review.
 Estimates of individual local authority’s Business Rates income.

Business Rate Retention 
The Government announced in the Autumn Budget 2017 that local 
authorities will move to a system of 75% Business Rates Retention from 
2020/21. However, this has now been delayed until 2021/22. The Greater 
Manchester 100% retention pilot will continue in 2020/21, but it is unclear 
whether this will continue from 2021/22 onwards.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy assumes that any impact of these 
reforms will be neutral, taking account of the potential level of funding for 
local government and the transitional arrangements expected to be put in 
place.

Demand for Services/Budget Pressures

The Council has experienced significant demand pressures in recent years 
resulting in a contribution of £3.3m and £6.7m from the Equalisation Reserve 
for 2018/19 and 2019/20 respectively.

The Council’s Place Plan highlights that residents are living longer but 
compared to the rest of England and Wales we live shorter and less healthy 
lives. In some parts of our borough there is a 10 year1 difference in life 
expectancy when comparing our most deprived areas to our more affluent. A 
key pressure on services is the increasing demands for adult social care and 
health services for the most vulnerable and deprived residents. 
Improvements in delivery of these services are a priority for the integration of 
social care and health services through the Pooled Fund. It is, however, 
unclear whether resources allocated to our Council will be sufficient to cover 
additional burdens and pressures in future years.

Children's Services are facing financial pressures, primarily due to an 
increase in both staffing requirements and external placements, arising from 
increased numbers of Cared for Children.  This is consistent with a national 
trend.  Due to the increased demand for placements nationally the market is 
volatile and prices are continually increasing.

Pension Guarantees 

1 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21

Page 132



4.3.6

4.3.7

4.3.8

4.3.9

4.4

The Council guarantees the pension contributions to the Greater Manchester 
Pension Fund for a number of organisations where services have been 
transferred from the Council to an external party. The Council works very 
closely with these organisations to ensure the risk to the Council of having to 
pay these pension contributions is minimised.

Litigation Claims

As Local Authorities funding is cut and service provision is therefore reduced 
there is an increased risk to the Council of Litigation. 

Invest to Save Schemes 

Cabinet are recommending to Council to approve the 2020/21 Capital 
Programme which includes a number of invest to save schemes. The nature 
of these schemes is for the Council to make an initial investment in a project 
and then to either receive a future revenue income stream or to reduce 
current expenditure for the Council enabling the repayment of the initial 
investment. If this future revenue income stream or reduced expenditure 
does not materialise there is a risk to the revenue budget achieving a 
balanced position.

Commercial Activity/Treasury Management

The Council receives income from its commercial investment property 
portfolio. Commercial property income is subject to market forces and 
therefore there is a risk that this income could decrease.  The Council 
maintains a reserve in order to mitigate future reductions in income, and also 
manages its investment activities in accordance with robust performance and 
risk procedures as detailed in the Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy.

Treasury Management income and the costs of borrowing places a level of 
risk and uncertainty on the overall budget that supports cash flow activities.  
Additional work has been undertaken during budget setting to review the 
assumptions contained within treasury management forecasts.  These will 
however be subject to changes within the wider money markets and the 
commercial climate that influences the rates available to the council for 
borrowing and investment. Uncertainties around the nature and timing of 
Brexit will continue to contribute to the possibility of sharp changes in market 
sentiment and increased volatility. The Credit Ratings of the banks Rochdale 
Council invests in are reviewed on a weekly basis with our External 
Consultants. There is an inherent risk around Treasury Management activity, 
the mitigation against this is covered in the Treasury Management Strategy.

Advice on the level of general balances

General balances are held as a contingency against risks not provided for in 
the Council’s financial plans or other reserves and provisions. The level of 
balances, reserves and provisions are assessed annually to ensure they are 
adequate and take account of known financial risks.  This is achieved by 

Page 133



4.5

4.6

considering the ‘potential exposure’ from the risk.  Account is also taken of 
the likelihood of this exposure happening.  An amount is also included for 
specific contingencies and emergencies.  This is not a precise science and 
local circumstances, the strength of financial reporting arrangements and the 
Council’s track record in financial management will also be a key influence 
on the actual potential of any risk materialising.

Appendix 2 sets out the Council’s general financial risks in 2020/21 with a 
‘potential exposure’ liability where appropriate.  The net value of the potential 
exposure is £17m.
Based on the risk assessment, the Council’s general balances are sufficient 
to meet potential risks but there is no spare capacity in the required level of 
balances.  If all the potential risks were to materialise it would have a 
significant impact on the level of general balances available during 2020/21 
and later years. Should any of these risks materialise Council will be kept 
informed of the implications.

Advice on the level of earmarked reserves

An analysis of earmarked reserves held by the Council is provided in 
Appendix 3.  As part of the work undertaken to address the budget gap a 
review of provisions, reserves, grants and balances has been undertaken 
during the course of the budget setting process. All remaining reserves are 
currently either appropriate for the purpose they were set up for and at the 
level required or processes are in place to monitor levels and action plans 
are in place to address any specific issues. We will continue to review and 
challenge reserves as part of the on-going budget process. Some of the key 
reserves are referred to below:

 Equalisation Reserve - This reserve has been established to assist 
the Authority in managing its budget requirement for future years and 
smoothing the impact of savings requirement through the 
identification of one off funds that become available.  The level of the 
reserve is reviewed as part of the budget process with contributions 
increased or decreased as necessary. 

 Insurance Reserve - this is required to cover potential liabilities arising 
from self-insurance of certain fire and motor vehicle claims and the 
self-funding of general corporate risks.  The level of the reserve is 
reviewed as part of the budget process with contributions increased 
or decreased as necessary. 

 Schools Reserves – school balances are monitored on a regular 
basis.  The current local funding formula provides for balances above 
agreed limits to be clawed back and redistributed to all schools.

Prudential Code 

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Finance Officer to ensure that all 
matters required by the Code are taken into account in determining the 
budget and are reported to Budget Council. In summary the objectives of the 
code are to:

Page 134



4.7

 Demonstrate the affordability of capital expenditure plans. 
 Ensure prudent external borrowing levels.
 Verify that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance 

with good professional practice.
 Underpin the accountability and transparency of an authority’s capital 

investment planning processes.
 Support effective option appraisal, asset management planning and 

capital strategies.  

These objectives are to be demonstrated by the following indicators which 
are set out in the code: 

 Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream.
 Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on Council Tax 
 Levels of Capital Expenditure.
 Level of Capital Financing Requirement.
 Limits on Gross External Debt. 
 Limits on Interest Rate exposures. 
 Limits on Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing. 
 Limits on investments for a year and beyond. 

The indicators and limits calculated under the Code are detailed in the 
Treasury Management borrowing and investment strategies for 2020/21, will 
be considered by Cabinet on 12th February 2020. The Code gives no 
suggestions as to their appropriate level; these have to be set by the 
authority itself based on individual circumstances.  
The conclusions of the borrowing and investment strategies and the 
indicators set as part of that strategy are that capital expenditure plans are 
resourced and levels of borrowing are prudent in relation to the Council’s 
income and assets.  Treasury management practice is audited regularly and 
has received a level one audit opinion since 2006/07.  This provides 
assurance that the principles of the code and best professional practice are 
being applied in relation to operational processes and procedures for 
borrowing and investment.  

Conclusion

Based on the assessment included in this report I have concluded that the 
budgets as proposed and the associated systems and processes are sound 
and the level of general balances/ reserves are adequate.  

Based on the Cabinet’s recommended budget it is my view that the estimates 
proposed and the tax setting calculations are robust, that reserves are 
adequate and the provisional capital programme is affordable.  All budget 
amendments submitted will need to be reviewed to ensure they do not alter 
this view

Costs and Budget Summary

Page 135



5. See the main body of the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

See the main body of the report.6.

Consultation

7. Not appropriate. It is the statutory responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer 
to advise Council on the adequacy of reserves and robustness of the budget.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Julie Murphy, Tel: 01706 925174
Julie.Murphy2@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 136



APPENDIX 1
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ROBUSTNESS OF THE ESTIMATES MADE FOR
THE PURPOSES OF THE BUDGET

1. Introduction

Part 2 of the Local Government Act 2003 introduces a requirement for the Chief 
Finance Officer to report upon the robustness of the estimates made for the 
purposes of the budget and tax setting calculations and the adequacy of the 
proposed financial reserves.

2. Budget Strategy

The Council’s overall framework for its medium term budget is contained in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy.  The strategy is subject to six monthly review 
and update.  The strategy provides for a Council wide involvement in supporting 
an integrated approach to the preparation of soundly based capital and revenue 
plans and associated strategies for managing risk and internal control.   

Collectively the strategy ensures effective finance management and 
governance.

3. Budget & Tax Setting Process

The annual budget preparation and tax setting process involves the 
development of robust medium term revenue forecasts and capital plans in the 
context of the budget strategy and in the light of judgements made regarding 
the need to restrict the increase in Council Tax levels.

Budget guidelines and a timetable to govern the process were prepared in 
consultation with services prior to approval by Cabinet in July 2019. They 
address issues such as service levels and improvement, pay and price inflation, 
fees and charges, external funding and consultation.

During the budget process consultation has taken place with stakeholders and 
the public, the outcome of which were reported to Cabinet on 29th October 
2019.  Issues relating to the budget and tax setting have been subject to 
scrutiny at meetings of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee during 
the year.

The Council Tax Base and Business Rates Base for 2020/21 were approved 
by Council on 18th December 2019.

 After taking account of feedback during the budget process, Cabinet on 12th   
February 2020 may approve the Budget and Council Tax for consideration by 
full Council on 26th February 2020.  

Page 137



4. Capital Programme

Affordability of capital expenditure plans is important in determining the overall 
robustness of the budget and adequacy of reserves to deal with potential 
variations. Wider Leadership Team, Strategic Asset Management (SAM) 
Group, and Operational Asset Management (OAM) Group oversee the 
preparation of the draft capital budget including prioritisation of capital 
schemes.  The revenue costs of the capital programme are also considered 
and provided for in the revenue budget. Cabinet on 12th February 2020 may 
recommend an overall Capital Budget. 

5. In-year Financial Monitoring Process

A report providing an update on the corporate financial position is submitted to 
the Leadership Team and Cabinet each cycle.  The Chief Finance Officer meets 
with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and the Opposition Portfolio Holder. 
Cabinet reports are subsequently considered by the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  Budget pressures and savings measures are kept under 
review and Directors projecting an over spend can be asked to report to the 
next meeting on how their budgets will be brought back in line.  In year 
monitoring has identified both actual and potential budget problems and 
appropriate corrective action has been considered.  Financial performance 
indicators report on spend against budget and achievement of approved 
savings.

6. Financial Risks in the Budget

The Budget provides General Balances of £17m to mitigate the key financial 
risks detailed in Appendix 2.

7. Reserves

The determination of an appropriate level of reserves and a systematic 
approach to keep this under review and linked to monitoring arrangements is 
considered as a separate issue in this report.

8. Role of Chief Finance Officer

The Chief Finance Officer has statutory responsibilities for financial 
management issues and exercises these through the Council’s management 
structure and by maintaining sound and effective arrangements for internal 
audit and risk management.

9. Integrated Health & Social Care – Integrated Commissioning Board

From 2018/19 the authority has moved to a formal integrated commissioning 
approach with the Clinical Commissioning Group to deliver integrated health 
and social care through a Pooled Fund. The pooled budget brings together 
resources from a range of organisations including the Clinical Commissioning 

Page 138



Group, the Local Authority, Better Care Funds and GM level resources to invest 
in transformation of service delivery, (known as Transformation Funding). 

As part of the integration the Council has established joint Senior Manager 
arrangements with Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning 
Group (HMRCCG) to administrate and manage the pooled budget created to 
deliver health and care integration in Rochdale.  The Section 151 officer has 
delegated responsibility for the management of the pooled budget to the Chief 
Finance officer of the Clinical Commissioning Group to operate as one resource 
for the delivery of health and care. The pooled fund is administered through the 
Integrated Commissioning Board which is a joint committee of Rochdale 
Council and HMRCCG. Financial reporting and monitoring of the delivery of the 
Pooled Fund savings proposals will be provided to the Integrated 
Commissioning Board (ICB). 

10. External Audit Annual Audit Opinion 

External Audit undertakes an annual assessment of the Council and delivers 
an audit opinion within the annual audit letter to the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  The annual audit letter will be presented to a future meeting of the 
Audit and Governance Committee. 

Page 139



 
Appendix 2

£'m £'m

Health and Social Care 
Integration. Achievement of 
Benefits.

Health and Social Care Integration is 
bringing together the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Local Authorities 
to deliver clinical and financial stability.   

The formal Pooled Budget is in operation and brings together the pooled resources
for CCG, Adults, Children’s, Public Health, and the Transformation Fund. The
Pooled Fund has a balanced budget however there is a risk associated with the
achievement of savings proposals. The total savings brought forward relating to
the Pooled Budget is £9.7m.

Health & Social Care 
Integration – The Pooled 
Fund

The formal Pooled Fund is in operation and 
will bring together resources from the Local 
Authority and Clinical Commissioning Group

The risks to the Council of not achieving the savings proposals is managed
through budget management, Political monitoring and performance indicators 

2 H
ig

h Business Rates and 
Council Tax income

Local Authorities receive the majority of their 
funding from Business Rates and Council 
Tax. The amount the Council receives from 
these sources of funding is based on the 
taxbase. 

158.6

The Council has a risk of non-achievement of Business Rates and Council Tax 
Income. This  may be due to people not paying, businesses leaving the borough or 
the assumptions contained with the estimates for growth in the taxbases not 
materialising.

4.0

3 H
ig

h

Funding of Local Authorities

The Local government finance settlement 
received for 2020/21 is a one-year only 
settlement. There are major reforms due to 
local government funding from 2021/22, 
which will affect the level of funding received 
by the Council

36.3

The MTFS for 2020/21 to 2024/25 includes the level of funding available to the 
Council from the finance settlement.  There is a risk to the Council that the funding 
received following the reforms to the local government funding system will be lower 
than estimated

1.8

4 H
ig

h

Demand for services

In times of austerity demand for Local 
Authority Services increase, this may 
impact on the cost of providing these 
services. The Budget for 2019/20 to 
2021/22 does include a small provision for 
Budget Pressures however this may not be 
enough to cover the pressures in the future. 

2.5 The risk to the Council is that services cannot manage any unforeseen increase 
demand for services 1.4

1 H
ig

h

10.9 2.0

Potential 
Exposure

Total Budget 
Assessed for 

Risk

Risk Assessment for Level of General Fund Balance

Key Risks Details Comments
Le

ve
l o

f 
R

is
k

P
age 140



5
M

ed
iu

m
Pension Fund Guarantee

The Council guarantees to the Greater 
Manchester Pension Fund the pension 
contributions of a number of organisations 
where previous employees of the Council 
have tuped over. There is a risk to the 
Council if these organisations default on 
their contributions. 

12.0 The Council currently guarantees 31 organisations 1.3

6

M
ed

iu
m

Litigation Claims
As the Council reduces the level of funding 
available for the future provision of services 
there is an increased risk of litigation. 

12.0 The Council mitigates against the risk of litigation through robust risk assessment 
procedures and insurance 1.2

7

M
ed

iu
m

Invest to Save Schemes - 
Capital

The Council is looking to approve a Capital 
Programme where a number of schemes 
are invest to save. The Schemes are 
forecast to generate future revenue income 
for the Council which will be used to repay 
interest and borrowing and to subsidise 
future Council Services.

20.4 The risk to the Council is that the income from these invest to save schemes does 
not materialise in line with the Business Plans 1.0

8

M
ed

iu
m

Commercial Activity
The MTFS includes income that the Council 
receives from its commercial investment 
property portfolio. 

3.1

Commercial property income is subject to market forces and therefore there is a 
risk that this income could decrease.  The Council maintains a reserve in order to 
mitigate future reductions in income, and also manages its investment activities in 
accordance with robust performance and risk procedures as detailed in the Capital 
Investment and Disposal Strategy. 

1.5

9

M
ed

iu
m

Budget Pressures

The MTFS includes assumptions around 
the budget pressures faced by services, in 
particular in relation to Children's Services 
and Adult Care

10.3 There is a risk that the budget pressures experienced by services exceed the 
amounts included in the MTFS to fund these pressure 2.6

270.8 Net Potential Exposure 17.3

10

M
ed

iu
m Saving Proposals 

The savings programme includes a number 
of saving proposals where implementation 
maybe delayed or the proposal may not be 
achieved

4.7 The risks to the Council of not achieving the savings proposals is managed 
through budget management, Political monitoring and performance indicators 0.5

Total

P
age 141



APPENDIX 3

REVIEW OF EARMARKED RESERVES 

Earmarked reserves are amounts set aside to provide for specific areas. The following table lists the various earmarked reserves, the 
purposes for which they are held and provides advice on the appropriate levels.

Purpose of Reserve
Estimated 
Balances   

1st April 2020
£000's

Planned 
(Additions) / 
Withdrawals    

£000's

Estimated 
Balances      

31st March 
2021            

£000's

Equalisation Reserve - This reserve has been established to assist the Authority in managing its budget 
requirement for future years by identifying one off funds that become available to resource invest to save 
initiatives and the implementation of complex savings proposals and the costs of implementing those 
proposals.

(22,903) (1,017) (23,920)

Budget Carry Forward Reserve - This reserve represents balances to be carried forward from one 
financial year to the next. (34,623) 34,623 0

PFI - This reserve is the cumulative amount of unapplied funding received to date which will be utilised to 
finance the councils PFI over the whole life of the project.  There is also an amount set aside to guard 
against uncertainties in future Retail Price Index increases, interest rate fluctuations and back-dated 
contractor claims in relation to the Schools PFI Scheme.

(24,178) (895) (25,073)

Schools Reserve & DSG- In accordance with the Education Reform Act, 1988 Local Management of 
Schools provides for the carry forward of individual school surpluses/deficits. Schools are discouraged 
from going into unmanaged deficits or building up excessive surpluses the level of this reserve is 
determined at school level. These balances must be kept available to schools and cannot be used by the 
Authority for other purposes.

(9,075) 1,100 (7,975)

Other Reserves - This are various reserves set aside for specific purposes, to enable RMBC to meet 
legislative or contractual liabilities. (21,199) 2,674 (18,525)

Insurance Reserve - This reserve has been established in order to finance costs (e.g. claims and 
premium payments) associated with public Liability. (17,827) 0 (17,827)

P
age 142



VAT Shelter - This reserve has been created to fund future commitments for the Homelessness 
Contract and Funding Strategy. (845) 540 (305)

Transformation Reserve – This reserve has been set up to assist the Council in identifying and 
developing innovative proposals to reduce Council expenditure and/or increase potential income streams 
by investing in any proposal where one off funding is required on an invest to save basis.

(4,551) 179 (4,372)

Total (135,201) 37,204 (97,997)

* The estimated balances on the Schools Reserve cannot be used by the Authority for other purposes. 

P
age 143



SERVICE DIRECTOR SIGN OFF               APPENDIX 4
ADULT CARE
BUDGET POSITION 2020/21

SUMMARY OF 2019/20 BUDGET CHANGES

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Budget position agreed at Budget Fixing Council 27th February 2019 12,449 2,966 15,415
Realignment to budgets in year 34 54 88

12,483 3,020 15,503

0 0 0
SUMMARY OF MOVEMENT IN SETTING 2020/21 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Reflecting revised budget position as at 29/11/2019 12,483 3,020 15,503
Reflects the increase in the cost of living - e.g. salary inflation, contract inflation etc. 1,420 0 1,420
Budgets determined by a range of factors, some of which are outside of the Services control - 
e.g. Depreciation, Business Rate Charges, Insurance 24 (16) 8

Budget Pressures identified by services 5,635 0 5,635
Movement either within, or between Services, but which ultimately do not affect the net position 
of the Authority (3,093) 0 (3,093)

(Increase) or decrease in Grants received by the Authority (1,108) 0 (1,108)
Identified where more resource is needed to support demand within a Service 500 0 500
Changes to the contribution to/(from) the Pooled Budget 43,443 0 43,443
The movement in Superannuation contributions (1) 0 (1)
Savings Proposals from previous years estimates process 0 0 0
2020/21 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation (1,271) 0 (1,271)
See table below for further details 0 0 0
See table below for further details 0 0 0

58,032 3,004 61,036
See table below for further details (237) 0 (237)

57,795 3,004 60,799

BUDGET SETTING MOVEMENT DETAILS

CATEGORY REF DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

0

0
TOTAL 0 0 0

0
0
0
0

TOTAL 0 0 0
ASC21005 Charges to full cost payers (19) (19)
ASC21009 Adult Care Commissioned Day Services (119) (119)
ASC21010 Moving On (50) (50)
ASC21012 Shared Lives management cost (45) (45)

Discretionary Fees and Changes 2% increase (4) (4)
TOTAL (237) 0 (237)

SIGNED BY NAME SIGNATURE DATE
Director Sally McIvor

Budget Opening Position

CATEGORY

Base budget 2019/20
In Year budget realignment
REVISED BUDGET AT 29/11/2019

CATEGORY

B) Savings Proposals agreed as part of 2019/20 programme

Inflation

Centrally Allocated Charges

Budget Pressures

Switches

Grant Changes
Growth
Pooled Budget Adjustment
Superann
Previous Years Savings
2020/21 Saving Proposals not requiring Service consultation
A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 2019/20

This budget may be subject to change as a result of Members decisions.
The Uncontrollable budgets may be subject to change, however this will not impact on the ability to deliver services.
I confirm that the figures presented reflect a robust budget which would support operational activity in my service in 2020/21 and that the provisional budget for 2021/22 represents the service requirements for that year, 
subject to any changes as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process (see Appendix1). 

TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET
C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to consultation / review
TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET IF SAVINGS SUBJECT TO CONSULTATION / REVIEW 

A) Reversal of One Year Only 
Decisions 2019/20

B) Saving Proposals agreed as 
part of 2019/20 programme

C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals 
subject to consultation / review

P
age 144



CHILDRENS SERVICES
BUDGET POSITION 2020/21

SUMMARY OF 2019/20 BUDGET CHANGES

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Budget position agreed at Budget Fixing Council 27th February 2019 3,511 18,074 21,585
Realignment to budgets in year 201 (60) 141

3,712 18,014 21,726

SUMMARY OF MOVEMENT IN SETTING 2020/21 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Reflecting revised budget position as at 29/11/2019 3,712 18,014 21,726

Reflects the increase in the cost of living - e.g. salary inflation, contract inflation etc. 633 32 665

Budgets determined by a range of factors, some of which are outside of the Services 
control - e.g. Depreciation, Business Rate Charges, Insurance 45 (91) (46)

Budget Pressures identified by services 662 0 662
Movement either within, or between Services, but which ultimately do not affect the 
net position of the Authority 4,408 0 4,408

(Increase) or decrease in Grants received by the Authority 0 0 0
Identified where more resource is needed to support demand within a Service 0 0 0
Changes to the contribution to/(from) the Pooled Budget 38,628 0 38,628
The movement in Superannuation contributions 0 0 0
Savings Proposals from previous years estimates process 0 0 0
2020/21 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation (129) 0 (129)
See table below for further details (126) 0 (126)
See table below for further details 0 0 0

47,833 17,955 65,788
See table below for further details (56) 0 (56)

47,777 17,955 65,732

BUDGET SETTING MOVEMENT DETAILS

CATEGORY REF DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

CS-2018-19-004 School HR 20 20
CS-2018-19-005 Troubled Families 65 65

Youth Parliament (211) (211)
0
0
0
0

TOTAL (126) 0 (126)
0
0
0
0

TOTAL 0 0 0
CS-2020-21-003 Proposal to relocate Milnrow Youth Centre (3) (3)
CS-2020-21-004 Children's Services Business Support reduction (37) (37)

Discretionary Fees and Changes 2% increase (11) (11)
Early Help Strategy (5) (5)
TOTAL (56) 0 (56)

SIGNED BY NAME SIGNATURE DATE
Director Gail Hopper

This budget may be subject to change as a result of Members decisions.
The Uncontrollable budgets may be subject to change, however this will not impact on the ability to deliver services.
I confirm that the figures presented reflect a robust budget which would support operational activity in my service in 2020/21 and that the provisional budget for 2021/22 represents the service requirements for that year, subject 
to any changes as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process (see Appendix1). 

TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET
C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to consultation / review
TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET IF SAVINGS SUBJECT TO CONSULTATION / REVIEW APPROVED

A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 
2019/20

B) Saving Proposals agreed as part of 
2019/20 programme

C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to 
consultation / review

B) Savings Proposals agreed as part of 2019/20 programme

Inflation

Centrally Allocated Charges

Budget Pressures

Switches

Grant Changes
Growth
Pooled Budget Adjustment
Superann
Previous Years Savings
2020/21 Saving Proposals not requiring Service consultation
A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 2019/20

Budget Opening Position

CATEGORY

Base budget 2019/20
In Year budget realignment
REVISED BUDGET AT 29/11/2019

CATEGORY

P
age 145



ECONOMY
BUDGET POSITION 2020/21

SUMMARY OF 2019/20 BUDGET CHANGES

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Budget position agreed at Budget Fixing Council 27th February 2019 15,412 581 15,993
Realignment to budgets in year (579) (52) (631)

14,833 529 15,362

SUMMARY OF MOVEMENT IN SETTING 2020/21 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Reflecting revised budget position as at 29/11/2019 14,833 529 15,362
Reflects the increase in the cost of living - e.g. salary inflation, contract inflation etc. 221 0 221
Budgets determined by a range of factors, some of which are outside of the Services control - e.g. Depreciation, 
Business Rate Charges, Insurance (5) (6) (11)

Budget Pressures identified by services 78 0 78
Movement either within, or between Services, but which ultimately do not affect the net position of the Authority 139 1 140
(Increase) or decrease in Grants received by the Authority 0 0 0
Identified where more resource is needed to support demand within a Service 0 0 0
Changes to the contribution to/(from) the Pooled Budget 0 0 0
The movement in Superannuation contributions 0 0 0
Savings Proposals from previous years estimates process 0 0 0
2020/21 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation (45) 0 (45)
See table below for further details 200 0 200
See table below for further details (350) 0 (350)

15,071 524 15,595
See table below for further details (29) 0 (29)

15,042 524 15,566

BUDGET SETTING MOVEMENT DETAILS

CATEGORY REF DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

EC-2019-20-001 Employment Links 150 150
EC-2019-20-003 Planning Fees 50 50

0
0

TOTAL 200 0 200
EC-2019-20-001 Employment Links (50) (50)
EC-2019-20-003 Planning Fees (50) (50)
EC-2019-20-004 Review of Commercial Assets (100) (100)
EC-2019-20-005 Commercial Invest ment Fund Phase 3 (150) (150)

TOTAL (350) 0 (350)
EC-2020-21-002 Restructure - Economic Affairs Core Team (15) (15)

Discretionary Fees and Changes 2% increase (14) (14)
0

TOTAL (29) 0 (29)

SIGNED BY NAME SIGNATURE DATE
Director John Searle

Budget Opening Position

CATEGORY

Base budget 2019/20
In Year budget realignment
REVISED BUDGET AT 29/11/2019

CATEGORY

B) Savings Proposals agreed as part of 2019/20 programme

Inflation

Centrally Allocated Charges

Budget Pressures
Switches
Grant Changes
Growth
Pooled Budget Adjustment
Superann
Previous Years Savings
2020/21 Saving Proposals not requiring Service consultation
A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 2019/20

This budget may be subject to change as a result of the saving proposals consultation and Members decisions.
The Uncontrollable budgets may be subject to change, however this will not impact on the ability to deliver services.
I confirm that the figures presented reflect a robust budget which would support operational activity in my service in 2020/21 and that the provisional budget for 2021/22 represents the service requirements for that year, subject to any changes as part of the 
2020/21 budget setting process (see Appendix1). 

TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET
C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to consultation / review
TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET IF SAVINGS SUBJECT TO CONSULTATION / REVIEW 

A) Reversal of One Year Only 
Decisions 2019/20

B) Saving Proposals agreed as 
part of 2019/20 programme

C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals 
subject to consultation / review

P
age 146



NEIGHBOURHOODS
BUDGET POSITION 2020/21

SUMMARY OF 2019/20 BUDGET CHANGES

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Budget position agreed at Budget Fixing Council 28th February 2018 50,310 2,104 52,414
Realignment to budgets in year 177 (2) 175

50,487 2,102 52,589

SUMMARY OF MOVEMENT IN SETTING 2020/21 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Reflecting revised budget position as at 03/12/2019 50,487 2,102 52,589

Reflects the increase in the cost of living - e.g. salary inflation, contract inflation etc. 371 1 372

Budgets determined by a range of factors, some of which are outside of the 
Services control - e.g. Depreciation, Business Rate Charges, Insurance (332) (1,066) (1,398)

Budget Pressures identified by services 647 0 647
Movement either within, or between Services, but which ultimately do not affect the 
net position of the Authority 92 0 92

(Increase) or decrease in Grants received by the Authority (354) 0 (354)
Identified where more resource is needed to support demand within a Service 203 0 203
Changes to the contribution to/(from) the Pooled Budget 0 0 0
The movement in Superannuation contributions 37 0 37
Savings Proposals from previous years estimates process (195) 0 (195)
2020/21 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation (318) 0 (318)
See table below for further details (173) 0 (173)
See table below for further details (132) 0 (132)

50,333 1,037 51,370
See table below for further details (826) 0 (826)

49,507 1,037 50,544

BUDGET SETTING MOVEMENT DETAILS

CATEGORY REF DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Feel Good Festival 19/20 (80) (80)
Town Hall Secruity (14) (14)
CCTV Contract 2019/20 (79) (79)

0
0
0
0

TOTAL (173) 0 (173)
NH-2019-20-022 Review of grant funded Community Centres (94) (94)
NH-2019-20-025 Move from VMWARE to hyperV (10) (10)
NH-2019-20-025 Senior Systems and Network Engineer (28) (28)

TOTAL (132) 0 (132)
NH-2020-21-002 Cease delivery of non-statutory wider tobacco control work (33) (33)
NH-2020-21-003 Restructure the Pest Control Team (21) (21)
NH-2020-21-004 Restructure the management of the Trading Standards and Licensing Teams (39) (39)
NH-2020-21-013 Bowling Pavilions utility charges to users (smart meters) (13) (13)
NH-2020-21-014 Environmental Management Township Rangers (17) (17)
NH-2020-21-021 Reduction of Customer Service staffing (29) (29)
NH-2020-21-022 ICT EDIT Team Restructure (29) (29)

Charging for replacement bins (189) (189)
Places of worship - in house collection of waste (8) (8)
Review Events & Art & Literature service/post (30) (30)
Agilisys contract review (100) (100)
Grass cut on gateways & additional tree maintenance (25) (25)
EM - Budget realignment (250) (250)
To be confirmed (5) (5)
Discretionary Fees and Changes 2% increase (38) (38)
TOTAL (826) 0 (826)

SIGNED BY NAME SIGNATURE DATE
Director Mark Widdup

Budget Opening Position

CATEGORY

Base budget 2019/20
In Year budget realignment
REVISED BUDGET AT 29/11/2019

CATEGORY

B) Savings Proposals agreed as part of 2019/20 programme

Inflation

Centrally Allocated Charges

Budget Pressures

Switches

Grant Changes
Growth
Pooled Budget Adjustment
Superann
Previous Years Savings
2020/21 Saving Proposals not requiring Service consultation
A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 2019/20

This budget may be subject to change as a result of the saving proposals consultation and Members decisions.
The Uncontrollable budgets may be subject to change, however this will not impact on the ability to deliver services.
I confirm that the figures presented reflect a robust budget which would support operational activity in my service in 2020/21 and that the provisional budget for 2021/22 represents the service requirements for that year, subject 
to any changes as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process (see Appendix1). 

TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET
C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to consultation / review
TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET IF SAVINGS SUBJECT TO CONSULTATION / REVIEW APPROVED

A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 
2019/20

B) Saving Proposals agreed as part of 
2019/20 programme

C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to 
consultation / review

P
age 147



RESOURCES
BUDGET POSITION 2020/21

SUMMARY OF 2019/20 BUDGET CHANGES

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Budget position agreed at Budget Fixing Council 29th February 2018 10,399 (2,176) 8,223
Realignment to budgets in year 164 0 164

10,563 (2,176) 8,387

SUMMARY OF MOVEMENT IN SETTING 2020/21 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Reflecting revised budget position as at 29/11/2019 10,563 (2,176) 8,387
Reflects the increase in the cost of living - e.g. salary inflation, contract inflation etc. 229 (1) 228
Budgets determined by a range of factors, some of which are outside of the Services 
control - e.g. Depreciation, Business Rate Charges, Insurance (11) 32 21

Budget Pressures identified by services 412 0 412
Movement either within, or between Services, but which ultimately do not affect the net 
position of the Authority 266 0 266

(Increase) or decrease in Grants received by the Authority 0 0 0
Identified where more resource is needed to support demand within a Service 1 0 1
Changes to the contribution to/(from) the Pooled Budget 0 0 0
The movement in Superannuation contributions 0 0 0
Savings Proposals from previous years estimates process 0 0 0
2020/21 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation (434) 0 (434)
See table below for further details (52) 0 (52)
See table below for further details 0 0 0

10,974 (2,145) 8,829
See table below for further details (4) 0 (4)

10,970 (2,145) 8,825

BUDGET SETTING MOVEMENT DETAILS

CATEGORY REF DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

AGMA License budget 4 year allocation year 4 of 4 (3) (3)
Transformation Fund Savings Grade 9 Post (49) (49)

0
0
0

TOTAL (52) 0 (52)
0
0

TOTAL 0 0 0
Discretionary Fees and Changes 2% increase (4) (4)

0
0

TOTAL (4) 0 (4)

SIGNED BY NAME SIGNATURE DATE
Director Neil Thornton

Budget Opening Position

CATEGORY

Base budget 2019/20
In Year budget realignment
REVISED BUDGET AT 29/11/2019

CATEGORY

B) Savings Proposals agreed as part of 2019/20 programme

Inflation

Centrally Allocated Charges

Budget Pressures

Switches

Grant Changes
Growth
Pooled Budget Adjustment
Superann
Previous Years Savings
2020/21 Saving Proposals not requiring Service consultation
A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 2019/20

This budget may be subject to change as a result of the saving proposals consultation and Members decisions.
The Uncontrollable budgets may be subject to change, however this will not impact on the ability to deliver services.
I confirm that the figures presented reflect a robust budget which would support operational activity in my service in 2020/21 and that the provisional budget for 2021/22 represents the service requirements for that 
year, subject to any changes as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process (see Appendix1). 

TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET
C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to consultation / review
TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET IF SAVINGS SUBJECT TO CONSULTATION / REVIEW 

A) Reversal of One Year Only 
Decisions 2019/20

B) Saving Proposals agreed as part 
of 2019/20 programme

C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals 
subject to consultation / review

P
age 148



PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING
BUDGET POSITION 2020/21

SUMMARY OF 2019/20 BUDGET CHANGES

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Budget position agreed at Budget Fixing Council 27th February 2019 6,364 1,841 8,205
Realignment to budgets in year 1 0 1

6,365 1,841 8,206

SUMMARY OF MOVEMENT IN SETTING 2020/21 BUDGET

DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

Reflecting revised budget position as at29/11/2019 6,365 1,841 8,206

Reflects the increase in the cost of living - e.g. salary inflation, contract inflation etc. 49 0 49

Budgets determined by a range of factors, some of which are outside of the Services 
control - e.g. Depreciation, Business Rate Charges, Insurance 36 (59) (23)

Budget Pressures identified by services 0 0 0
Movement either within, or between Services, but which ultimately do not affect the 
net position of the Authority (50) 0 (50)

(Increase) or decrease in Grants received by the Authority 0 0 0
Identified where more resource is needed to support demand within a Service 0 0 0
Changes to the contribution to/(from) the Pooled Budget 12,933 0 12,933
The movement in Superannuation contributions 0 0 0
Savings Proposals from previous years estimates process 0 0 0
2020/21 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation (101) 0 (101)
See table below for further details 0 0 0
See table below for further details (300) 0 (300)

18,932 1,782 20,714
See table below for further details (359) 0 (359)

18,573 1,782 20,355

BUDGET SETTING MOVEMENT DETAILS

CATEGORY REF DESCRIPTION Controllable
£000

Uncontrollable
£000

Total
£000

0
0

TOTAL 0 0 0
Link4Life reduction in Management Fee (300) (300)

0
0
0

TOTAL (300) 0 (300)
System wide prevention review (including YP Substance Misuse and Sexual Health 
Contract review) (359) (359)

0
0

TOTAL (359) 0 (359)

SIGNED BY NAME SIGNATURE DATE

Director Andrea Fallon

Budget Opening Position

CATEGORY

Base budget 2019/20
In Year budget realignment
REVISED BUDGET AT 29/11/2019

CATEGORY

B) Savings Proposals agreed as part of 2019/20 programme

Inflation

Centrally Allocated Charges

Budget Pressures

Switches

Grant Changes
Growth
Pooled Budget Adjustment
Superann
Previous Years Savings
2020/21 Saving Proposals not requiring Service consultation
A) Reversal of One Year Only Decisions 2019/20

This budget may be subject to change as a result of the saving proposals consultation and Members decisions.
The Uncontrollable budgets may be subject to change, however this will not impact on the ability to deliver services.
I confirm that the figures presented reflect a robust budget which would support operational activity in my service in 2020/21 and that the provisional budget for 2021/22 represents the service requirements for that 
year, subject to any changes as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process (see Appendix1). 

TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET
C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals subject to consultation / review
TOTAL 2020/21 BUDGET IF SAVINGS SUBJECT TO CONSULTATION / REVIEW 

A) Reversal of One Year Only 
Decisions 2019/20

B) Saving Proposals agreed as 
part of 2019/20 programme

C) 2020/21 Saving Proposals 
subject to consultation / review

P
age 149



Report to Corporate O&S Committee 

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance

Report Author Julie Murphy

Public/Private Document Public 

Discretionary Fees & Charges

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

During the years of austerity there have been significant increases to the level 
of Fees and Charges, which have resulted in pressures across some income 
budgets. Therefore the budget assumptions agreed by Cabinet on 30th July 
2019 included a nil increase for 2020/21.

Services were requested to review the level of their charges to identify any 
opportunities to increase charges above nil inflation, in order to contribute 
towards bridging the budget gap.

At 29th October Cabinet considered the report with the proposed fees and 
charges by service for 2020/21 detailing any fees and charges above the 0% 
general uplift together with a recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee that fees and charges should be increased in line with inflation, 
subject to rounding, with the exception of bereavement services.  This was 
agreed by Members.

This report details the increased fees and charges which generates £73k 
towards the funding gap.

The proposal to implement Replacement Bin Charges is subject to an ongoing 
public consultation ending in early February. Cabinet recommends the 
delegation of the implementation of any changes to Replacement Bin 
charges, to the Portfolio holder for Environment, the Portfolio holder for 
Finance, and the Service Director for Neighbourhoods, once the outcome of 
consultation is known.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Cabinet approves the updated Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2020/21 
following consultation, including the additional exemptions requested in 
section 4.3.

Cabinet delegates the implementation of any changes to Replacement Bin 
charges, as mentioned in section 4.4, to the Portfolio holder for Environment, 

Page 150

Agenda Item 13



the Portfolio holder for Finance, and the Service Director for Neighbourhoods, 
once the outcome of consultation is known.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

At 29th October Cabinet considered the report with the proposed fees and 
charges by service for 2020/21 detailing any fees and charges above the 0% 
general uplift together with a recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee that fees and charges should be increased in line with inflation 
with the exception of bereavement services.

It is also recommended not to apply inflation to other areas as detailed in 
paragraph 4.3.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The Authority carries out an annual review of discretionary fees and charges 
as part of the budget setting process. It is a requirement of this process that 
Elected Members agree an appropriate general level of increase. For the 
2020/21 financial year, Cabinet on 30th July approved a 0% increase.

At 29th October Cabinet, Members approved a recommendation tabled on the 
night to increase charges in line with inflation, with the exception to services 
relating to bereavement.

The amended proposed fee levels for the 2020/21 financial year, which take 
into account rounding, are included in Appendix 1. 

After consultation with services, it is requested that inflation not be applied to 
the following areas

Car Parking – Budget Pressure funding has been provided to the service in 
previous financial years.  Increasing the charges is likely to bring further 
financial pressures to the service.

Facilities Management Charges – Budget Pressure funding has been 
provided to the service in previous financial years.  Increasing the charges is 
likely to bring further financial pressures to the service.

Taxi Licenses – There is impending legal challenge of Local Authorities and, 
based on an extensive benchmarking exercise, it is recommended that fees 
remain static to mitigate legal challenge and any cost award.

Land Charges – Based on Greater Manchester benchmarking, there is a risk 
that by increasing the cost of search fees this will create future budget 
pressures.

Page 151



4.4

4.5

Liability Orders – In line with Government guidance, current charges cover 
the cost incurred.  A further increase is not recommended.

Music Service Charges – Based on a benchmarking exercise, charges 
amended to reflect competitive private tuition market.

Food Hygiene Charges – Charges amended to ensure consistency with 
Greater Manchester.

Careline/Support@Home – These Adult Care charges are subject to an 
ongoing tender exercise and will be reported to Cabinet in a separate paper.

Town Hall Meeting Rooms – Due to closure of Town Hall in 2020, no uplifts 
have been applied.

The proposal to implement Replacement Bin Charges is subject to an ongoing 
public consultation ending in early February. The Council is considering 
introducing a charge of £20 per bin for all new or replacement waste and 
recycling bins. Currently across Greater Manchester authorities all councils 
with the exception of Rochdale charge for new or replacement refuse bins, 
with three of the ten councils charging for recycling bins too.  There would be 
a number of exemptions from the charges and the consultation is seeking 
views on the charges and possible exemptions. 

Alternatives Considered

The alternative is not to review or increase our fees and charges. This would 
potentially reduce the income available to the Council and make it more 
difficult to achieve a balanced budget. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

A full list of all proposed fees and charges for 2020/21 are included in 
appendix 1.  

Taking into account the exceptions mentioned in 4.2 and 4.3, the proposal to 
increase charges in line with inflation is forecast to generate £73k per annum. 
If Replacement Bin charges are implemented after the completion of 
consultation this will generate further income of £189k in 2020/21. This is a 
proposal that is being dealt with outside the Savings Programme.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Service has reviewed its charges against relevant legislation to ensure 
that all transactions remain compliant with the relevant statutes governing 
Local Authority activities.

6.  

Page 152



Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the proposed charges identified 
within this report. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for Finance, and 
opposition Portfolio holder for Finance and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee have been informed of the proposed charges for 2020/21.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Background papers to this report 
can be obtained from Stuart 
Smith

Number 1 Riverside
Floor 2

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, Tel: 01706 924196, 
stuart.smith@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 153



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Strategic Housing

Sub-Area Ref Desc

Current 

Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

Strat Housing R0347 Landlord's First Application £873.00 £890.00 £17.00 1.95%

Strat Housing R0348 Landlord's Subsequent Application £740.00 £755.00 £15.00 2.03%

Strat Housing R0349 Five Yearly Inspection £45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.22%

Strat Housing R0350 Supplement For Inadequate Applications £144.00 £147.00 £3.00 2.08%

Strat Housing R0351 Supplement For Initial Refusal Of A Licence £959.00 £978.00 £19.00 1.98%

Strat Housing R0352 Managing Agent Fee £183.00 £187.00 £4.00 2.19%

Strat Housing R0353

Houses In Multiple Occupation Licensing 

Scheme Fees: Supplement For: Variations To 

A Licence £297.00 £303.00 £6.00 2.02%

Strat Housing

Rented accommodation -service of statutory 

notices, up to 10 deficiencies £335.00 £342.00 £7.00 2.09%

Strat Housing

Further charge for each subsequent additional  

deficiency £11.50 £12.00 £0.50 4.35%

P
age 154



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Environmental Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

EM R1029 Mini Soccer League (Bowlee) Per Pitch £49.00 £50.00 £1.00 2.04%

EM R1030 Mini Soccer League without accommodation per season £138.00 £141.00 £3.00 2.17%

EM R1031 Mini Soccer League with accommodation £221.00 £225.00 £4.00 1.81%

EM R1032 Rounder's League £1,117.00 £1,139.00 £22.00 1.97%

EM R1033 Pitch Letting without changing accommodation £413.00 £421.00 £8.00 1.94%

EM R1034 Pitch Letting with changing accommodation £714.00 £728.00 £14.00 1.96%

EM R1035 Friendly Letting without changing accommodation £52.00 £53.00 £1.00 1.92%

EM R1036 Friendly Letting with changing accommodation £75.00 £77.00 £2.00 2.67%

EM R1078 Mot Tests - Private £47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.13%

EM R1080 Repairs - Private £45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.22%

EM R0905 1100L Wheeled Bin £453.00 £462.00 £9.00 1.99%

EM R0906 240L Wheeled Bin £38.00 £20.00 -£18.00 -47.37% In line with replacement bin charge

EM R0907 360L Wheeled Bin £56.00 £57.00 £1.00 1.79%

EM R0908 660L Wheeled Bin £378.00 £386.00 £8.00 2.12%

EM R1888 140L Wheeled Bin £32.00 £20.00 -£12.00 -37.50% In line with replacement bin charge

EM 880L Wheeled Bin £396.00 £404.00 £8.00 2.02%

EM Any Household White Goods Item that would be taken on moving house £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 3.03%

EM R0913 Small Electrical Items (Hi - Fi Systems, Microwaves, TV's) Up To 5 Items £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 3.03%

EM R0942

Bed, Mattress, Carpet, Chairs, Suites - Any General household item That 

would be taken on moving house. £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0943 Medical Referee Fee £28.00 £29.00 £1.00 3.57%

EM R0984 Individual Rides £70.00 £71.00 £1.00 1.43%

EM R0985 Bouncy Castles £70.00 £71.00 £1.00 1.43%

EM R0986 Adult Season Ticket £54.00 £55.00 £1.00 1.85%

EM R0987 Adult Day Pass £6.00 £6.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0988 Junior/Concession Season Ticket £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 3.33%

EM R0989 Junior/Concession Day Pass £3.60 £3.70 £0.10 2.78%

No increase proposed

EM Allotments Charge per square metre £0.50 £0.50 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1037 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Car Park £2.50 £2.50 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1038 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Sellers (Car) £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1039 Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Estate cars, Small Vans & 4x4) £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1040 Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Transit Van and upward) £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0944 Full Grave £1,098.00 £1,098.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0945 Non-Resident £1,976.00 £1,976.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Non-attended cremations £425.00 £425.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Accompanied visits/search £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1898 Transfer of ownership of plot £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Lost papers/deeds £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Scattering of ashes £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1896 Sedum Matting £105.00 £105.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0946 Cremated Remains - Resident £722.00 £722.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0947 Cremated Remains - Non-Resident £1,305.00 £1,305.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0950 Private Grave Adult Resident £950.00 £950.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0951 Private Grave Adult Non-Resident £1,425.00 £1,425.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0952 Private Grave With Chamber £353.00 £353.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0955 Public Grave Adult £225.00 £225.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0956 Cremated Remains Up To FT Resident £256.00 £256.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 155



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Environmental Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

EM R0957 Cremated Remains Up To FT Non-Resident £461.00 £461.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0958 Cremated Remains Per Additional (No Suggestions) £72.00 £72.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0959 Cremated Remains Under Turf £56.00 £56.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0960 General Charges: Use Of Cemetery Chapel £113.00 £113.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0961 General Charges: Concrete Heading £252.00 £252.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0962 General Charges: Additional Inscription £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0963 Right To Erect Memorial £141.00 £141.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0964 Numberstone £102.00 £102.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0967 Cremation Fees Adult £726.00 £726.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0968 Burial Of Remains Cremated Elsewhere In Garden £68.00 £68.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0990 Book Of Remembrance £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0991 Book Of Remembrance £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0992 Book Of Remembrance £202.00 £202.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0993 Floral Designs £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0994 Other Designs £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0995 Memorial Cards £39.00 £39.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0996 Memorial Cards £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0997 Memorial Cards £70.00 £70.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0998 Rose Bush & Plaque For 10 yrs £155.00 £155.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0999 Memorial Wall Plaque For 10 yrs £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1667 Replacement/Additional Plaques £78.00 £78.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1668 Replacement Memorial £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1000 Children's Garden Plaque For 10 yrs £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1001 Memorial Stone Vase For 10 yrs £547.00 £547.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1002 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Small £293.00 £293.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1003 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Large £421.00 £421.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1004 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Re Open £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1005 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Urn £52.00 £52.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1006 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Black £3.80 £3.80 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1007 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Gold £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1008 Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Black £1.05 £1.05 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1009 Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Gold £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1010 New Tree & Plaque £192.00 £192.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1011 Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs - Double £366.00 £366.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1012 Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs - Single £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1013 Search Fee £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1014 Wooden Casket £59.00 £59.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1015 Wooden Cross / Stone Marker & Plaque £133.00 £133.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1016 Accompanied Selection Of New Graves £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1513 Memorial Bench and Plaque with ten year lease £948.00 £948.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0983 Site Fees £800.00 £800.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 156



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

Public Protection R1876 Food Hygiene Rescore £168.00 £175.00 £7.00 4.17%

Increase above 2% to be consistent with all GM 

LA charges

Public Protection NEW New - Food premises pre-inspection £0.00 £125.00

New charge to be consistent with the service 

offered and prices by other GM LAs

Public Protection R1107 Car Boot Sales - Fee per car £4.20 £4.30 £0.10 2.38%

Public Protection R1109 Council Car Boot Sales - fee per car £4.20 £4.30 £0.10 2.38%

Public Protection R1112 Administration Fee For Work In Default £46.00 £47.00 £1.00 2.17%

Public Protection R1113 Information Search Fee: Minimum Charge (Up To First Hour) £99.00 £101.00 £2.00 2.02%

Public Protection R1114 Information Search Fee: Each Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof £40.00 £41.00 £1.00 2.50%

Public Protection R1115 Information Search Fee: Reclamation Of Stray Dogs £103.00 £105.00 £2.00 1.94%

Public Protection R1117 Individual Export Certificate request with 5 or more working days notice £63.00 £81.00 £18.00 28.57%

Amended service off with increase above 2% to 

be consistent with all GM LA charges

Public Protection R1118

Batch Certs Only Applicable In Strictly Limited Circumstances (Inc. Low Risk Product And 

Subject To A Audit System) £189.00 £193.00 £4.00 2.12%

Public Protection R1268 Grant, renewal, transfer fee for Sexual Establishment Venue (SEV) £1,578.00 £1,610.00 £32.00 2.03%

Public Protection R1269 Street Trading: - Annual Consent £944.00 £963.00 £19.00 2.01%

Public Protection R1270 Street Trading: - Annual Licence £1,364.00 £1,391.00 £27.00 1.98%

Public Protection R1271 Street Trading: - Consent To Cover Trading At Specific Event: Up To 5 days £220.00 £224.00 £4.00 1.82%

Public Protection R1272 Street Trading: - Consent To Cover Trading At Specific Event: Up To 2 days £87.00 £89.00 £2.00 2.30%

Public Protection R1273 Ear Piercing/Tattooing/Acupuncture £158.00 £161.00 £3.00 1.90%

Public Protection R1274 Animal Boarding Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1275 Dog Breeding Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1277 Riding Establishment Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1278 Dangerous Animals Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection Selling Animals Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection Animals for exhibition Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1282 Licensing Pre - Application Consultation Fee £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 3.23%

Public Protection R1283 Licensing Street Trading - Change Of Vehicle £56.00 £57.00 £1.00 1.79%

Public Protection R1825 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence (grant and renewal) £716.00 £730.00 £14.00 1.96%

Public Protection R1826 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence (multiple sites)

£716 plus £600 

per additional site

£730 plus £610 

per additional 

site

Public Protection R1828 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change from collector's licence to site licence £716.00 £730.00 £14.00 1.96%

Public Protection R1829 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change from site licence to collector's licence £296.00 £302.00 £6.00 2.03%

Public Protection R1830 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change of licensee's details £17.00 £17.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1831 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change licenced sites £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1832 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change site managers £55.00 £56.00 £1.00 1.82%

Public Protection R1833 Scrap Metal certified copy of licence £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1890

Domestic Premises (1 Bed Flat / Studio) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced 

payment £61.00 £62.00 £1.00 1.64%

Public Protection R1891 Domestic Premises (2/3 Bed) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced payment £78.00 £80.00 £2.00 2.56%

Public Protection R1892 Domestic Premises (4/5 Bed) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced payment £95.00 £97.00 £2.00 2.11%

Public Protection R1893 Domestic Premises (6+ Bed) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced payment £112.00 £114.00 £2.00 1.79%

Public Protection R1894

Domestic Premises (1 Bed Flat / Studio) - Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced 

payment £78.00 £80.00 £2.00 2.56%

Public Protection R1895 Domestic Premises (2/3 Bed) -  Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced payment £95.00 £97.00 £2.00 2.11%

Public Protection R1896 Domestic Premises (4/5 Bed) -  Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced payment £112.00 £114.00 £2.00 1.79%

Public Protection R1897 Domestic Premises (6+ Bed) -  Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced payment £130.00 £133.00 £3.00 2.31%

Public Protection R1293 Commercial Premises - Wasp Nest - price per nest invoice requested £121.00 £123.00 £2.00 1.65%

Public Protection R1295

Domestic Premises - Assessment / monitoring charge, including call out charge if treatment 

inappropriate. £43.00 £44.00 £1.00 2.33%

Public Protection R1296 Domestic Premises - Advisory visit with not treatment. £43.00 £44.00 £1.00 2.33%

Public Protection R1297 Domestic Premises - re-booking fee - to rebook/ change an appointment time £25.00 £26.00 £1.00 4.00%

Public Protection R1298 Domestic Premises - cancellation of appointment £25.00 £26.00 £1.00 4.00%

Public Protection Pest Port Scheme - 12 months scheme with up to 3 treatments £128.00 £131.00 £3.00 2.34%

Public Protection R1440 Misc.: Information Letter (Cost Includes Up To 1 Hours Work And A Cost Of Letter) £93.00 £95.00 £2.00 2.15%

Public Protection R1441 Misc.: Information Check (Each Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof) £23.00 £23.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1442 Misc.: Insurance £48.00 £49.00 £1.00 2.08%

Public Protection R1443 Hourly Rate For Work Not Included Below £111.00 £113.00 £2.00 1.80%

Public Protection R1444 Hourly Rate : Weights Up To 5 kg £8.40 £9.00 £0.60 7.14%

Public Protection R1445 Hourly Rate: Weights Above 5 kg £10.40 £11.00 £0.60 5.77%

Public Protection R1446 Linear Measures - Not Exceeding 3 Meters £12.00 £12.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1447 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division): Not Exceeding 1 Litre £226.00 £231.00 £5.00 2.21%

Public Protection R1448 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division): Cubic Ballast £38.00 £39.00 £1.00 2.63%

P
age 157



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

Public Protection R1449 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division) Liquid Capacity: Templates £67.00 £68.00 £1.00 1.49%

Public Protection R1450 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 15 kg £40.00 £41.00 £1.00 2.50%

Public Protection R1451 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 100 kg £57.00 £58.00 £1.00 1.75%

Public Protection R1452 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 250 kg £74.00 £75.00 £1.00 1.35%

Public Protection R1453 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 1 Tonne £140.00 £143.00 £3.00 2.14%

Public Protection R1454 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 10 Tonne £222.00 £226.00 £4.00 1.80%

Public Protection R1455 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 30 Tonne £463.00 £472.00 £9.00 1.94%

Public Protection R1456 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 60 Tonne £694.00 £708.00 £14.00 2.02%

Public Protection R1457 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating Liquors: Up To 150 ml £28.00 £29.00 £1.00 3.57%

Public Protection R1458 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating Liquors: Other £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 3.45%

Public Protection R1459 Liquid Fuel And Lubricants £98.00 £100.00 £2.00 2.04%

Public Protection R1460 Unsubdivisional Container: Multigrade-Single Outlet £135.00 £138.00 £3.00 2.22%

Public Protection R1461 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: Other £242.00 £247.00 £5.00 2.07%

Public Protection R1462 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: Other-Single Outlet £109.00 £111.00 £2.00 1.83%

Public Protection R1463 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: Other  £145.00 £148.00 £3.00 2.07%

Public Protection R1464 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 1 Meter £158.00 £161.00 £3.00 1.90%

Public Protection R1465 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 2 Meters £255.00 £260.00 £5.00 1.96%

Public Protection R1466 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 3 Meters £348.00 £355.00 £7.00 2.01%

Public Protection R1467 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 4 Meters £439.00 £448.00 £9.00 2.05%

Public Protection R1468 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 5 Meters £534.00 £545.00 £11.00 2.06%

Public Protection R1469 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 6 Meters £623.00 £635.00 £12.00 1.93%

Public Protection R1470 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 7 Meters £733.00 £748.00 £15.00 2.05%

Public Protection R1471 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 8 Meters £814.00 £830.00 £16.00 1.97%

Public Protection R1472 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Meter System: Wet Hose £257.00 £262.00 £5.00 1.95%

Public Protection R1473 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Meter System: Dry Hose £288.00 £294.00 £6.00 2.08%

Public Protection R1474 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: To 7600 Litres £226.00 £231.00 £5.00 2.21%

Public Protection R1475 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: Initial £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 3.33%

Public Protection R1476 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: Spare £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 3.33%

Public Protection R1477 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: Replace £62.00 £63.00 £1.00 1.61%

Public Protection R1481 Primary Authority Agreement Hourly rate £61.00 £97.00 £36.00 59.02%

Increase above 2% to be consistent with GM 

Centre of Regulatory Excellence and all GM LA 

charges

Public Protection R1290

Commercial Premises - Pest Control Work -  price per hour minimum charge of 1 hour 

(Based on historical data, if new data identifies that the full unit cost/hourly £115.00 £117.00 £2.00 1.74%

Public Protection R1291 Commercial Premises - Wasp Nest - price per nest with advanced payment £75.00 £77.00 £2.00 2.67%

Public Protection R1292 Domestic premises - Wasp nest - price per nest with advanced payment £75.00 £77.00 £2.00 2.67%

Public Protection R1889 Domestic premises - Ants with advanced payment £75.00 £77.00 £2.00 2.67%

Public Protection R1294 Domestic Premises - Squirrel Treatment £145.00 £148.00 £3.00 2.07%

Public Protection R1874 New - Treatment for Rats (including 2 revisits) £25.00 £26.00 £1.00 4.00%

Public Protection R1875 New - Treatment for Mice (including 2 revisits) £25.00 £26.00 £1.00 4.00%

Public Protection R1279 Grant, renewal or transfer fee for Sex Shop Establishment £1,148.00 £1,171.00 £23.00 2.00%

Public Protection R1827 Scrap Metal Collectors Licence (grant and renewal) £296.00 £302.00 £6.00 2.03%

Public Protection R1276 Pet Shop Separate Sheet Amended fee on separate sheet

Public Protection Hand delivery of export certificates to trader premises within Rochdale borough £35.00 £36.00 £1.00 2.86%

Public Protection Pleasure Boat Licence (carrying up to 12 passengers) £339.00 £346.00 £7.00 2.06%

Public Protection Public Health funeral officer recharge cost - hourly rate per officer £81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47%

Public Protection Work in default / non-compliance officer recharge cost - hourly rate per officer £81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47%

No increase proposed

Public Protection R1877 Food hygiene Advisory Visit - hourly rate £81.00 £81.00 £0.00 0.00%

No increase to remain consistent with all GM LA 

charges

Public Protection R1435 Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (1 year licence) £208.00 £208.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (5 year licence) £1,042.00 £1,042.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1436 Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles (1 year licence) £396.00 £396.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles (5 year licence) £1,980.00 £1,980.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1437 Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 Vehicles (1 year licence) £556.00 £556.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 Vehicles (5 year licence) £2,781.00 £2,781.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1438 Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 Vehicles (1 year licence) £713.00 £713.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 Vehicles (5 year licence) £3,561.00 £3,561.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 Vehicles (1 year licence) £872.00 £872.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 Vehicles (5 year licence) £4,356.00 £4,356.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,028.00 £1,028.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 Vehicles (5 year licence) £5,138.00 £5,138.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,184.00 £1,184.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 Vehicles (5 year licence) £5,919.00 £5,919.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,340.00 £1,340.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 158



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 Vehicles (5 year licence) £6,700.00 £6,700.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: above 70 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,495.00 £1,495.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: above 70 Vehicles (5 year licence) £7,478.00 £7,478.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 159



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection - Animal Licensing Fees

Sub-Area Ref Desc

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increased

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

Public Protection Dog Breeding:

Public Protection Application Fee £278.00 £284.00 £6.00 2.16%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year < 5 dogs £141.00 £144.00 £3.00 2.13%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 5 - 10 dogs £146.00 £149.00 £3.00 2.05%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 15 dogs £151.00 £154.00 £3.00 1.99%

Public Protection Grant Fee  1 year > 15 dogs £156.00 £159.00 £3.00 1.92%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year < 5 dogs £246.00 £251.00 £5.00 2.03%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 5 - 10 dogs £251.00 £256.00 £5.00 1.99%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 15 dogs £256.00 £261.00 £5.00 1.95%

Public Protection Grant Fee  2 year > 15 dogs £261.00 £266.00 £5.00 1.92%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year < 5 dogs £351.00 £358.00 £7.00 1.99%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 5 - 10 dogs £356.00 £363.00 £7.00 1.97%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 15 dogs £361.00 £368.00 £7.00 1.94%

Public Protection Grant Fee  3 year > 15 dogs £366.00 £373.00 £7.00 1.91%

Public Protection

Public Protection Boarding of cats and / or dogs:

Public Protection Application Fee £276.00 £282.00 £6.00 2.17%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 years £136.00 £139.00 £3.00 2.21%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 years £241.00 £246.00 £5.00 2.07%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 years £305.00 £311.00 £6.00 1.97%

Public Protection

Public Protection Selling Animals as Pets (Pet Shops):

Public Protection Application Fee £276.00 £282.00 £6.00 2.17%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year £136.00 £139.00 £3.00 2.21%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 years £241.00 £246.00 £5.00 2.07%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 years £346.00 £353.00 £7.00 2.02%

Public Protection

Public Protection Hiring out Horses:

Public Protection Application Fee £376.00 £384.00 £8.00 2.13%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year < 10 horses £141.00 £144.00 £3.00 2.13%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 19 horses £146.00 £149.00 £3.00 2.05%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 20 - 29 horses £151.00 £154.00 £3.00 1.99%

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year > 30 horses £156.00 £159.00 £3.00 1.92%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year < 10 horses £306.00 £312.00 £6.00 1.96%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 19 horses £311.00 £317.00 £6.00 1.93%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 20 - 29 horses £316.00 £322.00 £6.00 1.90%

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year > 30 horses £321.00 £327.00 £6.00 1.87%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year < 10 horses £471.00 £480.00 £9.00 1.91%

P
age 160



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection - Animal Licensing Fees

Sub-Area Ref Desc

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increased

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 19 horses £476.00 £486.00 £10.00 2.10%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 20 - 29 horses £481.00 £491.00 £10.00 2.08%

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year > 30 horses £486.00 £496.00 £10.00 2.06%

Public Protection

Public Protection Dangerous Wild Animals (2 year licence only):

Public Protection Application Fee Dwarf Caiman or Serval £276.00 £282.00 £6.00 2.17%

Public Protection Application Fee Other animal Price on application Price on application

Public Protection Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Dwarf Caiman or Serval £136.00 £139.00 £3.00 2.21%

Public Protection Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Other animal Price on application Price on application

Public Protection

Public Protection Zoo Licence:

Public Protection Application Fee Price on application Price on application

Public Protection Grant Fee Price on application Price on application

Public Protection

Public Protection All Licenses:

Public Protection Variation Fee £45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.22%

Public Protection Inspection of additional premises £50.00 per hour £51.00 per hour

Public Protection Certified copy of licence £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 161



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Registrars

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

REGISTRARS R1375F Ceremonies: Confetti £1.90 £2.00 £0.10 5.26%

REGISTRARS R1376F Plastic Wallets £0.70 £0.80 £0.10 14.29%

REGISTRARS R1388F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: M-F £302.00 £308.00 £6.00 1.99%

REGISTRARS R1389F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: Sat £323.00 £329.00 £6.00 1.86%

REGISTRARS R1390F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: Sun/BH £370.00 £377.00 £7.00 1.89%

REGISTRARS R1382F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Sat £396.00 £404.00 £8.00 2.02%

REGISTRARS R1383F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Sun/BH £422.00 £430.00 £8.00 1.90%

REGISTRARS R1394F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: M-F £215.00 £219.00 £4.00 1.86%

REGISTRARS R1395F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: Sat £266.00 £271.00 £5.00 1.88%

REGISTRARS R1396F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: Sun/BH £302.00 £308.00 £6.00 1.99%

REGISTRARS R1393F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Roche Ste: Sun/ £260.00 £265.00 £5.00 1.92%

REGISTRARS R1391F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Roche Suite: M- £146.00 £149.00 £3.00 2.05%

REGISTRARS R1392F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Roche Suite: Sa £193.00 £197.00 £4.00 2.07%

REGISTRARS R1385F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees - Roche Ste: Sun/BH £230.00 £235.00 £5.00 2.17%

REGISTRARS R1384F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees: Roche Suite: Sat £172.00 £175.00 £3.00 1.74%

REGISTRARS R1397F Name Deed - Adult £57.00 £58.00 £1.00 1.75%

REGISTRARS R1398F Name Deed - Child £62.00 £63.00 £1.00 1.61%

REGISTRARS R1408F Name Deed - Family Application £186.00 £190.00 £4.00 2.15%

REGISTRARS R1399F Purchase Of Additional Name Deed £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1400F Licensing Of Venues Of Civil Ceremonies £1,280.00 £1,306.00 £26.00 2.03%

REGISTRARS R1367F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees: Roche Suite (M-Th) £112.00 £114.00 £2.00 1.79%

REGISTRARS R1374F Ceremonies: Provisional Ceremony Booking Fee £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 3.23%

REGISTRARS R1401F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: M-F £161.00 £164.00 £3.00 1.86%

REGISTRARS R1402F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: Sat £238.00 £243.00 £5.00 2.10%

REGISTRARS R1403F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: Sun £323.00 £329.00 £6.00 1.86%

REGISTRARS R1886 Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees : Roche Suite( Fri) £136.00 £139.00 £3.00 2.21%

REGISTRARS R1812 Credit Card Fee (non-VATable Purchases) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1381F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Mon-Fri £373.00 £380.00 £7.00 1.88%

P
age 162



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Libraries

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

LIBRARIES Various Item Request £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Talking Books, Playaways & Learn a Language £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Library Fine (overdue items per day) £0.20 £0.25 £0.05 25.00%

LIBRARIES Various Maximum Level Of Fine For Overdue Books £12.25 £12.50 £0.25 2.04%

LIBRARIES Various Meeting Room - Priv Sect / Profit Making Groups £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Computer Printouts (A4 B and W) £0.10 £0.20 £0.10 100.00%

LIBRARIES Various Photocopying (A4 B+W) £0.10 £0.20 £0.10 100.00%

LIBRARIES Various Play Sets / Music Sets £9.70 £10.00 £0.30 3.09%

These sets are increasingly diffcult to source 

making them more expensive

LIBRARIES Various Microfilm prints £1.00 £1.50 £0.50 50.00%

Costs of prints has risen as part of maintenance 

contracts

LIBRARIES Various Replacement Membership Cards (Adult) £2.50 £2.60 £0.10 4.00%

The service has found an increase in the numbers 

of cards being lost and the admin surrounding a 

lost card is quite significant

LIBRARIES Various Replacement Membership Cards (Under 17 / Over 60) £1.25 £1.30 £0.05 4.00%

LIBRARIES Various Computer Printouts (A4 Colour) £0.50 £0.60 £0.10 20.00%

LIBRARIES Local History Digital Photography prints £4.00 £4.10 £0.10 2.50%

LIBRARIES Local History Digital Photography prints £7.50 £7.70 £0.20 2.67%

LIBRARIES Local History Digital Photography prints £15.00 £15.30 £0.30 2.00%

LIBRARIES Various A4 colour £0.50 £0.60 £0.10 20.00%

LIBRARIES Various Lost or damaged Books £2.10 £2.50 £0.40 19.05%

The service hasn't increased the charge in a 

number of years and the increase reflects this

LIBRARIES A3 colour £1.00 £1.10 £0.10 10.00%

LIBRARIES A3 Black & White £0.20 £0.30 £0.10 50.00%

P
age 163



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Resources

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

FINANCE SERVICES R0612 Charities Support Management Charge £44.00 £45.00 £1.00 2.27%

LEGAL & HR R0090 Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg – Current Year £19.85 £20.25 £0.40 2.02%

LEGAL & HR R0091 Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg - Historic £43.05 £43.95 £0.90 2.09%

LEGAL & HR R0092 Conf On Official Docs – to prove on Elect Reg £19.85 £20.25 £0.40 2.02%

LEGAL & HR R0093 Public Path Orders:- Within Gen Range + Adv Costs £1,507.80 £1,538.00 £30.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0094 Public Path Orders:- Additional Rates £162.75 £166.05 £3.30 2.03%

LEGAL & HR R0095 Street Closure:- Within A General Range £1,507.80 £1,538.00 £30.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0096 Street Closure:- Additional Rates £162.75 £166.05 £3.30 2.03%

LEGAL & HR R0097 Prosecution (Court) Costs Recovered

LEGAL & HR R0098F - a Local Land Charges Search:- Full Search CON29 £166.00 £158.00 -£8.00 -4.82%

LEGAL & HR R0098F - b Local Land Charges Search £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0099F Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 Enquiries numbered 4 to 21 £38.00 £36.00 -£2.00 -5.26%

LEGAL & HR Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 Enquiries number 22 common land £25.00 £24.00 -£1.00 -4.00%

LEGAL & HR R0100F Local Land Charges Search:- Additional Enquiries £38.00 £36.00 -£2.00 -5.26%

LEGAL & HR R0101F Local Land Charges Search:- Extra Parcels Of Land £25.00 £24.00 -£1.00 -4.00%

LEGAL & HR R0103F Local Land Charges Search:- Copy Searches £26.00 £25.00 -£1.00 -3.85%

LEGAL & HR NEW Local Land Charges Search:- Extra Parcels Of Land - LLC1 £1.00

LEGAL & HR NEW Local Land Charges Search:- Personal Searches £0.00

LEGAL & HR R0113 Sales Of Land And Property: Under £5,000 £916.65 £935.00 £18.35 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0114

Sales Of Land And Property:

£5,001 - £10,000 £916.65 £935.00 £18.35 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0115

Sales Of Land And Property:

£10,001 - £15,000 £916.65 £935.00 £18.35 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0116

Sales Of Land And Property:

£15,001 - £20,000 £1,358.70 £1,385.90 £27.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0117

Sales Of Land And Property:

£20,001 - £25,000 £1,358.70 £1,385.90 £27.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0118

Sales Of Land And Property:

£25,001 - £30,000 £1,358.70 £1,385.90 £27.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0119

Sales Of Land And Property:

£30,001 - £60,000 £1,684.20 £1,717.90 £33.70 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0120

Sales Of Land And Property:

£60,001 - £100,000 £2,097.90 £2,139.90 £42.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0121

Sales Of Land And Property:

£100,001 - £250,000 £2,746.80 £2,801.75 £54.95 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0122 Sales Of Land And Property: Over £250,000 £3,337.95 £3,404.75 £66.80 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0123 Auctions 4% or £2000 min 4% or £2000 min

LEGAL & HR R0124 Redemptions (One Per Charge) £219.45 £223.85 £4.40 2.01%

LEGAL & HR R0125 Redemptions (Two Charges) £427.35 £435.90 £8.55 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0126 Mortgage Questionnaires £214.20 £218.50 £4.30 2.01%

LEGAL & HR R0127 Deeds Of Postponement £755.00 £770.00 £15.00 1.99%

LEGAL & HR R0128 Title Questionnaires:- Up To 20 Questions £145.00 £148.00 £3.00 2.07%

LEGAL & HR R0129 Title Questionnaires:- Above 20 Questions £145.00 £148.00 £3.00 2.07%

LEGAL & HR R0130 Title Questionnaires:- Per Additional Question (>20) £9.97 £10.17 £0.20 2.01%

LEGAL & HR R0132 Registration Fees:- Commercial £214.20 £218.50 £4.30 2.01%

LEGAL & HR R0133 Registration Fees:- Private £113.40 £115.70 £2.30 2.03%

LEGAL & HR R0134 Registration Fees:- Sealing Fee £77.17 £78.72 £1.55 2.01%

LEGAL & HR R0135 Registration Fees:- Copies For Solicitors £77.17 £78.72 £1.55 2.01%

P
age 164



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Resources

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

LEGAL & HR R0136 Shop Leases £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0137 Licenses:- Community and Residential Commercial £733.95 £748.65 £14.70 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0138 Licenses:- License To Assign £1,046.85 £1,067.80 £20.95 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0139 Licenses:- License To Sublet (Multiple Licenses) £1,046.85 £1,067.80 £20.95 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0140 Deeds Of Variation, Rectification etc. £755.00 £770.00 £15.00 1.99%

LEGAL & HR R0141 Surrender £755.00 £770.00 £15.00 1.99%

LEGAL & HR R0142 Deeds Of Easement:- Residential £755.00 £770.00 £15.00 1.99%

LEGAL & HR R0143 Deeds Of Easement:- Commercial £1,507.80 £1,538.00 £30.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0144 Agreements To Adopt Highways £1,750.00 £1,785.00 £35.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0145 Section 106 Agreements (Planning Agreements) £1,507.80 £1,538.00 £30.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0146 Section 278 Agreements (Highway Works) £1,507.80 £1,538.00 £30.20 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0147 Building Agreements £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0148 Leases/Premiums – Residential £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR R0149 Industrial Leases - £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

COMMERCIAL R0110 Copies Of Documents £1.15 (min £25) £1.15 (min £25)

COMMERCIAL R0111 Charities Admin – Committee Services Meeting £35.28 £35.99 £0.71 2.01%

COMMERCIAL R1882 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR Loan/Facilitty Agreements £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR Temporary Public Path Orders £800.00 £816.00 £16.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR Commercial Leases £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

LEGAL & HR Community Leases £1,000.00 £1,020.00 £20.00 2.00%

P
age 165



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

HIGHWAYS R0838 Parking Dispensations £41.00 £42.00 £1.00 2.44%

HIGHWAYS R0839 Parking Suspensions: Pay & Display Bays £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 3.23%

HIGHWAYS R0840

Parking Suspensions: Limited Waiting Bays/Disabled Bays/Loading Bays/Taxi 

Ranks £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 3.23%

HIGHWAYS R0841 Use Of Free Parks

HIGHWAYS R0842 Use Of Pay & Display Car Parks

HIGHWAYS R0618 Extension Of S.38 Agreement £1,001.00 £1,021.00 £20.00 2.00%

HIGHWAYS R0619 S.278/S.106 Agreement Where Built By RMBC £1,778.00 £1,814.00 £36.00 2.02%

HIGHWAYS R0626

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£45,000 £4,509.00 £4,599.00 £90.00 2.00%

HIGHWAYS R0627

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£20,000 £3,346.00 £3,413.00 £67.00 2.00%

HIGHWAYS R0628

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£10,000 £2,108.00 £2,150.00 £42.00 1.99%

HIGHWAYS R0629 Re-Submission Of Plans To Check Compliance With Specification And Design £126.00 £129.00 £3.00 2.38%

HIGHWAYS R0630 Highway Records Information £91.00 £93.00 £2.00 2.20%

HIGHWAYS R0634 Placement Of Skips On The Highway: Registration Of Firm & Vetting £421.00 £429.00 £8.00 1.90%

HIGHWAYS R0635 Placement Of Skips On The Highway: One-Off Permit For Non-Registered Firm £115.00 £117.00 £2.00 1.74%

HIGHWAYS R0636 Placement Of Skips On The Highway: Removal Of Skip £339.00 £346.00 £7.00 2.06%

HIGHWAYS R0637 Licence For Placement Of Scaffold Over Highway £133.00 £136.00 £3.00 2.26%

HIGHWAYS R0638 Licence For Placement Of Hoardings, Cranes & MEWP's On The Highway £133.00 £136.00 £3.00 2.26%

HIGHWAYS R0639 Vehicular Crossings: Domestic £112.00 £114.00 £2.00 1.79%

HIGHWAYS R0640 Vehicular Crossings: Industrial £170.00 £173.00 £3.00 1.76%

HIGHWAYS R0641 Accident Debris Removal £185.00 £189.00 £4.00 2.16%

HIGHWAYS R0642 Recoverable Works: Admin Fees £119.00 £121.00 £2.00 1.68%

HIGHWAYS R0650 Street Café License’s: Annual License – permanent fittings £520.00 £530.00 £10.00 1.92%

HIGHWAYS Erection of tourist signs on the highway £260.00 £265.00 £5.00 1.92%

HIGHWAYS Erection of new housing site signs in the highway £260.00 £265.00 £5.00 1.92%

HIGHWAYS Road closures for commercial events on the highway using RTRA section 16A. £547.00 £558.00 £11.00 2.01%

HIGHWAYS Supply of copies of Traffic Orders (excludes requests from GMP) £164.00 £167.00 £3.00 1.83%

HIGHWAYS R0650 Street Café License’s: Annual License £477.00 £487.00 £10.00 2.10%

HIGHWAYS R0652 Street Café License’s: Annual Renewal Of License £150.00 £153.00 £3.00 2.00%

HIGHWAYS R0853 Home Watch Sign Consents (approval to place sign on the highway only) £48.00 £49.00 £1.00 2.08%

HIGHWAYS R0854

Application For Privately Funded Temporary Direction Signs (Housing Dev't 

Signs) £137.00 £140.00 £3.00 2.19%

HIGHWAYS R0855 Advance Direction Signs: Non Commercial (per sign face) £295.00 £301.00 £6.00 2.03%

HIGHWAYS R0856 Advance Direction Signs: Commercial (per sign face) £491.00 £501.00 £10.00 2.04%

HIGHWAYS R0614 Sponsored Boundary Signs n/a n/a

HIGHWAYS R0615 Sponsored Roundabout Signs n/a n/a

HIGHWAYS R0616

S.38 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 

£1.5M 5% 5%

HIGHWAYS R0617

S.38 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 

£100,000 6% 6%

HIGHWAYS R0620 Design And Supervision For Works Up To: £100,000 18% 18%

HIGHWAYS R0621 Design And Supervision For Works Up To: £150,000 15% 15%

HIGHWAYS R0624

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 

£100,000 5% 5%

P
age 166



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

HIGHWAYS R0625 Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over £45,000 6% 6%

HIGHWAYS R0632 Use Of Planning-Provide And Layout

HIGHWAYS R0633 Bollards To Prevent Access (Non-Highway)

HIGHWAYS R0643

S.38 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£100,000

HIGHWAYS R0645 Traffic Regulation Orders: Permanent/Experimental

HIGHWAYS R0648 Traffic Regulation Orders: Permanent Road Closures

HIGHWAYS R0649 Road Marking Requests

HIGHWAYS Production of Traffic management Plan for events or roadworks At cost (min £500) At cost (min £500)

HIGHWAYS

Design and provision of road signage, barriers, etc. to facilitate an event or 

roadworks. At cost (min £500) At cost (min £500)

HIGHWAYS R0836 Parking Permits: Residents £51.00 £52.00 £1.00 1.96%

HIGHWAYS R0837 Parking Permits: Visitors

HIGHWAYS R0849 Parking Permits: Replacement for lost permit £26.00 £27.00 £1.00 3.85%

HIGHWAYS R0646 Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary/Emergency £929.00 £948.00 £19.00 2.05%

HIGHWAYS R0647

Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary Carnivals, Fetes & Similar Events I.E. 

Charity Or Non-Commercial/Non-Profit Making £133.00 £200.00 £67.00 50.38%

Amendment to reflect full cost recovery of service 

provided

No increase proposed

HIGHWAYS R0653 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0654 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0655 Five Day Car Park Pass- Month 3 £113.00 £113.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0656 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £151.00 £151.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0657 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0658 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £226.00 £226.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0659 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £264.00 £264.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0660 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £302.00 £302.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0661 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £340.00 £340.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0662 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £377.00 £377.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0663 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £415.00 £415.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0664 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £453.00 £453.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0665 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £45.00 £45.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0666 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0667 Five Day Car Park Pass- Month 3 £135.00 £135.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0668 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £180.00 £180.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0669 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £224.00 £224.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0670 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £269.00 £269.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0671 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £314.00 £314.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0672 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £359.00 £359.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0673 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £404.00 £404.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 167



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

HIGHWAYS R0674 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £449.00 £449.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0675 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £494.00 £494.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0676 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £539.00 £539.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0677 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0678 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0679 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 3 £125.00 £125.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0680 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £167.00 £167.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0681 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £209.00 £209.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0682 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £251.00 £251.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0683 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £293.00 £293.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0684 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £335.00 £335.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0685 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £376.00 £376.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0686 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £418.00 £418.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0687 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £460.00 £460.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0688 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £502.00 £502.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0689 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £49.00 £49.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0690 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £98.00 £98.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0691 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 3 £147.00 £147.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0692 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £196.00 £196.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0693 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £245.00 £245.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0694 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £294.00 £294.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0695 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £343.00 £343.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0696 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £392.00 £392.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0697 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £441.00 £441.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0698 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £490.00 £490.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0699 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £539.00 £539.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0700 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £588.00 £588.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0701 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 1 £26.00 £26.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0702 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 2 £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0703 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 3 £77.00 £77.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0704 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 4 £102.00 £102.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0705 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 5 £128.00 £128.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0706 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 6 £153.00 £153.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 168



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

HIGHWAYS R0707 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 7 £179.00 £179.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0708 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 8 £204.00 £204.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0709 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 9 £230.00 £230.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0710 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 10 £255.00 £255.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0711 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 11 £281.00 £281.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0712 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 12 £306.00 £306.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0713 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 1 £33.00 £33.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0714 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 2 £65.00 £65.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0715 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 3 £98.00 £98.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0716 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 4 £131.00 £131.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0717 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 5 £163.00 £163.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0718 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 6 £196.00 £196.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0719 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 7 £228.00 £228.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0720 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 8 £261.00 £261.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0721 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 9 £294.00 £294.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0722 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 10 £326.00 £326.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0723 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 11 £359.00 £359.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0724 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 12 £392.00 £392.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0725 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 1 £29.00 £29.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0726 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 2 £57.00 £57.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0727 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 3 £86.00 £86.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0728 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 4 £114.00 £114.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0729 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 5 £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0730 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 6 £171.00 £171.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0731 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 7 £200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0732 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 – Month 8 £228.00 £228.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0733 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 – Month 9 £257.00 £257.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0734 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 – Month 10 £286.00 £286.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0735 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 11 £314.00 £314.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0736 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 12 £343.00 £343.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0737 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 1 £36.00 £36.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0738 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 2 £71.00 £71.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0739 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 3 £107.00 £107.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 169



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

HIGHWAYS R0740 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 4 £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0741 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 5 £179.00 £179.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0742 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 6 £214.00 £214.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0743 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 7 £250.00 £250.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0744 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 8 £286.00 £286.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0745 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 9 £321.00 £321.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0746 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 10 £357.00 £357.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0747 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 11 £393.00 £393.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0748 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 12 £428.00 £428.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0749 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 1 £31.00 £31.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0750 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 2 £61.00 £61.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0751 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 3 £92.00 £92.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0752 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 4 £122.00 £122.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0753 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 5 £153.00 £153.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0754 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 6 £184.00 £184.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0755 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 7 £214.00 £214.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0756 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 8 £245.00 £245.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0757 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 9 £275.00 £275.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0758 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 10 £306.00 £306.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0759 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 11 £337.00 £337.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0760 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 12 £367.00 £367.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0761 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 1 £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0762 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 2 £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0763 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 3 £113.00 £113.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0764 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 4 £151.00 £151.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0765 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 5 £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0766 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 6 £226.00 £226.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0767 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 7 £264.00 £264.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0768 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 8 £302.00 £302.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0769 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 9 £340.00 £340.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0770 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 10 £377.00 £377.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0771 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 11 £415.00 £415.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0772 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 12 £453.00 £453.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 170



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

HIGHWAYS R0773 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 1 £35.00 £35.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0774 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 2 £69.00 £69.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0775 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 3 £104.00 £104.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0776 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 4 £139.00 £139.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0777 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 5 £173.00 £173.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0778 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 6 £208.00 £208.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0779 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 7 £243.00 £243.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0780 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 8 £277.00 £277.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0781 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 9 £312.00 £312.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0782 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 10 £347.00 £347.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0783 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 11 £381.00 £381.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0784 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 12 £416.00 £416.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0785 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 1 £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0786 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 2 £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0787 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 3 £125.00 £125.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0788 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 4 £167.00 £167.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0789 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 5 £209.00 £209.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0790 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 6 £251.00 £251.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0791 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 7 £293.00 £293.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0792 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 8 £335.00 £335.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0793 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 9 £376.00 £376.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0794 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 10 £418.00 £418.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0795 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 11 £460.00 £460.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0796 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 12 £502.00 £502.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0797 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 1 £72.00 £72.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0798 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 2 £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0799 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 3 £217.00 £217.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 4 £290.00 £290.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 5 £362.00 £362.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0800 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 6 £435.00 £435.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 7 £507.00 £507.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 8 £579.00 £579.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 9 £652.00 £652.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 171



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 10 £724.00 £724.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 11 £797.00 £797.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0801 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 12 £869.00 £869.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0805 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0806 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0807 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0808 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0809 Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0810 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0811 Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0817 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hr £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0818 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: –3-4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0819 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: –4-5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0820 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: –5-6 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0824 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0830 Middleton Short Stay 3 -4 hr £0.70 £0.70 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0831 Middleton Short Stay 4 -5 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0832 Middleton Short Stay 5 -6 hr £1.10 £1.10 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0828 Middleton Long Stay (Over 6hrs) £2.20 £2.20 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0833 Hollingworth Lake 0 - 2 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0834 Hollingworth Lake 2 - 4 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0835 Hollingworth Lake Over 4 hr £4.60 £4.60 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 172



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

ESTATES

Annual licence fees for garden tenancies - 

current income receivable £80,000 per annum

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Separate charges applies using RPI and agreed with Finance

ESTATES

Average annual licence fees for garage plots 

current income receivable £64,000 per annum

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

See above

ESTATES

Annual licence fees for grazing licences - total 

income expected in 2017/18 = £29,000 per 

annum

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

See above

ESTATES

Minimum fee for granting landlord consent to the 

Council's tenants - increase to £250. £255.00 £260.50 £5.50 2.16%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

ESTATES

Increase non-returnable reservation fee for off-

market disposals from £100 to £200 £204.00 £208.50 £4.50 2.21%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

ESTATES

Introduction of a minimum surveyor's fee of £500 

charged on any disposal £510.00 £520.50 £10.50 2.06%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

P
age 173



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant 

Director (hourly rate) £76.00 £78.00 £2.00 2.63%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application Consultancy charge - Chief 

Planning Officer (hourly rate) £51.00 £52.50 £1.50 2.94%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - 

Development Manager (Grade 10) (hourly rate) £46.00 £47.00 £1.00 2.17%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant 

Development Manager (Grade 9) (hourly rate) £41.00 £42.00 £1.00 2.44%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Senior 

Planning Officer (Grade 8) (hourly rate) £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.56%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Planning 

Officer (Grade 7) (hourly rate) £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 3.13%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant 

Planning Officer (Grade 5) (hourly rate) £22.00 £22.50 £0.50 2.27%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1357 Tree Preservation Order Notice (Copy) £35.00 £36.00 £1.00 2.86%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1358

Printed Copy Of Scanned Planning Application 

(Up To 10 Documents) - Excluding Large Format 

Plans (Over A4 Size) £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 3.03%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1359 Copy Of Large Application Plans (Over A4 Size) £8.40 £8.60 £0.20 2.38%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1360

Photocopies Of Correspondence And Other 

Papers On Planning Application Files, Up To A4 

Size £0.30 £0.30 £0.00 0.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1361 Township Green Infrastructure Plans £26.00 £27.00 £1.00 3.85%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1362 Public Art Strategy £13.00 £13.50 £0.50 3.85%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1363

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 

Site Plans >10 £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 3.45%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1364 Employment Land Study £141.00 £144.00 £3.00 2.13%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1284 LDF Core Strategy - Publication 2016 £19.00 £19.50 £0.50 2.63%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1285 LDF Background Paper 2010 £24.00 £24.50 £0.50 2.08%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1286

LDF Report On Consultation On Preferred 

Options £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.70%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1287 LDF Statement Of Community Involvement £14.00 £14.50 £0.50 3.57%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING R1288 LDF Core Strategy Preferred Options Report £19.00 £19.50 £0.50 2.63%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL R1094

Building Regulation Decision Notice Enquiry 

(Including Copy Of Any Notice) £45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.22%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL R1095

Building Completion Notice/Certificate Enquiry 

(Including Copy Of Any Notice) £60.00 £61.50 £1.50 2.50%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

P
age 174



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

BUILDING CONTROL R1096

Site History Search: Minimum Charge (Up To 

First Hour) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL R1097

Site History Search: Each Subsequent Hour Or 

Part Thereof £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL R1102

Provision Of Late Completion Inspections & Issue 

Of Completion Certificates £185.00 £189.00 £4.00 2.16%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL R1103

Administration Fee For Building Control Fee 

Refunds £65 min 66.50 min

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL R1104

Administration Charges To Building Owners For 

Inspection/Specification For Securing Buildings 

Open To Access/Dilapidated £150.00 £153.00 £3.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL R1105 Section 80/81 Notices £180.00 £184.00 £4.00 2.22%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Planning Performance Agreements (to cover 

large scale, complex or strategic proposals where 

a bespoke fee is necessary to cover the work of 

the service) £0.00

Bespoke charges will apply based on scale and complexity of 

project. Please contact the service to confirm amount payable

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Large Scale Major 

Development - 10,000m2 of commercial 

floorspace / 50 plus homes / major infrastructure 

projects (roads and utilities) / sites biggeer than 

1.5 hectares / energy projects (Case Officer 

Meeting and written advice) £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Major Development - 10 - 

49 homes / 1,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial 

floorpsace / 100m2 - 999m2 retail floorspace / 

1.0 - 1.5 hectare site (Case Officer Meeting and 

Written Advice) £1,500.00 £1,530.00 £30.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Minor Development - 

100m2 - 999m2 commercial floorspace / up to 

100m2 retail floorspace / 2 - 9 homes / 

telecommunications development / Section 73 

variation of conditions relevant to this category / 

change of use (excluding retail) / public realm 

and engineering work / minerals, waste and 

energy projects / wind turbine / telecoms  (Case 

Officer Meeting and written advice £550.00 £561.00 £11.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - 1 Dwelling / small 

commercial changes of use or alterations eg up 

to 99m2   (Case Officer Meeting and Written 

Advice) £350.00 £360.00 £10.00 2.86%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING Pre application advice - Site visit householder £125.00 £127.50 £2.50 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Charge to cover Officer time to visit property and 

provide written advice on works to fell/prune 

protected or dangerous trees £120.00 £122.50 £2.50 2.08%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

P
age 175



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

PLANNING

Fee to cover works incurred in processing 

requests to modify terms of an existing S106 

agreement following a grant of planning 

permission £1,200.00 £1,225.00 £25.00 2.08%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Requests for a more bespoke pre application 

service, including meetings with more senior 

officers or officers from other services (e.g. the 

Local Highway Authority), or where a quicker 

response is required, for example, to meet a bid 

or funding deadline, will be subject to a bespoke 

charge to cover the work of the service.

Bespoke charges will apply based on scale and complexity of 

project. Please contact the service to confirm amount payable

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Large Scale Major 

Development - 10,000m2 of commercial 

floorspace / 50 plus homes / major infrastructure 

projects (roads and utilities) / sites bigger than 

1.5 hectares / energy projects  (Written advice 

only) £1,500.00 £1,530.00 £30.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Large Scale Major 

Development - 10,000m2 of commercial 

floorspace / 50 plus homes / major infrastructure 

projects (roads and utilities) / sites bigger than 

1.5 hectares / energy projects  (Charge for follow 

up meeting with Case Officer) £750.00 £765.00 £15.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING 

Pre application advice - Major Development - 10 - 

49 homes / 1,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial 

floorpsace / 100m2 - 999m2 retail floorspace / 

1.0 - 1.5 hectare site. (Written advice only) £1,000.00 £1,020.00 £20.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING 

Pre application advice - Major Development - 10 - 

49 homes / 1,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial 

floorpsace / 100m2 - 999m2 retail floorspace / 

1.0 - 1.5 hectare site. (Charge for follow - up 

meeting with Case Officer) £600.00 £612.00 £12.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Minor Development - 

100m2 - 999m2 commercial floorspace / up to 

100m2 retail floorspace / 2 - 9 homes / 

telecommunications development / Section 73 

variation of conditions relevant to this category / 

change of use (excluding retail) / public realm 

and engineering work / minerals, waste and 

energy projects / wind turbine / telecoms (Written 

Advice only) £400.00 £408.00 £8.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

P
age 176



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Minor Development - 

100m2 - 999m2 commercial floorspace / up to 

100m2 retail floorspace / 2 - 9 homes / 

telecommunications development / Section 73 

variation of conditions relevant to category / 

change of use (excluding retail) / public realm 

and engineering work / minerals, waste and 

energy projects / wind turbine / telecoms(Charge 

for follow up meeting with Case Officer) £300.00 £306.00 £6.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - 1 dwelling /small 

commercial changes of use or alterations eg up 

to 99m2 (Written advice only) £250.00 £255.00 £5.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - 1 dwelling / small 

commerciall changes of use or alterations eg up 

to 99m2 (Charge for Follow up meeting with Case 

Officer) £200.00 £204.00 £4.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application enquiry to vary / modify / 

discharge legal agreement for residential / 

commercial development (Meeting with Case 

Officer and written advice) £500.00 £510.00 £10.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

PLANNING

Pre application enquiry to vary / modify/ 

discharge legal agreement for residential 

development (single plot) Meeting with Case 

Officer and written advice £300.00 £306.00 £6.00 2.00%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL

Copies of correspondence (excluding Decision 

Notice/Completion Certificates)

£12.00 up to 10 A4 

sides if over 10 

then 40p per A4 

side

£12.50 up to 10 A4 

sides if over 10 

then 40p per A4 

side £0.50 #VALUE!

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL

Provision of certificate/written confirmation of 

exemption from the provisions of Building 

Regulations(PER HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL

Site inspection and written report relating to 

structures exempt from the building regulations 

(PER HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL

Registering a change of agent/applicant/change 

of main contractor when work has commenced 

on site £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL

Provision of pre-submission consultancy advice 

and research for technical information relating to 

an existing building e.g. foundation detail(PER 

HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL Pre-submission site visits (COST PER VISIT) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

BUILDING CONTROL

To provide a letter relating to the building 

regulations for work which is not covered by a 

valid building regulation application (PER HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

We don't believe the increase in costs would affect the use of the 

service

P
age 177



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

<£300)

40% of cost (min 

£75.00) + £230.00 

out of hours 

charge)

40% of cost (min 

£75.00) + £230.00 

out of hours 

charge)

Charge linked to contractor costs

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

Between £301 - £1500)

20% of cost (min 

£120.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

20% of cost (min 

£120.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

Between £1501 - £5000)

15% of cost (min 

£300.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

15% of cost (min 

£300.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

Between £5001 - £10000)

10% of cost (min 

£700.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

10% of cost (min 

£700.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost over 

£10000)

5% of cost (min 

£1500.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

5% of cost (min 

£1500.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

P
age 178



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Facilities Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

FM Ogden Room Hire - Evening £58.00 £60.00 £2.00 3.45%

FM Ogden Room Hire - Saturday £73.00 £75.00 £2.00 2.74%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Day £52.50 £54.00 £1.50 2.86%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Evening £63.00 £64.50 £1.50 2.38%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Saturday £79.00 £81.00 £2.00 2.53%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Saturday £126.40 £129.00 £2.60 2.06%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Sunday £139.20 £142.00 £2.80 2.01%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Day £110.25 £112.50 £2.25 2.04%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Evening £132.30 £135.00 £2.70 2.04%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Saturday £165.90 £169.30 £3.40 2.05%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Sunday £182.70 £186.40 £3.70 2.03%

FM Greenbooth A - Day £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.70%

FM Greenbooth A - Evening £47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.13%

FM Greenbooth B - Day £53.00 £54.50 £1.50 2.83%

FM Greenbooth B - Evening £63.00 £64.50 £1.50 2.38%

FM Roch - Day £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.70%

FM Roch - Evening £47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.13%

FM Watergrove - Day £27.00 £28.00 £1.00 3.70%

FM Watergrove - Evening £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.70%

FM Piethorne - Day £27.00 £28.00 £1.00 3.70%

FM Piethorne - Evening £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.70%

FM Beal - Day £21.00 £21.50 £0.50 2.38%

FM Beal - Evening £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 3.13%

FM Irk - Day £21.00 £21.50 £0.50 2.38%

FM Irk - Evening £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 3.13%

FM Ogden Room Hire - Day £47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.13%

FM Ogden Room Hire - Sunday £82.00 £84.00 £2.00 2.44%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Sunday £87.00 £89.00 £2.00 2.30%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Day £84.00 £86.00 £2.00 2.38%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Evening £100.80 £103.00 £2.20 2.18%

No increase proposed

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - per hour £52.50 £52.50 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - full day £336.00 £336.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - per hour £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - full day £538.00 £538.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - per hour £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - full day £480.00 £480.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - per hour £60.00 £60.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - full day £384.00 £384.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - per hour £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - full day £640.00 £640.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - per hour £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - full day £576.00 £576.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - per hour £175.00 £175.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - full day £1,120.00 £1,120.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Weekend rate per hour £105.00 £105.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Weekday evening rate per hour £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 -  Weekday evening per hour £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 179



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Facilities Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 -  Weekend rate per hour £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - weekend rate per hour £150.00 £150.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - weekday evening rate per hour £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - weekend rate per hour £120.00 £120.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - weekday evening rate per hour £72.00 £72.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - weekend rate per hour £200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - weekday evening rate per hour £120.00 £120.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - weekend rate per hour £180.00 £180.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - weekday evening rate per hour £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - weekend rate per hour £350.00 £350.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - weekday evening rate per hour £210.00 £210.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Half Day £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Full Week £1,470.00 £1,470.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - Half Day £302.00 £302.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - Full Week £2,352.00 £2,352.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - Half Day £270.00 £270.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - Full Week £2,100.00 £2,100.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - Half Day £216.00 £216.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - Full Week £1,680.00 £1,680.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - Half Day £360.00 £360.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - Full Week £2,800.00 £2,800.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception room - Half Day £324.00 £324.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception room - Full Week £2,520.00 £2,520.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - Half Day £630.00 £630.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - Full Week £4,900.00 £4,900.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Working Lunch Buffet £5.20 £5.40 £0.20 3.85%

FM 6-item Buffet £6.70 £6.90 £0.20 2.99%

FM 7-item Buffet £9.40 £9.60 £0.20 2.13%

FM 9-item Buffet £12.00 £12.30 £0.30 2.50%

FM R0972F and R0973F Flipchart Paper and Pens £8.00 £8.20 £0.20 2.50%

FM A4 Pad of paper and pen £3.00 £3.10 £0.10 3.33%

FM Bronze BYOB Items £1.90 £2.00 £0.10 5.26%

FM Silver BYOB Items £2.20 £2.30 £0.10 4.55%

FM Gold BYOB Items £2.70 £2.80 £0.10 3.70%

FM Standard Hot Supper £8.00 £8.20 £0.20 2.50%

FM Premium Hot Supper £9.50 £9.70 £0.20 2.11%

FM R0979F Organ Practise £10.00 £10.20 £0.20 2.00%

FM R1018F Tea Dance £3.00 £3.10 £0.10 3.33%

FM Public Full Tour (Adults) £7.50 £7.70 £0.20 2.67%

FM Public Full Tour (Children) £3.80 £3.90 £0.10 2.63%

FM Public Short Tour (Adults) £4.50 £4.60 £0.10 2.22%

FM Public Short Tour (Children) £2.30 £2.40 £0.10 4.35%

FM Private Full Tour (Adults) £11.00 £11.30 £0.30 2.73%

FM Private Full Tour (Children) £7.00 £7.20 £0.20 2.86%

FM Private Short Tour (Adults) £7.00 £7.20 £0.20 2.86%

FM Private Short Tour (Children) £3.50 £3.60 £0.10 2.86%

FM R1074F School Tours £2.00 £2.10 £0.10 5.00%

FM All Accommodation (Mon-Fri) £2,500.00 £2,550.00 £50.00 2.00%

FM R0152 All Accommodation (Saturday) £3,000.00 £3,060.00 £60.00 2.00%

R1071F

R1076F

P
age 180



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Facilities Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

FM R1056 All Accommodation (Sunday) £3,500.00 £3,570.00 £70.00 2.00%

FM R1055F Non-refundable Deposit £500.00 £510.00 £10.00 2.00%

FM R1795 Refundable Deposit (Bond) £500.00 £510.00 £10.00 2.00%

FM R0901 Bar Licence Extension (Until Midnight) £250.00 £255.00 £5.00 2.00%

FM R1072F Afternoon Tea (with tour) £9.90 £11.00 £1.10 11.11%

FM Champagne Afternoon Tea (with tour) £19.90 £21.00 £1.10 5.53%

FM R1073F 2-Course Lunch (with tour) £11.90 £13.00 £1.10 9.24%

FM Danish Pastry Selection £1.90 £2.00 £0.10 5.26%

FM Platinum Wedding Package 2020 £6,999.00 £7,139.00 £140.00 2.00%

FM Gold Wedding Package 2020 £5,749.00 £5,864.00 £115.00 2.00%

FM Silver Wedding Package 2020 £4,499.00 £4,589.00 £90.00 2.00%

FM Bronze Wedding Package 2020 £1,249.00 £1,274.00 £25.00 2.00%

P
age 181



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Adult Care
To next higher £1

Round to nearest whole £1

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources less than £5,000 £588.00 £600.00 £12.00 2.04%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources between £5,000 and £10,000 £588.00 £647.00 £59.00 10.03%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources over £10,000 £588.00 £706.00 £118.00 20.07%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources less than £5,000 £306.00 £313.00 £7.00 2.29%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources between £5,000 and £10,000 £306.00 £337.00 £31.00 10.13%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources over £10,000 £306.00 £367.00 £61.00 19.93%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE Community re-start utility charge £18.00 N/A

This charge will cease as Service no longer provided in 

this form

ADULT CARE Deferred Payment Admin Fee (new scheme) £562.00 £600.00 £38.00 6.76% The scheme should be self financing

ADULT CARE Transport (per journey) £4.20 £4.30 £0.10 2.38% Very little income as low usage

ADULT CARE Short term and assessment care (weekly charge) - Pensionable age. £133.80 TBC

ADULT CARE Short term and assessment care (weekly charge) - Working age. £86.04 TBC

ADULT CARE

Short term and assessment care (weekly charge) - Aged less than 25 

years. £73.88 TBC

ADULT CARE Deferred Payment Interest Rate (old scheme)

3.06% to 6.12% depending 

on age of debt.

3.06% to 6.12% 

depending on age of 

debt. Very little income as low usage

ADULT CARE Deferred Payment Interest Rate (new scheme) 1.45% TBC

ADULT CARE Shared lives (daily living costs) £58.70 TBC

ADULT CARE Shared lives (daily living costs) SU on higher rate £58.70 TBC

No increase proposed

ADULT CARE Careline £3.10 £3.10 £0.00 0.00% Subject to re-tender

ADULT CARE Support@Home £5.10 £5.10 £0.00 0.00% Subject to re-tender

Based on a % of average benefits for each age group. 

Therefore if benefits rise income will rise. Benefit 

increases announced Dec / Jan

Based on a % of average benefits for each age group. 

Therefore if benefits rise income will rise. Benefit 

increases announced Dec / Jan

P
age 182



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Children's Services

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)

Actual

% Increase
Notes

YOUTH SERVICE R0075 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or Silver – Other organisations £22.50 £23.00 £0.50 2.22%

YOUTH SERVICE R0076 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or Silver – Schools £22.40 £22.90 £0.50 2.23%

YOUTH SERVICE R0077 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – Other organisations £30.00 £30.60 £0.60 2.00%

YOUTH SERVICE R0078 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – Schools £30.00 £30.60 £0.60 2.00%

ROCH & OLD SUPPLY 

AGENCY R0054 Supply Teacher DBS £52.00 £53.10 £1.10 2.12%

ROCH & OLD SUPPLY 

AGENCY R0055 Supply Teacher ID £3.70 £3.80 £0.10 2.70%

CHILDRENS CENTRES R1807 Room Hire £26.00 £26.60 £0.60 2.31%

SURESTART R0064 CPD/Welfare Training Autumn £18.00 £18.40 £0.40 2.22%

SURESTART R0065 CPD/Welfare Training non attendance £18.00 £18.40 £0.40 2.22%

SURESTART R0066 CPD/Welfare Training Spring £18.00 £18.40 £0.40 2.22%

SURESTART R0067 CPD/Welfare Training Summer £18.00 £18.40 £0.40 2.22%

SURESTART R1674 Childminder pre-registration Training £13.40 £13.70 £0.30 2.24%

MUSIC SERVICE R0045 Music Service Termly membership – Individual £30.60 £30.00 -£0.60 -1.96%

MUSIC SERVICE R0046 Music Service Termly membership – Family £51.00 £50.00 -£1.00 -1.96%

MUSIC SERVICE R0047 15 minute lesson £8.20 £8.00 -£0.20 -2.44%

MUSIC SERVICE R0048 20 minute lesson £11.30 £10.60 -£0.70 -6.19%

MUSIC SERVICE R0049 30 minute lesson £16.40 £16.00 -£0.40 -2.44%

MUSIC SERVICE R0043 60 minute lesson £32.70 £32.00 -£0.70 -2.14%

MUSIC SERVICE R1866 Music Festival entry – Individual £5.10 £5.00 -£0.10 -1.96%

MUSIC SERVICE Music Festival entry – duets/trios £6.20 £6.00 -£0.20 -3.23%

MUSIC SERVICE R1867 Music Festival entry – large ensemble £11.30 £10.00 -£1.30 -11.50%

MUSIC SERVICE Exam accompaniment £32.70 £32.00 -£0.70 -2.14%

MUSIC SERVICE R0037 Ticket sales variable variable

Price changes due to benchmarking exercise with the 

private tuition market

P
age 183



1

Report to Corporate O&S Committee

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Julie Murphy
Public/Private Document

Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

This report provides Cabinet with the proposed Revenue Budget, Capital 
Programme and Council Tax 2020/21 for recommendation to Budget Council 
on 26th February 2020. The information contained in the report is subject to the 
Final Local Government Finance Settlement and approval of the Mayor of 
Greater Manchester Council Tax precepts for 2020/21.

The report also outlines the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 
2024/25.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy provides the latest budget 
position for the Council, sets out the key financial challenges and issues which 
will be faced over the period 2020/21 to 2024/25, and provides details of the 
assumptions and estimates which underpin the budget. The strategy also takes 
account of the latest known developments both regional and at a local level and 
reports on the integration of Health and Social Care within the Pooled Budget 
arrangements.

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet :

1. Consider and recommend to Budget Council the proposed revenue budgets 
outlined in Appendix 1, based on a budget requirement of £224.128m for 
2020/21.  

2. Subject to confirmation of the Mayor of Greater Manchester precepts, 
consider and recommend to Budget Council:

a) A Council Tax for district purposes of £1,645.27 for Band D properties 
(3.99% increase) for 2020/21. 

b) A Council Tax (including precepts) of £1,944.52 for Band D properties 
(4.69% increase).

Page 184

Agenda Item 14



2

3. Note the position in relation to Education Services Grant and Schools 
Funding. Cabinet delegate the decision regarding any changes to the final 
allocations for the Dedicated Schools Grant to the Director of Children’s 
Services and the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Cabinet 
Members for Children’s Services and Finance. 

4. Consider and note the progress of the Integration of Health and Social Care 
services as set out at 5.2. In particular, the operation of the Pooled Fund 
budget for local authority and CCG services and the risks to the Council 
should the savings proposals not be achieved.

5. Recommend to Budget Council a contribution to the Integrated Health & 
Social Care Pooled Fund budget of £102.339m in 2020/21.

6. Note that a one off payment of £250,000 from the Equalisation Reserve for 
2020/21 has been be allocated to the school meals catering service. This 
was approved by the Chief Executive on the basis of urgency and to enable 
consultation to be undertaken with schools.

7. Consider and recommend to Budget Council the updated Budget Carry 
Forward policy, as detailed in Appendix 3.

8. Consider and recommend to Budget Council, the proposed Capital 
Programme for 2020/21 to 2022/23 as detailed at Appendix 4 of this report, 
noting that some of the assumed external funding included in the programme 
is still subject to clarification from Government and in some cases may 
involve bids for funding.  It is therefore recommended that all approvals are 
subject to confirmation of funding allocations.

9. Approve that new spending proposal requiring additional revenue and capital 
resources should only be considered during the financial year, in extreme 
circumstances as determined by the Budget and Policy Framework. The 
proposals would need to be reported to the next available Council meeting 
in accordance with the Budget & Policy Framework.

10. Note that the Council is currently considering the Advance Payment of 
Employer Pensions Contributions, as detailed in Section 7.7.

11. Consider and recommend to Budget Council the Council’s updated Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2024/25, as provided at Appendix 7.

12. Consider and recommend to Budget Council:

a) Approval of the Pay Policy Statement as provided at Appendix 5 of 
this report.

b) Approval of the publication of the Pay Policy Statement before the 
31st March.

Page 185



3

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

Cabinet members are required to consider and recommend to Budget Council  
before the 11th March 2020:

a) A balanced Revenue Budget for 2020/21 and provisional budgets for 2021/22 
to 2022/23.

b) Council Tax increase for 2020/21.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy provides a key part of the budget setting 
process.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

Background

This report contains the revenue proposals which are being recommended to 
Cabinet to enable a balanced budget to be considered and presented to Budget 
Council for approval.

The Budget process begins in July with approval, by Cabinet, of the assumptions 
and principles on which the budget is to be based. These are used as a part of the 
determination of the overall budget position and are incorporated into Directorate 
budgets.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  Financial 
projections are updated as further information becomes available from Central 
Government and other changes, including local decisions. The updated budget and 
feedback from consultations are reported back to Cabinet in February with 
recommendations for Budget Council, who will in turn set the budget. 

Budget Council 27th February 2019 approved provisional budgets for 2020/21 and 
2021/22. The budget position of the Council is reviewed throughout the budget 
process as more information becomes available. An updated budget position was 
reported to Cabinet in July 2019 and October 2019.

Budget Review Sessions have been held for each of the Council’s Priority Areas: 
People; Place and Prosperity. There have also been sessions reviewing Support 
Services and Fixed Costs and to explore areas where the Council can maximise 
income generation opportunities. Service Directors have produced savings 
proposals, which are considered elsewhere on the agenda.

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2020/21 to 2024/25 was 
approved at Cabinet 29th October 2019. The MTFS has been reviewed and Appendix 
7 provides an updated MTFS reflecting current budget assumptions. 

The capital programme being recommended to Cabinet has been consulted on 
during Autumn 2019. The capital programme will be presented to Budget Council for 
approval.

Page 186



4

4.1.8

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

This report is presented in two parts, as there is a requirement for all billing 
authorities to keep a separate Collection Fund Account to the main General Fund 
Budget.  Part 1 deals with the budget requirements of Rochdale Council, while Part 
2 concentrates on Collection Fund issues.

PART 1 – DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS

The General Fund Revenue Account

The proposed budgets for 2020/21 to 2022/23 are set out at summary level at 
Appendix 1. The estimated resources for 2020/21 are £224.128m, as set out in Table 
1.

Table 1: Estimated Resources

 

2020/21
£'000

Council Tax 91,715

Business Rates Retained 63,878

Business Rates Top-up Grant 36,341

General Grants 30,526

Collection Fund Surplus 1,668

Total Resources 224,128

The assumptions on which Directorate budgets are based are set out in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy, as outlined in Appendix 7. The individual Directorate 
budget plans are provided at Appendix 2.

The budget takes account of the latest projected outturn for 2019/20, which is 
currently forecast to be in line with the budget after the application of an estimated 
£6.7m from the Equalisation Reserve and expected refunds from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority. The Council’s general balances will be £17m at 
31st March 2021 and will support the risks within the proposed budget. Any increase 
/ decrease against the proposed budget for 2019/20 will be allocated to/from the 
Equalisation Reserve.

Further information on budget risks is provided as a separate agenda item as part of 
the Local Government Act 2003 report requirements.  Members should consider the 
views of the Chief Finance Officer set out within this report with regard to the 
robustness of the budget and the adequacy of balances and reserves when 
determining the budget requirement.

Page 187



5

4.2.5

4.3

4.3.1

The calculation of 2020/21 Council Tax (for District purposes) for Band D properties 
based on the proposed expenditure level of £224.128m is shown in Table 2.

Table 2: Proposed Budget and Council Tax for District Purposes
 

2019/20 2020/21

Budget
Proposed 

Budget
£'000 £'000 £'000 %

1 BUDGET REQUIREMENT 216,223 224,128 7,905 3.66%

Funding Available
2 Business Rates Top-up Grant 35,597 36,341 744 2.09%
3 General Grants 25,819 30,526 4,707 18.23%
4 Business Rates Retained 61,206 63,878 2,672 4.37%

5 Net Requirements 93,601 93,383 -218 -0.23%

6 Collection Fund Surplus -6,305 -1,668

7 Amount to be precepted on the Collection Fund 87,296 91,715 4,419 5.06%

8 Council Tax for District Purposes £1,582.14 £1,645.27 £63.13 3.99%

9 Tax Base 55,176 55,745 569

Variation

Changes in Estimated Resources

Table 3 provides an analysis of the changes in Estimated Resources compared to 
the position reported to Cabinet 29th October 2019.

Table 3: Changes in Estimated Resources 2020/21

As per October 
Cabinet 

Proposed 
Budget 
2020/21

Increase/   
(Decrease) in 

Resources

£m £m £m

Government Grants
Business Rates Top-up Grant 36.308 36.341 0.033
New Homes Bonus 2.052 1.804 -0.248
Improved Better Care Fund 11.917 11.917 0.000
Business Rates Section 31 Grants 9.890 9.806 -0.084
Additional Social Care Funding 6.512 6.925 0.413
Other Section 31 Grants 0.074 0.074 0.000

66.753 66.867 0.114
Locally Generated Income
Council Tax 91.560 91.715 0.155
Business Rates 63.294 63.878 0.584
Collection Fund surplus 2019/20 0.000 1.668 1.668

154.854 157.261 2.407

Total Resources 221.607 224.128 2.521

Page 188



6

4.3.2

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

4.4.3

4.4.4

4.4.6

4.4.7

The estimated resources for 2020/21 have been updated to reflect:

 The Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21 (see Section 4.4).
 The estimated Council Tax income for 2020/21 of £91.715m. This is based 

on Council Tax base 2020/21 of 55,745, as approved by Council 18th 
December 2019, and assumes a Council Tax increase of 3.99% for 2020/21.

 Estimated Business Rates income of £63.878m for 2020/21.
 The Council’s share of the estimated Collection Fund surplus 2019/20 

(£1.668m).

Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21

The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21 was announced in 
a written statement to Parliament on 20th December 2019. The Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2020/21 is a one-year settlement, ahead of a multi-year 
Spending Review in 2020. 

The figures in this report are based on the Provisional Settlement. The Final Local 
Government Finance Settlement 2020/21 is not expected to be published until late 
January 2020. Any change in funding from the Provisional settlement will be reported 
to Budget Council 26th February 2020.

Settlement Core Funding
The provisional settlement proposes that settlement core funding (Revenue Support 
Grant) is increased in line with inflation. The Greater Manchester 100% Business 
Rates Retention pilot scheme is continuing in 2020/21. Under the pilot Revenue 
Support Grant and Public Health grant are not received directly by Rochdale. 
However, increases in these grants, and in the Business Rates Multiplier, are 
reflected in the Business Rates Top-up grant. 

Funding for Social Care
The provisional settlement makes £1.5bn of new funding available nationally for 
Adult and Children’s Social Care. This includes £1bn of new grant funding, a 
continuation of all existing Social Care grants, and the ability for authorities to raise 
up to £0.5bn more via the Adult Social Care precept. Rochdale’s additional Social 
Care Funding for 2020/21 is £6.925m, which is £0.413m higher estimated in the 
figures reported to October Cabinet. 

Improved Better Care Fund
In 2020/21, £1.837bn has allocated nationally through the Improved Better Care 
Fund, the same amount as for 2019/20.  Improved Better Care Fund also now 
includes the £240m Winter Pressures Grant Funding. Rochdale’s 2020/21 allocation 
is £11.917m.

New Homes Bonus
The provisional settlement confirms the 2020/21 New Homes Bonus allocations. The 
Government has decided not to make any change to the payments baseline, and 
this will remain at 0.4% for the 2020/21 allocations. There will be no legacy payments 
relating to the 2020/21 allocation, i.e. the 2020/21 allocation will be received for one 
year only, rather than four years as was the case with previous allocations. 

Page 189



7

4.5

4.5.1

4.5.2

4.5.3

4.5.4

4.5.5

4.5.6

Rochdale’s allocation, based on figures from the 2019 Council Tax Base return is 
£1.804m, which is £0.248m lower than estimated at October Cabinet.

Schools Funding Settlement   

A summary of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocation is provided in Table 4.

Table 4 Dedicated Schools Grant Allocation

2019/20 2020/21 Transfers
£m £m £m % £m

Schools Block 164.260 171.068 6.808 4.1% -0.855
High Needs Block 23.860 27.838 3.978 16.7% 0.855
Central Schools Services 1.202 1.187 -0.015 -1.2%
Early Years Block 16.693 17.406 0.713 4.3%

Total 206.015 217.499 11.484 5.6% 0.000

Variation

The Schools, High Needs and Central Schools Services Block are final allocations 
with the Early Years Block indicative until July 2021. Both Schools and the High 
Needs Block allocations for 2020/21 are based on National Funding Formulae 
(NFF).  

There is an overall increase in DSG from 2019/20 of £11.484m (5.6%). The national 
DSG allocation has increased 2.8% from 2019/20 due to additional schools funding 
of £2.6bn which was announced in the September Spending review, this funding will 
increase further to £4.8bn in 2021/22.

The increase of £6.808m in the Schools Block is due in part to an increase in pupils 
(451) together with the increased funding. The revised DSG Operational Guidance 
for 2020/21 introduced a minimum per pupil funding level (£3.75k for primary and 
£5k for secondary), as well as setting a minimum funding guarantee (MFG) of +0.5% 
which ensures all schools will receive an increase in their per pupil funding over 
2019/20. 

There is a significant pressure in 2019/20 of £4.292m within High Needs, £0.262m 
is the pressure on Council funded areas and the remaining £4.030m is related to a 
pressure on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG). The pressures are in relation to a 
continued rise in numbers of children with education health care plans and children 
requiring SEND support.

As part of the £2.6bn the Government has recognised the pressures within the High 
Needs Block and provided an additional £700m for 2020/21. The increase of 
£3.978m in the High Needs Block is unlikely to be sufficient for 2020/21 due to 
continuing unprecedented growth in this area, therefore Schools Forum approved a 
0.5% transfer from the Schools Block to High Needs block of £0.855m in October 
2019.

Page 190



8

4.5.7

5

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6

Funding to schools can still be based on a local formula for 2020/21, 
however Rochdale has been transitioning to the NFF over the last three years and 
is now closely mirroring the NFF for 2020/21.

The Council’s Budget 2020/21 and Provisional Budget for 2021/22 to 
2022/23

Council Budget Position 2020/21 to 2022/23

The assumptions that underpin the Council’s budget gap have been reviewed in line 
with the latest available information, including the impact of the Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2020/21.

The latest budget for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 is continually updated 
throughout the budget process. The major factors influencing the Council’s Budget 
are:

 The level of resources received by the Council, both locally generated and 
government grants;

 Health and Social Care integration;
 Budget pressures. 

The budget position will continue to be updated in the light of the latest available 
information; any further changes will be reported to Budget Council 26th February 
2020. 

Table 5 shows how the Council’s Budget Gap has changed from the position 
reported to Cabinet 29th October.

Table 5 Updated Council Budget Gap 2020/21 to 2022/23

 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Budget Gap October Cabinet 4.064 15.045 15.375

Changes to Budget Assumptions
Increase/(Decrease) in Budget Requirements 0.677 2.080 5.402
(Increase)/Decrease in Resources -2.521 -7.601 -10.562

-1.844 -5.521 -5.160

Revised Budget Gap 2.220 9.524 10.215

Further detail behind the updated Budget Gap is discussed in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy provided at Appendix 1 to this report.

Savings proposals were submitted to Cabinet 29th October 2019 as a basis for 
consultation. A separate report elsewhere on the agenda outlines the outcome of 
consultation. The savings proposals following consultation are detailed in Table 6.

Page 191



9

5.1.7

5.1.8

Table 6 Savings Proposals 2020/21 to 2022/23

Ongoing One Off Ongoing One Off Ongoing One Off
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cabinet Approval
Proposals not requiring consultation -2.424 -0.220 -2.782 -0.225 -3.852 -0.155
Service Delivery/Workforce -0.033 0.000 -0.033 0.000 -0.033 0.000
Service Delivery -0.016 0.000 -0.016 0.000 -0.016 0.000
Workforce -0.187 0.000 -0.217 0.000 -0.233 0.000

-2.660 -0.220 -3.048 -0.225 -4.134 -0.155

Integrated Commissioning Board Approval
Adult Care -1.282 -0.060 -2.235 0.015 -2.235 0.000
Public Health -0.307 -0.153 -0.307 0.000 -0.307 0.000

-1.589 -0.213 -2.542 0.015 -2.542 0.000

Overall Total -4.249 -0.433 -5.590 -0.210 -6.676 -0.155

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

It is proposed that Contingency is utilised in order to help manage the Council’s 
Budget Gap over the years 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

Table 7 summarises the budget position for 2020/21 to 2022/23 after the application 
of Savings Proposals and the utilisation of Contingency.

Table 7 Council Budget Position after Savings Proposals/Contingency

   

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Budget Gap October Cabinet 4.064 15.045 15.375

Changes to Budget Assumptions
Increase/(Decrease) in Budget Requirements 0.677 2.080 5.402
(Increase)/Decrease in Resources -2.521 -7.601 -10.562

-1.844 -5.521 -5.160

Revised Budget Gap 2.220 9.524 10.215

Savings Proposals -4.682 -5.800 -6.831

Transfer to/(from) Contingency 2.462 -1.724 -1.384

Revised Budget Gap 0.000 2.000 2.000

The remaining £2m Budget Gap in 2021/22 and 2022/23 relates to the 
Transformation Funding for Adult Care coming to an end. This will be managed via 
the Pooled Fund.

Page 192



10

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

Pooled Fund Gap  

The Local Authority has operated a formal pooled budget arrangement from 1st April 
2018 for Health and Social Care. The Pooled Fund includes the Adult Social Care, 
Public Health, and elements of Children’s Services. The Non-Pooled Fund includes 
Economy, Neighbourhoods, Resources and elements of Children’s Services.

The Council’s budget has been combined with the latest Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMRCCG) budget position to produce an 
overall budget for the locality. 

Table 8 summarises the Overall Budget Gap, split between the Pooled Fund and 
Non Pooled Fund budgets, showing how this has changed from the position reported 
to Cabinet 29th October.

Table 8 Overall Budget Gap

  

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Total Budget Gap - Oct Cabinet 14.445 32.226 38.531

Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -1.844 -5.521 -5.160
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions 4.239 4.239 4.239

Revised Budget Gap 16.840 30.944 37.610

Savings Proposals -15.585 -16.703 -17.734
Transfer to/from Contingency 2.462 -1.724 -1.384
Revised Budget Gap 3.717 12.517 18.492

CCG Gap 3.717 10.517 16.492
LA Pooled Fund Gap 0.000 2.000 2.000
LA Non Pooled Gap 0.000 0.000 0.000
Revised Budget Gap 3.717 12.517 18.492

2021/22 – 2022/23 Provisional Estimates

The provisional estimates for 2021/22 to 2022/23 set out the resources the Council 
will receive based on the most up to date available information. 

The Local Government Act 2003 Report identifies that the estimates for 2021/22 and 
2022/23 have a high degree of risk due to uncertainties regarding the collection of 
income from both Council Tax and Business Rates, the integration of Health and 
Social Care, and the multiple reforms to local government funding for 2021/22.  
Within the Health and Social Care Pooled Fund, a significant proportion of the 
savings proposals relate to the benefits to be delivered from efficiencies generated 
through contract/commissioning renegotiations and integration of working between 
health and social care organisations. Delays in delivery and slippage in the 
development of new ways of delivery would result in a deficit on the Pooled Fund, 
resulting in a significant risk for the Council. A one-off provision of £2m has been 
included in the 2020/21 budget to mitigate the Council’s potential liability if the 

Page 193



11

5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5

savings proposals approved by the Integrated Commissioning Board are not 
achieved. 

There is significant uncertainty around the funding that the Council will receive from 
2021/22 due to the proposed reforms to local government funding. The provisional 
budgets for 2021/22 and 2022/23 will be continually reviewed as further information 
becomes available.

There is no current information available on government funding for 2021/22 
onwards and therefore current assumptions have been extrapolated forward.  On 
this basis, and assuming an increase in Council Tax of 1.99% in 2021/22 and 
2022/23, this would generate budgeted resources of £226.045m in 2021/22 and 
£231.639m in 22022/23, as shown in Table 8. 

Table 8: Provisional Estimate and Council Tax 2021/22 and 2022/23
 

Detail
2020/21 

Proposed 
Budget

2021/22 
Provisional 

Estimate

2022/23 
Provisional 

Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

1 Budget Requirement 224,128 226,045 1,917 0.86% 231,639

Funded By:
2 Top-up Grant 36,341 36,389 48 0.13% 36,438
3 General Grants 30,526 29,553 -973 -3.19% 29,546
4 Business Rates Retained 63,878 65,403 1,525 2.39% 68,146
5 Net Requirements 93,383 94,700 1,317 -1.41% 97,509
6 Less: Collection Fund Adjustments 1,668 0 -1,668 0
7 Precept on Collection Fund 91,715 94,700 2,985 3.25% 97,509

8 Council Tax Band D (District 
Purposes) £1,645.27 £1,678.01 £32.74 1.99% £1,711.40

Variation

Table 9 shows the Council’s ongoing Budget Requirement for 2020/21 to 2022/23. 

Page 194



12

5.3.6

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

5.5

5.5.1

Table 9: Ongoing Requirement 2020/21 to 2022/23

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

BUDGET REQUIREMENT 224,128 226,045 231,639
RESOURCES
Council Tax -91,715 -94,700 -97,509 
Business Rates Retained -63,878 -65,403 -68,146 
Collection Fund Surplus -1,668 0 0
General Grants -30,526 -29,553 -29,546 
Business Rates Top-Up Grant -36,341 -36,389 -36,438 
TOTAL RESOURCES -224,128 -226,045 -231,639 

NET FUNDING REQUIREMENT 0 0 0

The 2021/22 and 2022/23 final level of the budget requirement will depend on the 
outcome of subsequent Local Government Finance Settlements following the 
outcome of the Fair Funding Review and Spending Review 2020.

Budget Carry Forward Policy 

The Council has experienced significant demand pressures in recent years resulting 
in a contribution of £3.3m and £6.7m from the Equalisation Reserve for 2018/19 and 
2019/20 respectively.

The Budget Carry Forward policy is a framework which Directorates can use to apply 
to carry forward unspent revenue budget from one financial year to another. The 
current policy has been in use for a number of years, but given the Council’s on-
going financial pressures, it is recommended to amend the policy. This would allow 
unutilised budget to be either held in a reserve for future use, or be used to fund 
priority issues.

Further detail of the policy is provided in Appendix 3.

Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23
 
The proposed Capital Programme has been developed in line with the Council’s 
priorities:

 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s economic 
growth potential and continue to regenerate our town centres.

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard of quality 
building and public space.

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, realising 
maximum value from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, customers and 
other building users.

Page 195



13

5.5.2

5.5.3

5.5.4

5.5.5

5.5.6

Along with the Council’s current priorities, the proposed Capital Programme has 
been developed for 2020/21 to 2022/23, taking into consideration the available 
resources. The approach for setting the 2020/21 capital budget has followed the 
steps below: 

 Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 27th February 
2019.

 Review of 2019/20 and 2020/21 schemes – work has been undertaken with 
Services and Leadership Team to review 2019/20 and 2020/21 schemes taking 
into account spend to date, previous re-phasing of budget,  and links to the 
Council’s priorities.

 Consideration of new schemes in relation to the Council’s priorities.
 Final Review Session with the Leader of the Council / Cabinet Member for 

Finance, Director of Resources, Director of Neighbourhoods, and Director of 
Economy, followed by approval to progress the proposed programme by the 
Council’s Leadership Team.

Table 10 shows the changes to the Capital Programme reported to Cabinet 2nd 
December 2019, following consultation.

Table 10 Changes to the Capital Programme

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Source of funding

£'000 £'000 £'000

Total Capital Programme presented to 2nd December 2019 Cabinet 80,723 48,480 25,232

Proposed addition in expenditure
Neighbourhoods: Affordable Housing Fund 2,752 - - Capital Receipts / 

External Contributions

REVISED 2020/21 - 2022/23 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 83,475 48,480 25,232

The Affordable Housing Fund (AHF) is ring fenced for the delivery of affordable 
housing, as defined in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The AHF 
will be utilised in housing schemes to meet the housing needs in the Borough.

When a scheme is approved and the proposed spend is profiled across financial 
years, the scheme funding will be approved across these financial years and will 
therefore be considered as a priority in future years. Any reduction in the funding of 
these schemes will only be considered where contracts have not been entered into.

Schemes totalling £83.475m have been proposed to be included in the 2020/21 
Capital Programme. Table 11 shows the total proposed Capital expenditure by 
service for 2020/21 to 2021/22, and how the expenditure is proposed to be funded

Page 196



14

5.5.7

5.5.8

5.5.9

5.5.10

Table 11 Summary of Capital Programme
 

 2020/21  2021/22 2022/23
Directorate £'000 £'000 £'000
Adult Care 2,440 2,440 2,440
Children's Services 21,640 7,516 7,516
Economy 19,559 11,550 4,431
Neighbourhoods 33,497 26,686 10,485
Public Health 4,328 288 360
Resources 2,011 0 0
Total requirement 83,475 48,480 25,232
    

Funding Source
Prudential Borrowing 19,539 19,975 11,580
External Grant and contributions 39,960 19,973 11,923
Invest to Save 20,428 7,338 1,530
Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay 1,704 155 155
Capital Receipts 1,844 1,039 44
Total funding 83,475 48,480 25,232

The Capital schemes are detailed in Appendix 4 and are categorised as follows:

 Annual Allocation - These schemes receive annual allocations either as a 
result of external funding, or because the capital investment is essential for the 
Council to maintain current service delivery or to meet statutory 
responsibilities.

 Scheme started in previous years - These schemes are multi-year schemes 
that commenced prior to 2020/21.

 New Bid - These are new schemes or schemes requiring additional funding for 
the 2020/21 capital programme.

As the cost of the proposed Capital programme is greater than the capital receipts 
and external funding available, borrowing is required to fund the difference. This has 
an impact on the Council’s Revenue budget. Borrowing requires repayment of both 
the principle sum borrowed and associated interest over a given number of years. 
The budgeted cost of borrowing for the 2020/21 Capital Programme is £0.280m, 
increasing to £1.524m in 2021/22.

The Capital budget is funded from a number of sources: borrowing, capital receipts, 
revenue contribution to capital outlay and external funding/ contributions. Borrowing 
has an implication for the Council’s Revenue budget as the Council has to make 
provision to repay the cost of borrowing.

The Council is able to borrow resources for capital schemes. The revenue 
implications of this option are that for every £1m of capital expenditure there is 
approximately £61k per annum of revenue cost to repay borrowing, over a 40 year 

Page 197



15

5.5.11

5.5.12

5.5.13

6.

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

period. If borrowing is required over a shorter period, the annual cost is greater but 
the overall cost is less. 

Since Budget Council in February 2019, a number of new schemes have been added 
to the provisional  2020/21 Capital Programme which are to be funded by borrowing; 
and a review of the phasing of expenditure of existing schemes has taken place, with 
several schemes re-profiling the expenditure into future years. In addition, two 
schemes, approved in previous years, have been removed from the programme:

 Town Centre Capital Programme
 Town Centre Purchases – Rochdale & Middleton

The net annual budgeted cost of borrowing for 2020/21 additional and revised 
schemes is £0.117m; the appropriate revenue cost will be included within the 
revenue budget for 2020/21 and future years, and presented to Cabinet in February 
2020.

The scheme for the decant of Rochdale Town Hall requires revenue funding of 
£750k, provision for which has been included within the revenue budget for 2020/21.

PART 2 COLLECTION FUND AND CALCULATION OF COUNCIL TAX AND 
BUSINESS RATES

Collection Fund 2020/21

As a billing authority the Council is required to maintain a separate Collection Fund. 
The only transactions dealt with through the Collection Fund relate to the collection 
of Council Tax income, Business Rates and the payment of precepts. 

The amounts of Council Tax are expressed per Band D property and are shown 
separately for the Council, the Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner precept and 
the Mayoral General precept (including Fire Services).

Under current regulations billing authorities must estimate the annual surplus or 
deficit on the Collection Fund. They must then notify the relevant precepting 
authorities of the amount calculated as their share. It is estimated that the Collection 
Fund will be in a surplus position of £1.779m as at the 31st March 2020. The Council’s 
share of the forecast Collection Fund surplus as at 31st March 2020 is £1.668m. 

Table 12 shows the calculation of the 2020/21 Council Tax for district purposes and 
the amount to be precepted on the Collection Fund in relation to the Greater 
Manchester Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner precept and the Mayoral 
General precept (including Fire Services). A comparison with 2019/20 is provided.

Page 198



16

6.1.5

6.1.6

6.1.7

6.2

6.2.1

Table 12: Calculation of the Council Tax
 

2019/20 2020/21
£ £ £ %

1 District Requirements 1,582.14 1,645.27 63.13 3.99%

Precepts
2 Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner Precept 198.30 208.30 10.00 5.04%
3 Mayoral General Precept (including Fire Services) 76.95 90.95 14.00 18.19%

4 Total 1,857.39 1,944.52 87.13 4.69%

Precept
Council Tax (Band D)

Increase

The Council Tax Base takes into account changes to the number of properties, 
discounts and collection levels. The overall estimated collection rate assumed in the 
calculation has been increased to 98.0% (97.5% in 2019/20) to reflect current 
collection performance. The Council Tax base for 2020/21 of 55,745 was approved 
by Council on 18th December 2019, representing the number of Band D equivalent 
properties that we collect Council Tax from.

The 2020/21 Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner precept and the Mayoral 
General precept have yet to be approved.  The Mayoral precepts for 2020/21 will be 
approved by the GMCA on 14th February 2020. For planning purposes the following 
are assumptions have been made:

 Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner Precept – a maximum £10 increase 
as per the referendum limit.

 Mayoral General Precept (including Fire Services) – a £14 increase, including 
an increase for bus reform.

The overall Council Tax increase, including the final Mayoral precepts, will be 
reported to Budget Council on 26th February 2020. 

Recommended Council Tax

The Council Tax recommended for 2020/21, subject to confirmation of the Mayoral 
precepts is £1,944.52 for Band D properties, an increase of £87.13 (4.69%). The 
Council Tax for individual bands is shown in Table 13.

Page 199



17

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Table 13: Recommended Council Tax per Band

  

Band 2019/20 2020/21
£ £ £ %

Band A 1,238.26 1,296.35 58.09 4.69%
Band B 1,444.63 1,512.39 67.76 4.69%
Band C 1,651.01 1,728.47 77.46 4.69%
Band D 1,857.39 1,944.52 87.13 4.69%
Band E 2,270.15 2,376.64 106.49 4.69%
Band F 2,682.89 2,808.75 125.86 4.69%
Band G 3,095.65 3,240.87 145.22 4.69%
Band H 3,714.78 3,889.04 174.26 4.69%

Increase

Council Tax Levels

Collection of Business Rates

The amount the Council is required to collect in Business Rates in 2020/21 is 
estimated to be £63.935m. The Council is required to pay 1% of the amount of 
Business Rates it collects from local businesses to the GM Mayor in respect of Fire 
Services. The remaining 99% is retained by the Council under the Greater 
Manchester pilot scheme, as shown in Table 14.

Table 14: Distribution of Business Rates

£m %
Central Government 0.000 0%
GM Fire and Rescue Authority 0.639 1%
Retained 63.296 99%
Total Collection 63.935

2020/21

Since 1st April 2013, the Council has been able to retain 100% of the income relating 
to eligible Renewable Energy schemes within the borough, rather than it being part 
of the Business Rates Retention Scheme. The Renewable Energy scheme income, 
estimated to be £0.582m, is transferred directly to the Council’s General Fund in 
2020/21.

The total estimated business rates income for the General Fund in 2020/21 is 
£63.878m (£63.296m retained business rates income, plus £0.582m for the 
renewable energy scheme).

A number of changes to Business Rates reliefs were announced in the Queen’s 
speech and are expected to be included in the Budget, which is due to take place on 
11th March:

 Increase retail relief from 33.3% to 50%
 Extending retail relief to include cinemas and music venues

Page 200



18

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.3.7

 £1,000 relief for pubs 
 Extending local newspaper relief

It is expected that local authorities will be compensated for any reduction in Business 
Rates income via Section 31 grant.

Any growth or loss in Business Rates is managed through the Collection Fund, with 
any surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund being distributed to the precepting 
authorities in the following financial year.

The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government has been notified of the 
intention to continue the Business Rates Pool for Greater Manchester plus Cheshire 
East and Cheshire West and Chester in 2020/21. The purpose of pooling business 
rates across the individual Authorities is not intended to alter individual authorities’ 
income levels but to retain any levy that might be payable by some authorities to 
Central Government. Any sum gained, after applying the agreed allocation to the 
levy authorities, is retained by the Pool for investment within Greater Manchester 
and the other non-Greater Manchester Authorities involved in the Pool.

Costs and Budget Summary

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

A one off payment of £250,000 from the Equalisation Reserve for 2020/21 has 
been be allocated to the school meals catering service. This was approved by 
the Chief Executive on the basis of urgency and to enable consultation to be 
undertaken with schools.

Bus Reform
The financial case for the Bus Reform proposals include a full assessment of 
how the GMCA could afford to make and operate the proposed scheme. The 
forecast net costs over the transition period up to 2024/25 are approximately 
£134.5m. The sources of funding include £17.8m of contributions by Local 
Authorities as a proposed one off increase in the statutory contribution in 
2020/21. The local authority contribution may be required following the 
outcomes of the consultation on the proposed bus reforms.  On the basis of 
the above Rochdale’s share would be £1.4m.  Provision has been made in 
the budget and will be drawn down during 2020/21 if required.

Children’s Strategy
Cabinet 1st October 2019 approved the overall investment strategy for 
Children’s Social Care. Funding for the financial implications of the Children’s 
Strategy has been included in the budget. Cabinet also approved that funding 
for stabilisation of the workforce of £880k from the Equalisation Reserve. As 
the funding for the Children’s Strategy has been provided for in the budget, 
separate funding from the Equalisation Reserve is not required. 

Adult Care pressures
The budget provides funding for Adult Care pressures, particularly in relation 
to commissioning and the impact of the National Living Wage increase on the 
cost of the Adult Care contracts.

Page 201



19

7.6

7.7

7.8

Pay and Price inflation
Service budgets are based on a 2% pay award for 2020/21. A separate 
provision of £671k is held centrally to cover an additional 1% pay award. 
Service budgets assume no inflation increase in non-pay budgets; with 
contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues are considered 
on a case by case basis.  A separate provision of £583k is held centrally to 
cover an additional 1% increase on prices.

Advance Payment of Employer Pensions Contributions
The Council currently pays an employer’s contribution to the Greater 
Manchester Pension Fund on a monthly basis for all members of staff who 
are active in the Fund. We have the opportunity to pay our contributions in 
advance by one or three years in a single lump sum. The Fund would expect 
to generate additional returns as a result of the earlier receipt so that less is 
needed to generate the same final outcome. The Council would benefit from 
a reduced contribution rate depending on how far in advance the payment is 
made.

In order to make the advanced payment the Council would need to undertake 
some additional external borrowing. Our overall net benefits after these costs 
and the risks associated with the proposal are currently being evaluated. The 
borrowing can be accommodated within the limits outlined in our Treasury 
Management Strategy.

CIPFA Financial Management Code
CIPFA has developed a Financial Management Code (FM Code), which is 
designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist local 
authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability. The FM Code sets 
the standards of financial management for local authorities. It applies a 
principles-based approach and relates to other statutory and good practice 
guidance. It builds on other codes and frameworks. The principles translate 
into financial management standards which are obligatory but not prescriptive 
regarding how they are achieved.

Local authorities need to ensure that their governance and financial 
management meets the requirements of the code. CIPFA considers that the 
implementation date of April 2020 should indicate the commencement of a 
‘shadow year’ and that by the end of 2020/21, local authorities should be able 
to demonstrate that they are working towards full implementation of the code. 
The first full year of compliance with the FM Code will be 2021/22.

An initial consideration of the FM Code indicates that the Council seems well 
placed, however a formal process to review the requirements of the FM Code 
will begin in March 2020.

Page 202



20

Risk and Policy Implications

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

8.1.4

8.1.5

Risk Implications

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels 
of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of the Local 
Government Finance Settlement 2020/21 is not expected be received until late 
January, and any funding changes will be reported to Budget Council 26th 
February 2020.

There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to the 
projections contained in this report have been identified. These are discussed in 
more detail in the Medium Term Financial Strategy provided at Appendix 7 to this 
report.

The balanced revenue budget position outlined in section 5.2 is dependent on a 
number of key budget assumptions. Any variation in these assumptions could 
impact on the achievement of a balanced budget:

 Council Tax income – the delivery of the projected new housing within the 
borough.

 Business Rates income – realisation of the estimated business rates 
growth.

 The delivery of the approved savings proposals.
 Confirmation of estimated government funding.
 The continued delivery of the benefits generated through integration of 

Health and Social Care.
 Containment of service budget pressures. 
 Receipt of expected commercial investment income, for example the 

Manchester Airport Dividend.

The Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21 is a one year only 
settlement, in advance of the Spending Round 2020. Major reforms to the local 
government funding system are due to be introduced from 2021/22 onwards. 
These include the resetting of Business Rates baselines, the Fair Funding 
Review and the proposed move to 75% Business Rates Retention. The 
provisional budgets for 2021/22 and 2022/23 currently assume that any impact 
of these reforms will be neutral, taking account of the potential level of funding 
for local government and the transitional arrangements expected to be put in 
place. These assumptions will be continually reviewed as further information on 
the proposed reforms becomes available.

The savings proposals for 2020/21 currently being considered include a number 
of HMRCCG proposals which are pipeline projects. A one-off provision of £2m 
has been included in the 2020/21 budget to mitigate the Council’s potential 
liability if the savings proposals approved by the Integrated Commissioning 
Board are not achieved. The requirement for this provision in 2020/21 and future 
years will be continue to be reviewed throughout the budget process. 

Page 203



21

8.1.6

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.2.4

8.2.5

Capital Programme
Externally funded schemes cannot start until confirmation of the required 
funding has been received. This is a particular risk where the scheme is reliant 
on external funding with the provisional budget being based on forecast income. 
Should the level of income not be received, the level of expenditure would need 
to be considered to allow the scheme to progress with a reduced budget.

The key assumptions are reviewed and updated throughout the year based 
upon latest information available.

Legal Implications

The Council Tax in England and Wales is provided for and governed by the 
provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  Within this Act, the 
Council is designated as a “Billing Authority”, responsible for the billing, 
collection and enforcement of Council Tax.  The Council is under a duty to 
calculate the budget in accordance with Section 32 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 and must make three calculations namely: an estimate of the 
Council’s gross revenue expenditure; an estimate of anticipated income; and a 
calculation of the difference between the two. The amount of the budget 
requirement must be sufficient to meet the Council’s budget commitments and 
ensure a balanced budget. The amount of the budget requirement must leave 
the Council with adequate financial reserves. The level of budget requirement 
must not be unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its 
Council Tax payers and non-domestic rate payers.  

Failure to make a lawful Council Tax by 11th  March, in the financial year 
preceding that for which it is set, could have serious financial results for the 
Council and make the Council vulnerable to an Order from the Courts requiring 
it to make a Council Tax.

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on local 
authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their financial 
affairs'. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires Chief Financial 
Officers to report to their authorities about the robustness of estimates and the 
adequacy of reserves when determining their precepts, and authorities are 
required to take the Chief Financial Officer’s report into account when setting 
the Council Tax.

Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand notice. 
The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging authorities 
to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed by these 
regulations.

There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic rates 
in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital expenditure) for 
each financial year.

Page 204



22

8.2.6

8.2.7

8.2.8

8.3

8.3.1

Following the House of Commons’ approval of the Local Government Finance 
Report and council tax referendum principles for 2016-17 in early 2016, the 
Secretary of State will issue a Notice under Section 52ZY of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. This will require Section 151 officers to provide 
information demonstrating that an amount equivalent to the additional council 
tax has been allocated to Adult Social Care.

The Equality Act 2010 includes a public sector equality duty which requires 
Councils when exercising functions to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment and victimization and other conduct prohibited 
under the Act and to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations 
between those who share a “protected characteristic and those who do not 
share that protected characteristic”.  When a Budget proposal has implications 
for people covered by the Equality Act 2010, the Council must take into account 
of the Equality Duty and any particular impact on the protected group and an 
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is annexed to this report.

Under the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000 the responsibility for approving any plan or strategy for the 
control of local authority borrowing, investment or Capital Strategy or for 
determining the minimum revenue provision is a decision of the full Council. The 
function of the Executive is to prepare and propose the relevant strategy to the 
Council. The Council may require the Cabinet to reconsider, amend, modify, 
revise, vary, withdraw or revoke the strategy

Equality Impact Assessment

An Equality Impact Assessment has been provided at Appendix 6.

Consultation

9.1

9.2

Consultation on savings proposals was undertaken with Members, stakeholder 
groups, staff and service users as appropriate. Consultation ended on 13th 
December. The outcome of consultation is reported to Cabinet elsewhere on 
this agenda.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Joint Consultative and 
Negotiating Group have been consulted on the Capital programme.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

For Further Information Contact: Chris Mills, Tel: 01706 925412, 
chris.mills@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 205



23

List of Appendices

Appendix 1 – Revenue Budget Summary

Appendix 2 – Directorate Budgets

Appendix 3 – Budget Carry Forward Policy

Appendix 4a – Capital Programme Summary

Appendix 4b – Capital Programme Detail by Scheme

Appendix 5 – Pay Policy Statement

Appendix 6 – Equalities Impact Assessment

Appendix 7 – Medium Term Financial Strategy

Page 206



24
Page 207



25

APPENDIX 1
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY ESTIMATES 2020/21 - 2022/23

SERVICE 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

1 Adult Care 61,036 65,841 69,524

2 Children's Services 65,788 64,355 63,876

3 Economy 15,595 15,766 15,938

4 Neighbourhoods 51,370 51,528 53,087

5 Resources 8,829 8,578 9,027

6 Public Health and Wellbeing 20,714 20,739 20,798

7 TOTAL 223,332 226,807 232,250

8 Finance Control 16,009 16,772 16,646

9 Contingency 535 1,316 2,646

10 SERVICES SUB TOTAL 239,876 244,895 251,542

11 Budget Pressures Fund 1,000 2,000 2,500

12 Saving Proposals (subject to consultation) -829 -1,005 -1,036 

13 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 240,047 245,890 253,006

14 Contribution To/(From) Reserves/Balances 4,565 1,591 73

15 Contribution To/ (From) Unusable Reserves -20,485 -19,436 -19,436 

16 Contribution To Integrated Pool Fund (Note 1) 102,339 103,564 106,655

16b Contribution (From) Integrated Pool Fund (Note 1) -102,339 -105,564 -108,655 

17 NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 224,127 226,045 231,643

18 BUDGET REQUIREMENT 224,127 226,045 231,643
RESOURCES
Locally Generated Funding

19 Council Tax -91,715 -94,700 -97,510 

20 Business Rates Retained -63,877 -65,404 -68,146 

21 Collection Fund Surplus -1,668 0 0

22 TOTAL LOCALLY GENERATED FUNDING -157,260 -160,104 -165,656 

Government Grants
23 Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0
24 General Grants -30,526 -29,552 -29,549 
25 Business Rates Top-Up Grant -36,341 -36,389 -36,438 
26 TOTAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS -66,867 -65,941 -65,987 

27 TOTAL RESOURCES -224,127 -226,045 -231,643 

28 UNFUNDED ONGOING LA REQUIREMENT 0 0 0
30 UNFUNDED ONGOING POOL REQUIREMENT 0 2,000 2,000
31 Less funding from one year only savings 0 0 0
32 UNFUNDED ONGOING REQUIREMENT 0 2,000 2,000

Page 208



26

Appendix 2

Budgets for 2020/21 - 2022/23

AREA OF SERVICE:

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

Controllable Budget  58,032  62,838  66,523
Uncontrollable Budget  3,004  3,003  3,001
Total Service Budget  61,036  65,841  69,524

Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
1 Gross Controllable Expenditure  101,539  106,501  110,196
2 Less Expenditure linked to Grant Income - 26,873 - 26,873 - 26,873
3=1+2 Net Controllable Expenditure  74,666  79,628  83,323

What does the Gross Expenditure budget fund?
Staffing  11,392  11,521  11,756
Indirect Staffing Costs  168  169  170
Premises costs  178  180  183
Transport  88  88  88
Supplies and Services  2,086  1,918  1,918
Third Party Payments  69,007  74,100  77,445
Transfer Payments  18,613  18,518  18,629
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  4  4  4
Internally Commissioned  3  3  3

4 Total  101,539  106,501  110,196

Earned Income from Fees & Charges
Fees and Charges/Earned Income - 16,634 - 16,790 - 16,800

5 Total - 16,634 - 16,790 - 16,800

6=3+5 Net Controllable Budget  58,032  62,838  66,523

1 Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  2,268  2,289  2,261

What areas of expenditure does this cover
Staffing  -  -  -
Indirect Staffing Costs  -  -  -
Premises costs  7  7  7
Transport  1  1  -
Supplies and Services  -  -  -
Third Party Payments  -  -  -
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Internal Charges (net)  2,097  2,118  2,091
Depreciation  163  163  163
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned  -  -  -
Total Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  2,268  2,289  2,261

Uncontrollable Income
2 Gross Uncontrollable Income (Trading Income)  736  714  740

3 Net Uncontrollable Budget  3,004  3,003  3,001

Uncontrollable by Service 

Controllable by Service 

ADULT CARE

Page 209



27

Budgets for 2020/21 - 2022/23

AREA OF SERVICE:

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

Controllable Budget  47,833  46,602  46,124
Uncontrollable Budget  17,955  17,753  17,752
Total Service Budget  65,788  64,355  63,876

Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
1 Gross Controllable Expenditure  260,294  261,311  260,915
2 Less Expenditure linked to Grant Income - 203,547 - 204,104 - 204,187
3=1+2 Net Controllable Expenditure  56,747  57,207  56,728

What does the Gross Expenditure budget fund?
Staffing  31,174  31,667  32,166
Indirect Staffing Costs  1,240  1,247  1,254
Premises costs  2,772  2,794  2,805
Transport  2,992  2,993  2,994
Supplies and Services  193,041  193,627  193,917
Third Party Payments  18,414  16,619  15,415
Transfer Payments  12,583  12,598  12,598
Reserves - 293 - 293 - 293
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned - 1,629  59  59

4 Total  260,294  261,311  260,915

Earned Income from Fees & Charges
Fees and Charges/Earned Income - 8,914 - 10,605 - 10,604

5 Total - 8,914 - 10,605 - 10,604

6=3+5 Net Controllable Budget  47,833  46,602  46,124

1 Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  15,679  15,695  15,795

What areas of expenditure does this cover
Staffing  -  -  -
Indirect Staffing Costs  1,633  1,663  1,665
Premises costs  17  17  17
Transport  276  277  276
Supplies and Services  -  -  -
Third Party Payments  -  -  -
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Internal Charges (net)  3,350  3,565  3,664
Depreciation  10,403  10,173  10,173
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned  -  -  -
Total Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  15,679  15,695  15,795

Uncontrollable Income
2 Gross Uncontrollable Income (Trading Income)  2,276  2,058  1,957

3 Net Uncontrollable Budget  17,955  17,753  17,752

Controllable by Service 

CHILDRENS SERVICE

Uncontrollable by Service 

Page 210



28

Budgets for 2020/21 - 2022/23

AREA OF SERVICE:

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

Controllable Budget  15,071  15,248  15,423
Uncontrollable Budget  524  518  515
Total Service Budget  15,595  15,766  15,938

Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
1 Gross Controllable Expenditure  27,063  27,213  27,458
2 Less Expenditure linked to Grant Income - 366 - 366 - 366
3=1+2 Net Controllable Expenditure  26,697  26,847  27,092

What does the Gross Expenditure budget fund?
Staffing  3,759  3,828  3,898
Indirect Staffing Costs  82  83  83
Premises costs  3,977  4,066  4,163
Transport  58  58  58
Supplies and Services  3,629  3,444  3,421
Third Party Payments  15,369  15,522  15,678
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Reserves  204  227  172
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned - 15 - 15 - 15

4 Total  27,063  27,213  27,458

Earned Income from Fees & Charges
Fees and Charges/Earned Income - 11,626 - 11,599 - 11,669

5 Total - 11,626 - 11,599 - 11,669

6=3+5 Net Controllable Budget  15,071  15,248  15,423

1 Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  409  405  402

What areas of expenditure does this cover
Staffing  -  -  -
Indirect Staffing Costs  -  -  -
Premises costs  13  16  15
Transport  -  -  -
Supplies and Services  -  -  -
Third Party Payments  -  -  -
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Internal Charges (net)  276  271  269
Depreciation  120  118  118
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned  -  -  -
Total Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  409  405  402

Uncontrollable Income
2 Gross Uncontrollable Income (Trading Income)  115  113  113

3 Net Uncontrollable Budget  524  518  515

ECONOMY

Controllable by Service 

Uncontrollable by Service 

Page 211



29

Budgets for 2020/21 - 2022/23

AREA OF SERVICE:

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

Controllable Budget  50,333  51,289  52,868
Uncontrollable Budget  1,037  239  219
Total Service Budget  51,370  51,528  53,087

Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
1 Gross Controllable Expenditure  77,366  78,268  79,876
2 Less Expenditure linked to Grant Income - 2,494 - 2,494 - 2,494
3=1+2 Net Controllable Expenditure  74,872  75,774  77,382

What does the Gross Expenditure budget fund?
Staffing  30,255  30,914  31,588
Indirect Staffing Costs  335  336  338
Premises costs  6,353  6,567  6,794
Transport  3,696  3,753  3,795
Supplies and Services  17,158  17,306  17,557
Third Party Payments  20,946  20,876  21,286
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Reserves  1  1  1
Capital Financing  8  8  8
Internally Commissioned - 1,386 - 1,493 - 1,491

4 Total  77,366  78,268  79,876

Earned Income from Fees & Charges
Fees and Charges/Earned Income - 24,539 - 24,485 - 24,514

5 Total - 24,539 - 24,485 - 24,514

6=3+5 Net Controllable Budget  50,333  51,289  52,868

1 Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure - 2,604 - 2,565 - 2,074

What areas of expenditure does this cover
Staffing  -  -  -
Indirect Staffing Costs  -  -  -
Premises costs  241  242  242
Transport  540  541  541
Supplies and Services  -  -  -
Third Party Payments  -  -  -
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Internal Charges (net) - 11,704 - 10,888 - 10,397
Depreciation  8,319  7,540  7,540
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned  -  -  -
Total Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure - 2,604 - 2,565 - 2,074

Uncontrollable Income
2 Gross Uncontrollable Income (Trading Income)  3,641  2,804  2,293

3 Net Uncontrollable Budget  1,037  239  219

NEIGHBOURHOODS

Controllable by Service 

Uncontrollable by Service 

Page 212



30

Budgets for 2020/21 - 2022/23

AREA OF SERVICE:

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

Controllable Budget  10,974  10,704  11,124
Uncontrollable Budget - 2,145 - 2,126 - 2,097
Total Service Budget  8,829  8,578  9,027

Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
1 Gross Controllable Expenditure  77,044  76,673  77,124
2 Less Expenditure linked to Grant Income - 63,579 - 63,447 - 63,447
3=1+2 Net Controllable Expenditure  13,465  13,226  13,677

What does the Gross Expenditure budget fund?
Staffing  10,929  10,843  11,052
Indirect Staffing Costs  1,223  1,235  1,246
Premises costs  16  16  16
Transport  30  30  30
Supplies and Services  2,452  2,183  2,414
Third Party Payments  1,248  1,220  1,220
Transfer Payments  61,276  61,276  61,276
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  123  123  123
Internally Commissioned - 253 - 253 - 253

4 Total  77,044  76,673  77,124

Earned Income from Fees & Charges
Fees and Charges/Earned Income - 2,491 - 2,522 - 2,553

5 Total - 2,491 - 2,522 - 2,553

6=3+5 Net Controllable Budget  10,974  10,704  11,124

1 Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure - 5,332 - 4,997 - 4,958

What areas of expenditure does this cover
Staffing  -  -  -
Indirect Staffing Costs  -  -  -
Premises costs  2  2  2
Transport  1  1  1
Supplies and Services  -  -  -
Third Party Payments  -  -  -
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Internal Charges (net) - 5,347 - 5,003 - 4,964
Depreciation  12  3  3
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned  -  -  -
Total Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure - 5,332 - 4,997 - 4,958

Uncontrollable Income
2 Gross Uncontrollable Income (Trading Income)  3,187  2,871  2,861

3 Net Uncontrollable Budget - 2,145 - 2,126 - 2,097

RESOURCES

Controllable by Service 

Uncontrollable by Service 

Page 213



31

AREA OF SERVICE:

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000

Controllable Budget  18,932  18,986  19,045
Uncontrollable Budget  1,782  1,753  1,753
Total Service Budget  20,714  20,739  20,798

Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
1 Gross Controllable Expenditure  21,226  21,280  21,339
2 Less Expenditure linked to Grant Income  -  -  -
3=1+2 Net Controllable Expenditure  21,226  21,280  21,339

What does the Gross Expenditure budget fund?
Staffing  1,179  1,190  1,202
Indirect Staffing Costs  26  26  26
Premises costs  267  269  272
Transport  3  3  3
Supplies and Services  2,926  2,927  2,926
Third Party Payments  13,545  13,585  13,630
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned  3,280  3,280  3,280

4 Total  21,226  21,280  21,339

Earned Income from Fees & Charges
Fees and Charges/Earned Income - 2,294 - 2,294 - 2,294

5 Total - 2,294 - 2,294 - 2,294

6=3+5 Net Controllable Budget  18,932  18,986  19,045

1 Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  1,782  1,753  1,753

What areas of expenditure does this cover
Staffing  -  -  -
Indirect Staffing Costs  -  -  -
Premises costs  -  -  -
Transport  -  -  -
Supplies and Services  -  -  -
Third Party Payments  -  -  -
Transfer Payments  -  -  -
Internal Charges (net)  231  231  231
Depreciation  1,551  1,522  1,522
Reserves  -  -  -
Capital Financing  -  -  -
Internally Commissioned  -  -  -
Total Gross Uncontrollable Expenditure  1,782  1,753  1,753

Uncontrollable Income
2 Gross Uncontrollable Income (Trading Income)  -  -  -

3 Net Uncontrollable Budget  1,782  1,753  1,753

PUBLIC HEALTH & WELLBEING

Controllable by Service 

Uncontrollable by Service 

Page 214



32

Appendix 3

Budget Carry Forward Policy 

The Budget Carry Forward policy is a framework which services can use to apply to carry forward 
unspent revenue budget from one financial year to another. The current policy has been in use for a 
number of years, but given the Council’s on-going financial pressures, which have been partly funded 
from the use of reserves, it is recommended to amend the policy. This would allow unutilised budget to 
be either held in a reserve for future use, or be used to fund priority issues.

Budget carry forwards may be automatic or based on specific requests.

Automatic carry forwards:

The categories for automatic carry forwards include:

 Funds held on behalf of partners
 Grants that are ring fenced for specific purposes
 Transformation Fund allocations

All automatic requests need to be evidenced that the budget meets the criteria. Those not meeting the 
criteria for automatic carry forward may be submitted for consideration as non-automatic carry forward 
requests. 

Non-automatic carry forwards:

Only directorates that have an overall underspend in the relevant financial year may request specific 
budget carry forwards, and the de minimis level per request is £100k. It is felt that directorates should be 
able to accommodate lower levels of funding. 

It is expected that requests will be minimal and should primarily relate to where the service has not been 
able to complete a specific piece of work in-year.

All budget carry forward applications must have the support of the relevant Portfolio Holder and Service 
Director before being submitted. Requests will be subject to scrutiny by Leadership Team and then 
reviewed and approved as appropriate by the Leader/Portfolio Holder for Finance, with support from the 
Section 151 Officer. 

Page 215



33

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 TO 2022/23 Appendix 4a

Directorate Scheme Name Category 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant Annual Allocation 2,440 2,440 2,440 2,440 2,440 2,440
Children's Services Children with Disabilities cost reduction project New bid 1,114 1,114
Children's Services Devolved Formula Capital Annual Allocation 483 483 483 483 483 483
Children's Services New Place Planning Annual Allocation 18,005 5,200 5,200 18,005 5,200 5,200
Children's Services Schools Capital Condition Programme Annual Allocation 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833
Children's Services Special Provision Fund Annual Allocation 205 205
Economy Property Growth Fund Scheme started in previous years 10,000 10,000
Economy Hopwood Old Hall refurbishment Scheme started in previous years 25 25
Economy Rochdale & Littleborough Flood Relief Scheme Scheme started in previous years 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600
Economy East Lancashire Railway Scheme started in previous years 50 50
Economy East Lancashire Railway - Castleton Masterplan New Bid 500 1,000 500 1,000
Economy Hopwood Old Hall - feasibility New Bid 50 50
Economy Milkstone Road Masterplan & improvements Scheme started in previous years 250 250
Economy Rail Strategy and Park & Ride Scheme started in previous years 200 200
Economy Rochdale Fire Station - office space New bid 200 50 200 50
Economy Rochdale Station Gateway Scheme started in previous years / New bid 250 2,250 250 2,250
Economy Smithybridge Railway Station - Park and Ride New Bid 400 400
Economy Drake Street - Phases II & III Scheme started in previous years 250 150 100 250 150 100
Economy Heywood/Middleton/Littleborough - Town Centre Masterplans New Bid 160 160
Economy Metrolink Feasibility Scheme started in previous years 50 50
Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 Scheme started in previous years 500 2,000 500 2,000
Economy Rochdale Town Centre (3 year strategy) Scheme started in previous years 300 300
Economy Rochdale Town Hall decant New bid 750 750
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration Scheme started in previous years 3,024 3,024
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration (phase 2) New bid 4,331 4,331
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration (phase 3) New bid
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square - phase 2 Scheme started in previous years 3,500 3,500
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square (extension to existing scheme) New bid
Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy Scheme started in previous years 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Boroughwide Allotments Scheme started in previous years 58 65 58 65
Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery Annual Allocation 120 120 120 120 120 120
Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way Annual Allocation 80 80 80 80 80 80
Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment Annual Allocation 75 75 75 75 75 75
Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme Annual Allocation / New Bid 1,345 655 1,839 1,276 616 1,625 69 39 44 170
Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme Annual Allocation 360 360 360 360 360 360
Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School Scheme started in previous years 522 522
Neighbourhoods Highways Investment Scheme started in previous years / New bid 4,000 3,000 3,000 2,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Junction 19 New bid * *
Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan Annual Allocation 1,967 1,967 1,967 1,967 1,967 1,967
Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage Scheme started in previous years 50 50
Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme Scheme started in previous years / New bid 1,200 1,000 1,000 1,200 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Delivering High Value Housing Scheme started in previous years 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund Annual Allocation 800 800 800 800 800 800
Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme Scheme started in previous years 468 150 468 150
Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme Scheme started in previous years 926 926
Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme Annual Allocation / New bid 444 444 444 260 444 444 184
Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) Annual Allocation 500 500 500 500 500 500
Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement New bid 60 50 50 50 50 60
Neighbourhoods Extending libraries opening hours New bid 150 150
Neighbourhoods RFID - library self serve equipment - replacement project New bid 70 70
Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group Annual allocation 2,000 1,750 1,750 2,000 1,750 1,750
Neighbourhoods Number One Riverside - revolving doors replacement New bid 120 120
Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme Annual Allocation 100 100 100 100 100 100
Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency - Carbon Neutral New Bid 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme Annual Allocation 400 400 400 400 400 400
Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing Fund New bid 2,752 775 1,977
Public Health Hollingworth Lake improvements New bid 300 300
Public Health Leisure Centre Improvements New bid 20 20
Public Health Link4Life additional equipment Heywood New bid 50 50
Public Health Link4Life additional equipment Rochdale New bid 130 130
Public Health Link4Life building alterations Heywood New bid 170 170
Public Health Link4Life building alterations Rochdale New bid 270 270
Public Health Link4Life equipment Annual allocation / New bid 388 288 360 388 288 360
Public Health Replacement of Lake Bank Buildings at Hollingworth Lake New bid 3,000 3,000
Resources HR & Payroll system New bid 151 151
Resources Manchester Airport Investment Scheme started in previous years 1,860 1,860

TOTAL 83,475 48,480 25,232 19,539 19,975 11,580 1,844 1,039 44 39,960 19,973 11,923 20,428 7,338 1,530 1,704 155 155
* This information is exempt by virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Government Grants and 
External Contributions 

£000

Invest to Save
£000

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital Outlay

£000

Total Requirement
£000

Prudential Borrowing
£000

Capital Receipts
£000

P
age 216



34

Appendix 4b - Detail By Scheme

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant
The legislative framework governing DFG is provided by the 'Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration 
Act 1996'. Since 1990, local authorities have been under a statutory duty to provide grant aid to disabled 
people for a range of adaptations in their homes.

2,440 2,440 2,440

2,440 2,440 2,440ADULT CARE

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1
Children's 
Services

Devolved Formula Capital
Schools will develop and commission individual schemes to improve condition and suitability within their 
buildings with guidance and approval from the Council.

483 483 483

2
Children's 
Services

New Place Planning
Provision of additional school places to meet statutory duty through a programme of works combining internal 
remodelling, new build or demountable classroom units.

18,005 5,200 5,200

3
Children's 
Services

Schools Capital Condition 
Programme

Development of a programme of works to resolve major condition and improvement issues in school buildings 
in line with the Local Authority's Asset Management Strategy and Local Policy Statement.

1,833 1,833 1,833

4
Children's 
Services

Special Provision Fund

The special provision fund is to support local authorities to make capital investments in provision for pupils 
with special educational needs and disabilities. To be invested in new places and improvements to facilities 
for pupils with education, health and care (EHC) plans in mainstream and special schools, nurseries, colleges 
and other provision.

205 -

5
Children's 
Services

Children with Disabilities cost 
reduction project

Costing the purchase of a house that would provide a 3 -4 bed children's home for young people with complex 
needs to achieve cost savings. Will include examination of whether the purchase of such a building would, 
along with the revenue costs, reduce the cost of current and future placements in the context of growing 
demand.

       1,114 

21,640 7,516 7,516CHILDREN'S SERVICES

P
age 217



35

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Economy Property Growth Fund

Extension of the existing Commercial Investment Fund (CIF) project, which seeks to acquire properties for a 
commercial, financial return, and to generate revenue savings of 1.5% on the capital invested.
To date, all the CIF acquisitions have been within the borough boundaries, although there was no specific 
prohibition on out-of-borough purchases. In Phase 3 it is proposed to widen the geographical parameters to 
acquire properties out-of-borough. 

10,000 -

2 Economy
Hopwood Old Hall 

refurbishment

The Council has commissioned a scheme of urgent repairs to stabilise and weatherproof this Grade 1 listed 
building using match funding from Historic England. The proposal seeks to capitalise on this investment by 
having a resource to  work with stakeholders, funders and potential interested parties to progress feasibility 
options to secure a sustainable and viable re-use and restoration of this nationally significant heritage asset.  

25 -

3 Economy
Rochdale & Littleborough Flood 

Relief Scheme

The River Roch catchment is the main river network in Rochdale Borough and is vulnerable to extensive flood 
risks affecting communities, businesses, town centres and infrastructure including power, rail and roads. The 
Environment Agency have identified the River Roch catchment as one of their regional priorities for their 
capital investment programme and propose a series of flood storage areas and improved defences to reduce 
the risk of serious flooding for over 1000 homes and businesses.

1,600 1,600

4 Economy East Lancashire Railway

Project is to support ELR extension into Castleton to connect direct rail access to mainline giving accessibility 
to visitors from across northern England together with investment at Heywood station.  The ELR mainline 
project will be a landmark heritage attraction for the Borough with significant physical and economic benefits 
for regeneration of Castleton District centre.

50 -

5 Economy
East Lancashire Railway - 

Castleton Masterplan

The Castleton Station Area Masterplan  identifies the ELR and development of the station area as an 
opportunity to support growth in Castleton, sustainably connect strategic residential sites, develop tourism, 
increase access to employment, services and culture.

500 1,000

6 Economy Hopwood Old Hall -  feasibility
Feasibility works to supplement the ongoing capital programme funding to develop viable future uses of 
Hopwood Old Hall and surrounding land

50

7 Economy
Milkstone Rd Masterplan & 

improvements

To produce a masterplan and associated work programme of physical improvements to make the Milkstone 
and Deeplish Local Centre a more attractive retail and living environment and to secure additional private 
investment in the more effective use of buildings (including upper floors)and spaces to provide increased 
residential and mixed uses, The project will deliver improved street scene, building frontages, pedestrian and 
traffic signage and management and public realm.

250 -

8 Economy Rail Strategy, and Park & Ride

The proposal is for funding to undertake feasibility work or direct development to provide additional park and 
ride facilities at mainline railway station and Metrolink stations.  Schemes would include Rochdale railway 
station, Castleton and Smithy Bridge stations where land is available  Option for Metrolink park and ride at 
Newhey. 

200 -

9 Economy
Rochdale Fire Station - office 

space
Project to create a co-working office space in the 1st floor of the old fire station with excellent transport and 
digital connectivity. 

200 50

10 Economy Rochdale Station Gateway 

To undertake physical improvements within and around Rochdale railway station to encourage further public 
and private sector investment in the wider station area. Proposals will enhance the appearance of this 
gateway entrance to the Borough to include residential led masterplanning, land assembly, new station 
entrance and passenger facilities, park and ride, public realm, pedestrian and cycling facilities and traffic 
management.

250 2,250

11 Economy
Smithybridge Railway Station - 

Park and Ride
This land was acquired in Summer 2019 with funding to be used for site preparation (including demolition) and 
preliminary design of a 100+ space car park, planning fees and subject to overall costs, on site construction.  

400

P
age 218



36

12 Economy Drake Street - Phases II & III
This project aims to work with businesses and property owners to restructure the mix of uses, improve 
infrastructure and connectivity, increase footfall and promote independent retail and increased town centre 
living in the area.

250 150 100

13 Economy
Heywood / Middleton / 

Littleborough - Town Centre 
Masterplans

Heywood, Middleton and Littleborough Town Centres play a key role for the township and the overall success 
of the borough. Following investigation from high level masterplanning projects, opportunities to strengthen 
the town centres have been identified. This bid will support investment and development proposals involving 
new development and the reuse and refurbishment of existing buildings and sites. 

160

14 Economy Metrolink Feasibility
To support ongoing work with TfGM to improve public transport in Middleton, including accessibility into the 
Northern Gateway employment area

50 - -

15 Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2
The project will fund a package of enabling works needed to plug the viability gap for the development of 
Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 site

500 2,000 -

16 Economy
Rochdale Town Centre (3 year 

strategy)

Funding will support the delivery of interventions identified in the strategy including physical projects 
(property improvements & public realm works), economic initiatives to complement the current business 
rates reduction scheme, the development of strategies and interventions for upper Yorkshire Street and 
Water Street, and promoting development opportunities.

300 - -

17 Economy Rochdale Town Hall decant

The decant of the Town Hall is essential in order to let the construction contract for phase 1 to start in 2021. It 
is essential therefore that the building is vacant by 31/12/2020. There are 3 elements:
- Services 
- Equipment and artefacts
- Events and civic functions

750

18 Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration Restoration of Rochdale Town Hall 3,024

19 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall restoration 

(phase 2)

Town Hall (phase 2) is the part National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF) - an £8.95m funded project to restore the 
building. There is now an additional requirement needed to support the following:
- top up budget due to previous expenditure used for essential maintenance and improvements 
- NLHF round 1 approval was predicated upon RBC underwriting £3m of external funding yet to be secured. 
- cover for potential inflationary costs
- additional RDA Project Management, due diligence costs, and fees for specialist advice 

4,331

20 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall restoration 

(phase 3)

Town Hall (phase 3) covers the parts of the building not funded from the NLHF grant and existing RBC capital 
programme budget. This covers internal work to the areas in the West wing and basement, including the 
current council chamber, registrars space and vacant offices and basement. This scheme would make the space 
ready for occupation. The council's strategy is to try to identify other funding sources for this area.

21 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall Square - 

phase 2
Further works within Rochdale Town Hall Square 3,500

22 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall Square 

(extension to existing scheme)

The council has a long held ambition to rejuvenate the area around the Town Hall. The Town Hall Square 
project is currently at RIBA Stage 2 and costs are still being determined due to scope changes. As such this 
project will be developed over the coming months.

23 Economy
Town Centre Residential 

Strategy

Following nomination of Rochdale Town Centre in GM Mayor's Town Centres Challenge, the Council, 
supported by GMCA will adopt a Residential Strategy for Rochdale town centre.  The strategy seeks to create 
the market conditions to deliver around 2,000 residential units within the Town Centre.  The programme 
budget would be used to bring forward a viable Phase 1 package of sites through a mixture of land assembly, 
site remediation, pre planning work, up front infrastructure cost and used to lever match fund investment by 
the GMCA or private sector.    

1,000 1,000 -

19,559 11,550 4,431ECONOMY

P
age 219



37

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Neighbourhoods Boroughwide Allotments

The Borough of Rochdale currently has 524 allotment plots.  The Government’s Thorpe Report recommended 
that Councils provide 15 allotment plots per 1,000 households. At 94,263 households Rochdale BC should have 
1,414 plots.
Environmental Management (EM) propose to meet demand by creating new allotment sites, which would 
increase provision by 100 new plots every year for the next five years.   This would increase the number of 
plots to over 1,000. 58 65 -

2 Neighbourhoods
Replacement Parks/Street 

Machinery

The programme is a rolling replacement scheme for replacement of the Council's 550 plus pieces of 
machinery. The programme aims to replace assets when they have exceeded the most cost-effective period of 
operation.

120 120 120

3 Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way
The programme is a rolling scheme for carrying out the statutory function of maintaining the Council's Rights 
of Way network. 

80 80 80

4 Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment
To maintain within legislative requirements and guidelines the current level of Fixed Play provision across the 
borough.

75 75 75

5 Neighbourhoods
Vehicle Replacement 

Programme

To replace existing vehicles at the end of their optimum asset life.  Remove vehicles from the programme due 
to changes in requirements and add new requirements into acquisition and replacement schedule.
Partially Invest to Save scheme relating to decision to purchase fleet vehicles rather than hire.  

1,345 655 1,839

6 Neighbourhoods
Waste Bin Replacement 

Programme

Scheme is to replace wheelie bins which are no longer fit for purpose, and increased demand for new bins as 
they were first introduced in 1991 and have an estimated  life of 10 years.  The scheme may also increase 
recycling rates which in turn would reduces the cost of waste disposal.

360 360 360

7 Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School

Funding of the proposed Free School is provided via a fixed budget based on pupil numbers, 12% of the 
budget is allocated to external works; this does not include highway accessibility. It is the responsibility of the 
Local Authority to provide a site with sufficient accessibility. In addition to direct vehicular access from 
Heywood Old Road, cycle / pedestrian routes from the adjacent Langley estate directly to the Free School site 
are required to support this development at the planning application stage. 

522 - -

8 Neighbourhoods Highways Investment Continuing investment  in Rochdale’s Highways Infrastructure, across roads and footpaths. 4,000 3,000 -

9 Neighbourhoods Junction 19

The South Heywood Junction 19 scheme comprises two main elements. These are;
a) the construction of a 2.2km Link Road from J19 of the M62 to Pilsworth Road to improve access to the 
existing South Heywood Employment Area, and 
b) the associated development of  up to 1,000 new homes, approximately 1.45 million sq ft of employment 
space, a new primary school and village centre retail. 
Planning and Licensing Committee were minded to approve the planning application in March 2018, subject to 
the completion of necessary legal documents.         

* *

10 Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan
To continue the aspirations of the Rochdale Highways Capital Programme and be more effective in identifying 
and responding to the Local Transport Plan shared priorities of Safety, Air Quality, Congestion and 
Accessibility. 

1,967 1,967 1,967

11 Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage
Due to the on-going redevelopment in Rochdale Town Centre some of the existing directional signage is 
outdated and incorrect. This scheme would review the existing signage around the Town Centre and replace 
or remove any signage that is inaccurate. 

50 - -

P
age 220



38

12 Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Orders

Acquisition of private land and buildings where current owner fails to bring asset into use either blighting the 
area or preventing further economic/physical development. Compulsory Purchase Order powers will be used 
but an offer must first be made to purchase the asset through negotiation. Budget is required to fund the 
purchase price or compensation, staffing costs, legal and valuation fees (external and internal). Subsequent 
disposal of some assets will offset some of the costs.  

1,200 1,000 1,000

13 Neighbourhoods Delivering High Value Housing

The programme aims to deliver over 1,000 new higher value homes in the borough over a ten year period, 
through proactive site assembly and promotion of development opportunities, using council and privately 
owned land. The aim is to facilitate the development of more higher value housing in order to attract and 
retain economically active households. This will generate Council Tax, section 106 and New Homes Bonus 
revenue to support local services, as well as attracting more disposal income to the borough, retaining local 
spend and boosting place-based regeneration. 

1,000 1,000 -

14 Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund

Scheme proposes to improve private sector dwellings & environments. Interventions include
-emergency repairs to owner-occupied properties
-works in default to private rented properties
-corrective works to houses in multiple occupation
-tenancy/rent bonds for residents desperate to access decent accommodation unable to access social housing

800 800 800

15 Neighbourhoods
Customer Transformation 

Programme

It has been agreed to progress the Council’s “Customer Transformation Programme” as a delivery mechanism 
bringing together all customer related transformation including redesign of systems under one programme of 
work, realising financial and non financial benefits. A phased approach is being proposed. Phase1 - detail 
analysis over 6 months, identify options & develop a detail business case with precise costs and benefits. 
Phase 2 - implementation phase funded via capital

468 150 -

16 Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme

GMCA has successfully secured £23.8m capital Local Full Fibre Network Challenge funding.  The funding will 
connect full fibre to over 1,500 GM Public sector sites, including Local Authority sites, GM Fire and Rescue, 
Health and Social Care partnerships (CCGs) sites across the region. This represents the Council’s capital 
contribution.

926 - -

17 Neighbourhoods
ICT Infrastructure Refresh 

Programme

To refresh, on a rolling programme the ICT estate. To remove the need for individual Services & Directorates 
to hold funds related to ICT equipment. Preventing purchasing of non-strategic & inappropriate ICT.  To control 
and make the spend on ICT equipment the most efficient and cost effective by maintaining a relatively small 
annual amount as opposed to large investments every 7/8 years

444 444 444

18 Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff)
To deliver the Council's ICT projects utilising existing ICT staff, to reduce the Capital required each year. The 
programmes deliver a variety of objectives for each business area and are assessed against business cases to 
check that they are in line with corporate objectives

500 500 500

19 Neighbourhoods
Service Desk System 

Replacement

ICT Services use Microsoft Service Manager to log and manage ICT issues and service requests. This system will 
soon become unsupported by Microsoft and requires replacement. The current system is ineffective and there 
is the opportunity to improve performance through a new system which would provide features such as an 
online customer portal and automation of internal processes. The Members Enquiries system is also managed 
from this system and also encounters similar problems.

60 50 50

20 Neighbourhoods
Extending libraries opening 

hours

The library service wishes to extend the opening hours, on a trial basis, of some of  its branches by means of 
using technology which allows access to and use of libraries without increasing staffing. Open+ technology 
controls access to a library building, its stock and computers via a coded entrance and self service equipment. 
The library service would like to install such equipment in a number of its libraries (potentially 5) to increase 
the amount of hours customers can use libraries.

150

21 Neighbourhoods
RFID - library self serve 

equipment - replacement 
project 

The equipment that allows customers to self serve when borrowing or returning books and other items has 
come to its end of life. They have been in service since 2012 and both the hardware and software are now 
obsolete. 

70

P
age 221



39

22 Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 
To adequately maintain the property portfolio and ensure that the Council comply to any statutory, and Health 
& Safety regulations. The scheme also aims to reduce the maintenance backlog and improve the reduced 
property holding to accommodation standards. 

2,000 1,750 1,750

23 Neighbourhoods
Number One Riverside - 

revolving doors replacement
Replace existing revolving doors at Number One Riverside to increase access and reduce breakdowns. Create 
single point of entry for all users of the building reducing inequality and enhancing inclusivity. 

120

24 Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme
Implement alley gating schemes and gating orders on alleys to reduce the number of burglaries and improve 
neighbourhood safety.

100 100 100

25 Neighbourhoods
Climate Emergency - Carbon 

Neutral

The Council has declared a climate emergency and will work towards becoming carbon neutral by 2038.  This 
investment of £5M over the next five years is a clear statement of intent that the Council takes this matter 
seriously and is prepared to invest in driving initiatives across the areas of energy, travel and transport, 
homes, workplaces and public buildings, consumption and production of resources  and our natural 
environment.

1,000 1,000 1,000

26 Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme
An annual allocation of Capital Funds allocated on a pro rata basis and agreed by each of the 5 Township 
Committees 400 400 400

27 Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing Fund
The AHF is ring fenced for the delivery of affordable housing, as defined in the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The AHF will be utilised in housing schemes to meet the housing needs in the Borough.

2,752

33,497 26,686 10,485
* This information is exempt by virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
NEIGHBOURHOODS

P
age 222



40

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Public Health
Hollingworth Lake 

improvements
Installation of a high ropes course within the trees of the Promontory area of Hollingworth Lake.            300 

2 Public Health Leisure Centre Improvements

A number of large scale capital bids are being put forward to enhance and extend facilities at the RBC owned 
Leisure Facilities. The suggested improvements have been recommended by the operator Link4Life. To ensure 
the projects and their outcome are achievable, there is a requirement for more technical work to survey the 
buildings suitability for the projects proposed, to check costing are within the amount bid and to seek 
technical advice as to whether further improvement to the proposals can be made.

             20 

3 Public Health
Link4Life building alterations / 

additional equipment Heywood

Conversion of large community room on the ground floor which is divided into 2 by a moveable partition. This 
project would involve the conversion of one side of the room to a dedicated fitness studio for the provision of 
an upbeat boutique-style area  which will provide a dynamic workout combining mixed martial arts, intense 
cardio and strength training. Usage of the new facility is estimated at c.10,000 and will enhance the 
membership offer to current and new fitness members. 

           220 

4 Public Health
Link4Life building alterations / 

additional equipment Rochdale
Creation of a mezzanine floor at Rochdale Leisure Centre in the foyer area to allow an extension to the gym 
and an improved offer. 

           400 

5 Public Health Link4Life equipment
On-going update and replacement of leisure centre equipment across the borough. Funding to cover the 
prudential borrowing is paid from Link4Life to RBC via the contract fee.  This saving is built into contract / 
efficiencies with Link4Life.

388 288 360

6 Public Health
Replacement of Lake Bank 

Buildings at Hollingworth Lake
Development of new Lake Bank Activity Hub to replace existing Lake Bank Buildings at Hollingworth Lake.

3,000

4,328 288 360

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 
1 Resources HR & Payroll system Capital costs associated with purchase of a new HR & Payroll system.            151 

2 Resources Manchester Airport Investment
Rochdale Council investment in Manchester Airport initiatives in conjunction with the other nine GM 
authorities.

1,860 - -

2,011 - -

PUBLIC HEALTH

RESOURCES

P
age 223



41

Appendix 5

ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of the Pay Policy Statement is to ensure transparency and 
accountability with regard to the Council’s approach to setting pay. 

1.2 The Pay Policy Statement has been approved by Council and is publicised on the 
Council’s website in accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011. 

1.3 The Pay Policy Statement identifies:

 The method by which salaries and severance payments are determined.
 The remuneration of the Council’s most senior managers i.e. posts of Chief 

Executive, Directors and Assistant Directors, in accordance with the 
requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

 The committee responsible for ensuring that the Pay Policy Statement is 
applied consistently, including that which has delegated powers in relation 
to senior manager employment;

 The detail and level of remuneration for the lowest level of post/employee.
 The ratio of pay of the top earner and that of the median earner

1.4 It should be noted that the Pay Policy Statement does not include information 
relating to the pay of Teachers or Support Staff in schools who are outside the 
scope of the Localism Act. It should also be noted that staff transferred to the 
Council under TUPE retain their previous terms, conditions and policies. 

2. OPERATION

2.1 Method by which payments are determined

2.1.1 The Council uses the new National Joint Council (NJC) pay spinal column points 
(SCP1 -SCP43) which came in from 1st April 2019 for grading and basic salary 
level determination for the majority of staff. This is supplemented by the nationally 
agreed Soulbury and Youth & Community grading and salary levels. 

2.1.2 The Council applies the provision of the Joint Negotiating Council (JNC) Chief 
Executives and the JNC Chief Officers to posts within the scope of the provisions 
of the Localism Act. All other paid allowances are also subject to 
negotiation/consultation with either National or Local trade union/representative 
bodies or are provided for in the Council`s Scheme of Delegation.

2.1.3 It should be noted that the National Joint Council (NJC) pay spinal column points 
will be revised with effect from the date of any updated Agreement following a 
National Pay Bargaining process. Should there be any implications for the 
Council’s existing grading structure as a consequence of the Agreement any 
necessary revisions will be made and any significant issues will be reported as 
appropriate.

2.1.4 In determining grades and remuneration for senior management posts which fall 
outside of the scope of the National Pay Bargaining Machinery i.e. on locally 
agreed grades i.e. above SCP 43 and below Chief Officers the Council through 
powers provided for under the Scheme of Delegation takes into account the need 

Page 224



42

to ensure value for money and competitiveness. The Council has a robust 
arrangement for undertaking the ongoing evaluations for the grades of posts at 
this level.

2.1.5 New appointments will normally be made at the minimum point of the relevant 
grade, although appointment panels have discretion to vary where necessary to 
secure the best candidate. All promotion, re-grading, transfers and secondments 
are in accordance with Council policy.

2.1.6 To aid recruitment and retention of employees in the public sector across Greater 
Manchester a protocol is being drawn up to enable recognition of service between 
Local Authorities and other public sector organisations, including Health partners. 
The Council is supportive of this approach.

2.1.7 The Council has a Market Supplements Policy which covers all posts, and where 
evidence exists of recruitment and retention issues, allows the Council to make 
any additional payments to reflect the market rate. This is reviewed regularly to 
ensure compliance with relevant legislation.

2.1.8 Members of Cabinet on 30th January 2018 approved a delegation to officers to 
increase the Rochdale Local Living Wage (RLLW) annually in line with the 
Rowntree Foundation rate until such time as this was matched by the Council’s 
lowest spinal column points on the NJC pay spine. The Rowntree rate for 2020 is 
£9.30 per hour which is higher than our SCP1 £9.00 per hour, therefore an 
additional supplement is required from 1st April 2020.  However depending on the 
outcome of the Annual Pay Award the supplement may not be required.  If the 
Annual Pay Award increases the hourly rate for SCP 1 to at least £9.30 then the 
supplement will be removed.

2.1.9 All temporary appointments, acting up arrangements, secondments and 
substitution/honorarium payments are approved in accordance with the Council’s 
policies and procedures.

2.1.10 Incremental progression is biennial.  Incremental progression for eligible 
employees will be applied on 1st April 2021, with the next progression following 
this will be in 2023, then 2025 and so on.  However the biennial increments for 
Directors are not automatic they are subject to a performance assessment.  In 
addition to the above and by exception incremental progression is not applied in 
instances where formal conduct/capability procedures are applied. 

2.1.11 Graduated mandatory unpaid leave applies to all employees.

This leave is taken either on a fixed (between Christmas & New Year) basis or 
flexible basis dependent on operational requirements. The amount of unpaid 
leave is dependent on grade or equivalent salary as follows:

Grade Equivalent Salary Number of Days Unpaid Leave
Grade 1 / 2 £17,364 - £18,794 2 days

Grade 3 - 6 £18,795 - £28,784 3 days

Grade 7 - 9 £28,785 - £41,674 4 days

Grade 10 and above £41,675 + 5 days

Page 225



43

2.2 Pensions and Voluntary Early Retirement and Redundancy 

2.2.1 Pension contributions for all employees who have exercised their statutory right to 
become members of the Local Government Pension Scheme are applied in 
accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. Certain 
employees have access to other pension schemes, for example the Teachers’ 
pension scheme and the NHS pension scheme. 

2.2.2 The policy of the Council is to provide a consistent approach to all of its employees 
who leave the Council’s employment under the terms of its applicable schemes. 
The Council is able to consider early retirement in the interests of efficiency or 
redundancy and the Council`s Special Scheme for Early Retirement/Voluntary 
Redundancy provides for access to accrued pension benefits for members aged 
55 years and over and a redundancy payment, but does not provide any 
enhancements to pension (or other additional payments) on the basis of seniority.

2.2.3 The policy of the Council regarding the calculation of redundancy payments for all 
of its employees is to use the statutory redundancy calculator based on completed 
years of service (up to a maximum of 20 years) and to apply the current contractual 
weekly pay of the employee in order to calculate the payment to which he/she is 
entitled. 

2.2.4 The Council will review the proposed changes to legislation regarding pensions 
and public sector exit payments once the regulations have been issued. 

2.3 Senior Management Pay

2.3.1 The Localism Act refers to posts of Chief Executive, Chief Officer and Deputy 
Chief Officer (i.e. those which report to a “Chief Officer”). 

2.3.2 Whilst the Council does not employ any post within the designation of Chief Officer 
or Deputy Chief Officer it is considered for the purpose of this legislation that the 
definition relates to posts of Chief Executive, Directors and Assistant Directors. 
The structure and the annual salary levels for the above mentioned posts along 
with a description of the roles and responsibilities; is detailed on the Council`s 
website.

Designation Grade/Salary Number of Posts

Chief Executive (see note below) £133,990 to £139,350 1

Note:
The Chief Executive is appointed as the Electoral Registration Officer and 
Returning Officer and the appropriate payments are made. The Chief Executive 
receives fee payments pursuant to his/her appointment as Returning Officer at 
elections. The fees paid in respect of elections vary according to the size of the 
electorate and number of postal voters and are calculated in accordance with the 
allowance set by the Authority. Fee payments for National and European elections 
are set by Central Government and are, in effect, not paid by the Authority, as the 
fees are reclaimed.

Fees paid for 2019/20 were:- £3,000

Page 226



44

Designation Grade/Salary Number of Posts

Directors Point 1    £100,004 5
Point 2 £106,259
Point 3 £110,297
Point 4 £116,430
Point 5 £122,553
Point 6 £128,686

The current position regarding Assistant Directors substantive pay grade is as 
follows:

Designation Grade/Salary Number of Posts

Assistant Director Level 2 £82,168 to £92,926 2

Assistant Director Level 1 £67,280 to £78,040 10

Consultant in Public Health £73,936 to £86,687 1

Note:
In addition, the Director of Public Health is also part of the Greater Manchester 
Director of Public Health on call rota arrangements for which the payment is 2% 
of salary. 

2.3.3 The Council applies Market Supplements to Senior Management Posts, in 
accordance with the Policy, where evidence exists of recruitment and retention 
issues.

2.3.4 Under delegated authority (approved by the Employment and Equalities 
Committee meeting of 18th August 2015) the Chief Executive, in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for Corporate and Resources, agrees the arrangements for 
the payment of Responsibility Allowances for officers undertaking specific 
Statutory Officer duties.

2.3.5 The pay scales, detailed above, for Directors and Assistant Directors include 
nationally agreed pay awards and are adjusted in line with any future pay awards.  
The above pay scales includes the Nationally agreed pay award from April 2019 
which includes all posts and will be adjusted for any pay ward agreed for 2020/21.  

2.4 Responsibility for the application of employment procedures for Senior 
Management posts

2.4.1 Responsibility for governance in relation to these issues lies with the Chief Officer 
Employment Committee which is a non-executive committee of the Council. The 
Council is acting in accordance with Guidance issued by the Secretary of State in 
relation to employment decisions for Senior Management posts with salaries in 
excess of £100,000 per annum. 

2.5 Pay Ratio

2.5.1 The following information is provided to assist with understanding the ratio 
calculation;

 The Chief Executive Salary level used for comparative purposes is £139,350 
i.e. the maximum of the grade.

Page 227



45

 The lowest paid Council job i.e. Cleaner has a maximum salary level of 
£18,065 (The Council employs Apprentices who are not considered within the 
definition of ‘lowest paid employees’)

 The Mean (average) pay is £27,395
 The Mode (most frequently occurring) level of salary is £19,171
 The Median (middle) of the salary range is £23,836

2.5.2 The ratio of pay of the top earner i.e. Chief Executive and that of the median earner 
is 1 to 5.85 and is within the 1:20 ratio recommended by the Hutton Review. In 
other words for every £1 earned by the median earner the Chief Executive earns 
£5.85. The calculation indicates that the Authority’s median level of earnings as a 
proportion of the Chief Executive earnings is 17%, just higher than a sixth.

3 PAY RELATED PROCEDURES

3.1 A number of procedures are in operation that impact upon and determine the 
remuneration of Council employees and should be referred to in conjunction with 
this policy. These are:-

Market Factor Supplements (MFS) Procedure
Incremental Progression Procedure
Mandatory Non-Payment of Increments in Conduct/Capability cases
Graduated Mandatory Unpaid Leave
Honorariums & Substitution Pay
Car Mileage Allowances
Premium Payments
Expenses, Travel & Subsistence Allowances
First Aid Allowance
Grading Procedure (including Job Evaluation)
Pay Protection

4 MONITORING

4.1 The Workforce & OD Service will be responsible for monitoring and administering 
the Pay Policy.

5 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY CONSIDERATIONS

5.1 Directors, Assistant Directors and managers are responsible for ensuring that they 
operate the policy and its associated procedures in line with the Council’s Equality 
& Diversity Policy to provide equality of opportunity for all employees.

5.2 The Council is committed to ensuring that no-one is discriminated against, 
disadvantaged or given preference, through membership of any particular group, 
particularly based on age; disability; gender reassignment;  race, religion or belief; 
sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership and pregnancy and 
maternity. This policy will be applied equally to all employees irrespective of their 
background or membership of a particular group.

5.3 In addition, in line with the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992 (TULCRA) Part 3, the Council is committed to ensure that employees are 
not disadvantaged or discriminated against by virtue of their trade union 
membership in the application of this policy.

Page 228



46

5.4 The Council will regularly review this policy’s impact on any equality and diversity 
issues, and will identify any inequalities by monitoring and will take appropriate 
action where necessary.

6 GENDER PAY GAP

6.1 The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017 
were effective from 31st March 2017. As part of the existing Public Sector Equality 
Duty these imposed a specific duty of Gender Pay Gap reporting requirements on 
Public Authorities.

6.2 As a public authority Rochdale Borough Council is required to publish gender pay 
gap information relating to our employees who are employed by us on the relevant 
snapshot date.

6.3 Each local authority must publish information to demonstrate compliance with the 
period 12 months beginning with the snapshot date of 31st March repeated at 
yearly intervals thereafter on the same snapshot date within that relevant year.

6.4 We are required to publish:-

(a) The difference in the mean pay of full-pay male and female employees 
expressed as a percentage.

(b) The difference in the median pay of full-pay male and female employees 
expressed as a percentage.

(c) The proportions number of male and female full-pay relevant employees 
employed in the lower, lower middle, upper middle and upper quartile pay 
bands.

(d) Differences in bonus pay*
(e) The information on our website to be accessible to all employees and the 

public for at least 3 years from the date of publication and to upload on 
the dedicated government website.

*this is not applicable to us as bonus was removed as part of the Pay & Grading 
Review process in 2010.

6.5 This information can be found on the Council’s website.  

Publication Date 1st April 2020

Related Legislation / Applicable Section of 
Legislation

Localism Act 2011

Replaces Pay Policy Statement 2020/21

Policy Owner (Name/Position)
Director of Resources

Cabinet Member for Corporate & Resources

Policy Author (Name/Position) Rosemary Barker, Head of Workforce & OD

Applies to
All employees with the exception of teachers  and support 
staff in schools employed by the School Governing Body

Page 229



47

Appendix 6

Equality Impact Assessment

 What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below.

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below



Service:

Resources

Section: 

Finance

Responsible Officer:

Julie Murphy

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed:

Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 

Date of Assessment:

31st January 2020

Officers Involved:

Julie Murphy and Service Directors 

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed?

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project)

The purpose of the Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 is to :-

 Provide information on the latest position on the 2019/20 revenue budget
 Provide details on the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2020/21
 To approve the Rochdale BC’s  Revenue Budget and Capital Programme for 2020/21
 To approve the 2020/21 Council Tax for the Council
 Note the precepts to be made on the Council for the Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner and Mayoral 

General (including Fire Services).
 To outline the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2020/21 to 2024/25.

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out the strategic direction and priorities of the Council. The Council’s budget 
proposals are shaped by them.

Page 230



48

2. Who are the key stakeholders?

The residents of the Borough

Those who pay Council Tax

Businesses

Employees of the Council

Members of the public that use Council Services

Partner Organisations

Voluntary Sector

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 
assessment.  

There are potential impacts as a result of any changes to:

 Council Tax
 Discretionary fees and charges
 Local Council Tax Support Scheme
 The revenue budget itself and in particular any service saving proposals incorporated.

This Equality Impact Assessment only covers the impact of changes due to Council Tax and is an 
overarching Equality Impact Assessment. The Discretionary fees and charges, the Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme and in particular any service saving proposals incorporated are considered as part of the 
approval processes for these areas.  Below are the links to the reports on these areas which include a 
copy of the specific Equality Impact Assessments:

 Discretionary fees and charges
Cabinet October 2019

 Savings proposals incorporated
Cabinet October 2019

 Local Council Tax Support Scheme
Cabinet December 2019

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet?

Page 231

http://r1p-mgv-www01/documents/g5107/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Oct-2019%2018.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
http://r1p-mgv-www01/documents/g5107/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Oct-2019%2018.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
http://r1p-mgv-www01/documents/g5122/Public%20reports%20pack%2002nd-Dec-2019%2018.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


49

This is designed to meet the overall budget setting for the Council for 2020/21. Once agreed, it is the high 
level framework that authorises services to incur costs and generate income through the activities they carry 
out.

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

Within the overall budget setting process a number of assumptions are made around demographics and pay 
& prices.

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project?

All those who pay council tax.

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 
who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.

Directors, Leadership Team and Members have been involved in the development of this policy.

Consultation on savings proposals was undertaken with the, stakeholder groups, staff and service users as 
appropriate. Consultation ended on 13th December 2019. The outcome of consultation was reported to Cabinet 
on 12th February 2020.

Consultation on the Capital Programme was undertaken during the Autumn as outlined in Section 5.5 of this 
report.

The Budget Reports have also been included on the Council’s website and members of the public are able to 
attend Committee meetings to make their comments known.

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  
What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

Not applicable

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 
include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available.

The documents which are linked to this Equality Impact Assessment are the Discretionary Fees and 
Charges Reports and the Local Council Tax Support Scheme.  

 Discretionary fees and charges
Cabinet October 2019

 Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
Cabinet December 2019

Page 232

http://r1p-mgv-www01/documents/g5107/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Oct-2019%2018.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
http://r1p-mgv-www01/documents/g5122/Public%20reports%20pack%2002nd-Dec-2019%2018.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


50

10. What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 
includes both positive and potentially negative impacts.

Race Equality 

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers 
who need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried 
out in relation to the scheme.

Disabled People

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme. 

Carers

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme.

Gender

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme. 

Age

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme.

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme. 

Page 233



51

Sexual Orientation

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme.

Gender Reassignment

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme.

Religion or Belief

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme.

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers who 
need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in 
relation to the scheme.

Marriage or Civil Partnership

The proposed percentage increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 will apply to all Council Tax payers. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme is designed to provide financial assistance to council tax payers 
who need assistance with the payment of their Council Tax and an Equality Impact Assessment was carried 
out in relation to the scheme.

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

There are no equality issues arising from this analysis.

12.What are your recommendations?

There are no equality issues arising from this analysis.

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 
action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions.

Page 234



52

There are no equality issues arising from this analysis.

Signed (Completing Officer):___________________ Date:_____________

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________

Page 235



Medium Term 
Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

Page 236



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Document Control
Document Title:

Summary

Publication Date February 2020

Related Legislation / Applicable 
Section of Legislation

Related Policies, Strategies, 
Guideline Documents

Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy, Treasury Management , 
Asset Strategy, Corporate Plan, Place Plan

Replaces October 2019 MTFS

Joint Strategy (Yes/No) No

Name of Partner(s) if joint

Strategy Owner (Name/Position) Julie Murphy, Chief Finance Officer 

Strategy Author (Name/Position) Chris Mills, Senior Corporate Accountant

Applies to

Review of Strategy

Last Review Date February 2019 

Review undertaken by Chris Mills

Next Review Date September 2020

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.

Name Title Date of Issue Version Number

Page 237



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 2

Introduction

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a five year plan which sets out the Council’s 
commitment to provide services that meet the needs of people locally and that represent good 
value for money within the overall resources available to it. 

The MTFS is what links our Council’s vision and priorities with forecasted resources and budgets 
and shows how our Council’s finances will be structured and managed to ensure that this fits with, 
and supports, the priorities of our Council and its partners. 

The strategy considers: 

 International and national economic influences on our Council; 
 The influence of Central Government policy and strategy;
 Local factors which influence policy within our Council; 
 Key Council policy areas. 

The strategy brings together the key issues affecting the:

 Revenue Budget;
 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy and Capital Programme; 
 Treasury Management Strategy. 

A key part of the strategy is to highlight the budget issues that will need to be addressed by our 
Council over the coming financial years, by forecasting the level of available resources from all 
sources and budget pressures relating to both capital and revenue spending. 

Page 238



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 3

CONTENTS

Part Section Page

Part 1 Key Objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 4

Part 2 The Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy 6
 Financial Strategy 6
 Overall Economic Forecasts 6
 Regional Influences 7
 Resources Received by the Council 8
 Budget Pressures 18
 Forecast Gap Between Resources and Expenditure 24

Part 3 How will the Council meet the Financial Challenge? 26
 Revenue Budget Plan 26
 Savings Programme 31
 Forecast Budget Gap after Savings Proposals 32
 Transformation Fund 33
 Balances and Reserves Strategy 34
 Commercial property investment strategy 36
 Financial Reslience 37

Part 4 The Council’s Capital Programme 38

Part 5 Strategies Linked to the Medium Term Financial Strategy 40
 Treasury Management Strategy
 Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
 Asset Management Strategy

Page 239



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 4

Part 1: Key Objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy

1. Each year there is a legal requirement to prepare an annual budget and set the Council Tax for 
the borough of Rochdale. Alongside the annual budget our Council reviews the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS). The MTFS is a 5 year plan which sets out our commitment to provide 
services that meet the needs of people locally, and represents good value for money. The MTFS 
links our Council vision and priorities with forecasted resources and budgets. The Corporate Plan 
2019-2022 contains the Council’s vision and priorities and is aligned with the MTFS.

2. The Council’s vision is ‘To make our borough a great place to grow up, get on and live well’.

3. The Council has recently reviewed its values and behaviours. These include Passion, Pioneering 
and open and Pride. The Council has reworked its priorities to Prosperous People and Places.
Prosperity has always been a stand-alone priority, but it is considered that prosperity is actually 
a product of both people and places as a result of the action they/we take.

4. Key objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy

The key objectives of the MTFS are as follows:

 To ensure that effective financial planning and management contributes to the Council 
achieving the priorities in the Corporate Plan;

 To direct resources to the Council's priorities to support the achievement of the Corporate 
Plan;

 To maximise the income from Council Tax and Business Rates revenue to support the 
priorities of the council;

 To maximise income from commercial and regeneration opportunities adding value to the 
economy.

 To analyse budget performance to assess the effectiveness of resource allocation.
 To continue to improve value for money - managing people and our money more efficiently, 

streamlining processes and systems, getting better value from commissioning and 
procurement, whilst seeking to minimise the impact of budget savings on priority services. 

 To ensure the Council's financial standing is prudent, robust, stable and sustainable.

5. Local authorities have faced unprecedented reductions in Government funding since the 
Government Spending Review 2010. Coupled with rising costs and increased demand for 
services by local residents this has meant that our Council has had to make significant budget 
savings. Over the last ten years our Council has approved £180m of ongoing savings to bridge 
the gap between falling resources, rising costs and increasing local demands. This has led to 
transformations and changes within our Council as we look to meet the changing needs of local 
residents within the funds we have available.

6. The Council is now working with partners to transform services to enable efficiencies and value 
for money to be achieved by reducing duplication through the integration of services, such as 

Page 240



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 5

health and social care. The Council is also seeking to maximise income from commercial and 
regeneration opportunities adding value to the economy.  

7. Integration of Health & Social Care

Greater Manchester has taken charge of the £6bn Health & Social Care Budget following the 
devolution deal with the Government, which is overseen by the Greater Manchester Health and 
Social Care Partnership. The Council and local health partners have developed a Locality Plan 
to support the regional delivery of the integration of health and social care, public health and 
prevention. Integration is key to protecting social care and providing services to people in the 
Community. Without investment in social care the financial pressure within health will not be 
sustainable and may lead to a full system failure. It is felt that the pooling of resources across 
the locality will provide more opportunities to explore value for money, economies of scale, 
reduce duplication and streamline processes. 

The Local Authority created a formal pooled budget arrangement from 1st April 2018 for health 
and social care. The MTFS reports on the total budget which includes the Pooled Fund, which 
includes the Adult Social Care, Public Health, and elements of Children’s Services and Non-
Pooled Fund including elements of Children Services, Economy, Neighbourhoods and 
Resources.

Page 241



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 6

Part 2: The Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy

1. Financial Strategy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is designed to ensure that the Council’s resources 
are prioritised to meet the needs of our residents; the Council is able to operate as a going 
concern; and is able to set a balanced budget each year. The MTFS ensures that:

 The Council maintains a prudent approach in regard to our finances over 5 years of the 
MTFS;

 The savings programme focuses on the achievement of ongoing savings, but recognises the 
value of one off savings to support both the implementation of savings and one off 
investment.

In compiling the MTFS our Council has considered a number of factors which influence the 
resources and expenditure for the Council. These have been reviewed and take into 
consideration international, national, regional and local issues. These have been examined to 
ensure that the MTFS reflects the most up to date financial position for the Council.

2. Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy   

Local authority funding is subject to both national and international influences, which can have 
a significant impact on the level of services to be provided and our Council’s ability to provide 
them. This section will briefly outline some of the key economic issues affecting our Council’s 
forecasts over the next few years.

2.1 Overall Economic Forecasts and Influences

The Chancellor presented his Spring Statement 2019 on 13th March 2019. The Statement was 
based around latest projections from the Office of Budget Responsibility (OBR). In December 
2019, the OBR restated their March 2019 borrowing forecast to include recent ONS statistical 
changes, but have not incorporated any other new data, new judgements nor an update to the 
economic forecast. The new Government’s first Budget is scheduled for 11th March 2020.

2.1.1 Key Economic Data

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) – the OBR forecast of UK economic growth for 2019/20 has 
been reduced by 0.4% but has increased by 0.1% in the following three years.

Percentage change 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Spring Statement 1.4% 1.2% 1.5% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6%
Autumn Budget 2018 1.4% 1.6% 1.4% 1.5% 1.5% 1.6%

Estimates of GDP underpin policy on Departmental Spending, including that on local 
government.

Page 242



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 7

Inflation – forecasts of Consumer Prices Inflation (CPI) show little change for future years, with 
a slight increase of 0.1% in 2019/20, but slight decreases of between 0.1% and 0.2% in the rates 
forecast for the subsequent three years.
 

Percentage change 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Spring Update 2019 2.3% 2.0% 1.9% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Autumn Budget 2018 2.5% 1.9% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.0%

Consumer Price Inflation is Governments preferred measure of likely prices rises.

Public Sector Net Borrowing (PSNB) – the restated borrowing forecast is materially higher 
over the forecast period, largley due to a new treatment of student loans.

£ Billion 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
December Update 2019 £41.0bn £47.6bn £40.2bn £37.6bn £35.4bn £33.3bn
Spring Update 2019 £22.8bn £29.3bn £21.2bn £17.6bn £14.4bn £13.5bn
Autumn Budget 2018 £25.5bn £31.8bn £26.7bn £23.8bn £20.8bn £19.8bn

One of Government’s key objective is to reduce PSNB.

2.1.2   International and National Issues

The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced in his one-year Spending Round 2019 on 4th 
September that ‘we are turning the page on austerity and beginning a new decade of renewal’.

Local Government Resource Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) (excluding depreciation) 
will increase from £6.1bn in 2019/20 to £8.6bn in 2020/21. The Government has indicated that 
it projects that Local Authorities’ Core Spending Power (CSP) will increase by £2.9bn in 2020/21, 
a real terms increase of 4.3% (i.e. a cash increase of 6.3%).

2.2  Regional Influences

2.2.1 Devolution General

The Greater Manchester Devolution Agreement was signed with the Government in November 
20141 which brings both the decision making powers and greater control of financial budgets far 
closer to the people of Greater Manchester. This gives them and their local representatives 
control over decisions which have until now been taken at a national or regional level by 
providing the legal framework for the Greater Manchester Combined Authority to assume 
responsibilities currently performed and delivered by other public bodies.

The elected Mayor has now taken up post and from 2018/19 a GM Combined Authority Budget 
has been operating, including being the precept and levy authority for: GM Police & Crime 
Commissioner, GM Fire & Rescue Authority and levy authorities: GM Waste Disposal Authority 
and GM Passenger Transport Executive. 

1 Cities and Local Government Devolution Act.

Page 243



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 8

2.2.2   Health and Social Care Devolution 

The 10 Local Authorities in Greater Manchester, all Greater Manchester Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs) and NHS England (NHSE) have signed a Memorandum of Understanding as 
part of Greater Manchester taking full control and responsibility of the £6bn Health & Social Care 
Budget and the creation of its own sustainable Health & Social Care system. To deliver the 
devolved health and social care initiative, a Greater Manchester Strategic Plan has been 
developed and each local area sets out a Locality plan to support this Strategic Plan focussing 
on the integration of health, social care and public health/prevention. 

The integration of services is key to improving the quality of care and outcomes for people within 
the funding available. It is felt that the pooling of resources across the locality will provide more 
opportunities to explore value for money, economies of scale, reduce duplication and streamline 
processes. 

The pooled budget brings together resources from a range of organisations including the Clinical 
Commissioning Group, the Council, and Better Care Funds. The Council created a formal pooled 
budget arrangement from 1st April 2018 for health and social care.

2.3 Resources Received by the Council

2.3.1 The anticipated resources to be received by the Council are included in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. The resource forecasts are based on a number of assumptions, which are 
detailed in the following sections.

Table 1 summarises the estimated resources received by the Council.

Page 244



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 9

Table 1 Estimated Resources received by the Council

 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
£m £m £m £m £m

Government Grants
Business Rates Top-up Grant 36.3 36.4 36.4 36.5 36.5
New Homes Bonus 1.8 0.6 0.4 0.0 0.0
Adult Social Care Support Grant 6.9 6.9 6.9 6.9 6.9
Improved Better Care Fund 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9
Business Rates S31 Grant 9.8 10.0 10.2 10.5 10.7
Other General Grants 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

66.9 65.9 66.0 65.9 66.1

Locally Generated Income
Council  Tax 91.7 94.7 97.5 100.3 103.2
Business Rates 63.9 65.4 68.1 70.1 72.1

155.6 160.1 165.7 170.4 175.2

Total Resources 222.5 226.0 231.6 236.2 241.4

% Resources Locally Generated 70% 71% 72% 72% 73%

   

Page 245



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 10

Government Funding

2.3.3 Spending Round 2019/Local Government Funding Settlement 2020/21

The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced his Spending Round 2020/21 on 4th September 
2019. The Spending Round covers Government departments’ day-to-day spending for 2020/21. 
Funding was confirmed in the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21, 
announced in a written statement to Parliament on 20th December 2019. The Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2020/21 is a one-year settlement, ahead of a multi-year Spending Review 
in 2020. 

Settlement Core Funding
The settlement confirms that settlement core funding (Revenue Support Grant) is increased in 
line with inflation. The Greater Manchester 100% Business Rates Retention pilot scheme is 
continuing in 2020/21. Under the pilot Revenue Support Grant and Public Health grant are not 
received directly by Rochdale. However, increases in these grants, and in the Business Rates 
Multiplier, are reflected in the Business Rates Top-up grant. 

Additional Funding for Social Care
The provisional settlement makes £1.5bn of new funding available nationally for adult and 
children’s social care. This includes £1bn of new grant funding, a continuation of all existing 
social care grants, and the ability for authorities to raise up to £0.5bn more via the Adult Social 
Care precept. Rochdale’s additional Social Care Funding for 2020/21 is £6.925m.

Improved Better Care Fund
In 2020/21, £1.837bn has allocated nationally through the Improved Better Care Fund, the same 
amount as for 2019/20.  Improved Better Care Fund also now includes the £240m Winter 
Pressures Grant Funding. Rochdale’s 2020/21 allocation is £11.917m.

Table 2 summarises the estimated Government funding for Social Care for 2020/21, including 
the Improved Batter Care Fund.

Table 2 Social Care Funding - Summary

2020/21
£m

Improved Better Care Fund 11.917
Social Care Funding - continuation of 2019/20 funding 1.894
Social Care Funding - 2019 Spending round allocation 5.031

18.842

New Homes Bonus
The provisional settlement confirms the 2020/21 New Homes Bonus allocations. The 
Government has decided not to make any change to the payments baseline, and this will remain 
at 0.4% for the 2020/21 allocations. There will be no legacy payments relating to the 2020/21 
allocation, i.e. the 2020/21 allocation will be received for one year only, rather than four years 

Page 246



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 11

as was the case with previous allocations. Rochdale’s allocation, based on figures from the 2019 
Council Tax Base return is £1.804m.

Other Announcements
In the Provisional Settlement the Government also announced that:

 Funding will be provided to eliminate Negative Revenue Support Grant from the 
Settlement. Rochdale does not benefit from this funding.

 The Rural Services Delivery Grant will be maintained at 2019/20 levels. Rochdale does 
not benefit from this funding.

2.3.4 Local Government Funding Reforms 

2019/20 was the last year of the current Government Spending Review period and of the four-
year funding settlement for local government. There were multiple reforms scheduled for 
2020/21 that will have a significant impact on local authority funding. These have now been 
delayed until 2021/22. 

Spending Review 2020
In 2020 a full Spending Review will be held, reviewing public spending in the round and setting 
three-year budgets.

Fair Funding Review
The Fair Funding Review will re-assess the relative needs and relative resources of local 
authorities. This will determine the methodology for the distribution of the funding allocated for 
local government to individual authorities from 2021/22.

Baseline Reset
The Business Rates retention system is due to be reset for 2021/22. The reset will establish new 
Baseline Funding Levels, Business Rates Baselines and Top-ups/Tariffs for each local authority.  

Top-ups/Tariffs will be reset based on:
 The amount of funding to be distributed following the Spending Review.
 The new needs assessment resulting from the Fair Funding Review.
 Estimates of individual local authority’s Business Rates income.

Business Rate Retention 
The Government announced in the Autumn Budget 2017 that local authorities will move to a 
system of 75% Business Rates Retention from 2020/21. However, this has now been delayed 
until 2021/22. The Greater Manchester 100% retention pilot will continue in 2020/21, but it is 
unclear whether this will continue from 2021/22 onwards.

Council Tax
The Government’s future strategy for Council Tax increases will also be a key issue. The 
Government’s policy on referendum limits from 2021/22 onwards is not yet known. 

Page 247



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 12

Other funding streams 
The treatment of a number of funding streams currently within the Core Spending Power is 
unclear pending the reforms to local government finance: Revenue Support Grant (including 
Local Council Tax Support funding); Public Health Grant; Improved Better Care Fund; additional 
Social Care funding and New Homes Bonus. 

It is difficult to forecast the longer-term impact on the Council’s funding of the move to 75% 
Business Rates Retention and the impact of funding reforms from 2021/22.  The MTFS assumes 
that any impact of these reforms will be neutral, taking account of the potential level of funding 
for local government and the transitional arrangements expected to be put in place. The key 
assumptions in relation to Government funding are:

 Revenue Support Grant/Public Health Grant – assumed to remain at 2020/21 levels.
 Social Care Funding – assumed to remain at 2020/21 levels.
 Business Rates Baseline – assumed to increase in line with inflation. 

The potential impact of the reforms to local government funding will continually be reviewed as 
the consultation papers are released to update the potential financial risks and assumptions for 
the MTFS.

2.3.5   Baseline Funding Level 

An authorities’ Baseline Funding Level is made up of its Business Rates Baseline and Business 
Rates Top-up grant. The Local Government Finance Settlement confirmed that Baseline 
Funding Levels would be increased in line with inflation (1.63%).

Business Rates Top-up Grant
Some local authorities collect and retain a lot more Business Rates than others, so the Business 
Rates retention scheme includes a system of Top-ups and Tariffs. Whether a local authority is 
a Tariff or a Top-up authority is determined by comparing the amount of funding required by an 
authority via the Business Rates retention system (its Baseline Funding Level) and the amount 
it can raise in Business Rates locally (its Business Rate Baseline). 

If an authority’s Business Rate Baseline is less than its Baseline Funding Level, it receives a 
Top-up grant from the Government. If an authority’s Business Rate Baseline is greater than its 
Baseline Funding Level it pays a Tariff to the government.

Under the Greater Manchester 100% pilot scheme Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the 
Public Health Grant are forgone in lieu of the retained Business Rates. Authorities’ Tariffs and 
Top-ups are adjusted to ensure these changes are “without detriment” to individual authorities.
It is unclear whether pilot authorities will move to 75% retention in 2021/22, or continue with 
100% retention.

Table 3 summarises the estimated Baseline Funding Level for the MTFS period.

Page 248



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 13

Table 3 Estimated Baseline Funding Level

Business 
Rates 

Baseline

Business 
Rates 

Top-up
Total

Business 
Rates 

Baseline

Business 
Rates 

Top-up
Total

£m £m £m % % %
2019/20 58.012 35.598 93.610
2020/21 58.958 36.341 95.299 1.6% 2.1% 1.8%
2021/22 60.137 36.389 96.526 2.0% 0.1% 1.3%
2022/23 61.339 36.438 97.778 2.0% 0.1% 1.3%
2023/24 62.566 36.488 99.054 2.0% 0.1% 1.3%
2024/25 63.818 36.539 100.357 2.0% 0.1% 1.3%

Change %Baseline Funding Level

2.3.9 Education & Schools Funding

A summary of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocation is provided in Table 4.

Table 4 Dedicated Schools Grant Allocation

2019/20 2020/21 Transfers
£m £m £m % £m

Schools Block 164.260 171.068 6.808 4.1% -0.855
High Needs Block 23.860 27.838 3.978 16.7% 0.855
Central Schools Services 1.202 1.187 -0.015 -1.2%
Early Years Block 16.693 17.406 0.713 4.3%

Total 206.015 217.499 11.484 5.6% 0.000

Variation

The Schools, High Needs and Central Schools Services Block are final allocations with the Early 
Years Block indicative until July 2021. Both Schools and the High Needs Block allocations for 
2020/21 are based on National Funding Formulae (NFF).  

There is an overall increase in DSG from 2019/20 of £11.484m (5.6%). The national DSG 
allocation has increased 2.8% from 2019/20 due to additional schools funding of £2.6 billion 
which was announced in the September Spending review, this funding will increase further to 
£4.8 billion in 2021/22.

The increase of £6.808m in the Schools Block is due in part to an increase in pupils (451) 
together with the increased funding. The revised DSG Operational Guidance for 2020/21 
introduced a minimum per pupil funding level (£3.75k for primary and £5k for secondary), as 
well as setting a minimum funding guarantee (MFG) of +0.5% which ensures all schools will 
receive an increase in their per pupil funding over 2019/20. 

Page 249



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 14

As part of the £2.6 billion the Government has recognised the pressures within the High Needs 
Block and provided an additional £700m for 2020/21. The increase of £3.978m in the High Needs 
Block is unlikely to be sufficient for 2020/21 due to continuing unprecedented growth in this area, 
therefore Schools Forum approved a 0.5% transfer from the Schools Block to High Needs block 
of £0.855m in October 2019.

Funding to schools can still be based on a local formula for 2020/21, however Rochdale has 
been transitioning to the NFF over the last three years and is now closely mirroring the NFF for 
2020/21.

Locally Generated Income

2.3.10 Business Rates

Our Business Rates tax base represents the value of Business Rates income we estimate will 
be collected from businesses. Each Business Rates tax payer account has a rateable valuation 
provided by the Valuation Office Agency, multiplied by a business rates multiplier which 
increases each year and is set by the Government.

The Council’s estimated share of Business Rates income equates to £63.9m in 2020/21, after 
applying discounts such as charitable relief, empty property relief and small business rates relief. 
Local authorities are fully compensated for the loss of income as a result of any reliefs set by 
the Government through Section 31 grants.

For Business Rates income, the Council’s MTFS includes a 2% rise for future years, in line with 
CPI forecasts. Estimated rateable value growth is also built into the Business Rates income 
budget.

Business Rates Pooling
The ten Greater Manchester authorities are part of the GM Business Rates Pool which also 
incorporates Cheshire East and Cheshire West and Chester local authorities.

The  purpose  of  pooling  Business Rates  across  the individual  authorities  is  not  intended  
to  alter  individual  authorities income levels,  but to retain any levy that might be payable by 
some of the authorities to  Central Government. Any growth retained, after applying the agreed 
allocation to the levy authorities, would be used for investment within Greater Manchester and 
other non-Greater Manchester authorities involved in the pool.

Business Rates Appeals
The Government amended the Business Rates Appeals system with effect from 1st April 2017, 
introducing a three-stage approach to Business Rates Appeals: Check, Challenge, Appeal. To 
date there has been little information available on the level of appeals via the new system and 
this remains an area of uncertainty. As a consequence of this new approach the Council has 
seen an increase in the number of changes to its Business Rates lists. This is making it very 
difficult to identify changes in rateable values of businesses. 

Page 250



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 15

Table 4 shows the estimated for Business Rates Income and Business Rates Top-up Grant (see 
Section 2.3.5). 

Table 4 Estimated Business Rates Income and Top-up Grant 

 

2.3.11 Council Tax

Council Tax is charged by local authorities on residential properties. The Valuation Office 
Agency decides the correct band based on the value of your property at 1 April 1991. Local 
authorities set the charge based on a Band D property each year. 

The Council has to balance the needs of service users, who are often some of the most 
vulnerable people in our borough, and the burden of the Council Tax on local Council Tax 
payers. With the Government placing severe reductions in the level of general grant support, 
the burden of financing increasing service demand falls primarily upon the level of Council Tax.
The Budget Report 2020/21 makes the following recommendations in relation to the 2020/21 
Council Tax:

 An increase of 1.99% for 2020/21 for general purposes, based on the assumptions used 
by the Government in the Spending Round 2019. 

 A 2% increase in the Adult Social Care Precept. The Government announced in the 
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement that it would enable councils to raise 
a 2% Adult Social Care Precept.

 A total increase of 3.99% in the Rochdale BC element of 2020/21 Council Tax, the same 
total increase as for 2019/20.

 For future years a 1.99% increase in General Council Tax, with no further Adult Social 
Care Precept has been assumed for planning purposes only.

Page 251



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 16

Table 5 shows the Band D Council Tax levels assumed in the MTFS.

Table 5 Band D Council Tax for District purposes

 

General 
ASC 

Precept
Total 

Increase
Band D

% % % £
2019-20 2.99% 1.00% 3.99% £1,582.14
2020-21 1.99% 2.00% 3.99% £1,645.27
2021-22 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,678.01
2022-23 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,711.40
2023-24 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,745.46
2024-25 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,780.19

Council Tax Band D

 

Council Tax Base
The Council Tax base for 2020/21 of 55,745 was approved by Council on 18th December 2019. 
The Council Tax base represents the number of Band D equivalent properties that we collect 
Council Tax from.  

The estimated increase in the 2020/21 Council Tax base of 569 is a result of: an estimated 
increase in the number of properties, net of estimated exemptions and discounts (including the 
Local Council Tax Support scheme) and the estimated collection rate of 98.0%.

The more Band D equivalent properties the Council has allows the local authority to generate 
more income for the Council from Council Tax.  Properties valued at Band A generate less 
income for the Council as the charge is 70% of the charge for a band D property. 

In Rochdale 54% of properties are in Band A and 71% are Band A or B. The housing stock in 
the borough has a direct impact on the level of income the Council can raise from Council Tax. 
The average for Local Authorities in England is a housing stock with 24% properties in Band A 
and 44% in Band A or B2. Table 6 compares the breakdown properties by Council Tax band for 
Rochdale with the national picture.

2 Council Tax Base Return October 2019

Page 252



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 17

Table 6 Council Tax - % of bands in each category for Rochdale compared to the national 
average

Council Tax Income
Table 7 shows the estimated Council Tax income our Council is estimated to receive in 2020/21 
as £91.7m (£83.7m General Council Tax and £8.0m Adult Social Care precept) rising to 
£103.1m (£94.8m General Council Tax and £8.3m Adult Social Care precept) in 2024/25. 

Page 253



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 18

Table 7 Estimated Council Tax Income 2020/21 – 2024/25 

 

2.4 Budget Pressures 

2.4.1 Regional Budget Pressures

Greater Manchester Transport Levy
The budget assumes a 1% increase in the underlying Passenger Transport Levy for 2020/21 
and in future years. The Passenger Transport Levy will be subject to consideration/agreement 
as a consequence of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s budget setting process in 
2020/21 and subsequent years.

Bus reform
The financial case for the bus reform proposals include a full assessment of how the GMCA 
could afford to make and operate the proposed scheme. The assessment set out a range of 
credible funding sources which exceed the net modelled costs to operate the scheme over the 
proposed transition period. The assessment also concluded the proposed franchising scheme 
was affordable and would represent value for money. Following the audit of the assessment the 
GMCA agreed in October to commence consultation on the proposed franchising scheme which 
included a proposed funding package.

The forecast net costs over the transition period up to 2024/25 are approximately £134.5m. The 
sources of funding include £78.0m of mayoral ‘earn back’ funds (provided by central government 
as part of Greater Manchester’s Devolution Agreement), £11.0m raised by the existing precept 
as part of the Mayor’s 2019/20 budget for bus reform purposes and £22.7m from the mayoral 
precept in future years budgets, £5m of existing and forecast business rates receipts held by 
GMCA and £17.8m of contributions by Local Authorities as a proposed one off increase in the 
statutory contribution in 2020/21. The local authority contribution may be required following the 

Page 254



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 19

outcomes of the consultation on the proposed bus reforms.  On the basis of the above 
Rochdale’s share would be £1.4m.  Provision has been made in the budget and will be drawn 
down during 2020/21 if required.

Any differences between the cash-flowed spend and profiled funding requirement will be 
covered through prudential borrowing rather than being an additional funding ask. Discussions 
are also ongoing with Government around their level of support to deliver bus reform which could 
potentially reduce the local funding required including from the mayoral precept. The full 
business case will be included in the consultation documentation and includes the indicative 
profile of the costs and funding requirement.

Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Levy
The Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula across Greater Manchester which takes 
account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough did not increase recycling at the same level as 
other GM Authorities, there would be an impact on the waste disposal levy charged to the 
Council thus leading to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. 

The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the budget is based on the latest projections provided 
by Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA). The Waste Disposal levy is estimated for 
planning purposes to decrease by 3.7% in 2020/21 and 1.4% in 2021/22, and to increase by 
2.0% in 2022/23 and 1.4% in 2023/24. The Waste Disposal Levy will be subject to 
consideration/agreement as a consequence of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s 
budget setting process in 2020/21 and subsequent years.

Greater Manchester Combined Authority Initiatives
Funding for any GMCA initiatives that have financial implications for individual authorities will be 
considered on a case by case basis.

Manchester Airport Group 
The Council holds 3.22% of the issued share capital in the Manchester Airport Group. An 
additional £3m per annum has been assumed, increasing the overall budget income from the 
investment in Manchester Airport Group to £5.6m.

2.4.2 Local Budget Pressures

Demographics Pressures

Some of the main financial challenges affecting how we balance our budget relate to the 
changing profile of our Council’s residents. These include:

Population Projections impacting on Children’s Services

1. Projected population increase for 0-19 year olds from 2018 to 2023 based on the Office 
for National Statistics.

Page 255



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 20

Children Population 2018 2023 % Movement
0 to 9 year old 30,200 29,400 -2.6%
10 to 19 years old 26,600 28,900 8.6%
Total 56,800 58,300 2.6%

Within this the population for 0-9 year olds decreases by 2.6% whilst the 10-19 range 
increases by 8.6%.

2. Implications for Children’s Social Care
Currently Rochdale has 56,800 children of which 1% are looked after by the Local 
Authority. Based on future population growth this would equate to an additional 13 children 
being cared for by the Local Authority at the end of the 5 year period. 

However, in line with a national trend, the numbers of Cared for Children and their 
complexities are increasing due to deprivation, troubled families, special education needs 
and families entering the borough e.g. asylum seekers.  

In 2019/20 Children's Services are currently forecasting a pressure of £6.977m which 
relates mainly to External Residential Placements and SEND pressures. £2.951m is 
attributable to external residential placements. There is a significant pressure of £4.292m 
within High Needs, £0.262m is the pressure on Council funded areas and the remaining 
£4.030m is related to a pressure on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG). The pressures are 
in relation to a continued rise in numbers of children with education health care plans and 
children requiring SEND support.

A Financial Strategy outlining the potential financial position and options for how this can 
be managed over a 5 year period was reported to Cabinet in October 2019.  This 
includes investment in both staffing and a number of Innovations to support children 
remaining with their parents or local Foster Carers.

At the heart of the strategy is the development of a number of innovations to both reduce 
the number of children in care and realise savings.  These are:

 Family Services Model – partnership working with other agencies (police, health and 
the voluntary sector) to work more closely together for early intervention of children 
at risk of entering care.  This strategy relies upon external funding from other 
agencies and the Troubled Families Grant.  

 Achieving Change Together – working differently with other agencies to provide 
intensive support to vulnerable teenagers. 

 Strengthening families – intensive pre-birth support with mothers of repeat 
pregnancies whose children are taken into care.

 No Wrong Door – intensive support to teenagers in Placements with complex issues 
to enable them to return to their parents.

Page 256



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 21

The programme of innovations and investment are aimed at meeting the Council’s 
statutory responsibilities to safeguarding children, and improving outcomes for children 
whilst delivering value for money. The Investment Strategy model includes the projected 
placement pressures should 2018/19 growth levels continue over the next 5 years, the 
additional funding secured to date and the impact of the innovations. Assumptions have 
been built in with regards to the pooled fund, CCG contributions to Children’s Services and 
achieving efficiencies through the management of the placement market across GM. 

Work is ongoing to further develop the strategy to address the unfunded pressures in each 
year of the strategy. The current assumptions on the unfunded pressures have been built 
into the MTFS. Should the delivery of these innovations not be successful the budget 
pressure faced by Children’s Services could increase significantly. 

3. Implications for Early Help & Schools
As the number of pupils increases over the next 3-4 years there is a requirement to build 
2 new secondary schools in the Borough.  In addition, due to increasing numbers of 
children with special educational needs, especially autism, there is a need for a new special 
school catering for this provision.  Additional funding for 2 new secondary and 1 new 
special school has been approved by the DfE.  The revenue costs of running the schools 
will be funded by Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).

The increasing number of children with special educational needs has led to pressures in 
DSG funding for High Needs pupils.  Work is on-going to mitigate these future pressures.

Population Projections impacting on Adult Services

Projected population increase for 20 plus from 2018 to 2023 based on the Office for 
National Statistics is as follows:-

The number of people in the 20-64 age range is forecast to reduce in the period above, 
however there is a growing number of service users in the 20 to 64 age bracket who are 
presenting with complex social and health care issues. 

Demand for Services

The Council’s Place Plan highlights that residents are living longer, but compared to the rest 
of England and Wales we live shorter and less healthy lives. In some parts of our borough 

Adult Population 2018 2023 % 
Movement

20 to 64 year old 125,100 124,500 -0.7%
65 to 84 years old 31,700 34,500 8.8%
Over 85 4,400 4,700 6.8%
Total 161,200 163,700 1.55%

Page 257



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 22

there is a 10 year3 difference in life expectancy when comparing our most deprived areas to 
our more affluent. A key pressure on services is the increasing demands for Adult Social Care 
and health services for the most vulnerable and deprived residents. Improvements in delivery 
of these services are a priority for the integration of social care and health services through the 
Pooled Fund. It is, however, unclear whether resources allocated to our Council will be 
sufficient to cover additional burdens and pressures in future years.

Welfare Reform

The Welfare Reform agenda is likely to continue to place additional demands on our Council’s 
services as well as impacting on local authority finances. Deprivation is becoming more 
widespread across our borough with an increased proportion of the population living in the 
most deprived 10% of the country4. This increasing level of deprivation affects delivery for a 
number of services, including Housing, Benefits, Adult Skills, Children’s and Adult Social Care. 
The Discretionary Crisis Fund budget of £588k provides funding to support residents in crisis.

Housing Benefit/Local Council Tax Support Scheme Administration Grants

The Council receives grants from Central Government for the administration of Housing Benefit 
and the Local Council Tax Support Scheme. The Council has yet to receive notification of the 
level of grants for 2020/21 and future years. Any shortfall in the grant received compared to 
the amounts estimated will be funded corporately.

Pay Inflation

The budget assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 2% per annum for 
2020/21 and future years. Any settlement above the assumed increase would increase the 
expenditure requirement for the Council. A provision of £671k is held centrally to cover an 
additional 1% pay award. 

The budget also reflects the Council’s commitment to pay, based on the Local Living Wage 
Rates for employees. The National Living Wage will increase from £8.21 to £8.72 per hour from 
April 2020.  The Rochdale Living Wage for 2020/21 is £9.30 per hour. The MTFS also reflects 
the impact of the National Living Wage increase on the cost of the Adult Care contracts.

Increments

The Council’s operates a biennial incremental progression policy.

Superannuation Rates

The employer superannuation contribution rate is assumed to remain at the current level of 
20.5% for 2020/21 to 2022/23, and to increase by 0.9% in both 2023/24 and 2024/25.

3 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21
4 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21

Page 258



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 23

Advance Payment of Employer Pensions Contributions

The Council currently pays an employer’s contribution to the Greater Manchester Pension 
Fund on a monthly basis for all members of staff who are active in the Fund. We have the 
opportunity to pay our contributions in advance by one or three years in a single lump sum. 
The Fund would expect to generate additional returns as a result of the earlier receipt so that 
less is needed to generate the same final outcome. The Council would benefit from a reduced 
contribution rate depending on how far in advance the payment is made.

In order to make the advanced payment the Council would need to undertake some additional 
external borrowing. Our overall net benefits after these costs and the risks associated with the 
proposal are currently being evaluated. The borrowing can be accommodated within the limits 
outlined in our Treasury Management Strategy.

Price Inflation

Service budgets assume no inflation increase in non-pay budgets; with contractual 
arrangements and other significant inflation issues are considered on a case by case basis.  A 
separate provision of £583k is held centrally to cover an additional 1% increase on prices.

Discretionary Fees and Charges

Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. Corporate Overview and 
Scutiny Committee recommended that charges are increased for 2020/21 in line with inflation, 
with a number of exceptions. This was approved at October Cabinet and a separate report is 
submitted to February Cabinet for Members to consider. 

Budget Growth/Pressures

The MTFS allows for estimated growth in Adult Care, Children’s Services and Neighbourhoods 
budgets as a result of demographic issues and the growth in the number of properties in the 
borough. 

The MTFS also recognises the estimated financial implications of demand pressures on Adult 
and Children’s Services budgets. Cabinet 1st October 2019 approved the overall investment 
strategy for Children’s Social Care. Funding for the financial implications of the Children’s 
Strategy has been included in the budget. The budget also provides funding for Adult Care 
pressures, particularly in relation to commissioning.

Revenue borrowing costs of Capital Programme

The Capital Programme is summarised in Section 4. The budget assumes revenue borrowing 
costs of £1.5m resulting from the 2020/21 Capital Programme. 

Page 259



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 24

2.5 Forecast gap between resources and service spend

The assumptions that underpin the Council’s budget gap have been reviewed in line with the 
latest available information, including the impact of the Local Government Finance Settlement 
2020/21.

The MTFS is continually updated throughout the budget process. The major factors influencing 
the Council’s Budget are:

 The level of resources received by the Council, both locally generated and government 
grants;

 Health and Social Care integration;
 Budget pressures and costs increasing spend. 

Table 8 Movement Council Budget Gap

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Budget Gap October Cabinet 4.064 15.045 15.375

Changes to Budget Assumptions
Increase/(Decrease) in Budget Requirements 0.677 2.080 5.402
(Increase)/Decrease in Resources -2.521 -7.601 -10.562

-1.844 -5.521 -5.160

Revised Budget Gap 2.220 9.524 10.215
 
There remains significant uncertainty around the level of funding that the Council will receive 
from Central Government from 2021/22 onwards. The assumptions will be continually reviewed 
and updated as further information is received on the Government’s Spending Review and the 
reforms to Local Government Funding planned for 2021/22.

Page 260



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 25

Part 3:  How will the Council meet the Financial Challenge?

The Council will meet the financial challenge contained within this MTFS by having a robust Revenue 
Budget Plan and Savings Programme.

3.1 Revenue Budget Plan

3.1.1 Budget Timetable

The Council’s annual budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March each year. 
This is a statutory requirement; the Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget for the 
following financial year. The Council has in place an embedded budget setting process which 
begins in July with approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the budget 
is to be based. These are used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position.

Reports are provided to Cabinet, and reviewed by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny, regularly 
throughout the financial year which set out the timetable, assumptions on both funding and 
spending changes, based on realistic projections.

These assumptions are then applied to current service budgets and once funding has been 
estimated this gives an understanding of any potential budget gap. From this the savings 
programme is determined and reports are provided to members through Cabinet, Corporate 
Overview & Scrutiny, and Joint Consultative Negotiation Group to provide savings proposals for 
consultation to meet the budget gap.

Feedback following consultation is reported to Cabinet and will be submitted to full Council as 
part of the Budget Council in February.

Budget updates are reviewed and assumptions updated throughout the year based upon latest 
information available e.g. the Government’s Autumn Budget, the Local Government Finance 
Settlement, new legislation, etc. 

Implications of the capital programme are included in these budgets, as are service growth and 
pressures.  

Final recommendations are then made by Cabinet to Budget Council. 

Services are notified of their approved budgets following Budget Council in February.
 
Table 9 summarises the key timetable dates

Page 261



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 26

Table 9 Key Budget Setting Timetable Dates

     

Date Meeting/Event Purpose

2019

October

Key Meetings

Consultation

Corporate O&S 28th October
Cabinet 29th October
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) 29th October

1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 for consultation
2. Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 for consultation
3. Revenue Budget Update 2020/21 - 2022/23 
4. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25

Consultation Starts 30th October (45 days)

November

Key Meetings Corporate O&S 26th November
Cabinet 3rd December

1. Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23 - for consultation

December Consultation 13th December formal consultation ends

2020

February

Key Meetings - post 
consultation

Post consultation reports

Corporate O&S 11th February
Cabinet 12th February
Council 26th February

1. Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21
2. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25
3. Local Government Act 2003
4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2020/21
5.Revenue Budget Update 2020/21 - 2022/23
6. Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 2020/21
7. Savings Programme 2020/21 -2021/22 post consultation
8. Capital Programme 2020/21 - 2022/23 post consultation
9. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 post consultation

  
3.1.2 Budget Guidelines

Detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant staff to ensure that revenue budgets for individual 
services are prepared consistently. These guidelines contain details of the assumptions that are 
to be made in setting the revenue budget and also set out broad principles that are to be adhered 
to. 

3.1.3  Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2020/21 – 2024/25

The budget setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is important 
that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, reasonable and consistently 
applied. The budget assumptions are applied corporately to service budgets, with individual 

Page 262



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 27

exceptions on a case by case basis for specific contracts. 

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels of expenditure 
and anticipated levels of resources, which are summarised in Tables 10a and 10b. 

Table 10a Summary of Key Budget Assumptions

Budget 
assumption for the 
MTFS

Assumption applied

Council Tax  General purposes - maximum level as allowed by the 
referendum limit.
Adult Social Care precept - in line with the maximum 
referendum limit.

Business Rates 
income

Increased in line with CPI inflationary increases to the 
business rates multiplier at September each year.

Government Grants In line with information provided in the Local Government 
Finance Settlement. 

Pay awards In with the proposed National Pay Settlement Agreement, 
generally 2% with higher increases for some staff at lower 
pay scales.

Superannuation 
contribution rates

In line with the three year pension re-valuation undertaken 
by the Greater Manchester Pension Fund.

Inflation non pay 
(Prices)

MTFS assumes no increase in non-pay budgets in line with 
budget guidelines. Contractual arrangements and other 
significant inflation issues will be considered on a case by 
case basis. 

Discretionary Fees 
& Charges

Increased in line with inflation, subject to agreed exceptions.

Waste Disposal 
Levy

The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the MTFS is based 
on the latest projections provided by GMCA.

PTA Levy The levy is based on current information provided by GMCA.

Page 263



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 28

Table 10b Key Budget Assumptions 2020/21 to 2024/25

    

Council Tax
General Increase 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%
Social Care Precept 2.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total Council Tax Increase 3.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%

Business Rates
Business Rates Multiplier 1.6% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Business Rates Top Up Grant 2.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%

Other Resources
Improved Better Care Fund (£m) 11.917 11.917 11.917 11.917 11.917
Additional Social Care Funding (£m) 6.925 6.925 6.925 6.925 6.925

Service Budgets
Pay 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Superannuation Contribution Rate 20.5% 20.5% 20.5% 21.4% 22.3%
Prices 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Underlying Waste Disposal Levy -3.7% -1.4% 2.0% 1.4% 1.4%
Underlying Passenger Transport Levy 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
Budget pressures (£m) 10.306 10.189 9.937 8.307 7.493

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25Area of Budget 2020/21 

3.1.4 Key Budget Risks

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels of expenditure 
and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of these assumptions will not be received 
until November/December each year. There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget 
where risks to the projections contained in the MTFS have been identified.

The most significant of these are:

 Monitoring of the 2019/20 budget will provide Cabinet with regular updates on any budget 
pressures/savings for the Council. The overall revenue budget monitoring position, taking 
account of the projections currently being forecast by services which, as at the end of 
November 2019, is forecast to be in line with the budget. Any associated on going 
implications will be incorporated into the budget projections for 2020/21 and future years.

 Savings – the level of savings required for 2020/21 is currently being considered, 
including a number of HMRCCG proposals some of which are pipeline projects. There is 
a risk to the overall budget of the non-achievement of these savings due to the 

Page 264



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 29

identification and/or implementation of the proposals. A three year budget is to be set in 
February 2020 which provides time to implement the level of savings required to balance 
the budget over the period 2020/21 to 2022/23.

 The funding resulting from the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
2020/21 has been reflected in the MTFS, but will not be confirmed until the Final 
Settlement for 2020-21, expected in late January 2020. 

 Spending Review 2020 and Local Government Funding Reforms – the impact of the 
Spending Review 2020 and Local Government Funding Reforms scheduled for 2021/22 
on the level of Government funding, including the Business Rates Top-up Grant, that the 
Council will receive from 2020/21 onwards is unknown at this stage. 

 Specific Grants and Contributions – the number and amount of specific grants, including 
the Improved Better Care Fund, Additional Social Care funding and New Homes Bonus, 
received by the Council may be lower/higher than anticipated. 

 Council Tax – Central Government provides a cap on the Council Tax increase a Local 
Authority can make before a referendum of the local residents is required. The budget 
assumes a 3.99% increase in 2020/21 (1.99% increase for general purposes and 2% 
increase in respect of the Adult Social Care precept); 1.99% in 2021/22 to 2024/25 
(1.99% increase for general purposes and 0% increase for the Adult Social Care precept). 
These percentage increases are included for planning purposes only, and will be 
reviewed by Cabinet leading up to a recommendation at Budget Council for each year. 
The impact of a 1% change in the level of Council Tax increase would be approximately 
£880k.

 Local Council Tax Support Scheme – a banded Local Council Tax Support Scheme from 
2020/21 was approved by Council in December 2019 . This will have no financial impact 
for the Council. The impact on the budget of a 5% change in the maximum discount 
allowed (currently 85%) would be approximately £530k.

 Business Rates – it has been assumed for planning purposes that the Greater 
Manchester 100% Retention Pilot will continue. Once the Government’s proposals for the 
Business Rates retention system for 2021/22 onwards become clear the financial 
implications will be reviewed and the budget assumptions updated.

 Demand pressures – the impact of the economic climate on the residents of Rochdale 
Borough and the increased demand this may lead to for Council and CCG services could 
impact on cost of services, as could general demographic changes. Demand pressures 
are particularly prevalent in relation to Children’s Services, Adult Care, and CCG Mental 
Health and Acute Services.

Page 265



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 30

 Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooling budgets with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group within a Pooled Budget. The financial risk is that the investment in 
health and social care services does not deliver the benefits assumed. These benefits 
are required not only to fund interventions to invest to save in the long term, but also to 
contribute towards closing the budget gaps of all partners delivering health and social 
care services.

 There is continued uncertainty concerning the impact on local authorities of the UK’s 
withdrawal for European Union.

 Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula across 
Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling levels. Should Rochdale Borough 
not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities this will impact on the 
levy, and would lead to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. 

 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used by the Council 
compared to the percentage assumed in the budget projections. 

 Fees and charges income – impact of any economic slowdown on levels of usage of 
charged for Council services could lead to income levels not being achieved.

 Manchester Airport Group dividend – the amount of dividend received will be dependent 
on the performance of the Manchester Airport Group.

 Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications of any economic 
slowdown on the level of dividends/interest received by the Council.

 Commercial investment – the impact of economic factors on the financial return 
generated.

 Academies – the impact of the Government’s policies regarding the conversion of schools 
to Academies on the Council’s budget.

3.2 Savings Programme 2020/21

The Savings Programme for 2020/21 was designed to bridge the budget gap for 2020/21, to 
enable a legally balanced budget to be set by 11th March 2020, and consider savings which can 
contribute to the 2021/22 gap. 

Page 266



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 31

3.2.1 Savings programme milestones

For 2020/21 savings proposals have been considered in order to meet the budget gap. 

Budget Review Sessions have been held for each of the Council’s Priority Areas: People; Place 
and Prosperity. There have also been sessions reviewing Support Services and Fixed Costs 
and to explore areas where the Council can maximise income generation opportunities. Service 
Directors have produced savings proposals, which are considered elsewhere on the agenda.

3.2.2 Savings proposals were submitted to Cabinet 29th October as a basis for consultation. The 
outcome of consultation will be reported the Cabinet 12th February 2019, as summarised in 
Table 11.

Table 11 Savings Programme 2020/21
   

Ongoing One Off Ongoing One Off Ongoing One Off
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cabinet Approval
Proposals not requiring consultation -2.424 -0.220 -2.782 -0.225 -3.852 -0.155
Service Delivery/Workforce -0.033 0.000 -0.033 0.000 -0.033 0.000
Service Delivery -0.016 0.000 -0.016 0.000 -0.016 0.000
Workforce -0.187 0.000 -0.217 0.000 -0.233 0.000

-2.660 -0.220 -3.048 -0.225 -4.134 -0.155

Integrated Commissioning Board Approval
Adult Care -1.282 -0.060 -2.235 0.015 -2.235 0.000
Public Health -0.307 -0.153 -0.307 0.000 -0.307 0.000

-1.589 -0.213 -2.542 0.015 -2.542 0.000

Overall Total -4.249 -0.433 -5.590 -0.210 -6.676 -0.155

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

 
3.3 Budget Gap after Savings Proposals

It is proposed that Contingency is utilised in order to manage the Council’s Budget Gap over the 
years 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

Table 12 summarises the budget position for 2020/21 to 2022/23 after the application of Savings 
Proposals and the utilisation of Contingency.

The remaining £2m Budget Gap in 2021/22 and 2022/23 relates to the Transformation Funding 
for Adult Care coming to an end. This will be managed via the Pooled Fund.

Page 267



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 32

Table 12 Council Budget Position after Savings Proposals/ Equalisation Reserve 

   

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Budget Gap October Cabinet 4.064 15.045 15.375

Changes to Budget Assumptions
Increase/(Decrease) in Budget Requirements 0.677 2.080 5.402
(Increase)/Decrease in Resources -2.521 -7.601 -10.562

-1.844 -5.521 -5.160

Revised Budget Gap 2.220 9.524 10.215

Savings Proposals -4.682 -5.800 -6.831

Transfer to/(from) Contingency 2.462 -1.724 -1.384

Revised Budget Gap 0.000 2.000 2.000

3.4 Pooled Fund Gap  

The Local Authority created a formal pooled budget arrangement from 1st April 2018 for Health 
and Social Care. The Pooled Fund includes the Adult Social Care, Public Health, and elements 
of Children’s Services. The Non-Pooled Fund includes elements of Children Services, Economy, 
Neighbourhoods and Resources.

The Council’s budget has been combined with the latest Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group (HMRCCG) budget position to produce an overall budget for the 
locality. 

Table 13 summarises the Overall Budget Gap, split between the Pooled Fund and Non Pooled 
Fund budgets, showing how this has changed from the position reported to Cabinet 29th October.

Page 268



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 33

Table 13 Overall Budget Gap

   

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Total Budget Gap - Oct Cabinet 14.445 32.226 38.531

Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -1.844 -5.521 -5.160
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions 4.239 4.239 4.239

Revised Budget Gap 16.840 30.944 37.610

Savings Proposals -15.585 -16.703 -17.734
Transfer to/from Contingency 2.462 -1.724 -1.384
Revised Budget Gap 3.717 12.517 18.492

CCG Gap 3.717 10.517 16.492
LA Pooled Fund Gap 0.000 2.000 2.000
LA Non Pooled Gap 0.000 0.000 0.000
Revised Budget Gap 3.717 12.517 18.492

3.4 The Transformation Fund 

The Council’s Transformation Fund was created in 2014/15 in response to the significant 
financial pressures from the continued reduction in Government funding.

The fund aims to provide the resources necessary to invest in proposals where one off funding 
is required on an invest to save basis to generate future savings or additional income which will 
support the council to bridge the budget gap and deliver a balanced budget.

The fund is overseen by the Leadership Team and with any funding allocations signed off by 
the Leader.

There are currently 16 live transformation fund projects, some of which will enable the delivery 
of projects within the savings programme and other which transform the way we deliver services 
through improvements to internal systems and processes. These savings are already factored 
into the budget assumptions.

3.5 Balances and Reserves Strategy  

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer to report to Council for 
consideration immediately prior to setting the Budget and Council Tax. A report will be submitted 
to Cabinet in February 2020 on the robustness of the budget and the adequacy of general 
balances and reserves.  The report aims to ensure that Council is aware of the opinion of the 
Chief Finance Officer regarding the robustness of the budget as proposed and the adequacy of 
general balances and reserves. This includes general balances and amounts held as specific 
reserves and contingencies. 

Page 269



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 34

3.5.1   General Fund Balances 

General Fund balances are amounts set aside to cushion the impact of unexpected events and 
emergencies.  In order to assess their adequacy, a systematic approach has been adopted.  
This approach is based on the identification of the key financial risks following which an amount 
of ‘potential’ exposure is calculated based on the impact of the risk and the possibility of its 
occurrence.  It should however be noted that this is not a precise science and that local 
circumstances, the strength of financial reporting arrangements and the Council’s track record 
in financial management will also be a key influence on the actual potential of any individual risk 
materialising.  The net value of the potential exposure is currently estimated at £17m.

In 2018/19 a contribution of £3.3m from the Equalisation Reserve was used to balance the 
budget. In 2019/20 an estimated £6.7m from the Equalisation Reserve will be required to 
balance the budget.

The key financial risks leading to the current projected requirement of £17m General Fund 
balances were detailed in a report to Cabinet 12th February 2019 on the robustness of the budget 
and the adequacy of general balances and reserves, under the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The level of balances reflects the potential financial risks associated with 
the timing of the delivery of the health and social care integration benefits/efficiencies. On this 
basis it if felt prudent to identify this as a risk at this stage. The risks have been reviewed during 
the Autumn/Winter as part of the Budget process. 

3.5.2 Earmarked Reserves

In addition to general balances, the Council holds a number of earmarked reserves.  These are 
resources that have been set aside to fund specific issues that may arise in the future. It is 
important that the Council makes best uses of all the resources it has and therefore where it is 
clear that a reserve is no longer required then the resources can be released to provide one-off 
support to the Revenue Budget. 

The Council’s budget setting process includes an annual review of amounts held in earmarked 
reserves. This ensures that resources continue to be set aside only where there is a clear 
continuing need to do so. 

Some of the key reserves are referred to below:

 Equalisation Reserve - This reserve has been established to assist the Authority in 
managing its budget requirement for future years and smoothing the impact of savings 
requirement through the commitment of one off funds that become available, e.g. from in 
year underspends.  The level of the reserve is reviewed as part of the budget process with 
contributions increased or decreased as necessary. 

 Insurance Reserve - this is required to cover potential liabilities arising from the need to 
finance costs (e.g. claims and premium payments) associated with insurable risk and the 
self-funding of general corporate risks. The level of the reserve is reviewed as part of the 
budget process with contributions increased or decreased as necessary. 

Page 270



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 35

 Schools Reserves – school balances are reviewed on an annual basis.  The current policy 
of the Schools Forum provides for balances above agreed limits to be clawed back and 
redistributed to all schools. This is a ring fenced reserve.

 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Reserves - This reserve is the cumulative amount of 
unapplied funding received to date which will be utilised to finance the schools and street 
lighting PFI schemes over the whole life of the projects. This is a ring fenced reserve.

A detailed analysis of the Council’s balances and reserves is carried out as part of the budget 
setting process and the report provided to Budget Council each February under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to provide assurance that the level of reserves and balances are 
appropriate.

3.5.3 Reserves Policy

The Council’s policy on balances and reserves is outlined within the MTFS principles as 
follows:

 The Council will maintain general balances at a level to mitigate risks to cover any 
major unforeseen expenditure. The approach to be adopted to be based on the 
identification of the key financial risks following which an amount of ‘potential’ 
exposure is calculated based on the impact of the risk and the possibility of its 
occurrence 

 The Council will maintain earmarked reserves for specific purposes which are 
consistent with achieving key priorities. To ensure the Council makes  best uses of all 
the resources it has if a reserve is no longer required then the resources can be 
released to provide one-off support to the Revenue Budget

 The use and level of general balances and earmarked reserves will be reviewed at 
least annually.

 The Council will seek to balance its revenue budget over the period of the MTFS 
without reliance on the use of general reserves and contain overall Council spending 
within original estimates. However, the Council will utilise funds from the Equalisation 
Reserve to smooth the impact of one off savings, long term cost pressures and 
transformational efficiencies agreed as part of the Savings Programme proposals.

3.5.4   Provisions

Provisions are amounts set aside by the Council to meet the cost of a future liability, for which 
the timing of the payment is uncertain. The amounts represent the best estimate of that liability 
where an exact cost is not able to be determined. In line with the Code of Practice, the provision 
is charged to service revenue accounts in the year it is established. When the liability falls due, 
the costs are charged directly to the provision. The two material provisions are:

Page 271



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 36

 Insurances – this represents amounts set aside by the Council to meet obligations 
arising in respect of Employers Public Liability and motor vehicle claims. 

 Business Rates Rateable Value – this is for potential backdated liability of refunding 
ratepayers who appeal successfully against the rateable value on the Business Rates 
hereditaments rating list. 

3.6 Commercial property investment strategy

In recognition of the continuing financial limitations due to reductions in public funding, the 
Council has implemented a commercial property investment strategy.

This is designed to achieve rental income and revenue savings from acquiring an investment 
portfolio, whilst contributing to the Council’s overall regeneration aims for the borough. The 
Council has approved funding via the capital programme in order to achieve these aims. The 
investments made to date have all been within the borough of Rochdale, and as such have 
contributed to the aim of supporting economic growth within the local area. The financial return 
generated has been utilised to support the provision of services for the residents of Rochdale, 
and it is planned that this will continue into future financial years. 

Further details are outlined in the Council’s Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy.

3.7 Financial Resilience

3.7.1 CIPFA Financial Resilience Index

CIPFA has published a Financial Resilience Index, designed to support and improve discussions 
surrounding local authority financial resilience. The Index shows a council’s performance against 
a range of measures associated with financial risk.

The Index is a comparative analytical tool that may be used by Chief Financial Officers to support 
good financial management, and generate common understanding of the financial position 
within their organisation. The index is made up of a set of indicators. These indicators take 
publicly available data and compare similar authorities across a range of factors. There is no 
single overall indicator of financial risk, so the index instead highlights areas where additional 
scrutiny should take place in order to provide additional assurance. This additional scrutiny 
should be accompanied by a narrative to place the indicator into context.

The Index, at Table 14, shows the Council to be relatively low risk across the majority of the 
indicators of financial risk.

Page 272



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 37

Table 14 CIPFA Financial Resilience Index

3.7.2 CIPFA Financial Management Code

CIPFA has developed a Financial Management Code (FM Code), which is designed to support 
good practice in financial management and to assist local authorities in demonstrating their 
financial sustainability. The FM Code sets the standards of financial management for local 
authorities. It applies a principles-based approach and relates to other statutory and good 
practice guidance. It builds on other codes and frameworks. The principles translate into 
financial management standards which are obligatory but not prescriptive regarding how they 
are achieved.

Local authorities need to ensure that their governance and financial management meets the 
requirements of the code. CIPFA considers that the implementation date of April 2020 should 
indicate the commencement of a ‘shadow year’ and that by the end of 2020/21, local authorities 
should be able to demonstrate that they are working towards full implementation of the code. 
The first full year of compliance with the FM Code will be 2021/22.

An initial consideration of the FM Code indicates that the Council seems well placed, however 
a formal process to review the requirements of the FM Code will begin in March 2020.

Page 273



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 38

Part 4: The Council’s Capital Programme

4.1 The proposed Capital Programme has been developed in line with the Council’s priorities:

 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s economic growth 
potential and continue to regenerate our town centres.

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard of quality building and 
public space.

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, realising maximum value 
from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, customers and other building users.

4.2 Along with the Council’s current priorities, the proposed Capital Programme has been developed 
for 2020/21 to 2022/23, taking into consideration the available resources. The approach for 
setting the 2020/21 capital budget has followed the steps below: 

 Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 27th February 2019.
 Review of 2019/20 and 2020/21 schemes – work has been undertaken with Services and 

Leadership Team to review 2019/20 and 2020/21 schemes taking into account spend to 
date, previous re-phasing of budget,  and links to the Council’s priorities.

 Consideration of new schemes in relation to the Council’s priorities.
 Final Review Session with the Leader of the Council / Cabinet Member for Finance, 

Director of Resources, Director of Neighbourhoods, and Director of Economy, followed 
by approval to progress the proposed programme by the Council’s Leadership Team.

4.3 When a scheme is approved and the proposed spend is profiled across financial years, the 
scheme funding will be approved across these financial years and will therefore be considered 
as a priority in future years. Any reduction in the funding of these schemes will only be 
considered where contracts have not been entered into.

4.4 Schemes totalling £83.475m have been proposed to be included in the 2020/21 Capital 
Programme. Table 14 shows the total proposed Capital expenditure by service for 2020/21 to 
2021/22, and how the expenditure is proposed to be funded

Page 274



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 39

Table 14 Summary of Capital Programme
 

 2020/21  2021/22 2022/23
Directorate £'000 £'000 £'000
Adult Care 2,440 2,440 2,440
Children's Services 21,640 7,516 7,516
Economy 19,559 11,550 4,431
Neighbourhoods 33,497 26,686 10,485
Public Health 4,328 288 360
Resources 2,011 0 0
Total requirement 83,475 48,480 25,232
    

Funding Source
Prudential Borrowing 19,539 19,975 11,580
External Grant and contributions 39,960 19,973 11,923
Invest to Save 20,428 7,338 1,530
Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay 1,704 155 155
Capital Receipts 1,844 1,039 44
Total funding 83,475 48,480 25,232

4.5 The Capital schemes are categorised as follows:

 Annual Allocation - These schemes receive annual allocations either as a result of 
external funding, or because the capital investment is essential for the Council to maintain 
current service delivery or to meet statutory responsibilities.

 Scheme started in previous years - These schemes are multi-year schemes that 
commenced prior to 2020/21.

 New Bid - These are new schemes or schemes requiring additional funding for the 
2020/21 capital programme.

4.6 Borrowing of £19.539m is required to fund expenditure relating to specific schemes in 2020/21. 
The revenue cost of this is approximately £1.524m per annum.

Page 275



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 40

P

Part 5: Strategies Linked to the Medium Term Financial Strategy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy is closely linked to a number of other key strategies of the 
Council:

Treasury Management Strategy 

Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy

Asset Strategy

Page 276

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/treasury-management-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/capital-Investment-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/asset-strategy.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 41

 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk
Page 277



1

Report to Corporate O&S Committee

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance  
Report Author Julie Murphy  
Public Document

Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 – Update Following 
Consultation

Executive Summary

1. This report provides Cabinet Members with: 

 An update on the results of consultation on the proposed Savings 
Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

It is recommended that Cabinet approve the following savings proposals for 
submission to full Council for approval:

 NH-2020-21-002 Cease delivery of non-statutory wider tobacco control 
work, following the completion of the workforce consultation.

 NH-2020-21-013 Bowling Pavilions utility charges to users (smart 
meters).

Cabinet recommend that CS-2020-21-003 Proposal to relocate Milnrow Youth 
Centre be withdrawn.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Cabinet Members are required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget 
and Capital Programme 2020/21 to Budget Council and provisional budgets 
for 2021/22 to 2022/23. The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 
2020/21 the by 11 March 2020.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

Savings programme 2020/21 to 2021/22

Cabinet 29th October 2019 decided that:

Page 278

Agenda Item 15



2

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

 The identified Savings Proposals not requiring consultation totalling 
£2.467m be approved.

 Savings proposals with Workforce only implications totaling £0.187m, 
be approved subject to consultation with affected employees and the 
Trade Unions through the Service consultative groups. Following 
consultation these proposals will be now be implemented through the 
Council’s Delegated Decision Making process and will not come back 
to Cabinet for approval to implement.

 The Service Delivery proposals requiring consultation be approved for 
consultation, with the exception of NH-2020-21-006 Reduction in 
Voluntary Sector Grants to a homelessness charity (£3,000), which 
was removed from the process.

 Savings totalling £1.607m for approval by Integrated Commissioning 
Board were also provided to Cabinet for information.

Consultation on the Service Delivery Savings Proposals began on 30 
October 2019 and ended 13 December 2019. The outcome of the 
consultation is summarised as follows:

Reference Proposal
2020/21 
Ongoing

Comments

£
CS-2020-21-003 Proposal to relocate Milnrow Youth Centre 3,200 Recommended for withdrawal

NH-2020-21-002 Cease delivery of non-statutory wider tobacco control work 29,000 No issues from latest consultation on Service 
Delivery element. Changes to the Workforce 
element, which will now progress to workforce 
consultation with a £4,000 reduction to the 
saving

NH-2020-21-013 Bowling Pavilions utility charges to users (smart meters) 13,000 No issues from the latest consultation

Following consultation it is recommended that CS-2020-21-003 - Proposal to 
relocate Milnrow Youth Centre be withdrawn

Following consultation there has been a reduction of £4,000 in the total savings, 
in relation to proposal NH-2020-21-002 Cease delivery of non-statutory wider 
tobacco control work.

NH-2020-21-002 Cease delivery of non-statutory wider tobacco control work will 
now progress to Workforce consultation and will be implemented through the 
Council’s Delegated Decision Making process and therefore will not be reported 
back to Council for approval to implement.

Consultation on the Workforce Savings Proposals began 30 October 2019 and 
ended 13 December 2019. Following consultation these proposals will be 
implemented through the Council’s Delegated Decision Making process and 
therefore not included within this report for approval to implement.

Page 279



3

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Consideration was given to a number of options in putting forward the savings 
proposals contained in the report to Cabinet 29 October 2019 and the report 
outlined any alternatives. To do nothing was not considered to be an option as 
the Council is legally required to set a balanced budget. 

Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Implementing the proposals will contribute £42,000 of recurring savings 
towards the budget gap.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

The Council is required to set a lawful budget for 2020/21 by the by 11 March 
2020 and there is a risk if we do not responsibly put forward proposals for 
consideration to meet the budget reductions/pressures.

Risk implications have been added where applicable within individual 
detailed reports.  To manage this risk we will supply Cabinet Members with 
copies of all available implications to make informed decisions.

Where relevant, specific legal issues have been identified in the individual 
savings proposal reports. Legal advice has also been provided in relation to 
the Equality Act duties, and recent case law decisions on both consultation 
requirements and equality impact assessments.

Advice has been provided on the following:

 The need to ensure that service reductions do not constitute a 
failure on the part of the Council to fulfill statutory duties.

 The need to be aware of contractual arrangements with third 
parties which can only be varied by agreement or which (if that 
does not prove possible) can only be terminated by substantial 
notice periods and consider the financial implications of any 
variations.

Page 280



4

 The need to be aware of restrictions which affect property 
assets. Some have restrictions on usage, some have 
conditions attached to gifts and planning restrictions might 
apply. On this last aspect, there needs to be separation of the 
Council’s statutory role from that of property owner.

 Some proposals may ultimately involve the transfer of staff 
with the resultant need to undertake statutory consultations.

 Some proposals will involve potential redundancy. This will 
involve statutory consultations.

 Advice on contractual, procurement law matters (including 
staff related matters).

Where there are workforce implications arising for the proposals contained 
within this report these will be implemented through the Council’s 
Delegated Decision Making process:

Equalities Impacts

The Council is required to assess/analyse the potential effect on quality of 
its proposals at each stage of the process. Equality Impact Assessments 
(EIA) have been undertaken and for all relevant proposals the EIAs have 
been produced for Members consideration. The Council must consider these 
assessments and have due regard to the general equality duty in the 
decision making process.

The Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) is a working document which is to 
be continually developed from the onset of the development of the proposal 
to the consultation and then the final decision making stage. This means that 
as further details become available through consultation, the EIA is updated 
and finalised before a final decision is reached.

The full Equality Impact Assessment for each Service Delivery proposal are 
provided in the report provided separately on this agenda. 

Workforce Equality Impact Assessment

A workforce impact assessment will be undertaken to understand how the 
overall proposals   affect the make-up of the workforce.

The Council undertook a workforce EIA for the savings process in previous 
years. The same analysis will be undertaken for the cohort of staff affected 
by the savings proposals in 2020/21 and 2021/22.  A full equalities impact 
assessment will be undertaken following the implementation of the savings 
proposals, at which point we may need to revisit our equalities action plan 
or other policies.

The full workforce implications for each workforce proposal are provided in 
the private report provided separately on this Agenda.

6.5

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

Page 281



5

Consultation

7.1 Consultation on the Service Delivery Proposals commenced on 30 October 
2019 and ended on 13 December 2019. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Individual Reports and 
Consultation responses

Members Lounge, Floor 2, Number One 
Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Yvonne Dunease
yvonne.dunease@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925273

Page 282

mailto:yvonne.dunease@rochdale.gov.uk


Public
Appendix 1

Council Savings Proposals for 
2020/21 – 2021/22 

Supplementary papers for 
Cabinet

12th February 2020

Page 283



Public
Appendix 1

2

Post consultation - Savings Programme Report

Date of meeting : 12 February 2020

Portfolio:  Children’s Services
Report Author  :  Diane Higgins

Proposal Title Proposal to close/relocate Milnrow Youth Centre 
Proposal No. CS-2020-21-003
Proposal Type Service Delivery 
Directorate Children’s Services 
Service Area Youth Service 

Recommendation

1.1 Members are asked to consider that Milnrow Youth Centre remains open 
based on the responses from the public consultation.

Reason for Recommendation

2.1 The proposal was to close Milnrow Youth Centre.  Due to the responses in 
the public consultation it is now recommended that this building remain open.   

Key Points for Consideration

3.1

4.1

Overview of the proposal

The proposal was to close Milnrow Youth Centre.  Due to the responses in 
the public consultation it is now recommended that this building remain 
open.   

Background

Youth Service Provision is undertaken in a range of settings across the 
borough which include Youth Centres, Community Centres, Link4 Life Sports 
Centres, libraries and detached and outreach sessions.

The proposal was to consider the closure of Milnrow Youth Centre in 
Pennines. Due to the responses in the public consultation it is now 
recommended that this building remain open.   

Page 284



Public
Appendix 1

3

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The withdrawal of the proposal means that the saving of £3,200 will not be 
achieved.

Risk Implications

Not applicable

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Asset Implications 

Not applicable

Voluntary Sector Impact 

Not applicable

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Equalities Impact

The detailed Equality Impact Assessment is provided at Appendix 1.

Consultation

7.1

7.2

The key stakeholders for this proposal have been identified as:
 Young people and parents who use the service in Milnrow 
 The Youth Council, a council of young people who 

represent the views of young people from across the 
borough.

 Youth Service Employees
 Voluntary Sector users (currently The Princes Trust)

The young people who use Milnrow Youth Centre have been consulted on 
the proposal.  They have visited the library which was offered as an 
alternative location but it was deemed unsuitable at this time due to access 
restrictions.  Young people have provided feedback via a petition which was 
signed by 69 individuals, completion of hard copies of the saving 
consultation (6 young people) and 6 letters signed by 30 young people who 

Page 285



Public
Appendix 1

4

7.3

7.4

7.5

are users of the centre.    All 105 responses to the consultation did not agree 
with the proposal to close the youth centre.  Key feedback from these letters 
included:

 Worried that the alternative would be the park or on the streets where 
they don’t feel safe

 The youth club is a place to go that has facilities such as a kitchen, 
plugs to charge your phone, space for doing activities and for just 
‘chilling’.

The Youth Council were consulted on the proposal at a meeting Tuesday 
19th November and shared their views and opinions. The cabinet were in 
disagreement with the proposal, but they did provide some suggestions as 
to how to make the centre more viable if it remained open, including more 
advertisement in schools so that more people can access the space, 
fundraising and having it open more nights per week. Keeping the building 
open more evenings is not an option for the youth service as we do not have 
the resources the only way we could do this is if the building was rented out 
to other people.

The proposal went out to public consultation for the minimum of 45 days. 
The public provided feedback online through the Council website.

The online public consultation received 59 responses.  Of the 59, 58 
disagreed with the proposal and 1 neither agreed or disagreed.  The results 
of which are available for viewing. Examples of the disagreements included: 

 12 felt there would be a rise in Youth Violence and ASB as a result of 
closure

 11 discussed the streets not being a safe alternative for the young 
people 

 11 mentioned young people being significantly affected by the cuts 
and needing to have their own spaces in the community, rather than 
using venues that aren’t fit for purpose.

 6 felt it was a false economy
 1 felt that the savings would be outweighed by the cost of policing 

increased anti-social behaviour. A further individual identified that 
closure or relocation would have a longer term cost to the council as 
a result.

 1 young adult spoke of the positive impact of the Milnrow Youth centre 
in preventing them from criminality and how it prevented him from 
staying involved with a gang

 2 respondents referred to the saving of £3,000 being such a low 
amount that there had to be a different solution to saving this. 

 1 respondent felt that Rochdale Council cuts to services have hit 
children, the elderly and the disabled the hardest. 

 1 commented that youth clubs provided early intervention responses 
for young people

Page 286



Public
Appendix 1

5

 1 suggested that outreach shouldn’t replace clubs, but be part of the 
provision

 12 suggested it was simply a ‘bad idea’ to close youth centres
 1 talked about the links between closing youth centres and rises in 

youth violence and youth unemployment

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Here you should detail any 
background papers – 

 Copies of letters from 
young people

 Copy of petition

 Hard copies of 
consultation

 

For Further Information Contact: Diane Higgins
Diane.higgins@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 922224

Page 287

mailto:Diane.higgins@rochdale.gov.uk


Public
Appendix 1

6

 Appendix 1

Guidance

Stage 1: Initial Screening

Directorate:
Children’s Services

Service:
Youth Service 

Officer completing EIA:
Diane Higgins 

Other officers involved in completing EIA:
To date the proposal is confidential therefore no stakeholder groups have been involved. Future involvement 
will include staff, elected members and young people

Date of Assessment:

17th September, 2019
Name of policy to be assessed:

Closure of Milnrow Youth Centre 
Is this a new or revised policy?

New      ☒                    Revised      ☐

What is the purpose of the policy?

To enable savings to be made 
Are there any other objectives?

Statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Education under Section 507B of the Education and 
Inspections Act 2006, relates to local authorities duty to secure service and activities for young people aged 13 
– 19, and those with learning difficulties to age 24, to improve their well-being. 

The guidance states that is the local authorities’ duty to secure, so far is reasonably practicable, equality of 
access for all young people to the positive, preventative and early help they need to improve their well-being. 
This includes youth work and other services and activities that: 

 Connect young people with their communities
 Offer young people opportunities in safe environments to take part in a wide range of sports, arts, music 

and other activities
 Support the personal and social development of young people through which they build the capabilities 

they need for learning, work and transition to adulthood 
 Improve young people’s physical and mental health and emotional well-being
 Help those young people at risk of dropping out of learning or not achieving their full potential to engage 

and attain in education or training
 Raise young people’s aspirations, build their resilience, and inform their decisions – and thereby 

reducing teenage pregnancy, risky behaviours such as substance misuse, and involvement in crime 

Page 288

http://rbcintranet.rochdale.local/pc/_layouts/15/WopiFrame.aspx?sourcedoc=/pc/Guidance%20Documents/RBC%20Guidance%20Document%20Oct%202016.docx&action=default&DefaultItemOpen=1


Public
Appendix 1

7

and anti-social behaviour. 

The responsibilities of local authorities include; ; 

 Involve young people
Local authorities must take steps to ascertain the views of young people and to take them into account in 
making decisions about service and activities for them, in line with Article 12 of the United Nations Convention 
on the Rights of the Child 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/756983/Statutory_
Guidance_for_Local_Authorities_on_Services_and_Activities_to_Improve_Young_People_s_Well-being.pdf

In responding to legislation the local authority must: 
 Put young people at the heart of decision making
 Address the needs of young people at greatest risk of negative outcomes
 Map existing provision and identify gaps in provision and accessibility;
 Work with partners to realise the local ambition

Who is likely to benefit from the policy (key stakeholders)? 
The policy will enable savings to be made, delivering the services through remote detached youth work in the 
Pennines.

Is the policy relevant to equality?

Yes      ☒                    No      ☐

(Answer yes if you think that the policy has equality considerations for example it has the potential to affect 
groups in different ways. If you have answered yes, proceed to question1. If you answered no, move to the sign 
off section as no further assessment is required)

What information do you have to inform this initial assessment?

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment identifies 5 priorities for action which inform the work areas delivered by 
the youth service. These include; 

 Giving every child the best start in life
 Prevention and early intervention
 Tackling health inequalities
 Wellbeing
 Healthier Lifestyle

Rochdale borough’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2016 identifies the following; 

 The JSNA identifies an increase in the projected population by 3.8% in the 0-15 age group by 2025
 Rochdale’s 0-19 population accounts for 26.3% of the borough’s 212,960 residents. A higher proportion 

of young people are from BME groups (2011Census) and the latest schools census data suggests this 
is increasing. 54.1% of 0-19 year olds are living in areas that are amongst the most deprived in the 
borough. 

 According to the 2015 indices of deprivation, 30.5% of borough residents live in LSOAs among the most 
10% deprived in the borough.

Page 289

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/756983/Statutory_Guidance_for_Local_Authorities_on_Services_and_Activities_to_Improve_Young_People_s_Well-being.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/756983/Statutory_Guidance_for_Local_Authorities_on_Services_and_Activities_to_Improve_Young_People_s_Well-being.pdf


Public
Appendix 1

8

 The areas of Rochdale, with the highest populations of people aged 0-19, are kingswau., Kirkholt, 
Smallbridge and Firgrove and West Middleton. 

 The areas with the lowest populations are in Norden, Bamford, South Middleton, East Middleton, 
Healey, Littleborough, Lakeside and Milnrow and Newhey.  

 (List or attach existing data that will help in identifying the potential impact of this policy for example previous 
consultation; research or practical guidance or any evidence or information that you already have about how 
this proposal might affect equality in any of the areas covered by the protected groups)

Page 290



Public
Appendix 1

9

What is the potential impact that the policy could have with regard to the protected characteristics?

Disability 

Young people with disabilities will be able to access alternative provision across the Borough. All of the 
services are open to young people with a disability and support will be made available for them to access the 
services they need in other facilities.  Additionally at the request of the young people with disabilities forum, the 
youth service will find an alternative location for its Pennines based Short Breaks SEND session which 
currently takes place at Milnrow Youth Centre. 

Gender

There are some sessions aimed at single gender work.  This will continue with the revised services.

Age

We operate as an open access service for young aged 11 to 19, increasing to 25 for young people with 
additional needs and disabilities.  The young people using the Milnrow Youth Centre will be made fully aware of 
all our other services and will be supported to access these.  Youth Workers will work with young people to find 
alternative community facilities.

(Identify whether the policy has the potential to impact in a positive or negative way or not at all. For negative 
impacts use the impact table to calculate a score based on the likelihood that an impact will occur and what the 
actual impact might be then determine whether it is a High priority (H), Medium priority (M) or Low priority (L))

Page 291



Public
Appendix 1

10

Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact

Impact 
Score 
(1-16)

Impact 
priority
(H/M/L)

Neutral 
Impact

Age
☐ ☒ 16

Closure 
negative 
impact 

☐

Disability
☐ ☒ 8 Medium ☐

Gender Reassignment 
☐ ☐ 1 Low ☐

Marriage or civil partnership 
☐ ☐ Low ☐

Pregnancy or maternity
☐ ☐ 1 Low ☐

Race 
☐ ☐ 1 Low ☐

Religion or belief
☐ ☐ 1 Low ☐

Sex
☐ ☐ 8 Medium ☐

Sexual orientation
☐ ☐ 1 Low ☐

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces
☐ ☐ No None ☐

Carers
☐ ☐ 1 Low ☐

3. Do any of your negative impact scores identify as high priority on the impact table?

Yes      ☒                  No      ☐

If you identify a negative impact as being HIGH PRIORITY you must complete a full EIA (stage 2 onwards)

4. How will you minimise/remove any negative impact that identifies as medium or low?

Where risks are low or medium, young people will be able to access the service through detached youth work

(Identify the actions that you will take to minimise or remove these negative impacts by completing an action 
plan as at Appendix 1)

5. Is a full EIA required?

Yes      ☐                 No      ☒
This to be completed following consultation 
Lead Officer Signature: Date:

Approver Signature Date:

Page 292



Public
Appendix 1

11

Stage 2: Full EIA

1. What data / evidence do you have to inform the EIA?

(List all available data and evidence that shows groups having different needs, experiences or attitudes in relation to the 
policy. Use the information from the initial screening plus collect any additional data) 

Age

Disability

Gender Reassignment 

Marriage or civil partnership

Pregnancy or maternity

Race 

Religion or belief

Sex

Sexual orientation

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces

Carers

2. What are the key messages coming from this data?

 (outline any trends, patterns or key points that you have identified in the data collected)

3. What gaps are there in the data?

(outline any gaps in the data that are preventing you from having a full understanding of the needs of different groups and 
that will need to be addressed through further research or consultation)

4. What consultation feedback do you have to inform this EIA?

At this stage, there has been no consultation. 

(Outline any stakeholder consultation or engagement that you have undertaken and state the feedback received from 
groups that highlights different needs, experiences or attitudes in relation to the policy)

Page 293



Public
Appendix 1

12

Age
Disability
Gender Reassignment 
Marriage or civil partnership

Pregnancy or maternity

Race 

Religion or belief

Sex

Sexual orientation

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces

Carers

5. What is the overall impact that the policy is likely to have on different groups?

(Outline the overall impact that the policy will have on different groups from the data and feedback collected. Show how 
you reached your conclusions; decide on the priorities and identify actions. Complete an action plan outlining the actions 
that you will take to minimise any impacts. Include any positive impacts in your assessment because these might be 
important to the decision making process.)

Age

Disability

Gender Reassignment 

Marriage or civil partnership

Pregnancy or maternity

Race 

Religion or belief

Sex

Sexual orientation

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces

Carers

6. What are the conclusions from undertaking the full EIA?

(Summarise the key points)

7. Does the policy meet our equality obligations?

Yes      ☐                  No      ☐

Page 294



Public
Appendix 1

13

Post consultation - Savings Programme Report

Date of meeting : 12 February 2020

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Report Author: Nicola Rogers

Proposal Title Cease delivery of non-statutory wider tobacco control 
work

Proposal No. NH 2020-21-002
Proposal Type Service Delivery with Workforce Implications
Directorate Neighbourhoods
Service Area Public Protection

Recommendation

1.1 Members are asked to consider the proposal to cease delivery of non-
statutory wider tobacco control work for consultation as part of the Savings 
Programme 2020/21 – 2021/22.

Reason for Recommendation

2.1 To support the Council’s requirement to deliver a balanced budget for 
2020/21.

The vast majority of services delivered across all Public Protection teams are 
statutory functions, some of which have mandatory levels of service provision. 
It is not thought appropriate to reduce statutory service provision whilst 
continuing to deliver non-statutory functions. 

Key Points for Consideration

3.1 Overview of the proposal

(Select yes if you are satisfied that all of the available evidence has been accurately assessed for its impact in relation to 
the protected characteristics and that mitigations have been identified and actioned accordingly)

Lead Officer Signature:
D Higgins

Date:
07/01/2020

Approver Signature Date:

Page 295



Public
Appendix 1

14

The health improvement team coordinates and delivers a number of 
activities which contribute to reducing the take up smoking by children and 
young people whilst promoting and normalising smoke free environments.

Activities include the Decipher Assist peer support programme delivered in 
schools and promoting and normalising smoke free environments such as 
smoke free homes and cars, smoke free parks and smoke free sports 
stadiums.

The Public Protection Service dedicates 0.8 FTE grade 7, mainstream 
salary funded post, to the delivery these non-statutory tobacco reduction 
activities. 

It is proposed that the Public Protection delete the 0.8 FTE post from the 
structure and cease delivery of the non-statutory tobacco reduction 
activities.

The Health Protection Specialist Lead Officer postholder (grade 8) role 
undertakes combination of non-statutory tobacco reduction work and 
statutory environmental health functions including infectious disease 
control, filthy and verminous premises enforcement and coordinating public 
health funerals.

It is proposed to remodel the duties of this post to cease the co-ordination 
and delivery of the non-statutory tobacco reduction activities and make the 
statutory functions the full-time remit of this post.

The post holder is currently undertaking a 0.6 FTE secondment with the GM 
Health and Social Care Partnership as Project Manager for Making 
Smoking History. The secondment period for the grade 8 postholder was 
originally from 3 December 2018 to 31 March 2020 but has since been 
extended for a further 12 months to 31 March 2021.

In order to facilitate the secondment, the Service has made temporary 
backfill arrangements for the statutory functions of the post, whilst the 
postholder is on secondment. The Service can continue to support the 
secondment and retain some backfill arrangements whilst the post holder 
is absent. Whilst present the postholder will deliver statutory functions not 
tobacco reduction activities.

The Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate provides additional funding to 
the Public Protection Service to support these proactive tobacco reduction 
activities. PH& W currently provide £33k per annum which funds a 
combination of the non-statutory tobacco reduction work but also supports 
statutory enforcement of age restricted products (primarily alcohol and 
tobacco) and the Responsible Retailer Scheme.

It is suggested that PH&W can reduce the contribution to support only the 
statutory tobacco enforcement work undertaken by other teams in the 

Page 296



Public
Appendix 1

15

4.1

4.2

Service and continue with a £5k contribution per annum thus saving the 
authority an additional £28K.

It is suggested that Public Health may wish to consider using the £28k 
savings to fund the strategic input into tobacco reduction strategy / work.

Overall Impact of the proposed change

Tobacco control work targeted at children and young persons ceases.

Tobacco control work targeted at adults continues to delivered via Big Life; 
commissioned by Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate.

Public Health determine how they wish any strategic role to be delivered.

Public Protection statutory functions continue to be delivered. 

Impact on affected service 

One post would be deleted - a 0.8 FTE grade 7 post and the grade 8 job 
description would be remodelled to remove the non-statutory tobacco 
reduction duties. 

Savings total

Salary budget reduced by £29,000 from 2020-21 mid-year.
 

Background

Alternatives Considered

The following alternatives considered as part of this proposal are set out 
below: 

The Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate could fully fund the tobacco 
reduction work and as well as providing funding for resources, they could also 
fund the officer time to deliver this work.

This would result in no net saving for the Council and is therefore not thought 
to be viable.

The proposal will directly remove activities targeted at children and young 
people.

There are considered to be no legal implications as the activities affected by 
the proposal are non-statutory services. It is therefore at the Council’s 
discretion as to whether the services are ceased or maintained. 

Page 297



Public
Appendix 1

16

Members could decide not to take the proposal forward and identify 
alternative savings proposals

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The saving proposal is 100% of the total budget for the area of service 
affected. Table 1 provides details of the proposal to cease delivery of non-
statutory wider tobacco control work:-

Table 1

Savings 2020/21
 £k

Savings 
2021/22
 £k

Total savings 
£k

On-
going

One off On-
going

One off On-
going

One off

Employees 29 29

Other Costs

Income lost (show 
as a minus)

Net savings 29 29

Additional income 
generated (show 
as a positive 
figure)

Total savings 29 29

Implementation 
costs

Cost of Capital 
(required for the 

Page 298



Public
Appendix 1

17

saving to happen)

Total savings 
less 
implementation 
costs and cost of 
capital

29 29

Risk and Policy Implications

Risk Implications

The following risks arise from the issues raised in this report as set out 
below: 

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Public Health Implications – Whilst it is not possible to quantify the impact 
the non-statutory service delivered by the Public Protection Service has had 
on the overall reduction in smoking prevalence within the Borough, there is 
a risk that smoking prevalence may fail to reduce at the same rate or may 
start to increase. 

Legal Implications

There are legal implications due to the workforce implications.  

Personnel Implications

The proposals outlined within this report may have personnel implications 
depending on the outcome of service consultation and Member decision 
making. The personnel implications are provided at Appendix 1.

Equalities Impact

The proposal may have minor impacts for young people and children. These 
can be mitigated by targeting the existing tobacco reduction activities 
delivered by Big Life towards children and young people  

A detailed Equality Impact Assessment was completed when the proposal 
went out to public consultation in late 2019 are provided in Appendix 4. 

Page 299



Public
Appendix 1

18

Consultation

7.1

7.2

The results of public consultation are provided in Appendix 3 

The following colleagues will be consulted on the proposals:
Colleagues in the Public Protection Service
Colleagues in the Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate

The Council must ensure that it remains open minded throughout the 
consultation period to all alternative proposals and expressions of interest.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Service delivery and workforce 
report. 

Consultation Hub 

For Further Information Contact: Nicola Rogers
nicola.rogers@richdale.gov.uk
01706 924124

Page 300

mailto:nicola.rogers@richdale.gov.uk


Public
Appendix 1

19

Appendix 1 

Workforce Implications (Please provide current and proposed structures and 
any JD’s)
Proposal Title: Cease delivery of non-statutory wider tobacco control work

Proposed Changes to Establishment

a) Listed below proposed posts to be disestablished, including names of 
post holder(s).   

Note: This information is provided for the HR Service and the names will 
be removed prior to distribution at the start of consultation.

Job Title FTE Grade Name of Post holder (s)
Environmental Health Senior 
Officer (Health 
Improvement)

0.8 7 Occupied Post

Total number of FTE proposed to be 
deleted: 

0.8 FTE

Total number of staff to be placed at risk: 1

b) Listed below proposed posts to be established: 

Job Title FTE Proposed Grade 
(subject to JE 
outcome)

Proposed method 
for recruitment:

None

Total number of FTE posts proposed to be 
established:

0

Page 301



Public
Appendix 1

20

c) Listed below any other proposed changes to establishment requiring 
consultation (not listed above): 

Post Grade Proposed Change 
to Establishment

Staffing 
Implications

Environmental Health 
Specialist Lead 
(Health Protection)

Grade 8 Remodel duties to 
remove non statutory 
tobacco reduction 
duties

Postholder will be 
assimilated into 
the new role.

Appendix 2

Consultation Action Plan

Group 
affected

Method of 
consultation

Date (s) 
consultation 
activity to 
be delivered

Resource 
required

Venue Targeted 
survey 
questions

Affected 
staff

One to ones January 20 Manager 
and Staff 

N1R N/A

Public 
Protection 
Staff

Team 
Meetings

Whole 
Service 
Meetings

SCGS

Jan – Feb 20 Manager 
and Staff 

N1R N/A

Page 302



Public
Appendix 1

21

Appendix 3

Public Consultation Responses;

A total of 23 responses were received in relation to this savings proposal.

 13 agreed or strongly agreed with the proposal
 1 neither agreed nor disagreed and
 10 disagreed or strongly disagreed

Analysis of the IP addresses from respondents showed that multiple responses were 
received from the same IP addresses.

3 duplicate IP addresses were received disagreeing with the proposal and 2 duplicate 
IP addresses were received agreeing with the proposal.

Whilst duplicate responses could be discounted as attempting to skew the responses, 
it may also be that different persons from the same household have responded. 
Therefore all responses have been duly considered.

A brief summary of the responses is as follows;

Agree / Strongly Agree;

 Not a statutory service
 Council should concentrate on statutory services
 Money should be targeted at statutory services
 Not work the Council should be involved with
 Money should be spent in other ways
 Statutory tobacco work will continue, something has to give
 Poor service for a lot of money
 Duplication of work
 Government tax should be the deterrent
 Individuals should take control of their lives

Neither agree nor disagree;

Page 303



Public
Appendix 1

22

 No information provided on the effectiveness of the service therefore unable to 
judge if worthwhile

Disagree / strongly disagree;

 Should target action towards children and the future
 False economy shifting the burden to already overstretched health and social 

care system
 Tobacco control work is wider than described in the proposal
 Prevention and early intervention are value for money
 Smoking is the single largest preventable cause of health inequalities
 Government ambition for smokefree England by 2030, the work is no less 

important than other work areas
 Evidence based outcomes of reducing smoking prevalence

Comments from Unions;

Comment and clarification was requested regarding the job descriptions of the posts 
involved in the delivery of tobacco reduction work. It was accepted that the job 
description of one of the posts was much wider and as such if the proposal was to go 
ahead, this post would need to be remodelled rather than deleted.  

Consultation Conclusion;

On the balance of the number of responses and a consistent theme of resource should 
be targeted for delivering statutory services, it is proposed to continue with the 
proposal and cease the non-statutory tobacco work delivered by the Public Protection 
Service.

Page 304



Public
Appendix 1

23

Appendix 4

Guidance

Stage 1: Initial Screening

Directorate: Neighbourhoods

Service: Public Protection

Officer completing EIA: Nicola Rogers

Other officers involved in completing EIA: Nicola Rogers

Date of Assessment:
13/9/19

Name of policy to be assessed:

Cease delivery of non-statutory wider tobacco control work
Is this a new or revised policy? New savings proposal

New      ☐                    Revised      ☐

What is the purpose of the policy?

Savings proposal
Are there any other objectives?

No
Who is likely to benefit from the policy (key stakeholders)? 

Support the Council’s requirement to deliver a balanced budget for 2020/21
Is the policy relevant to equality?

Yes      ☐    X                No      ☐

Page 305

http://rbcintranet.rochdale.local/pc/_layouts/15/WopiFrame.aspx?sourcedoc=/pc/Guidance%20Documents/RBC%20Guidance%20Document%20Oct%202016.docx&action=default&DefaultItemOpen=1


Public
Appendix 1

24

The work area is targeting activity at school children in some schools within the Borough and so will have an 
impact on children and possibly young people.

What information do you have to inform this initial assessment?

Decipher assist evaluation forms
Annual Decipher assist performance report

What is the potential impact that the policy could have with regard to the protected characteristics?

As the programme is a schools based peer mentoring programme aimed at school children in some schools 
throughout the Borough it is possible that cessation will negatively impact on some children and young 
persons.
The impact is therefore score at 3 - possible

The programme is delivered at only 3 – 4 high schools each year and the programme trains approximately 20 
peer mentors per school.
The impact score is therefore scored at 2 – minor due to the numbers of children involved.

The impact priority is therefore scored as low.

Page 306



Public
Appendix 1

25

Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact

Impact 
Score 
(1-16)

Impact 
priority
(H/M/L)

Neutral 
Impact

Age
☐ ☒

6
Likelihoo

d 3 - 
possible
Impact 2 
– minor 

Low ☐

Disability
☐ ☐ ☒

Gender Reassignment 
☐ ☐ ☒

Marriage or civil partnership 
☐ ☐ ☒

Pregnancy or maternity
☐ ☐ ☒

Race 
☐ ☐ ☒

Religion or belief
☐ ☐ ☒

Sex
☐ ☐ ☒

Sexual orientation
☐ ☐ ☒

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces
☐ ☐ ☒

Carers
☐ ☐ ☒

3. Do any of your negative impact scores identify as high priority on the impact table?

Yes      ☐                  No      ☒

If you identify a negative impact as being HIGH PRIORITY you must complete a full EIA (stage 2 onwards)

4. How will you minimise/remove any negative impact that identifies as medium or low?

(Identify the actions that you will take to minimise or remove these negative impacts by completing an action 
plan as at Appendix 1)

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate commission tobacco reduction activities from the provider Big Life. The 
commissioned services could be amended to target tobacco reduction activities towards children to mitigate the 
impact of the savings proposal.

5. Is a full EIA required?

Yes      ☐                 No      ☒

Lead Officer Signature:
Nicola Rogers

Date:
13/9/19

Approver Signature Date:

Page 307



Public
Appendix 1

26

Stage 2: Full EIA

1. What data / evidence do you have to inform the EIA?

(List all available data and evidence that shows groups having different needs, experiences or attitudes in relation to the 
policy. Use the information from the initial screening plus collect any additional data) 

Age

Disability

Gender Reassignment 

Page 308



Public
Appendix 1

27

Marriage or civil partnership

Pregnancy or maternity

Race 

Religion or belief

Sex

Sexual orientation

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces

Carers

2. What are the key messages coming from this data?

(outline any trends, patterns or key points that you have identified in the data collected)

3. What gaps are there in the data?

(outline any gaps in the data that are preventing you from having a full understanding of the needs of different groups and 
that will need to be addressed through further research or consultation)

4. What consultation feedback do you have to inform this EIA?

(Outline any stakeholder consultation or engagement that you have undertaken and state the feedback received from 
groups that highlights different needs, experiences or attitudes in relation to the policy)

Age

Disability

Gender Reassignment 

Marriage or civil partnership

Pregnancy or maternity

Race 

Religion or belief

Sex

Sexual orientation

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces

Carers

5. What is the overall impact that the policy is likely to have on different groups?

(Outline the overall impact that the policy will have on different groups from the data and feedback collected. Show how 
you reached your conclusions; decide on the priorities and identify actions. Complete an action plan outlining the actions 
that you will take to minimise any impacts. Include any positive impacts in your assessment because these might be 
important to the decision making process.)

Age

Page 309



Public
Appendix 1

28

Post consultation - Savings Programme Report

Date of meeting : 12 February 2020

Portfolio Environment
Report Author Martin Taylor

Disability

Gender Reassignment 

Marriage or civil partnership

Pregnancy or maternity

Race 

Religion or belief

Sex

Sexual orientation

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces

Carers

6. What are the conclusions from undertaking the full EIA?

(Summarise the key points)

7. Does the policy meet our equality obligations?

Yes      ☐                  No      ☐

(Select yes if you are satisfied that all of the available evidence has been accurately assessed for its impact in relation to 
the protected characteristics and that mitigations have been identified and actioned accordingly)

Lead Officer Signature: Date:

Approver Signature Date:

Page 310



Public
Appendix 1

29

Proposal Title Bowling Pavilion utility charges to users (smart 
meters)

Proposal No. NH-2020-21-013
Proposal Type Service Delivery 
Directorate Neighbourhoods
Service Area Environmental Management

Recommendation

1.1 Members are asked to consider the proposal to install smart meters and 
transfer the gas / electric utility charges in bowling pavilions to service users 
for consultation as part of the Savings Programme 2020/21 – 2021/22.

Reason for Recommendation

2.1 To support the Council’s requirement to deliver a balanced budget for 2020/21 
– 2021/22.

The council provides 24 bowling greens in 20 locations throughout the 
Borough.  There is a significant utilities cost incurred to the Council relating to 
the heating and lighting of the pavilion buildings, including in the winter when 
the bowling green is not in use but the clubs use the building for private social 
functions.

The council receives no income from any of the greens.  Many sites are 
fenced and gated such that there is no general public access.  Of the required 
14 public access sessions per week the most any site offers is 9.  Some sites 
offer no general public access.

Page 311



Public
Appendix 1

30

Key Points for Consideration

3.
1

4.
1

Overview of the proposal

That the users of the pavilion facilities should contribute by payment of 
utility costs through the installation of smart electricity and gas meters.  

Rochdale Council will continue to pay Water utility bills, surface water 
charges, Rates, building fire insurance etc.  
Rochdale Council will continue to be responsible building maintenance
Rochdale Council will continue to be responsible for greens maintenance

Rochdale Council will continue to not charge clubs for use of the greens

Overall Impact of the proposed change

This would encourage the clubs to more carefully consider and control use 
of gas and electric utilities for each building to reduce their bills.  This would 
reduce carbon footprint of the building.  It would also encourage clubs to 
maximise members because the more members the club has the lower the 
cost per club member.

Impact on affected service 

N/a

Savings total

£13,000
 

Background

There are 24 bowling greens across the borough 9 are located within formal 
parks, 7 are within smaller recreation areas and 8 are stand-alone facilities.  
Most have at least one pavilion or building for use by the bowlers.

The majority of these pavilions are used by club members outside of the playing 
season and in the evenings for activities that don’t relate to bowling.  The 
Council pays for all the utility costs as well as cost of maintaining the building 
and the green.  The bowls clubs do not make any financial contribution.

These proposals are purely around gas and electricity utility bills.  Rochdale 
Borough Council will continue to pay water bills, surface water drainage bills, 
Rates and be responsible for greens maintenance and maintenance of the 
buildings and not seek fees from clubs for use of the facilities.

Page 312



Public
Appendix 1

31

4.
2

Alternatives Considered

The following alternatives were considered as part of this proposal are set out 
below:
Council continues to pay bowls club utility bills.  Council has to make savings 
from other sources.
Council also charges the bowls club other costs such as water, minor repairs 
to the building etc to bowls club.  Additional savings to the Council but higher 
risk club will not be able to afford the costs and bowls club ceases to operate.  
Impact on members of the bowls club minimised by fact they could continue to 
bowl on the green as a member of the public, but they would not be able to use 
the building.
Bowls clubs go completely self-managed and are responsible for the upkeep 
of the green and building.  Risk is even greater that club will not be able to cope 
with that demand and will fold.

Legal implications: None.  It is not a statutory duty to pay utility costs of bowls 
clubs using public buildings

Financial implications: Cost saving to the Council.  
Bowls clubs will need to raise sufficient funds to pay gas / electricity utility bills 
from their subs.  Installation of smart meters will ensure they do not build up 
debts they cannot meet.  It is not possible to state the cost that clubs will face 
because it is in their power to manage how much they use the gas / electricity 
via SMART meters to meet their capacity to pay.  It may be that they need to 
reduce social activities (bingo etc) in the winter if they do not wish to generate 
enough income from membership fees etc to cover those costs.
Members could decide not to take the proposal forward and identify alternative 
savings proposals

Page 313



Public
Appendix 1

32

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The saving proposal is % of the total budget for the area of service 
affected. Table 1 provides details of the expected savings
Table 1

Savings 
2020/21
 £k

Savings 
2021/22
 £k

Total savings 
£k

Ongoing One 
off

Ongoing One 
off

Ongoing One 
off

Employees
Other Costs £13k £13k
Income lost (show as 
a minus)
Net savings £13k £13k
Additional income 
generated (show as a 
positive figure)

Total savings £13k £13k
Implementation costs 0 0

Cost of Capital 
(required for the 
saving to happen)
Total savings less 
implementation 
costs and cost of 
capital

£13k £13k

Risk and Policy Implications

Risk Implications

The following risks arise from issues raised in this report are set out as 
below:

6.1

6.2 Bowls clubs may not be able to afford the cost of gas and electric.  They may 
have to increase subs that members pay and this may affect the number of 
members they have, which would in turn put increased financial pressure on 
those left.

This may encourage bowls clubs to be more active in promoting the club, 
more welcoming to new members and more inclusive to people of different 

Page 314



Public
Appendix 1

33

6.3

6.4

6.5

ages, ethnicities and abilities.  EM Services will work with any club wishing 
to promote itself.  The more members a club has the lower the subs need to 
be to cover the costs of gas and electric.

The clubs can minimise the utility bills by minimising social events that take 
place in cold weather.

Asset Implications

The following Asset Implications arise from the issues raised in this report 
as set out below:

There is a risk that building assets will not be used at all in winter and then 
will need draining down to prevent risk of bursts.  This is considered unlikely.

If clubs cease to existing then buildings will cease to be used and may 
deteriorate over time.  Alternative uses will need to be sought for the 
buildings. This is considered extremely unlikely.

Voluntary Sector Impact

The following Voluntary Sector impacts arise from the issues raised in this 
report as set out below:

Bowling Clubs may not be able to afford the utility bills and therefore cease 
to operate.  This is mitigated through the adoption of smart meters to prevent 
large bills and it is the decision of bowls clubs to reduce winter activities that 
cost so much in terms of heating bills to a level they can afford.  The risk 
should therefore be minimal.

Legal Implications

If this proposal is agreed, before it can be implemented consideration will 
need to be given to the terms of occupation in order to establish who is 
responsible for the payment of utility charges. For instance, if a bowling club 
occupies Council property on a formal legal agreement, the club as tenant 
will be legally bound by the provisions contained in such agreement. 
Likewise, the Council as landlord would be bound by its obligations 
contained in the legal agreement. The agreement will specify which party is 
responsible for the payment of utility charges. In the event that the club, as 
tenant, is responsible for the payment of utility charges then the proposal is 
fine provided the installation of any meters and associated equipment is at 
the Council’s cost. 

However, if the agreement provides for the Council to pay the utility costs 
then the Council will be bound by such liability and cannot alter this 
requirement without the club’s agreement. The Council’s Estates and Asset 

Page 315



Public
Appendix 1

34

6.6

Management team would need to try to renegotiate this obligation, however 
the tenant would be under no legal obligation to agree.   

If this proposal is approved additional discussions will also have to take place 
with Legal / Estates to confirm that there are no site specific conditions such 
as covenants, and leases which might preclude individual sites from this 
proposal.

Equalities Impact statement

The following equality/community issues arise from the issues raised in this 
report as set out below: 

The pre-dominate age range using bowling greens are elderly people.  They 
will have to pay for utility costs that they have not previously had to pay.  The 
cost can be mitigated by the club by reducing events that will incur high 
energy costs e.g. during cold weather and by increasing membership levels 
to spread the cost across a wider number of people.  The Council is also 
mitigating risk through use of SMART meters to ensure bills do not mount 
up.

Consultation

7.1

7.2

7.3

All bowls clubs have been consulted about the proposal.  They were given 
the opportunity to state if there are any specific circumstances about that 
club which mean the proposal is not valid or needs to be further mitigated 
e.g. if they have a very small membership, in which case we would support 
the club on a new membership drive

Consultation Feedback:
 11 Clubs have fed back
 4 clubs said in principle they could make a contribution
 6 clubs said they do not use the building in winter or are shared usage 

and therefore should not pay the full amount but should have a 
reduced contribution

 1 response was non-committal
 Other comments of note included:

- They have heating in winter on frost protection to prevent bursts
- Want to know how much it would be for their club so they can 

start to prepare financially and how the charge would be made

Following this feedback it is recommended that no changes are made to the 
recommendation and that if agree for implementation by members, the 
service work closely with each club committee to address any individual 
practical measures that need to be put in place to ensure a simple, fair and 

Page 316



Public
Appendix 1

35

open process is put in place to charge clubs precisely for only units 
apportioned to their usage out of season.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Trickett, tel 01706 922 073 e-mail 
ian.trickett@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 317

mailto:ian.trickett@rochdale.gov.uk


Public
Appendix 1

36

Appendix 1

Guidance

Stage 1: Initial Screening

Directorate: Neighbourhoods

Service: Environmental Management

Officer completing EIA: Ian Trickett

Other officers involved in completing EIA: None

Date of Assessment:1/10/19

Name of policy to be assessed: Bowling Pavilion utility charges to users (smart meters)

Is this a new or revised policy?

New      ☒                    Revised      ☐

What is the purpose of the policy? Savings Proposal

Are there any other objectives? No

Who is likely to benefit from the policy (key stakeholders)? Council

Is the policy relevant to equality?

Yes      ☒                    No      ☐

What information do you have to inform this initial assessment?
 Bowls Forum attendees are all retired / elderly and inform us vast majority of club members are retired / 

elderly

What is the potential impact that the policy could have with regard to the protected characteristics?

(Identify whether the policy has the potential to impact in a positive or negative way or not at all. For negative 
impacts use the impact table to calculate a score based on the likelihood that an impact will occur and what the 
actual impact might be then determine whether it is a High priority (H), Medium priority (M) or Low priority (L))

Page 318

http://rbcintranet.rochdale.local/pc/_layouts/15/WopiFrame.aspx?sourcedoc=/pc/Guidance%20Documents/RBC%20Guidance%20Document%20Oct%202016.docx&action=default&DefaultItemOpen=1


Public
Appendix 1

37

Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact

Impact 
Score 
(1-16)

Impact 
priority
(H/M/L)

Neutral 
Impact

Age
☐ ☒ 4 L ☐

Disability
☐ ☐ ☒

Gender Reassignment 
☐ ☐ ☒

Marriage or civil partnership 
☐ ☐ ☒

Pregnancy or maternity
☐ ☐ ☒

Race 
☐ ☐ ☒

Religion or belief
☐ ☐ ☒

Sex
☐ ☐ ☒

Sexual orientation
☐ ☐ ☒

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces
☐ ☐ ☒

Carers
☐ ☐ ☒

3. Do any of your negative impact scores identify as high priority on the impact table?

Yes      ☐                  No      ☒

If you identify a negative impact as being HIGH PRIORITY you must complete a full EIA (stage 2 onwards)

4. How will you minimise/remove any negative impact that identifies as medium or low?

The only negative impact is mild financial impact on users (age) they being required to meet electricity / gas 
utility costs from use of the bowls pavilion buildings.  

Use of SMART meters will ensure clubs are fully aware of costs and payment made regularly by club means 
bills cannot mount up and club has information required to manage their utilities usage to a level they can 
afford

Clubs will be supported to increase membership levels to minimise the cost per club member

Clubs will have an opportunity to review membership fees to enable them to have sufficient club funds to cover 
utility bills

Not all utility bills are being charged- Council will retain water utility bills
Council will continue to meet other costs – greens maintenance, building maintenance, rates etc

5. Is a full EIA required?

Yes      ☐                 No      ☒

Page 319



Public
Appendix 1

38

Lead Officer Signature: Date: 1/10/19

Approver Signature Date:

Page 320



Public
Appendix 1

39

Stage 2: Full EIA

1. What data / evidence do you have to inform the EIA?

(List all available data and evidence that shows groups having different needs, experiences or attitudes in relation to the 
policy. Use the information from the initial screening plus collect any additional data) 

Age The predominate age range using bowling greens are 
elderly people.  

Disability The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Gender Reassignment The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Marriage or civil partnership The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Pregnancy or maternity The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Race The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Religion or belief The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Sex The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Sexual orientation The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

Carers The report has no recognised adverse of differentiating 
impact on any group other than the elderly 

2. What are the key messages coming from this data?

(outline any trends, patterns or key points that you have identified in the data collected) N/A

3. What gaps are there in the data?

(outline any gaps in the data that are preventing you from having a full understanding of the needs of different groups and 
that will need to be addressed through further research or consultation) None a full review of provision has recently 
been carried out which supports the evidence of effected groups.

4. What consultation feedback do you have to inform this EIA?

(Outline any stakeholder consultation or engagement that you have undertaken and state the feedback received from 
groups that highlights different needs, experiences or attitudes in relation to the policy)

Age See above in relation to 3. And associated report that relates to borough wide 
bowling provision and facilities.  Not a public document.

Disability As above

Gender Reassignment As above

Marriage or civil partnership As above

Pregnancy or maternity As above

Race As above

Page 321



Public
Appendix 1

40

Religion or belief As above

Sex As above

Sexual orientation As above

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces As above

Carers As above

5. What is the overall impact that the policy is likely to have on different groups?

(Outline the overall impact that the policy will have on different groups from the data and feedback collected. Show how 
you reached your conclusions; decide on the priorities and identify actions. Complete an action plan outlining the actions 
that you will take to minimise any impacts. Include any positive impacts in your assessment because these might be 
important to the decision making process.)

Age N/A see above

Disability N/A see above

Gender Reassignment N/A see above

Marriage or civil partnership N/A see above

Pregnancy or maternity N/A see above

Race N/A see above

Religion or belief N/A see above

Sex N/A see above

Sexual orientation N/A see above

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces N/A see above

Carers N/A see above

6. What are the conclusions from undertaking the full EIA?

See 6.6 of related Cabinet report- as follows

 Equalities Impact statement: The following equality/community issues arise from the issues raised in this report as 
set out below: 

 The predominate age range using bowling greens are elderly people.  They will have to pay for utility costs that 
they have not previously had to pay.  The cost can be mitigated by the club by reducing events that will incur high 
energy costs e.g. during cold weather and by increasing membership levels to spread the cost across a wider 
number of people.  The Council is also mitigating risk through use of SMART meters to ensure bills do not mount 
up.

7. Does the policy meet our equality obligations?

Yes      ☒                  No      ☐

(Select yes if you are satisfied that all of the available evidence has been accurately assessed for its impact in relation to 
the protected characteristics and that mitigations have been identified and actioned accordingly)

Lead Officer Signature: Date:

Page 322



Public
Appendix 1

41

02.10.19

Approver Signature Date:

Page 323



Public
Appendix 2

Council Savings Proposals for 
2020/21 – 2021/22 

Supplementary papers for Cabinet
12th February 2020

(For Information Only – Proposals submitted to Integrated Commissioning Board for 

approval)

Page 324



Public
Appendix 2

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting- 28/01/20
Portfolio- Adult Care Efficiency 
Savings

Lead Member- Iftikhar Ahmed

Report Author-  Helen Murphy Lead Officer- Helen Murphy
Private Document 

Adult Care Operations – Service Delivery
Charges for Full Cost Payers (Efficiency Programme) 

Consultation Outcome and Recommendations

Executive Summary

1.1 To support the Council’s requirement to deliver a balanced budget for 2021/22 a 
Savings Programme Report was approved for consultation at the October 2019 
ICB. Members were asked to consider the proposal to introduce new charges to 
maximise income to the Service:

 Introduce an administrative (‘arrangement’) charge for full cost payers of 
£10 per week for managed budgets; and

 £5 per week for cash budgets (where administration costs are lower). 

1.2 It was proposed that the new charge is introduced to maximise income to the 
Service (Total net saving of £29k).

1.3 The proposal has undergone public consultation as part of the Savings 
programme 2020/21 – 2021/22. 

Recommendation

2.1 It is proposed that following the consultation period the Savings Proposal 
regarding charges to full cost payers is not implemented. 

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Legal advice was received which advised that an arrangement fee could not be 
charged to full cost payers in a residential setting.  In addition a recent decision 
has resulted in full cost paying cash budget recipients being removed from Adult 
Care systems. Therefore, the potential income from this proposal has 
significantly reduced.

Page 325



Public
Appendix 2

3.2 The response to the public consultation was significantly negative. We would 
propose that the reputational risk to the Council by implementing this proposal 
outweighs the potential savings that can be realised. 

3.3 14 individual responded to the consultation:
 2 individuals stated they ‘neither agreed nor disagreed’ with the proposal;
 5 individuals stated they disagreed with the proposal; and 
 7 individuals stated they strongly disagreed. 

3.4 A key concern from the feedback was that the most vulnerable individuals in 
receipt of social care would have to pay more. This is not in line with the 
proposed charge which includes only those which have savings above the 
Department of Health capital threshold of £23,250 or significant weekly income.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The potential savings realised from the proposal are significantly reduced due 
to exclusions (cash budgets and those in a residential setting). 
The reputational risk attached to this savings proposal is high; however the 
return on investment regarding savings is relatively low.
If we do nothing we will need to find an additional £29 K in alternative savings 
which will be a pressure to the system and a risk to balancing the budget if 
not found.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The table below shows the proposed savings which were included in the original 
savings proposal. 

Savings 2020/21
£k

Savings 2021/22
£k

Total savings
£k

On-
going

One off On-
going

One off On-
going

One off

Employees
Other Costs
Income lost 
Net savings
Additional 
income 
generated 

54 54

Total savings 54 54
Implementation 
costs

-10 -10

Admin costs -25 -25
Total savings 
minus 
investment 

29 -10 29 -10

5.2 Taking into account the potential exclusions from the proposal, the proposed 
savings attached to this project for 2020/21 now equate to £20,000 

Risk and Policy Implications

Page 326



Public
Appendix 2

Reputational risk to the Council if the proposal is implemented.
If the proposal is not implemented then there is a risk to balancing the budget 
in 2020/21

6.1
6.2

Consultation

7.1 We have undertaken a public consultation around the proposed changes. 
The results of the consultation can be found within the background paper 
8.1.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1

8.2

Charges to full cost payer public 
consultation results. 

Charges to Full Cost 
Payers Consultation Feedback.docx

Pre Consultation savings 
proposal

SERVICE CHANGE - 
ASC21005 - S128 - Changes to Adult Care Charging  V2..docx

For Further Information Contact: Helen Murphy
Helen.murphy@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 92 2949

Page 327

mailto:Helen.murphy@rochdale.gov.uk


Public
Appendix 2

Post consultation report to the ICB

Date of meeting: 28th January 
2020
Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Report Author: Mike O’Keeffe 
Head of Commissioning 
(Mental Health & Learning 
Disabilities)

Proposal Title Adult Care Commissioned Day Service
Proposal No. ASC21009 / S49.
Proposal Type Service Delivery 
Directorate Adult Social Care
Service Area Adult Care Operations

Recommendation

1.1 Members are asked to approve the proposal to:

 Move day service payments to the provider portal. 
 Pay day service providers for actual attendance only, which is in line with 

other community care services such as Homecare.  

1.2 Members are also asked to note the issues raised by day service providers 
during the consultation process that are linked to fees and that are addressed 
in the separate Adult Care Fees Report to this Board:

 Day service inflationary uplifts to be applied from the beginning of April as 
opposed to the current system that increases payments at the point of a 
person’s annual Care Act review.

 Introduction of a banded fee system for day services based on need levels 
high, medium & low

Reason for Recommendation

2.1  Day services are mainly used by people with learning disabilities and is the only 
service that is paid for on the basis assessed care and not what is actually 
delivered. Other community care providers are paid on actual delivered care and 
to ensure equity across the client group and service spectrum the proposal is to 
make payments on actual delivered care and support. 

Page 328



Public
Appendix 2

2.2 The provider portal is now well established as a modern payment system for 
community care services. Day service providers are currently paid on an 
automated payment system which pays on assessed needs. To implement the 
proposal to pay on actual delivered care a system change to the portal is required 
to efficiently process payments. 

2.3 The additional recommendation, following consultation with providers, to apply 
day service rates from the beginning of the financial year, as opposed to the 
current system of application on annual review, has been included in the 
separate Adult Care Fees report to this Board and mitigates market instabilities 
that providers identified.

Key Points for Consideration

3.1 Overview of the proposal
 Day services will be paid for what is delivered, which brings this in line with all 

other care and support payments.
 The use of formal day care is expected to decline over the next 5 years for 

many people. Work will be undertaken with current providers to enable them to 
meet the changing market demands. We do expect for example that the number 
of people with profound learning difficulties will increase over the next 5 years 
and this will affect the type and scope of formal day care we provide.

 We will increase the uptake of community opportunities for socialisation and as 
a result see a decrease in the need for formal day care.

 Linked to this programme is a technical change to the current RAS algorithm 
around dementia which will remove unused money allocations. This will have 
no adverse impacts on current or future service users. No one is expected to 
see a reduction in service as a result of this change. 

3.2 Overall Impact of the proposed change
 The proposed change will reduce the amount RBC pays for day services. 
 The changes will also lead to work with current day care providers around 

meeting future demand opportunities. 

3.3 Total savings

The total savings are £288k which includes £134k saving in 2020/21 and £154k in 
2021/22.

Savings represent 12% of the current cost, which is the forecast difference between 
commissioned and actual spend based on estimated attendance.  The table below 
aligns this to the individual provider based on current market share.

Day Care Provider 12% Annually

Page 329



Public
Appendix 2

provider 1 £7,433

provider 2 £9,725

provider 3 £149,158

provider 4 £34,719

provider 5 £77,481

provider 6 £985

provider 7 £6,736

provider 8 £1,714

Grand Total £287,952

3.4 Alternatives Considered

Option 1 do nothing – this option will not produce any efficiency savings and the 
identified inequality remains. To do nothing also misses an opportunity to promote a 
shift in approach to modernise day time activities and promote socialisation through 
emerging community based initiatives. 

Option 2 (the recommended option) - Move day service payments to the provider 
portal and pay day service providers for actual attendance only. 

Option 3 – Remodel the day service provision with a view to reducing the number of 
centers in the borough. This option has been scoped out and would potentially have 
a detrimental impact on people with learning disabilities using day services and their 
families. 

Costs and Budget Summary

4.1 

Savings 2020/21
£k

Savings 2021/22
£k

Total savings
£k

On-
going

One off On-
going

One off On-
going

One off

Employees
Other Costs
Income lost 
Net savings 134 154 288
Additional 
income 
generated 

Page 330



Public
Appendix 2

Total savings 134 154 288
Implementation 
costs

-15 -15 -30

Admin costs 
Total savings 
minus 
investment 

134 -15 154 -15 288 158

Risk and Policy Implications

5.1    Risk Implications

The key risk is around day service providers receiving less income than planned 
for which could put their businesses at risk. Mitigation for this will be to pay 
providers inflationary uplifts in April on an annual basis (included in the Adult care 
Fees report). This means that providers will benefit from a full year effect of 
inflationary uplifts; currently they receive partial year uplifts links to service user 
annual reviews.   

5.2    Legal Implications

There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

5.3    Equality Impact
An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and concluded that the 
changes proposed will not impact on the current services being offered. In 
essence the current arrangements for service users will remain the same.

Consultation

6.1 The changes proposed will not impact on the current services being offered. In 
essence the current arrangements for service users will remain the same. 
Therefore there is no requirement for public consultation. However, the 
Learning Disability Partnership Board, chaired by the Deputy Portfolio Holder 
for Health & Social Care, will oversee the implementation of the proposal by 
receiving regular reports on progress.

6.2 Consultation has been undertaken with day service providers as part of the 
annual Adult Care Fees Consultation process with provider organisations. The 
consultation period started on the 10th December and closed on the 23rd 
December 2019. A meeting was held on the 10th December where providers 
were invited to comment on day service proposals and day service fees in 
general. 

Page 331



Public
Appendix 2

6.3 Comments regarding the proposal to change the payment system to the portal 
were received well. As some of the day service providers run Outreach 
services, which are paid through the portal, providers are familiar with this 
system.

6.4 The main concerns for providers was the proposal to pay on actual services 
delivered as the view was that their income will be reduced and the nature of 
the delivery model means that they have to pay staff on the basis of full 
attendance. 

6.5 As this exercise was part of the annual Adult Care Fees process the concerns 
raised will be addressed within the Fees report but essentially the mitigating 
proposal will be to apply inflationary uplifts to providers at the start of the 
financial year as opposed to application on an individual service user basis at 
on their annual review; which for services users across the spectrum is 
dispersed throughout the year. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Debbie Simister 
Debbie.simister@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 92 3014

Helen Murphy
Helen.murphy@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 92 2949

Stage 5:  Signature
Role Name Date
Leade Officer
Approver Signatures

Page 332

mailto:Debbie.simister@rochdale.gov.uk
mailto:Helen.murphy@rochdale.gov.uk


Public
Appendix 2

EIA Review Date:

Phase 1 – Initiation/ Case for Change

Project Proposal / Mandate

High Cost Drugs and Homecare Team Review

Version 0.4

January 2019

Page 333



Public
Appendix 2

Project Name: High Cost Drugs and Homecare Team Review

Tracker URN: S085.

Document Author: Emily Vynne / Keith Pearson

Directorate: Integrated Commissioning Directorate

Programme: Savings Programme

Key Roles & Responsibilities

SRO Karen Hurley

Project Lead Keith Pearson

Finance Lead Bheki Thomola

Contract Lead Nigel Stott

BI Lead Dan Hurley / Dan Young

Clinical Lead TBC

Document Location, Revision History, Approval and Distribution

Document Location:

This document is only valid on the day it was printed. The source of the document can be obtained from the 
Programme Delivery Unit

Revision History

Version Revision 
Date Summary of Changes Change owner

0.1 05/12/19 First Draft Emily Vynne

0.2 13/12/19 Medicine Management Input Keith Pearson

0.3 17/12/19 Finance Input Bheki Thomola

0.4 18/12/19 Input from Savings Programme Manager & 
final finance input

Lisa Schofield
Bheki Thomola

Approvals
This document requires the following approvals:
Name / Group Comments Date Version

Savings Delivery Board Submission for approval of pipeline savings 
scheme 08/01/20 0.4

Page 334



Public
Appendix 2

1. Executive Summary 

Will this proposal impact Core/Mandated services? No
Will the proposal detrimentally impact clinical safety? No
Does the proposal impact quality? No

Purpose:

The purpose of this proposal is to provide a formal response to the options appraisal submitted on the 
26th November 2019 by Pennine Acute Hospital Trust (PAHT) via the Northern Care Alliance 
Diagnostics and Pharmacy Group. The purpose of this report is to put forward a recommendation to 
SDB in relation to the PAHT options appraisal. The options appraisal can be found in Appendix 1.

Overview:

The HCD and Homecare team are currently funded by HMR CCG and were established in December 
2016 as part of a NCA agreement with Bury CCG (Lead), Oldham CCG, and Manchester CCG.

The original funding is due to come to an end in April 2020. Therefore, without any further action, the 
existing HCD and Homecare team will be disbanded. The options are listed below:

 Option 1: Do nothing - Continue with existing arrangements (CCG to fund the HCD and Homecare 
Team and the team continue with the existing gain share agreements).

 Option 2: Continue with the existing arrangements plus an agreement to move to national 
reference pricing for Adalimumab.

 Option 3: (Preferred Option) To cease the existing gain share agreements on current biosimilar 
HCDs (CCG to fund the HCD and Homecare team for 3 years to work on new savings initiatives and 
newly emerging biosimilar drugs).

 Option 4: Cease the existing biosimilar gain share agreements and CCG to continue to fund the 
HCD and Homecare team.

 Option 5: Cease the existing biosimilar gain share agreements and disestablish the HCD and 
Homecare team.

Recommendation:

The recommendation is for SDB to approve option 3 - to cease the existing gain share agreements on 
current biosimilar High Cost Drugs (the savings from this are included in a separate savings paper 
already submitted to SDB) and for HMR CCG to fund the HCD and Homecare team for three years to 
work on new savings initiatives and newly emerging biosimilar drugs. It is the new savings initiatives 
that are in scope of this paper.

Savings:

The initial investment required from the CCG will be for the staffing costs of the HCD and Homecare 
team, who will be responsible for delivering the new savings initiatives. The total investment required 
is £303,111 (made up of £101,037 in year 1, £101,037 in year 2 and £101,037 in year 3). 

The expected net saving (once the investment and gainshare is removed) is:

Page 335



Public
Appendix 2

 20/21 - £0.631k
 21/22 - £27.639k
 22/23 - £88.224k
 Total - £116.495k

These savings are additional savings on top of the existing savings schemes for Tocilizumab and 
Avastin. Approval of this scheme will enable the delivery of these savings. 

Risks:

If the proposed savings schemes are not delivered, the staffing costs will result in a net cost to the 
CCG. The mitigation for this would be close benefits monitoring by the Medicines Management team.

2. Rationale / Case for Change

Regional Context:

The existing High Cost Drugs and Homecare Team at PAHT was established in December 2016 across 
the Northern Care Alliance, including HMR CCG, Bury CCG (Lead), Manchester CCG and Oldham CCG. 
An investment of £2.3m was put forward for the financial year 2018/19 to ensure improvements to 
the safety and governance of High Cost Drugs and homecare procedures across the GM region.

Local Context:

HMR CCG agreed to fund the High Cost Drugs and Homecare team as an invest-to-save agreement 
along with the other CCGs listed above. The initial investment enabled the team to conduct reviews 
with patients receiving high cost drugs, where a biosimilar drug was now available on the 
pharmaceutical market. The investment ensured that a gain share agreement for the biosimilar drugs 
was implemented and it should be noted that the biosimilar gain share agreements are due to cease 
at the end of this financial year.

3. Proposal 

This proposal aims to present the Savings Delivery Board with an options appraisal which should be 
considered regarding the continuation of funding for the High Cost Drugs (HCD) and Homecare team. 
The HCD and Homecare team are currently funded by HMR CCG and were established in December 
2016 as part of a NCA agreement with Bury CCG (Lead), Oldham CCG, and Manchester CCG.

The review of the HCD and Homecare team is required because the original funding is due to come to 
an end in April 2020. Therefore, without any further action, the existing HCD and Homecare team will 
be disbanded. 

The recommendation to continue to fund the HCD and Homecare team would ensure that new savings 
initiatives can be explored and delivered by PAHT as part of a NCA agreement with Bury CCG, Oldham 
CCG and Manchester CCG. Bury CCG will lead on this savings proposal. 

Page 336



Public
Appendix 2

The potential savings would be realised through a combination of biosimilars as well as some HCDs 
moving from an IV form within the acute setting to a subcutaneous form which could be self-
administered by the patient in their home or homecare setting.

In order to progress with the recommendation to continue funding the HCD and Homecare team, an 
invest-to-save would be required. The figures shown in section 5 of this report, outline the required 
investment costs to cover the staffing costs for a period of three years.

There are some interdependencies of this savings proposal which are detailed below:

 Biosimilar Gain Share Agreements (S71.) – The current HCD and Homecare team are responsible 
for the delivery of the existing HCD biosimilar gain share agreements. A separate savings proposal 
was previously submitted to SDB and is currently in the implementation phase. The outcome of 
this savings scheme is to cease the existing gain share agreements for three HCDs by the 23rd 
December 2019. Therefore, this will no longer be part of the scope for the HCD and Homecare 
team going forward.

 Tocilizumab Self-Administration (S70.) - A separate savings proposal was previously submitted to 
SDB and is currently in the implementation phase. The outcome of this savings scheme is to 
promote the use of Tocilizumab that can be self-administered by patients at home or in a care 
home setting in the subcutaneous injection form. The savings for this are £328k which is also 
included within the PAHT proposal. The savings have therefore been removed to avoid a double 
count.  

 Avastin High Court Judgement – A decision has been made regarding the high court judgement 
and communication in imminent. The outcome of the high court judgement will then determine 
if the HCD team will implement Avastin. This is already part of the approved savings programme.

4. Cost vs. Activity Analysis

The table below provides an overview of the High Cost Drugs which are in scope of this proposal, the 
current cost and the anticipated gross savings. 

Name of High Cost 
Drug

Total 
Cost YTD 
2019/20

Total 
Forecast 
Outturn 
19/20*

Proposed 
Gross 
Savings 
20/21

Proposed 
Gross 
Savings
21/22

Proposed 
Gross 
Savings
22/23

Totals

Methotrexate 
(Change in 
Homecare Provider)

£168,177 £288,303 £40,060 £40,060 £40,060 £120,180

Teriparatide ( 
Biosimilar) £13,322 £22,837 £8,222 £8,222 £8,222 £24,666

Vedolizuma (IV to SC 
form) £144,069 £246,975 £24,021 £48,042 £48,042 £120,105

Certolizumab 
(Biosimilar) £259,545 £444,934 £0 £0 £121,170 £121,170

Infliximab (IV to SC 
form) £164,651 £282,258 £29,996 £59,991 £59,991 £149,980

Total £749,764 £1,285,307 £102,299 £156,315 £277,485 £536,101
Investment (HDC 
Team)   £101,037 £101,037 £101,037 £303,111

Page 337



Public
Appendix 2

Net Saving   £1,262 £55,278 £176,448 £232,990
50/50 Gainshare   £631 £27,639 £88,224 £116,495

*The forecast outturn for 2019/20 is based on the YTD costs from April – October 2019 and these 
figures do not take into account any seasonality.

5. Options Appraisal

Option Benefits Risks
Option 1 (Do nothing) 
Continue with existing 
arrangements (CCG to fund 
the HCD and HomeCare Team 
and the team continue with 
the existing gain share 
agreements).

None. Most patients have already 
been transferred onto the 
biosimilar drugs, therefore 
staffing costs for the HCD team 
will continue but the savings 
realisation will be limited.

Option 2 – Continue with the 
existing arrangements (CCG to 
fund the HCD and HomeCare 
Team and the team continue 
with the existing gain share 
agreements) plus an 
agreement to move to 
national reference pricing for 
Adalimumab.

None. The reference price for 
Adalimumab is already higher 
than the actual price of the 
drug. The gain share 
agreement for Adalimumab 
has already been submitted 
with a view to ending by the 
end of 19/20.

Option 3 (Recommended) – 
To cease the existing gain 
share agreements on current 
biosimilar HCDs (CCG to fund 
the HCD and Homecare team 
for 3 years to work on new 
savings initiatives and newly 
emerging biosimilar drugs).

The net savings would be 
£116,495 

Financial investment on an 
invest-to-save agreement will 
be required.

Option 4 – Cease the existing 
biosimilar gain share 
agreements and CCG to 
continue to fund the HCD and 
Homecare team.

The CCG will received 100% of 
the financial benefits instead 
of 50% which is currently 
received through the gain 
share agreements.

The CCG will be required to 
continue funding the HCD and 
Homecare team but no further 
savings with be achieved.

Option 5 – Cease the existing 
biosimilar gain share 
agreements and disestablish 
the HCD and Homecare team.

No future financial investment 
required.

This would go against the local 
climate across GM as there is a 
high uptake of HCD and 
Homecare services across the 
GM footprint. No savings will 
be realised.

6. Required Resources & Enabler Support

The HCD and Homecare team will be required to deliver the proposed savings schemes. The team 
currently consists of:

Page 338



Public
Appendix 2

 0.2 WTE Pharmacist Band 8b
 1.0 WTE Pharmacist Band 8a
 1.0 WTE Pharmacist Band 7
 1.0 WTE Technician Band 6
 2.0 WTE Administrators Band 3

If the recommendation of this proposal is supported by SDB, a full review of the existing staffing 
structure will be carried out to ensure the current staffing is sufficient to support the implementation 
of the proposed savings schemes.

7. Recommendation

The recommendation is for SDB to approve option 3 - to cease the existing gain share agreements on 
current biosimilar High Cost Drugs (the savings from this are included in a separate savings paper 
already submitted to SDB) and for HMR CCG to fund the HCD and Homecare team for three years to 
work on new savings initiatives and newly emerging biosimilar drugs. It is the new savings initiatives 
that are in scope of this paper.

8. Appendices

a. Equality Impact Assessment

Not required.

b. Supporting Policy Documentation

1. Pennine Acute High Cost Drugs and Homecare Team Options Appraisal:

PAHT High Cost 
drugs and homecare team options appraisal. Final Nov19.docx

2. Activity / Costs Data:

High Cost Drugs - 
2019-12-09.xlsx

Page 339



Report to Corporate O&S Committee 

Date of Meeting 11th February 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Portfolio Holder for 
Finance

Report Author Keith Mackenzie
Public/Private Document

2020/21 Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy

Executive Summary

1. It is expected that the Government’s March Budget will announce additional 
Discretionary Business Rate Relief’s which will require the Policy to be 
amended for 2020/21.

A draft 2020/21 Policy document is attached at appendix 1. This currently 
assumes that all the recommendations are adopted, but this document will 
only be finalised after the budget on 11 March 2020.

Budget Fixing Council on 26 February 2020 will be asked to make decisions 
on recommendations 2.4 and 2.5.

Recommendations

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Cabinet is asked to note an increase to 50% of Retail Relief from 1 April 
2020. This will be announced by Government in the 2020 budget and will be 
fully funded by Section 31 grant.

Cabinet is asked to note the introduction of Pub Relief from 1 April 2020. 
This will be announced by Government in the 2020 budget and will be fully 
funded by Section 31 grant.

Cabinet is asked to note the extension of the £1,500 business rate discount 
for local newspapers’ office space for 2020/21. This will be announced by 
Government in the 2020 budget and will be fully funded by Section 31 grant.

The Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance, be given delegated authority to finalise the 2020/21 Discretionary 
Business Rate Relief Policy following the Government’s 2020 budget which 
will take place on 11 March 2020. This includes the specific items in 2.1, 2.2 
and 2.3, but any other announcements that may need to be incorporated.

Cabinet is asked to recommend approval of relief of £90 to qualifying 
businesses who experienced a large increase in their rateable value 
following the 2017 revaluation. This scheme was introduced by Government 

Page 340

Agenda Item 16



in the 2017 budget for a period of 4 years from 1 April 2017. This will be fully 
funded by Section 31 grant.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The changes to the Policy will all be announced by Government in the 2020 
budget. The change at 2.5 was introduced by Government in the 2017 budget. 
All the changes must be administered by the Council using discretionary 
powers.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The powers for granting discretionary rate relief by Councils are provided in 
Sections 44a, 47 and 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 which 
was amended by the Localism Act 2011 to incorporate wider powers to grant 
relief under local discretion. The role of local authorities in the business rate 
system in the past has been to administer the system prescribed by Central 
Government.

Retail Relief was introduced from 1 April 2019 for a period of 2 years. 
Qualifying businesses were eligible to receive a one third discount off their 
bill. From 1 April 2020, Retail Relief will be increased to a one half discount. 
Retail premises that are open to the public and have a rateable value below 
£51,000 will qualify. Cinemas and music venues will be added to the list of 
qualifying businesses from 1 April 2020.

Government is re-introducing Pub Relief from 1 April 2020 at a flat rate of 
£1,000. Pubs that are open to the public and have a rateable value below 
£100,000 will qualify. This will be paid in addition to Retail Relief.

Government is further extending the £1,500 business rate discount for local 
newspapers’ office space. This was introduced by Government from 1 April 
2017 for 2 years. It was extended for 2019/20 and being further extended for 
2020/21 and for a further period of 4 years to 31 March 2025.

Government determined that businesses who experienced a large rise in 
their rateable value in the 2017 revaluation should be given relief for a 
period of up to 4 years from 1 April 2017. The funding allocated by 
Government for 2020/21 is £7,395, which equates to £90 for each qualifying 
businesses.

Alternatives Considered

The changes to the Policy (recommendations 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 and 2.5) have been 
determined by Government and the Council is directed to implement. No 
alternatives have therefore been considered.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications for the Council arising from this 
report. All the reliefs are fully funded by Government by way of grant.

Page 341



Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Consultation is not required to implement the changes in this report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Keith Mackenzie, Tel: 01706 926003, 
Keith.Mackenzie@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 342



Draft
Discretionary Rate Relief 

Policy

Page 343



Document Control
Document Title:  Non- Domestic Rates 

Relief Policy: document incorporating areas of 
local discretion

February 2020

Summary

Publication Date February 2020

Related Legislation / Applicable Section of Legislation Section 44a, Section 47 and Section 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 
which has been amended by Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline Documents

Replaces

Joint Policy (Yes/No) No

Name of Partner(s) if joint

Policy Owner (Name/Position) Rochdale Borough Council

Policy Author (Name/Position) Keith Mackenzie, Head of Revenues and Benefits

Review of Policy
Last Review Date February 2020

Review undertaken by Keith Mackenzie

Next Review Date February 2021

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.
Name Title Date of Issue Version Number

Full Council 28 February 2020 Draft 2020/21 Policy

Chief Finance Officer and 
Cabinet Member for Finance March 2020 2020/21 Policy

Page 344



rochdale.gov.uk 2

1. Introduction

The Council recognises the importance of supporting local businesses and 
organisations to promote the provision of local facilities, economic growth, 
employment and investment to improve prosperity across the Borough and in 
particular support the most disadvantaged communities.

Councils have the power to grant discretionary rate relief to organisations that 
meet certain criteria. Public funds are not however unlimited, a proportion of 
the costs of relief granted is borne by council tax payers. In making decisions 
the Council must be confident that money invested in this way will be repaid in 
economic and/or community benefit.

The powers for granting  discretionary rate relief by Councils is provided in 
Section 44a, Section 47 and Section 49 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1988 which has been amended by Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 to 
incorporate wider powers to grant relief under local discretion.

This policy document outlines the areas of local discretion and the Council’s 
approach to the various discounts. There is also a summary provided of the 
reliefs which are awarded by Government under national initiatives.

2. Mandatory Rate Relief

The Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Council to grant 
Mandatory Rate Relief of 80% of the business rates to the following 
categories of business rates payers:

 Charities where the property is wholly or mainly used for charitable 
purposes

 Registered Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASCs) for any club 
with the appropriate registration with HMRC.

 Rural shops – (not applicable in Rochdale Borough)

3. Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme

Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Council to 
maintain a Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme to award up to 100% business 
rates relief in respect of premises occupied by certain organisations and/or for 
certain purposes. These organisations being for Rochdale Borough Council:

a) A further award to charities up to 100%, known as discretionary “top-
up” relief, where the property is wholly or mainly used for charitable 
purposes.

b) A further award of 20% on top of mandatory relief to registered 
Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASCs).

c) Other non-profit making organisations and the property is used for 
charitable purpose concerned with education, social welfare, science, 
literature or the fine arts; or is used wholly or mainly for recreation by a 
not-for-profit club or society

Page 345



rochdale.gov.uk 3

In determining applications the Council may
 Grant relief up to a maximum of 100% of the business rates due;
 Grant relief for a sum less than 100% of the business rates due; or
 Refuse any application for additional relief.

Detailed below are the criteria applied.

3.1. Charities

Mandatory rate relief of 80% is granted to charities in the following 
circumstances:

 The ratepayer of a property is a charity or the trustees of a charity, and
  the property is wholly or mainly used for charitable purposes

The Council will consider applications for a 20% discretionary rate relief ‘top 
up’ from charities based on their own merits, on a case by case basis. 

In determining the application the following matters will be taken in to 
consideration:

 Property rateable value of £19,999 or less.
 ‘Top-up’ relief of 20% is only awarded to local charities who can 

demonstrate financial hardship. 
 Unless a special case for financial hardship can be proved, ‘top-up’ 

relief to national charities including charity shops or other premises 
should not be granted.

 Local charity to be defined those whose objects provide that the 
activities of the Charity shall be exclusively within the Rochdale 
Borough or that the persons who may benefit from the activities of the 
Charity shall be residents of Rochdale Borough and whose main office  
is situated within the Rochdale Borough.

 Academy, Free, Foundation, Faith and Trust Status schools are 
classified as charities and therefore receive 80% mandatory relief. 
‘Top- up’ relief should not be granted unless a special case for financial 
hardship can be proved.

3.2 Registered Community Amateur Sports Clubs and other Non Profit 
Making Sports & Leisure Clubs

Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC's) receive 80% Mandatory Relief for 
any club with the appropriate registration with HM Revenues and Customs. To 
qualify as a CASC the club must be set up with a formal constitution (for 
example its rules or memorandum and articles of association). The club's 
written constitution must require the club to meet certain conditions, and the 
club must also be able to show that it actually meets these conditions in 
practice. The conditions are that:

• the club must be open to the whole community

Page 346



rochdale.gov.uk 4

• the club's main purpose must be to provide facilities for eligible sports, 
and to encourage people to take part in them

• the club must be organised on an amateur basis
• the rateable value of the property being used must be £19,999 or less

The club must also be able to show that:
• it is set up and provides its facilities in an eligible area
• it is managed by fit and proper persons

CASCs which qualify for the mandatory business rates relief can also apply to 
the Council for a top up discretionary rate relief up to a maximum of 20%. 
Other non-profit making sports and leisure clubs who do not qualify for 
mandatory relief can apply for discretionary relief. 

The Council will consider applications for a discretionary rate relief top up 
from CASCs and discretionary relief for non-profit making sports and leisure 
clubs based on their own merits, on a case by case basis. 

The Council will consider applications that can demonstrate;

• The contribution that the organisation makes to the Rochdale Borough 
• Membership: fees must be affordable for most people residing in 

Rochdale Borough, should be open to everybody, and 75% of 
members must be Rochdale Borough residents 

• Every effort should be made by the organisation to encourage open 
membership, from groups such as young people, disabled persons, 
ethnic minorities, armed and ex armed forces personnel and 
unemployed people: In particular;

• membership should consist of at least 25% of people from 
such groups 

• the facilities should be made available to local communities 
other than members 

• differential fee structures to encourage such groups to apply 
• Schemes of education or training for such groups must exist.

The Council will take into account whether the building is accessible to 
disabled people or if reasonable attempts are being made to make it 
accessible.

3.3. Non Profit Making Organisations (other than charities, CASC’s, or other 
sports and leisure clubs) and Community Interest Companies (CIC)

Non Profit Making Organisations who are not classed as registered charities 
or CASC’s, can apply for Discretionary Rate Relief which can be paid at any 
rate up to 100%. Such organisations would include; philanthropic, religious, 
concerned with education or social welfare, science, literature, fine arts, or 
wholly or mainly for recreation by a not-for-profit club or society.

Page 347



rochdale.gov.uk 5

Community Interest Companies (registered with the Office of the Regulator of 
Community Interest Companies) can apply for Discretionary Rate Relief which 
can be paid at any rate up to 100%.

The Council will consider applications for discretionary rate relief from 
organisations based on their own merits, on a case by case basis.
 
The Council will consider applications from organisations that can 
demonstrate;

• The rateable value of the property being used must be £19,999 or less
• The activities of the organisation must support at least one of the 

Council’s priorities.
• The organisation must promote its services for the benefit of Rochdale 

Borough residents.
• Membership of the organisation must be open to all members of the          

community, regardless of ability, subject to the physical capacity of the 
premises.

• Membership rates must be affordable for most people residing in 
Rochdale Borough. Comparisons will be made with similar 
organisations to ensure a level of consistency.

• Organisations must actively encourage membership from groups such 
as young people, older age groups, persons with a disability, ethnic 
minorities, armed and ex-armed forces personnel and unemployed 
people. This should be be demonstrated by either;

a) differential fee structures for such groups; or
b) provision of schemes of training or education for such groups; 

or
c) a membership which consists of at least 25% of people from 

such groups.
• The facilities of the organisation should, where practical, be made 

available to people, bodies, or groups other than members, e.g. from 
schools, casual public sessions, etc…, subject to licensing 
requirements.

• The organisation must be affiliated to a local or national organisation 
where one exists.

• At least 75% of the membership must be made up of Rochdale 
Borough residents                

• The organisation must provide a copy of their constitution and a copy of 
the last 2 years audited annual accounts where available.

3.4. Period of Award

The period of the award will normally be for the financial year that the 
application was made and will be reviewed on an annual basis thereafter.

3.5. Changes in Liability

The organisation must inform the Council of any change in circumstances, 
which might affect eligibility for relief.

Page 348



rochdale.gov.uk 6

4. Part Occupied Relief

The Council has discretion under Section 44a of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 to allow relief to be provided to a business that is partially 
occupying a property for a short period of time (no more than 6 months), 
typically, but not exclusively, as part of a phased move in or phased move out.

The Council will consider each case on it’s merits and will take into account 
the following;

 The circumstances leading to the part occupation
 The intention of the ratepayer to fully occupy or vacate the premises
 Evidence that is will be empty only for a short period of time
 The financial implications of granting relief

The amount of relief that can be granted will be determined by the Valuation 
Office Agency, who will assign a rateable value to the unoccupied element of 
the property. 

Relief will not be granted if an application is received after the property has 
become fully occupied or fully empty.

5. Hardship Relief

The Council has discretion under Section 49 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988, to give up to 100% relief in exceptional circumstances 
where hardship is being experienced. However, awarding relief can only be 
considered on condition that it would be reasonable to do so having regards 
to the interests of council tax payers in general. 

Hardship must be an unforeseen change in economic circumstances causing 
financial or other difficulties or due to extraordinary external factors causing 
the failure of a business or preventing premises from being re-let or re-
occupied. The main consideration is of the effect a loss of a business will 
have on local council tax payers, e.g. the loss of a major employer or the only 
provider of an essential service in an area.
 
As there is no statutory definition of hardship, the Council decides each case 
on its own merits. When deciding whether to award hardship relief, as well as 
being confident that the organisation is experiencing hardship, the principle 
consideration will be that any relief is in the best interests of the council 
taxpayers, as the Council must bear the cost of any relief granted.

The period for the award to be determined on a case by case basis.

6. Local Business Rate Discount – Government funded temporary reliefs

In the Chancellor’s Budget Statements of 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2020 the 
Government has determined that local authorities can use their discretionary 
powers under Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 to 

Page 349



rochdale.gov.uk 7

provide reliefs to support national initiatives. The reliefs granted will be 
reimbursed in full by Government by way of specific grants to local authorities.

6.1.     Local Newspapers 

£1,500 discount for office space occupied by local newspapers, up to a 
maximum of one discount per local newspaper title and per hereditament, and 
up to state aid limits, for 8 years from 1 April 2017.

6.2 Retail Relief

Properties that have a rateable value below £51,000, are occupied and wholly 
or mainly being used as shops, restaurants, cafes and drinking 
establishments will be eligible to receive a one third discount off their bill. The 
discount is increased to one half from 1 April 2020 and is extended to include 
cinemas and music venues. Further details and the full eligibility criteria are 
available in Appendix 1. The discount is available for 2 years from 1 April 
2019.

6.3 Pub Relief

£1,000 discount for pubs that have a rateable value below £100,000. To be 
eligible, the pub must be open to the general public. Further details and the 
full eligibility criteria are available in Appendix 2. The discount is available for 
1 year from 1 April 2020 and will be awarded in addition to Retail Relief.

6.4 Supporting Small Businesses

This is a scheme for ratepayers who are losing some or all of their small 
business rate relief as a result of a large rateable value increase following the 
2017 revaluation. The scheme is available for 5 years from 1 April 2017.

The Supporting Small Businesses relief will ensure that the increase per year 
in the bills of these ratepayers is limited to the greater of: 

a) An annual percentage increase 5%, 7.5%, 10%, 15% and 15% in the 
financial years 2017/18 to 2021/22, all plus inflation. Unlike the 
transitional relief scheme, for the first year of the scheme the 
percentage increase is taken against the bill for 31 March 2017 after 
small business rate relief, or

b) a cash value of £600 per year (£50 per month). This cash minimum 
increase ensures that those ratepayers paying nothing or very small 
amounts in 2016/17 after small business rate relief are brought into 
paying something. 

In the first year of the scheme (2017/18), this means all ratepayers losing 
some or all of their small business rate relief or rural rate relief will see the 
increase in their bill capped at £600. The cash minimum increase is £600 per 

Page 350



rochdale.gov.uk 8

year thereafter. This means that ratepayers who are currently paying nothing 
under small business rate relief and are losing all of their entitlement to relief 
(i.e. moving from £6,000 rateable value or less to more than £15,000) would 
under this scheme be paying £3,000 in year 5. 

6.5 Discretionary Relief Scheme

The Government has established a £300m discretionary fund over 4 years 
from 2017/18 to support businesses who have experienced a large increase 
in their rateable value following the 2017 revaluation and were most affected 
by the change. The £300m will cover 4 years from April 2017, as follows: 

National Allocation (£300m)
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£175m £85m £35m £5m

Rochdale Allocation (£444k)
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£259k £126k £52k £7k

Government based it’s local allocations on the following:

a) the rateable property has a rateable value for 2017/18 that is less than 
£200,000, and

b) the increase in the rateable property’s 2017/18 bill is more than 12.5% 
compared to its 2016/17 bill (before reliefs).

To qualify for relief, the following conditions must all apply:

 the rateable property has a 2017 rateable value less than £200,000; 
 the rateable property must have been on the Valuation Office Agency 

rating list on 1 April 2016 and 1 April 2017;
 the ratepayer must have been in continual occupation before 1 April 

2017; and
 after all other reliefs have been applied, the increase in the billing 

amount is more than 5% of 2016/17. 

The following are not eligible for relief under this scheme:

 businesses who will benefit from the Supporting Small Businesses 
relief scheme;

 businesses whose increase in the amount they are paying in 2017/18 
compared to 2016/17 is less than £50 per month (£600 per annum), to 
mirror the maximum protection for small businesses in the Supporting 
Small Businesses relief scheme;

 pubs who will benefit from the Support for Pubs relief scheme;

Page 351



rochdale.gov.uk 9

 if the ratepayer does not have employees based in the hereditament on 
which relief is being sought;

 ratepayers operating an intermittent business rate mitigation/avoidance 
scheme;

 ratepayers with an outstanding rateable value appeal with the 
Valuation Office Agency (as the Council will be unable to determine the 
financial impact on the business until the appeal is concluded);

 national companies, national charities and public bodies;
 property owners and/or occupiers with more than one property in the 

Borough, will only be able get this relief on one property; and
 hereditaments wholly or mainly being used as betting shops, payday 

loan shops, pawnbrokers or shisha bars.

Eligible businesses will receive a fixed relief award of £90 in 2020/21.

7.     Local Business Rate Discount – Council determined schemes
     

7.1.  On 15 December 2014 the Council’s Cabinet decided to introduce a local 
discount scheme with the aim of bringing back into use empty properties in 
Rochdale Town Centre to support and sustain the vitality and diversity of 
Yorkshire Street, the western end of Baillie Street, The Walk and South 
Parade. Under the scheme the 23 properties identified would receive a Local 
Business Rates Discount on the remaining liability (after the award of any 
Government reliefs) of 80% in 2015/16 and 50% in 2016/17. At the end of the 
2 year period the discount will stop. Determination and award of any discount 
will be in accordance with the eligibility criteria determined by the Council’s 
Cabinet.

7.2. In March 2016, the Chief Executive used delegated powers to revise the 
Rochdale Town Centre scheme and create discount schemes for Heywood 
and Middleton Town Centres.

7.3. Rochdale Town Centre:
 Existing scheme is to be extended for a third year. Discount to be 80% in 

year 1, 50% in year 2 and 30% in year 3.
 The 3 year period is to run from the date of occupation and not April to 

March each financial year.

7.4. Heywood Town Centre 
 To support and sustain the vitality and diversity of the town centre area 

including Market Street, Market Place, Bridge Street and York Street within 
the defined town centre boundary (excluding units within the shopping 
centre).

 Discount on the remaining liability (after the award of any Government 
reliefs) to be 80% in year 1, 50% in year 2 and 30% in year 3.

 The 3 year period is to run from the date of occupation and not April to 
March each financial year.

Page 352



rochdale.gov.uk 10

7.5. Middleton Town Centre
 To support and sustain the vitality and diversity of Long Street, Wood 

Street, Market Place and Middleton Gardens within the defined town 
centre boundary (excluding units within the shopping centre).

 Discount on the remaining liability (after the award of any Government 
reliefs) to be 80% in year 1, 50% in year 2 and 30% in year 3.

 The 3 year period is to run from the date of occupation and not April to 
March each financial year.

7.6.  On 12 February 2015 the Council’s Cabinet decided to give delegated powers 
to the Chief Executive, in consultation with The Leader of the Council, to grant 
a local business rate discount to support the creation and/or safeguarding of 
jobs in the borough. Any decision will consider the interest of the council tax 
payers in relation to any cost and benefit to the Council and the decision will 
support the strategic objectives of the Council.

8.     Application and Appeals Process

All applications for discretionary non domestic rate relief should be made in 
writing, where possible using the Council’s application forms. It is the 
responsibility of the organisation applying for relief to provide sufficient 
information and documentary evidence to support applications.

If an applicant is dissatisfied with the outcome of their application they can ask 
for a review of that decision by the Chief Finance Officer.

9.      State Aid

State Aid law is the means that regulates state funded support to businesses. 
Financial support from public bodies to businesses could have the potential to 
be anti-competitive and affect trade. 

State Aid rules generally prohibit government subsidies to businesses. 
Providing discretionary rate relief to ratepayers can in some cases be deemed 
to be State Aid. 

There is, however, a general exception to the state aid rule where the aid is 
below a “de minimis” level. The De Minimis Regulations allow an undertaking 
to currently receive up to €200,000 of De Minimis aid in a three year period 
(consisting of the current financial year and the two previous financial years). 
The De Minimis Regulation and limit is subject to update and changes in 
legislation.

To administer De Minimis it is necessary for the Council to establish that the 
award of aid will not result in the undertaking having received more than 
€200,000 of De Minimis aid. The Council will ensure compliance with the legal 
requirements and any permitted exemptions. Each case will be considered 
based on the organisation’s individual circumstances in full consideration of 
the State Aid rules.

Page 353



rochdale.gov.uk 11

Business ratepayers who apply for or receive any discretionary rate relief 
(Section 44a, Section 47 or Section 49) will be required to make a declaration 
if they have or are receiving State Aid. This is particularly likely to affect large 
retail chains where the cumulative discretionary rate relief may cause them to 
exceed the €200,000 de minimus limit. A sample letter and declaration form is 
provided at Appendix 3.

Whilst the UK has left the European Union (EU) on 31 January 2020, the 
Withdrawal Agreement negotiated by the Government and the EU provides 
that during an implementation period State Aid rules will continue to apply as 
now and will be subject to control by the EU Commission as at present. 

10.      Policy Review

This policy will be reviewed periodically, taking into account Council policies 
and priorities and any changes in Government legislation and proposals.

11.  Other National Business Rate Reliefs 

11.1.   Small Business Rates Relief (SBRR)

This relief is intended to help small businesses, as defined by the size of the 
rateable value (RV) of the property occupied. A business is eligible if only one 
property is occupied and the rateable value is below £15,000.

Eligible businesses will receive relief at 100% on properties up to and 
including £12,000 RV and a tapered level of relief from 100% to 0% for 
properties from £12,001 RV up to £14,999 RV.

However, if a property is occupied with a RV of £15,000 but below £50,999, 
another form of SBRR is payable, which entitles the occupier to have their bill 
calculated using the small business multiplier, and this is regardless of the 
number of properties occupied.

11.2. Empty Property Rate Relief (EPRR)

There is an exemption from paying business rates on empty commercial or 
retail property for three months after the property becomes vacant.

However, there are exceptions to this;
 Industrial premises, such as warehouses, are exempt for a further three 

months, making six months in total 
 Listed buildings are exempt until they become occupied again 
 Buildings with a RV under £2,900 are exempt until they become 

occupied again 
 Properties owned by charities are exempt if the property's next use is 

likely to be wholly or mainly for charitable purposes 

Page 354



rochdale.gov.uk 12

 Community amateur sports club buildings are exempt if their next use is 
likely to be wholly or mainly for a sports club 

After the exemption period ends, liability for the full business rate bill 
recommences and another period of empty rate exemption cannot be granted 
unless the property has been occupied for at least six weeks.

11.3. Transitional Relief (TR)

Transitional relief is designed to reduce the impact of any significant changes 
in the RV of a property, either up or down, following a national revaluation of 
properties. 

It is a complicated scheme, but basically, the arrangements help to phase in 
the effects of these changes by limiting the increases in bills. To help pay for 
the limits on increases in bills, there also has to be limits on those properties 
where revaluation leads to reduced bills. The increase or decrease is phased 
in until the correct value is reached.

Page 355



rochdale.gov.uk 13

APPENDIX 1
Retail Relief – Eligibility Criteria

Properties that will benefit from the relief will be occupied hereditaments with a 
rateable value of less than £51,000, that are wholly or mainly being used as shops, 
restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments. From 1 April 2020, cinemas and live 
music venues are also included.

Shops, restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments are considered to mean: 

i. Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of goods to visiting members 
of the public: 

 Shops (such as: florists, bakers, butchers, grocers, greengrocers, jewellers, 
stationers, off licences, chemists, newsagents, hardware stores, 
supermarkets, etc) 

 Charity shops 
 Opticians 
 Post offices 
 Furnishing shops/ display rooms (such as: carpet shops, double glazing, 

garage doors) 
 Car/ caravan show rooms 
 Second hand car lots 
 Markets 
 Petrol stations
 Garden centres 
 Art galleries (where art is for sale/hire) 

ii. Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following 
services to visiting members of the public: 

 Hair and beauty services (such as: hair dressers, nail bars, beauty salons, 
tanning shops, etc)

 Shoe repairs/ key cutting 
 Travel agents 
 Ticket offices e.g. for theatre 
 Dry cleaners 
 Launderettes 
 PC/ TV/ domestic appliance repair 
 Funeral directors 
 Photo processing 
 Tool hire 
 Car hire 

iii. Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of food and/or drink to 
visiting members of the public: 

 Restaurants 
 Takeaways 
 Sandwich shops 
 Coffee shops 

Page 356



rochdale.gov.uk 14

 Pubs 
 Bars

iv. Hereditaments which are being used as cinemas 

v. Hereditaments that are being used as live music venues: 
 Live music venues are hereditaments wholly or mainly used for the performance 

of live music for the purpose of entertaining an audience. Hereditaments cannot 
be considered a live music venue for the purpose of business rates relief where a 
venue is wholly or mainly used as a nightclub or a theatre, for the purposes of the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended). 

Hereditaments can be a live music venue even if used for other activities, but 
only if those other activities (i) are merely ancillary or incidental to the 
performance of live music (e.g. the sale/supply of alcohol to audience members) 
or (ii) do not affect the fact that the primary activity for the premises is the 
performance of live music (e.g. because those other activities are insufficiently 
regular or frequent, such as a polling station or a fortnightly community event). 

There may be circumstances in which it is difficult to tell whether an activity is a 
performance of live music or, instead, the playing of recorded music. 

Although we would expect this would be clear in most circumstances, guidance 
on this may be found in Chapter 16 of the statutory guidance issued in April 2018 
under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

To qualify for the relief the hereditament should be wholly or mainly being used as a 
shop, restaurant, cafe or drinking establishment. In a similar way to other reliefs 
(such as charity relief), this is a test on use rather than occupation. Therefore, 
hereditaments which are occupied but not wholly or mainly used for the qualifying 
purpose will not qualify for the relief. 

The lists set out above are not intended to be exhaustive as it would be impossible to 
list the many and varied retail uses that exist. There will also be mixed uses. 
However, it is intended to be a guide as to the types of uses that Government 
considers for this purpose to be retail. Conversely, properties that are not broadly 
similar in nature to those listed above should not be eligible for the relief. 

The lists below set out the types of uses that the Government does not consider to 
be retail use for the purpose of this relief. 

i. Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following services 
to visiting members of the public: 

 Financial services (e.g. banks, building societies, cash points, bureaux de 
change, payday lenders, betting shops, pawn brokers) 

 Other services (e.g. estate agents, letting agents, employment agencies) 
 Medical services (e.g. vets, dentists, doctors, osteopaths, chiropractors) 
 Professional services (e.g. solicitors, accountants, insurance agents/ financial 

advisers, tutors) 
 Post office sorting offices 

Page 357



rochdale.gov.uk 15

ii. Hereditaments that are not reasonably accessible to visiting members of the 
public 
Generally speaking, the Government also does not consider other assembly or 
leisure uses beyond those listed above to be retail uses for the purpose of the 
discount. For example, cinemas, theatres and museums are outside the scope of the 
scheme, as are nightclubs and music venues which are not similar in nature to the 
hereditaments described above. Hereditaments used for sport or physical recreation 
(e.g. gyms) are also outside the scope of the discount. Where there is doubt, 
discretion should be exercised with reference to the above and knowledge of the 
local tax base. 

How much relief will be available? 
The total amount of government-funded relief available for each property for 2019-20 
under this scheme is one third of the bill, after mandatory reliefs and other 
discretionary reliefs funded by Government grants have been applied, excluding 
those where local authorities have used their discretionary relief powers introduced 
by the Localism Act which are not funded by Government grants. For 2020-21 the 
relief is one half of the bill. 

There is no relief available under this scheme for properties with a rateable value of 
£51,000 or more.

The eligibility for the relief and the relief itself will be assessed and calculated on a 
daily basis.

Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to relief for each of 
their eligible properties, subject to State Aid De Minimis limits.

Page 358



rochdale.gov.uk 16

APPENDIX 2
Pub Relief – Eligibility Criteria

The scheme will be available to eligible occupied properties with a rateable value of 
less than £100,000. The majority of pubs are independently owned or managed and 
will not be part of chains. Where pubs are part of a chain, relief will be available for 
each eligible property in the chain, subject to meeting State Aid requirements. 

There is no definitive description of a traditional pub or public house in law which 
could be readily used by local authorities to determine eligibility. The objective has 
been to adopt an approach that makes the design and eligibility of the scheme easy 
to implement by local authorities in a clear and consistent way, is widely accepted by 
the industry and which is consistent with the Government’s policy intention as set out 
in this section. 

The Government’s policy intention is that eligible pubs should: 

 be open to the general public
 allow free entry other than when occasional entertainment is provided 
 allow drinking without requiring food to be consumed 
 permit drinks to be purchased at a bar.

For these purposes, it should exclude:

 restaurants
 cafes
 nightclubs
 hotels
 snack bars
 guesthouses
 boarding houses
 sporting venues
 music venues
 festival sites
 theatres
 museums
 exhibition halls
 cinemas
 concert halls
 casinos

The proposed exclusions in the list above is not intended to be exhaustive. The 
Council aready has a good understanding of the licensed premises in our area and 
will be able to readily form a view on eligibility in the majority of cases. 

Where eligibility is unclear we will also consider broader factors in ourr 
considerations – i.e., in meeting the stated intent of policy that it demonstrates the 
characteristics that would lead it to be classified as a pub, for example being owned 
and operated by a brewery. We may also wish to consider other methods of 

Page 359



rochdale.gov.uk 17

classification, such as the planning system and the use classes in order to help tus 
decide whether a property is a pub or not. However, permission for a particular use 
class will not necessarily mean that the property meets the definition of a pub. 

How much relief will be available? 

The total amount of government-funded relief available in the year 2020/21 under 
this scheme is £1,000 per eligible property. There is no relief available under this 
scheme for properties with a rateable value of £100,000 or more. Eligibility for the 
relief and the relief itself will be assessed and calculated on a daily basis. 

This relief should be applied to bills after mandatory reliefs and other discretionary 
reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied, including the retail discount, 
but excluding those where we have used our discretionary relief powers under 
section 47 which are not funded by section 31 grants.2 We may use our 
discretionary powers to offer further discounts outside this scheme. However, where 
we apply a locally funded relief under section 47 this is must also be applied after the 
pubs discount. 

Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to relief for each of 
their eligible properties, subject to State Aid De Minimis limits. 

Page 360



rochdale.gov.uk 18

APPENDIX 3

Dear Sir or Madam,

State Aid

Discretionary rate relief awards are required to comply with the law on State Aid. In 
this case, this involves returning the attached declaration to this authority if you have 
received any other De Minimis State Aid, including any other discretionary rate relief 
you are being granted for premises other than the one to which this letter relates, 
and confirming that the award of discretionary rate relief does not exceed the 
€200,000 an undertaking can receive under the De Minimis Regulations.

In terms of declaring previous De Minimis aid, we are only interested in public 
support which is De Minimis aid (State Aid received under other exemptions or public 
support which is not State Aid does not need to be declared).
 
If you have not received any other De Minimis State Aid, including any other 
discretionary rate relief you are being granted for premises other than the one 
to which this letter relates, you do not need to complete or return the 
declaration.
 
If you wish to refuse to receive discretionary rate relief granted in relation to the 
premises to which this letter relates, please complete the attached form and return it 
to the address above. You do not need to complete the De Minimus declaration. This 
may be particularly relevant to those premises that are part of a large retail chain, 
where the cumulative total of discretionary rate relief received could exceed 
€200,000.
 
Under the rules, you must retain this letter for 3 years and produce it on any request 
by the United Kingdom public authorities or the European Commission. (You may 
need to keep this letter longer than 3 years for other purposes). Furthermore, 
information on this aid must be supplied to any other public authority or agency 
asking for information on ‘De Minimis’ aid for the next three years.

Whilst the UK is scheduled to leave the European Union (EU) on 31 January 2020, 
the Withdrawal Agreement negotiated by the Government and the EU provides that 
during an implementation period State aid rules will continue to apply as now and will 
be subject to control by the EU Commission as at present. Local authorities should 
therefore continue to apply State aid rules, including De Minimis, to the relief during 
the implementation period. 

Page 361



rochdale.gov.uk 19

‘DE MINIMIS’ DECLARATION 
 
BUSINESS RATES ACCOUNT NUMBER: ________________________________

The value of the business rates retail relief to be provided to: 

___________________________________________________ (name of business) 

by Rochdale Borough Council is:

£_____________________    Euros €_________________     (amount of rate relief)

This award shall comply with law on State Aid on the basis that, including this award, 
shall not receive more than €200,000 in total of De Minimis aid within the current 
financial year or the previous two financial years. 

Please list all previously received De Minimis aid below, including the total amount of 
this and any other discretionary rate relief you are being granted.

Amount of De 
Minimis aid

Date of aid Organisation 
providing aid 

Nature of aid 

€

€

€

I confirm that I am authorised to sign on behalf of:

___________________________________________________ (name of business); 

and shall not exceed its De Minimis threshold by accepting Relief. 

SIGNATURE: ____________________________________ DATE: _____________

NAME: ______________________________________________

POSITION: ___________________________________________

ADDRESS: _________________________________________________________
 

Page 362



rochdale.gov.uk 20

REFUSAL OF DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF FORM

Name and address of 
premises 

Business rates account 
number 

Amount of Relief 

I confirm that I wish to refuse discretionary rate relief in relation to the above 
premises. 

I confirm that I am authorised to sign on behalf of:

______________________________________________________ (name of business)

SIGNATURE: ____________________________________ DATE: _____________

NAME: ______________________________________________

POSITION: ___________________________________________

ADDRESS: 
___________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

Page 363



Document is Restricted

Page 364

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 369

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 371

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 376

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Work Programme 2019/2020
	7 Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update

	8 Finance Update Report 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Finance Update Report 2019/20

	9 Collection Fund 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Collection Fund 2019/20

	10 Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21
	Append. 1 for Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21

	11 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy for 2020/21
	Append. 1 for Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy for 2020/21

	12 Budget 2020/21 - 2022/23 - Local Government Act 2003 Requirements
	13 Discretionary Fees & Charges
	Append. 1 for Discretionary Fees & Charges

	14 Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21
	Append. 1 for Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21

	15 Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 – Update Following Consultation
	Append. 1 for Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 – Update Following Consultation
	Append. 2 for Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 – Update Following Consultation

	16 2020/21 Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy
	Appendix 1 - Draft 2020/21 Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy

	18 Property Investments – Performance & Risk Q3 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Property Investments – Performance & Risk Q3 2019/20
	pgf report from june 19
	pgf qppendix


